
City of Las Vegas
1700 N. Grand Avenue I Las Vegas, NM 877011 T 505.454.1401 I Iasvegasnm.gov

Madam Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Giràn
CITY OF LAS VEGAS

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
November 20, 2019—Wednesday— 6:00 p.m.

City Council Chambers
1700 N. Grand Avenue

(The City Council shall act as the Housing Authority Board of
Commissioners on any matters on the Agenda concerning the Housing
Department.)

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

IV. MOMENT OF SILENCE

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

VI. APPROVAL OF MINUTES (October 9th Work Session, and October
16th, 2019 Regular)

VII. MAYOR’S APPOINTMENTS/REPORTS

VIII. MAYOR’S RECOGNITIONS/PROCLAMATIONS

IX. PUBLIC INPUT
(not to exceed 3 minutes per person and persons must sipn up at least
fifteen (15) minutes prior to meeting)

X. PRESENTATIONS (Not to exceed 10 minutes per person)

• Presentation by Police Chief David T. Bibb Ill on two (2) Certified
Police Officers.

XI. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

• Presentation on 2019 Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste Utility
Rate Assessment Study by Stantec project manager Georgette
Aronow.

XII. FINANCE REPORT

David Ulibarri Vince Howell Barbara Perea-Casey David G. Romero
Councilor Ward 1 Councilor Ward 2 Councilor Ward 3 Councilor Ward 4



XIII. CONSENT AGENDA
(Items may be moved to New Business at the request of any Councilor
with approval of the Governing Body)

1. Approval of out of state travel to Canon City, Colorado.

David T. Bibb III, Chiefof Police Clock Armorer School/Training will
be held in Canon City Colorado on December 9-10, 2019. Our firearms
instructor will be attending this training.

2. Approval of out of state travel to Quantico, Virginia.

David T. Bibb III, Police Chief FBI National Academy will be held in
Quantico, Virginia January 4, 2020 through March 15, 2020. One Police
Commander will be attending.

3. Approval to reject Bid 2020-03 Rocky Road Construction due to bid
being over budget.

Daniel Gurule, Interim Public Works Director The City of Las Vegas
had a bid opening on 10/30/19 for the Mountain View Ave., Keen St.
and West National St. Reconstruction in which the single contractors
bid, was over budget.

XIV. BUSINESS ITEMS

1. Approval/Disapproval to adopt Resolution 19-55 for Administrative and
Financial Support including a $48,000 cash match tbr the FY 2019 New
Mexico Mainstreet (NMMS) Capital Outlay Public Infrastructure funding
for the “Great Blocks on MainStreet:” Railroad Avenue Phase II Grant
Application.

Robert Archuleta, Grant Writer The City of Las Vegas in collaboration
with Main Street de Las Vegas submitted a grant application request,
written and prepared by Michael Peranteau in the amount of $400,000 for
Capital Outlay funding for the Great Blocks project in the railroad district.
NMMS requires a $48.000 match.

2. Approval/Disapproval to review and certify Fixed Assets/Inventories.

Tana Vega, Interim Finance Director The City of Las Vegas has
compiled the 2019 Fixed Assets and Inventories and is ready to be
reviewed and approved by Mayor and Council.

2



3. Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 19-57.

Tuna Vega, Interim Finance Director The City of Las Vegas is
requesting increases to the FY2020 Budgeted revenues and expenditures,
transfers to and from within various funds of the FY2020 Budget.

XV. COUNCILORS’ REPORTS

XVI. EXECUTIVE SESSION

THE COUNCIL MAY CONVENE INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION IF
SUBJECT MATTER OF ISSUES ARE EXEMPT FROM THE OPEN
MEETINGS REQUIREMENT UNDER § (H) OF THE OPEN MEETINGS
ACT.

A. Personnel matters, as permitted by Section 10-15-1 (II) (2) of the New
Mexico Open Meetings Act, NMSA 1978.

B. Matters subject to the attorney client privilege pertaining to
threatened or pending litigation in which the City of Las Vegas is or
may become a participant, as permitted by Section 10-15-1 (H) (7) of
the New Mexico Open Meetings Act, NMSA 1978.

C. Matters pertaining to the discussion of the sale and acquisition of real
property, as permitted by Section 10-15-1 (H) (8) of the Open
Meetings Act, NMSA 1978.

XVII. ADJOURN

ATTENTION PERSONS WITH DISABILITES: The meeting room and facilities
are accessible to persons with mobility disabilities. If you plan to attend the meeting
and will need an auxiliary aid or service, please contact the City Clerk’s Office prior
to the meeting so that arrangements may be made.

ATTENTION PERSONS ATTENDING COUNCIL MEETING: By entering the
City Chambers, you consent to photography, audio recording, video recording and
its/their use for inclusion on the City of Las Vegas Web-site, and to be televised on
Comcast.

NOTE: A final agenda will be posted 72 hours prior to the meeting. Copies of the
Agenda may be obtained from City’ Hall, Office of the City Clerk, 1700 N. Grand
Avenue, Las Vegas, NM 87701



MINUTES OF THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION MEETING
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 9, 2019 AT 5:30 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL
CHAMBERS

MAYOR: Ton ita Gurulé-Girón

COUNCILORS: David G. Romero
Barbara A. Casey
Vincent Howell
David A. Ulibarri, Jr.

ALSO PRESENT: Ann Marie Gallegos, Interim City Manager
Danielle Sena, Recorder
Esther Garduno Montoya, City Attorney
Martin Gallegos, Deputy Police Chief

CALL TO ORDER

Meeting was called to order at 5:30 PM

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

MOMENT OF SILENCE

Councilor Howell asked to keep our community members that have passed in the
last month in our thoughts and to keep in mind to pray for our Country with all
the decisions being made within the Nation and to pray for our leaders to make
sure they make the right decisions.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

1



Councilor Casey made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. Councilor
Howell seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call
Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David A Ulibarri, Jr. Yes Vincent Howell Yes
David G. Romero Yes Barbara Casey Yes

Recorder Danielle Sena re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

PUBLIC INPUT

No one for public input

DISCUSSION ITEMS

1. Resolution No. 19-52, 2020 Election Resolution (English and Spanish).

Deputy Clerk Danielle Sena advised she was there to seek approval for resolution
19-52 in both English and Spanish for the upcoming 2020 Election.

The governing body agreed to place the item as a consent agenda item.

2. Recommendation of Awarding bid 2020-01 for the Senior Center North
Parking Lot to Pacheco Construction.

Interim Public Works Director Danny Gurule advised he recommended the award
of bid #2020-01 for the Senior Center North Parking Lot. Interim Public Works
Director Gurule advised Pacheco Construction were the only bidders and are in
good standing with the State.

Councilor Romero asked for the record was it advertised.

Interim Public Works Director advised it was published in the Albuquerque Journal
and the Optic.

The governing body agreed to place the item as a consent agenda item.

3. Funding from the Bulletproof Vest Partnership in the amount of $1566.72.

2



Deputy Police Chief Martin Gallegos advised the Police Department has been

getting the funding for many years and advised the most important item a Police

Officer wears is a bulletproof vest and keeps them safe not only from gun fire but

also from accidents or the occasional confrontation.

Deputy Police Chief Gallegos advised it is a 50/50 match and are asking for the

approval of $1566.72 to make the purchases of the vests.

Councilor Howell asked how many bulletproof vests would be purchased.

Deputy Police Chief Gallegos advised they would be buying three vests and it’s

done every year and is not a hardship of any type whereas if they waited to buy

vests when they are supposed to be replaced.

Councilor Howell asked how many current vests they have.

Deputy Police Chief Gallegos advised they have approximately thirty seven that

are worn continuously and two or three that are extra.

Councilor Howell asked what the shelf life was.

Deputy Police Chief Gallegos advised five years.

Councilor Howell asked when was the last time they purchased vests and how old

the oldest vest was.

Deputy Police Chief Gallegos advised they purchased three last year and the

oldest vest would probably be his at about six or seven years.

The governing body agreed to place the item as a consent agenda item.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón advised before they moved on she wanted to thank

Utilities Director Maria Gilvarry and Interim City Manager Ann Marie Gallegos for

a successful Amnesty Day.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Interim City Manager Ann Marie Gallegos advised there was no need for executive
session.

3



Councilor Howell advised Councilor Romero and himself were speaking in regards
to seventy thousand dollars received from the Legislature for El Creston Circle and
if they have used it or have done any type of drawdowns on it.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised it was awarded effective July 1st, and they
did have someone go assess the playground to see what was needed.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised they are in the planning stages and may
need additional funding and will have to look at the cost to fund the playground.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised they are meeting with the community in El
Creston Circle to see what they want and advised they have four years to spend
that money.

Councilor Howell advised he spoke with someone regarding El Creston Circle and
that they have the opportunity to speak to the Legislators in regards to obtaining
more funds but are worried the City won’t use the funds they have received.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised they have been communicating with Leroy
Uriosté as well as staff working out the plans for the playground and advised he
indicated that he may request additional funding but are in the process of geffing
estimates for the playground equipment.

Councilor Howell asked if Interim City Manager Gallegos had given him an update.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised they spoke yesterday.

ADJOURN

Councilor Casey made a motion to adjourn. Councilor Ulibarri, Jr., seconded the
motion. Mayor Gurulé-GirOn asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and
reflected the following:

Vincent Howell Yes Barbara Casey Yes
David G. Romero Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Recorder Danielle Sena re-read the motion and advised that the motion carried.

4



Mayor Tonita Gurulé-GirOn

ATTEST:

Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk

5



MINUTES OF THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING HELD
ON WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2019 AT 6:00 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL
CHAMBERS

MAYOR: Tonita Gurulé-Girón

COUNCILORS: Vincent Howell
Barbara A. Casey
David G. Romero
David A. Ulibarri, Jr.

ALSO PRESENT: Ann Marie Gallegos, Interim City Manager
Marcia Ludi, Recorder
Esther Garduno Montoya, City Attorney
Steve Pacheco, Sergeant at Arms

Meeting began at 6:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

MOMENT OF SILENCE

Councilor Howell asked to keep in mind, community members who had recently
passed also for those who were hurting and asked for prayers for those who were
ill. He asked the Lord to give them, as leaders, the guidance to make good
decisions that would help better the community and stated it was so important
for the community to thrive.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

Councilor Ulibarri, Jr. made a motion to approve the agenda as. Councilor Casey
and Councilor Howell seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll
call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes

1



Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve the minutes of September 11th, Work
Session and September 18, 2019, Regular, with minor adjustments. Councilor
Ulibarri, Jr. and Councilor Howell seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón
asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

MAYOR’S APPOINTMENTS/ REPORTS

Mayor Guru lé-Girón advised she had no appointments although stated Susie
Tsyitee would give a brief report.

Ms. Tsyitee advised that the Las Vegas Arts Council was working on adding a mural
in the back addition of their building and with consulting with the community,
came up with the idea to ask Zach Lujan to design it and it would be named: “The
Message is Music”, to honor our musicians. She stated that it would be a
gorgeous gateway to Bridge Street, that the Community Foundation had raised
$1,000.00 for the project and would be asking the youth in the community to
participate. She asked Council for permission to move forward.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón directed Ms. Tsyitee to contact Interim City Manager Gallegos
and Interim Community Development Director Marrujo and they would guide her
through the process.

Mayor Gurulé-GirOn advised that she had provided a response to Council in
regards to the two agenda items that had been submitted by Councilor Casey and
she had reviewed a lot of the policies and regulations for the City regarding
repealing, amending or rescinding any of the actual Rules of Procedure through
the governing body. She stated “one of the requirements that would have to be
met before it is put on the agenda, is the notice of intended proposal, so I did not

2



put it on the agenda for that reason, I did discuss that briefly with Councilor Casey,
I think we both kind of concur that there might be some questions with regards to
that process, so we have to ensure that we follow that process, consistent with
the Charter and with the laws and the ordinances of the City of Las Vegas”. She
added that they would have to go through hearings, comments received regarding
the proposal would have to be posted, allowing transparency to the community
and follow procedure.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón spoke about restructuring Rules of Procedure, the City
Charter and city code in order to apply consistency and stated that the
requirement of the notice of intended proposal was not met therefore not placed
on the agenda.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked Council for a consensus to give direction to the City
Attorney to move forward with further review of the restructure.

Councilor Romero stated “that was one of the recommendations made at the time
City Attorney Garduno Montoya was hired”.

City Attorney Esther Garduno Montoya advised that they had talked about the
Charter Commission, updating the Charter and also mentioned was the Rules of
Procedure and how they were inconsistent with the Charter as well as the City’s
code.

Councilor Romero thanked her for her response although stated that obviously
this was a recommendation by the state auditor, that this matter be taken care of
by this Council.

Lengthy discussion took place on the need to address the restructure of the City
Charter and the concerns of the New Mexico State Auditor.

Interim City Manager Ann Marie Gallegos advised there was a letter received in
mid June from the state auditor regarding the Governing Body Rules of Procedure
and there were two or three other items that he requested that they address. She
stated that he wrote that memorandum specific to the City’s auditor record and
informed that they were still going through the audit at this point, had not been
completed and had not met with him on those issues although he did plan to
come back and meet with them on the four items he wanted reviewed.

3



Councilor Casey advised that it was a subsequent letter that was sent to the
Governing Board and Interim City Manager and was specific to Resolution 02-17,
which was the Governing Body Rules of Procedure. She stated that was what she
was basing her agenda request on and she did what she could on her request
based on the very convoluted language of the Governing Body Rules of Procedure,
which needed to be addressed, she did not have a problem with this and wanted
to make sure it was done right. Councilor Casey stated that she was shocked with
the poorly written Governing Body Rules of Procedure, was embarrassed that it
was on the City’s website and that her request was intended to repeal the entire
thing, to start again with new rules that they could all agree to.

Mayor Gurulé-GirOn stated that anything brought back to Council regarding the
Governing Body Rules of Procedure needed to meet the notice of intent rule.

Councilor Howell referred to the State Auditor’s statement in the followup letter
regarding that the Governing Body Rules of Procedure was an impediment for the
Council to regain their autonomy as Councilors. He thought it was a very insightful
comment that he made in his evaluation analysis on what he had seen with this
governing body, that was why this agenda request was submitted and Council
would do what they needed to do, expeditiously.

Councilor Ulibarri, Jr. inaudible 18:05

Mayor Gurulé-GirOn asked if there was a consensus for the City Attorney inaudible
18:18 to follow up with this procedure.

Councilor Howell asked “exactly what are we asking her to do?’’

Mayor Gurulé-Girón stated that based on her memo, after reviewing the agenda
request and her 10 years on the Council, that they would direct her to restructure
so they could read the actual background rationale on page 2, to look at the actual
procedure and how they could restructure and streamline/update the policies.

The Governing Body agreed to a consensus regarding City Attorney Garduno
Montoya to restructure of the Governing Body Rules of Procedure.

Councilor Howell requested that Councilor’s comments be given to City Attorney
in regards to the restructure.

4



Mayor Gurulé-Girón stated that comments from Council would be brought up
during Public Hearings opened up to the public.

Councilor Romero asked Mayor if he could have the list of requirements in regards
to the need of Public Hearings to restructure the Governing Body Rules of
Procedure.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón advised that City Attorney was going to check into that, and
that this was her analysis after her review, that she was not sure what they had
done in the past and recalled this was under the public comment/public hearing
process and under Charter Rule process.

MAYOR’S RECOGNITIONS/ PROCLAMATIONS

Mayor Gurulé-Girón advised she would be presenting at a later time, a
proclamation for the Hunger Crop Walk and invited everyone to attend the event
on October 26, 2019.

PUBLIC INPUT

Wid Slick gave a detailed presentation for the Lodger’s Tax fiscal year ending June
30th, regarding tourism economy and collections, tourist related projects that
resulted from the 1% Lodger’s tax increase and increases for the current fiscal
year. He stated that Lodger’s Tax Advisory Board had two vacancies and asked
Council to please fill those vacancies in order to recommend winter advertising.

Lab Sanchez spoke regarding his concern of police vehicles not being numbered in
order to report the police on their infractions and that he felt that a certain Police
Officer might be commuting/speeding back and forth from Las Vegas to Glorieta
or Rowe and felt that was an abuse of taxpayer money and asked if they could
look into that. Mr. Sanchez asked if the volume could be raised during Council
meetings as he was having trouble hearing the Governing Body speak. He stated
that past Reporter, David Guiliani was very concerned about public/community
information and wished it was still that way and added that the Utilities
Department Director falsely accuses people of having water leaks, he felt that it
was a disgrace and should be corrected.

5



Brief discussion took place regarding police vehicles being numbered and Mayor
Gurulé-Girón asked Interim City Manager Gallegos to follow up on that with Chief
of Police David Bibb.

PRESENTATIONS

Commander Pam Sandoval presented and recognized three police personnel for
their accomplishments and for their completion of the NM Department of Public
Safety Telecommunications Academy as Certified Communication Specialists
which included: Shannon Ortiz, Diane Torrez and Angelica Stockton.

Mayor Gurulé-GirOn congratulated and thanked them for taking on the duty of
dispatcher, which was a stressful job and welcomed the new hires to the City of
Las Vegas.

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT

Interim City Manager Gallegos gave a detailed report of upcoming projects/events
as follows:

-Fiesta Council Report (presented by Tana Vega) -Tree Lighting Ceremony, Decoration Contest, Light
-Legislative requests; submit priorities Parade
-ICIP Priority projects; submit priorities -Employee Safety Training
-CDBG funding (Capital Improvement funds) -Recreation Ctr: 170 enrolled-After School Program,
-Plaza Merchants/Film 2nd Mtg. 10.18.19 at 1:30 @ RD. 24 enrolled-YABL Program
-CLV Hospitality Top Hat Awards-3 Nominations -1st Comprehensive Master Plan Meeting (TBD)
-City of Las Vegas Halloween Events
-Fundraiser (Santa in the Park)

Councilor Romero asked how legislative requests from outside the City were
streamlined and how the City could be made aware of them.

Interim Finance Director Tan Vega explained that if those requests were honored
by the Legislature, someone had to serve as fiscal agent, being that they were
from the City locality, the City was entrusted with being the fiscal agent and
ensuring that the funds were spent according to procurement code.

Discussion took place regarding legislative requests sponsors and the process of
locating them.

6



FINANCE REPORT

Interim Finance Director Tana Vega presented the Finance report for the month
ending September 30, 2019 (25% of Year Lapsed), reporting General Fund
Revenue at 25% ($2,864,632) and expenditures at 19% ($2,460,540). She
informed Enterprise Funds revenue came in at 20% ($3,492,612) and expenditures
at 16% ($3,267,789). Ms. Vega reported the Recreation Department revenue was
at 19% ($122,666), decreased from last year, due to being closed for roof repair
and expenditures came in at 21% ($151,346).

Councilor Romero asked, based off of the last revenue at the Recreation Center,
was that going to affect the overall function of the center.

Interim Finance Director Vega advised that it would not, due to generating funds
from the Afterschool Program/YABL sponsor fees and from cash balances at the
end of the year and that would cover the one month shortage.

Councilor Casey thanked Interim Finance Director Vega for providing the changed
format of the check listings and had questions on two vendors being paid out.

Interim Finance Director Vega provided the information asked by Councilor Casey.

Questions and discussion took place regarding an independent party inspecting
the roof repair at the Recreation Center.

Interim Finance Director Vega presented the Financial Fiesta Report, reporting
total income at $99,666.86 and total expenditures at $107,026.86.

Lengthy discussion took place regarding film permit fees collected by the City of
Las Vegas and compensation paid out to businesses by the film production
companies.

CONSENT AGENDA

Recorder Marcia Ludi read the Consent Agenda (Items 1-3) into the record as
follows:

1. Approval of Resolution No. 19-52, 2020 Election Resolution (English and
Spanish).

7



Resolution 19-52 was presented as follows:
ELECTION RESOLUTION

CITY OF LAS VEGAS

Resolution No. 19-52

Whereas, pursuant to NMSA 1978, Section 1-22-4(A), a notice of regular election is
required.

Be it resolved by the governing body of the City of Las Vegas that:

A. A regular municipal election for the election of municipal officers shall be held on March
3, 2020. Polls will open at 7:00 A.M. and close 7:00 RM.

B. At the regular municipal election, persons shall be elected to fill the following elective
offices:

1. One (1) Mayor for a four (4) year term.

2. Ward 2 — One (1) Councilor for a four (4) year term.

3. Ward 3 — One (1) Councilor for a four (4) year term.

C. In accordance with NMSA 1978 §1-3-4B, the following precincts are consolidated for the
regular municipal election:

CPO1: Consists of precincts 27, 4B, 26, 3B, 4A, 5.2, 28, 25, 5.1, 6, 2, 7, 3A, 1, 8, 11

D. The following locations are designated as polling places for the conduct of the regular
municipal election:

1. Robertson High School Michael Marr Gymnasium, 1238 4th Street

2. West Las Vegas “GiIlie Lopez” Gymnasium, 157 Moreno Street

E. Absentee Voting. Applications for absentee ballots may be obtained only from the office
of the Municipal Clerk. All applications for an absentee ballot must be completed and
accepted by the Municipal Clerk prior to 5:00 p.m., February 28, 2020. After 5:00 p.m.
on February 28, 2020, all unused absentee ballots will be publicly destroyed by the
Municipal Clerk. The Municipal Clerk will accept completed absentee ballots delivered
by mail, or in person by the voter casting the absentee ballot, by a member of the
voters’ immediate family, or by the caregiver of the voter, until 7:00 p.m. on March 3,
2020.

8



Absentee ballots may be marked in person in the office of the Municipal Clerk during the
regular hours and days of business, beginning on Tuesday, February 4, 2020 and closing
at 5:00 p.m. on February 28, 2020.

Early Voting. Early voting on paper ballots counted by electronic vote tabulator will be
conducted in the office of the Municipal Clerk during the regular hours and days of
business, beginning on Tuesday, February 4, 2020 and closing at 5:00 p.m. on Friday,
February 28, 2020. The City Clerk’s Office will also be open on Saturday, February 29,
2020 between the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m.

F. Persons desiring to register at the regular municipal election must register with the
County Clerk of San Miguel County not later than Tuesday, February 4, 2020 at 5:00
p.m., the date on which the County Clerk will close registration books.

G. All Declarations of Candidacy shall be filed with the Municipal Clerk on Tuesday, January
7, 2020 between the hours of 9:00 A.M. and 5:00 P.M.

H. The casting of votes by qualified electors shall be recorded on electronic tabulators.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED THIS

______

day of . 2019.

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón

ATTEST:

Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk

RESOLUCION DE ELECCION
CIUDAD DE LAS VEGAS

Resolución ntim. 19-52

Mientras que, de conformidad con NMSA 1978, sección 1-22-4(A), se requiere un aviso
de elección regular.

Sea resuelto por el cuerpo gobernante de Las Vegas que:

A. Una elección municipal regular para Ia elección de oficiales municipales se llevará a cabo
el 3 de marzo de 2020. Lugares de votación estarán abiertas al püblico entre las horas
de las 7:00 A.M. y las 7:00 P.M.

9



B. En las elección municipal regular, individuos serán elegidos para ocupar los siguientes
cargos electivos:

1. UN Alcalde por un término de cuatro años.

2. El barrio 2— UN Concejal por un término de cuatro años.

3. El barrio 3 — UN Concejal por un término de cuatro años.

C. De conformidad NMSA 1978 §1-3-4B, se consolidan las siguientes casillas:

CPO1: Es compone de distritos 27, 4B, 26, 3B, 4A, 5.2, 28, 25, 5.1, 6, 2, 7, 3A, 1, 8, 11

D. Las siguientes ubicaciones son designadas como centros electorales para el conducto de
Ia elección municipal:

1. Escuela Secundaria de Robertson gimnasio de Michael Marr, calle 1238 4th.

2. Escuela Secundaria de Las Vegas Oeste gimnasio de Gillie Lopez, calle 157 Moreno.

E. Votación en Ausencia. Solicitudes para obtener balotas para votar en ausencia pueden
ser obtenidas ünicamente de Ia oficina de Ia Escribana de Ia Municipalidad. La Escribana
de Ia Municipalidad debe Ilevar y aceptar todas las solicitudes para obtener una balota
para votar en ausencia antes de las 5:00 p.m. el 28 de febrero de 2020. A partir de las
5:00 p.m. el 28 de febrero de 2020, Ia Escribana de Ia Municipalidad püblicamente
destruirá todas las balotas no utilizadas. La Escribana de Ia Municipalidad aceptará las
balotas completadas por Ia votante que emite su balota, con el fin de votar en ausencia,
que se le entregue por correo o en persona o por un miembro de Ia familia inmediata
del votante, o del conserje al votante hasta las 7:00 p.m. el 3 de marzo de 2020.

Las balotas para votar en ausencia se pueden marcar en persona en Ia oficina de Ia
Escribana de Ia Municipalidad, durante las horas y dIas hábiles, empezando el martes, 4
de febrero de 2020 y terminando a las 5:00 p.m. el viernes, 28 de febrero de 2020.

VotaciOn or AnticiQado. El recuento de los votos por anticipado, de papeleta, se llevará
a cabo por un tabulador electrónico en Ia oficina de Ia Escribana de Ia Municipalidad,
durante las horas y dIas hábiles, empezando el martes, 4 de Febrero de 2020 y
terminando a las 5:00 p.m. el viernes, 28 de febrero de 2020. Oficina de Ia Escribana de
Ia Municipalidad también abrirá en sábado, 29 de febrero de 2020 entre el horario de las
10:00 a.m. y las 6:00 p.m.

F. Las personas que deseen registrarse para votar en Ia elección municipal regular, tienen
que registrarse con Ia Escribana del condado de San Miguel condado antes del martes de
4 de Febrero de 2020 a Escribana del Condado cerrara los libros del registro.

10



G. Se archivará todas las Declaraciones de Candidatura con Ia Escribana Municipal el
martes, 7 de Enero de 2020 entre las horas de las 9:00 A.M. y las 5:00 P.M.

H. Se archivará un record de los votos de los electores municipales calificados en papeletas,
de las cuales se hará un recuento por tabuladores electrónicos.

Adoptada y aprobada este dIa

_______de ________________________de

2019.

Alcalde

Da fe:

Escribano Municipal

2. Approval of awarding bid 2020-01 for the Senior Center North Parking Lot
to Pacheco Construction.

3. Approval of funding from the Bulletproof Vest Partnership in the amount of
$1566.72.

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as read into the
record. Councilor Ulibarri, Jr. seconded the motion. Mayor asked for roll call. Roll
Call Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

BUSINESS ITEMS

1. Conduct a Public Hearing and Approval/Disapproval to adopt Ordinance No.
19-04, Passenger Behavior for the City of Las Vegas Meadow City Express.

Councilor Casey made a motion to go into Public Hearing. Councilor Howell
seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was
taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

11



Motion carried.

City Attorney Esther Garduno Montoya asked anyone who wished to speak on the
issue, to stand and be sworn in. Darlene Arguello and Marcelino Roybal were
sworn in.

Transportation Manager Darlene Arguello advised that as per NMDOT and FTA
Regulations for Transit Systems, an Ordinance Governing Passenger Behavior must
be adopted.

Councilor Casey thought this was a very good thing to do, that it was in writing so
if people had questions they can refer to that and thought it was very
comprehensive and thanked Ms. Arguello.

Councilor Howell asked a question regarding the penalties of misbehavior.

Ms. Arguello explained in detail the three part appeal process regarding the
penalties for misbehavior and also the process of a suspension.

Councilor Casey made a motion to accept the record proper and close the public
hearing. Councilor Howell seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for
roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

Councilor Casey made a motion to reconvene into regular session. Councilor
Romero seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call
Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

12



Councilor Casey made a motion to approve to adopt Ordinance No. 19-04,
Passenger Behavior for the City of Las Vegas Meadow City Express. Councilor
Howell seconded the motion.

Ordinance 19-04 was presented as follows: Due to the length of the document, a
complete copy may be obtained from the City Clerk’s Office.

Mayor Gurulé-Girán asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the
following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

2. Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 19-45 Passenger Child Restraint Policy
for the City of Las Vegas Meadow City Express.

Transportation Manager Arguello advised that this is a policy in accordance with
NM DOT ADA and City of Las Vegas Meadow City Express Rules and Regulations
governing Passenger Child Restraint Requirements to maintain effective, safe and
efficient transit services for the community.

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve Resolution No. 19-45 Passenger Child
Restraint Policy for the City of Las Vegas Meadow City Express. Councilor Ulibarri,
Jr. seconded the motion.

Resolution 19-45 was presented as follows:
Due to the length of the document, a complete copy may be obtained from the
City Clerk’s Office.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the
following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

13



3. Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 19-46 Passenger No-Show and Late
Cancelation Policy for the City of Las Vegas Meadow City Express.

Transportation Manager Arguello advised that this is a policy in accordance with
NMDOT ADA and City of Las Vegas Meadow City Express Rules and Regulations
governing No-Show and Late Cancelation Requirements to maintain effective, safe
and efficient transit services for the community.

Discussion and questions took place regarding how the public was notified of
No-Show and Late Cancelation policies, the process of handling situations of no
pick ups and “calibacks”.

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve Resolution No. 19-46 Passenger
No-Show and Late Cancelation Policy for the City of Las Vegas Meadow City
Express. Councilor Howell seconded the motion.

Resolution 19-46 was presented as follows: Due to the length of the document, ci
complete copy may be obtained from the City Clerk’s Office.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the
following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

4. Approval/Disapproval of Resolution No. 19-47 Service Animal Policy for the City
of Las Vegas Meadow City Express.

Transportation Manager Arguello advised that this is a policy in accordance with
NMDOT ADA and City of Las Vegas Meadow City Express Rules and Regulations
governing Service Animal Requirements to maintain effective, safe and efficient
transit services for the community.

Discussion and questions took place regarding the requirements to accommodate
service animals, several allowances for comfort animals and pets.

14



Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked Transportation Manager Darlene Arguello to follow up
on regulations pertaining to owners of service animals in providing certificates,
harnesses and badges for proof.

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve Resolution No. 19-47 Service Animal
Policy for the City of Las Vegas Meadow City Express. Councilor Howell seconded
the motion.

Resolution 19-47 was presented as follows: Due to the length of the document, a
complete copy may be obtained from the City Clerk’s Office.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the
following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

5. Approval/Disapproval of Resolution 19-53 assuring availability of funds for
Project Control #LP40002 (National/Bridge Street) administered by NMDOT in the
amount of $1,619,562.00, State share being $1,536,683.90 which is 95%, City of
Las Vegas share being $80,878.10 which is 5% of total cost.

Interim Public Works Director Danny Gurule advised as per New Mexico
Department of Transportation (NMDOT) submittal criteria, it is required that a
Resolution of support from our Local Governing Body accompany the Grant
Agreement. In complying with this criteria staff is requesting that this Resolution
be approved for the plan, design, construction, construction management,
reconstruction, pavement rehabilitation, drainage improvements, and
miscellaneous construction, from National Ave. from 12th St. down Bridge St.,
around the Plaza Park, to include Camino De Las Escuelas, South Gonzales St.,
South Pacific St., to end at Moreno St., also Hot Springs Blvd., and North Gonzales
St., to end at Valencia St.

Councilor Casey asked if the City had the funds to cover the project if it went over
1.6 million.

15



Interim City Manager Gallegos advised that if the amount went over, they would
either adjust the engineer’s estimates, adjust the total project itself, meaning
something would have to suffer in order to stay within budget or if it was
something really important, that Council would want to reconsider and it would
be brought back to Council.

Councilor Casey stated she was asked by a few business owners, if there were
already engineers working in that area and asked if the City would go out for bids
on this project.

Interim Public Works Director Gurule advised that Stantec engineers were at the
area assessing it for cost estimates for the project at no cost to the City. Mr.
Gurule advised that it was not going out for bid due to using one of the three
on-call engineers, who offer free cost estimates.

Councilor Casey brought to attention, several errors that should be corrected on
Resolution 19-53.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised the corrections would be made to the
Resolution.

Councilor Howell asked who was responsible for road repair from 8th to 12th
Streets, due to being in very bad shape.

Interim Public Works Director Gurule advised that New Mexico Highlands
University was responsible for those areas.

Councilor Romero asked what the amount of the Stantec contract was.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised that it was an RFP process that was
approved by Mayor and Council, that there was a threshold in the procurement,
not allowing to go over a certain dollar amount and advised that they monitor
those as well.

Councilor Casey made a motion to approve Resolution 19-53 assuring availability
of funds for Project Control #LP40002 (National/Bridge Street) administered by
NMDOT in the amount of $1,619,562.00, State share being $1,536,683.90 which is
95%, City of Las Vegas share being $80,878.10 which is 5% of total cost. Councilor
Howell seconded the motion.

16



Resolution 19-53 was presented as follows:
CITY OF LAS VEGAS

Resolution # 19-53

A Resolution Supporting the New Mexico Department of Transportation Call for Projects Grant

Administered by the New Mexico Department of Transportation

WHEREAS; the City of Las Vegas and the New Mexico Department of Transportation will enter into an

agreement for a local road project.

WHEREAS; the total project cost being One Million Six Hundred Seventeen Thousand Five Hundred Sixty

Two Dollars, ($1,617,562.00) to be administered by the NM DOT,

WHEREAS, the NMDOT share amount being 95% or $1,536,683.90, and the City of Las Vegas

proportional matching share being 5% or $80,878.10.

WHEREAS, the City of Las Vegas will work in accordance with the funding requirement of the Agreement,

and will budget $80,878.10 which is 5% of total cost of project being $1,617,562.00.

WHEREAS; the City of Las Vegas shall pay all costs that exceeds the total amount of $1,617,562.00.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Las Vegas Local Governing Body that the Agreement

for Project Control Number LP40002 funding be submitted to the New Mexico Department of

Transportation, for the Plan, Design, Construction, Construction Management, Reconstruction, Pavement

Rehabilitation, Drainage Improvements, and Miscellaneous Construction from National Ave. from

l2thSt. down Bridge St., around the Plaza Park, to include Camino De Las Escuelas, South Gonzales St.,

South Pacific St., to end at Moreno St., also Hot Springs Blvd., and North Gonzales St. to end at Valencia

Street.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED THIS DAY OF OCTOBER 2019.

ATTEST: CITY OF LAS VEGAS

Casandra Fresquez Tonita Gurule-Giron

City Clerk Mayor

Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the
following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes

17



Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

COUNCILOR’S REPORTS

Councilor Romero stated that he mentioned the Vacant Building Ordinance at the
last meeting and wondered if that had been addressed, due to there being fees
and penalties that could be assessed.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised that they were focused on vehicles by ward
and was not sure they had looked at vacant buildings.

Councilor Romero mentioned that Councilor Howell had previously brought up
concerns regarding the collapsed building on Grand Avenue and people going over
the fence to get in was dangerous and asked if it had been addressed by Code
Enforcement.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised that there was a possibility of a purchase
for the property and would try to contact the owner, if not they would get Public
Facilities to reinforce the fence.

Councilor Romero asked if there was anyone working in Animal Control.

Interim City Manager Gallegos informed that Jeremiah Gutierrez and Virginia
Marrujo were taking care of Animal Control and Code Enforcement.

Councilor Howell stated that he believed that taking on Animal Control
responsibilities was too much, due to having trouble meeting the responsibilities
of Code Enforcement Officer. He asked if they would be hiring someone for
Animal Control as well.

Interim City Manager Gallegos stated that they would be having interviews for the
second Code Enforcement position which would take on Animal Control duties as
well.

Councilor Howell urged the City to separate those responsibilities as each one of
those areas needed one specific person handling it. He added that there were so
many code enforcement violations, so many dogs that need the attention of

18



animal control and having to carry both responsibilities was not going to allow
them to be efficient.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised she would review the job descriptions and
possibly separate them if need be, move forward and do what they needed to do
with them.

Councilor Romero stated that he understood the person working in Code
Enforcement was no longer in that position, that he had been working without
any training and also working with Streets Department. He stated they were using
a pickup truck for animal control and asked if the department did not have the
proper vehicle and was concerned about them using a pickup truck.

Interim Community Development Director Virginia Marrujo stated that they were
working with the Santa Fe, Sheriff’s Department on getting two animal control
vehicles. She stated that they were utilizing the pickup truck with extra kennels
available to use. She advised Councilor Romero that the truck is marked “Code
Enforcement”.

Councilor Ulibarri, Jr. advised there were many code violations throughout the City
and that many of the issues he had brought up in the past had not been
addressed, never receiving any reports or updates. He felt that being short staffed
did not help the situation of addressing those issues and asked that the roads be
looked at in the area of West National.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised that reports by ward had been provided to
Council in their departments reports but would provide that to him and would
look into addressing issues on West National.

Councilor Casey discussed issues on faded stop signs and growth of bushes and
trees in front of stop signs. She asked in regards to the Utility WasteWater Report,
who were the two industrial level facilities that requested to discharge into the
system.

Utilities Director Maria Gilvarry explained that NMDOT was doing a cleanup with
the EPA on the South side of town regarding stored salt and the other cleanup was
in the area of Grand and University, and both would do water testing to make sure
they would meet the City’s requirements before discharging into the system.

19



Councilor Casey asked if anyone had received any letters of interest in regards to
the Lodger’s Tax Board applicants.

Mayor Gurulé-Girón and Interim City Manager Gallegos advised they had not
received any.

Councilor Casey stated other concerns in regards to having no lights in the area of
three blocks from National onto 7th Street and added that she had never received
any responses to her requests to address a list she had provided Code
Enforcement 17 months ago. Councilor Casey advised that she also was
concerned about the Community Development Department being short staffed
and advised that people doing multiple jobs was unacceptable.

Councilor Casey asked what the reason was for not getting any funding for the
CDBG Grant.

Interim City Manager Gallegos stated the project was 60% complete, where others
were further along, they chose not to complete 100%, just in case they wouldn’t
get funded and added that they had not completed the Comprehensive Master
Plan although were in the process of completing it. She advised that it was a two
year project and when you take into account the utility lines that needed to be
installed and the paving, it would have been a very quick two year turn around.
She stated that she was not sure that would have been the best thing for the City
although they would have accepted any type of funding that they could have and
that they required a little more in regards to the environmental study. She
advised that they could look into another project or if Council had a project to
pursue with an application.

Councilor Casey commended Maria Gilvarry for her crew who was working in the
area of underground gas leaks near her home and that they were very efficient,
polite and very nice and thanked her for having well trained employees who
always did a good job. She also commended Fire Chief Bill Montoya for his
monthly report which was very comprehensive and noted that he evaluated his
employees and was happy about that and that he ran his department in a positive
manner, and was very supportive of his employees.

Councilor Howell asked if the issues in the area on Cinder Road had been
addressed regarding trees blocking the water flow.

20



Interim City Manager Gallegos advised that they pulled easements and met with
the County to discuss how they could work together to clear up the debris,
although she did not believe it was City right of way and added that it was
awkward property. She advised the City was working cooperatively with them.

Further discussion and questions took place regarding the cleanup process and
who would be responsible for maintaining and paying for costs.

Councilor Howell stated that the property which was once the Sav-O-Mat was
looking horrendous, it looked bad, especially to tourists as they drive on to
National towards Bridge Street and asked if Code Enforcement had looked into it.

Interim City Manager Gallegos advised she would check with Code Enforcement
and would also check on who owned the property.

Councilor Howell stated that there had been a recent move for an advocacy group
for handicap issues and that they notified him with concerns about parks and
sidewalks and that the City should focus more on the handicapped. He stated that
they need help with how they move throughout the community and suggested
that they come and explain their concerns with City Manager.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

Councilor Romero made a motion to go into Executive Session to discuss
personnel matters, regarding Community Development Department and City
Manager, as permitted by Section 10-15-1 (H)(2) of the New Mexico Open
Meetings Act, NMSA 1978. Councilor Howell seconded the motion. Mayor
Gurulé-Girón asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the
following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION

Councilor Romero made a motion to reconvene into regular session, he advised
that only those matters specified in the motion were discussed and no decisions

21



were made. Councilor Howell seconded the motion. Mayor Gurulé-Girón asked
for roll call. Roll Call Vote was taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

ADJOURN

Councilor Casey made a motion to adjourn. Councilor Howell and Councilor
Ulibarri, Jr. seconded the motion. Mayor asked for roll call. Roll Call Vote was
taken and reflected the following:

David G. Romero Yes Barbara A. Casey Yes
Vincent Howell Yes David A. Ulibarri, Jr. Yes

Motion carried.

Mayor

ATTEST:

Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk

22



Regular or Special

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE 10129119 DEPT: Police MEETING DATE: 20 Nov2019

ITEMITOPIC: Presentation on Two (2) Certified Police Officers

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: Presentation Only

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: The Las Vegas Police Department would like to
recognize two (2) police personnel for their accomplishments and for theircompletion of the New Mexico Department of Public Safety Law EnforcementAcademy.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: No Action

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: None

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NOLATER THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS PRIOR TO THECITY COUNCIL MEETING.

David Bibb III, Chief of Police

REVI WED AND APPROVED BY:

TONITA GURULE-GIRON TANA VEGA, INTERIM
MAYOR FINANCE DIRECTOR

(PROCUREMENT)

ANN MARIE GALLEGOS,
INTERIM CITY MANAGER

PURCHASING AGENT ESTHER GARDUNO MONTOYA,(FOR BIDIRFP AWARD) CITY ATTORNEY
(ALL CONTRACTS MUST BE
REVIEWED)



B
y

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
o
f t

he
B

oa
rd

of
th

e

N
E

W
M

E
X

IC
O

L
A

W
E

N
F

O
R

C
E

M
E

N
T

A
C

A
D

E
M

Y
A

nd
up

on
m

ee
ti

ng
th

e
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
o
f L

A
W

S,
19

79
,

C
ha

pt
er

7,
S

ec
ti

on
42

th
ro

ug
h

49

C
li

nt
R

.
S

an
do

va
l

ha
s

be
en

aw
ar

de
d

th
is

P
O

L
IC

E
O

F
F

IC
E

R
C

E
R

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
Is

su
ed

th
is

24
th

da
y

o
f O

ct
ob

er
,

20
19

at
Sa

nt
a

Fe
, N

ew
M

ex
ic

o

an
d

is
th

er
ef

or
e

el
ig

ib
le

to
se

rv
e

as
a

Po
lic

e
O

ff
ic

er
in

th
e

St
at

e
o
f N

ew
M

ex
ic

o

W
itn

es
s

th
e

Se
al

o
f t

he
St

at
e

o
f N

ew
M

ex
ic

o
an

d
th

e
si

gn
at

ur
es

o
f t

he

C
ha

in
na

n
an

d
D

ir
ec

to
r

C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
N

U
M

B
E

R
19

-0
26

3-
P

H
ec

to
r

B
al

de
ra

s,
C

ha
ir

pe
rs

on
A

ca
de

m
y

B
oa

rd

Id
a4

tC
.Q

L
Jl

L
A

4l
01

K
eI

i
A

Iz
ah

an
a,

D
ir

ec
to

r
N

M
L

aw
E

nf
or

ce
m

en
t

A
ca

de
m

y



B
y

th
e

A
ut

ho
ri

ty
o
ft

he
B

oa
rd

of
th

e

N
E

W
M

E
X

IC
O

L
A

W
E

N
F

O
R

C
E

M
E

N
T

A
C

A
D

E
M

Y
A

nd
up

on
m

ee
tin

g
th

e
re

qu
ir

em
en

ts
of

L
A

W
S,

19
79

, C
ha

pt
er

7,
Se

ct
io

n
42

th
ro

ug
h

49

M
oi

se
s

G
.C

oc
a

ha
s

be
en

aw
ar

de
d

th
is

P
O

L
IC

E
O

F
F

IC
E

R
C

E
R

T
IF

IC
A

T
IO

N
Is

su
ed

th
is

24
th

da
y

of
O

ct
ob

er
,2

01
9

at
Sa

nt
a

Fe
, N

ew
M

ex
ic

o

an
d

is
th

er
ef

or
e

el
ig

ib
le

to
se

rv
e

as
a

Po
lic

e
O

ff
ic

er
in

th
e

St
at

e
of

N
ew

M
ex

ic
o

W
itn

es
s

th
e

Se
al

of
th

e
St

at
e

of
N

ew
M

ex
ic

o
an

d
th

e
si

gn
at

ur
es

of
th

e

C
ha

ir
m

an
an

d
D

ir
ec

to
r

C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
N

U
M

B
E

R
19

-0
23

3-
P

H
ec

to
r

B
al

de
ra

s,
C

ha
ir

pe
rs

on
A

ca
de

m
y

B
oa

rd



Regular

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE: 11/8/19 DEPT: Utilities MEETING DATE: 11/20/19

ITEMITOPIC: Presentation on 2019 Water, Wastewater and Solid Waste Utility Rate
Assessment-Study.

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: N/A

BACKGROUNDIRATIONALE: Stantec project manager Georgette Aronow will be
presenting the results, findings and preliminary recommendations of the Utility Rate
Assessment-Study to the governing body. The Utilities Department is also asking for
feedback and direction from the governing body.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: N/A

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NO
LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS PRIOR TO THE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING.

SÜB7MthER’S NATURE

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:

TN1TA GU ULE-GIRO TANA VEGA
MAYOR INTERIM FINANCE DIRECTOR

(PROCUREMENT)

ANN MARIE GALLEGOS
INTERIM CITY MANAGER

PURCHASING AGENT ESTHER GARDUNO-MONTOYA,
(FOR BID/RFP AWARD) CITY ATTORNEY

(ALL CONTRACTS MUST BE
REVIEWED)



—

I:

Ix
;.



Stantec

November 7, 2019

Ms. Maria Gilvarry
Utility Director
City of Las Vegas, New Mexico
905 12th

Las Vegas, NM 87701

Re: 2019 Water, Wastewater,
and Solid Waste Utility Rate
Study — Draft Report

Dear Ms. Gilvarry,

Stantec is pleased to provide you with this report of findings from
the 2019 Water, Wastewater, and Solid Waste Utility Rate Study
(Study) completed for City of Las Vegas’s (City) water and
wastewater, and solid waste systems. We appreciate the
professional assistance provided by you and all members of the
City staff who participated in the study.

Key findings and recommendations are provided in the attached
report. While we evaluated financial planning forecasts through
2029, it is recommended that the City review and update the rate
plans every year or when significant changes occur.

If you or others at the City have any questions, please do not
hesitate to reach me at (530) 470-0515 or email me at
qeorgette.aronowstantec corn. We appreciate the opportunity
to be of service to the City and look forward to the possibility of
doing so again in the near future.

Sincerely,

Georgette Aronow

Project Manager
Siyuan Rao

Consultant

Enclosure



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Executive Summary I
1.1 Introduction

1
1 .2 Objectives

1
1.3 Financial Planning Analysis Error! Bookmark not defined.
1 .4 Cost-of-Service Analysis 3
1.5 Rate and Fee Structure Analysis 5
1.6 Capacity Fees for New Development 1 0
1.7 Misceflaneous Fees

11
1.8 Comparative Rate Analysis to Neighboring Utilities 12
1.9 Summary of Recommendations 15



1 Executive Summary

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1 INTRODUCTION

This Executive Summary presents an overview of the findings of the 2019 Water, Wastewater, and Solid
Waste Utility Rate Study (Study) that was completed for the water, wastewater, and solid waste systems
of the City of Las Vegas, New Mexico (hereafter referred to as the “City”) by Stantec. The findings of the
Study are based on assumptions and costs that are subject to change, which could have a measurable
effect on the findings. While this Executive Summary presents the findings and recommendations of the
Study, the full report presents the detailed analyses prepared to develop the findings.

1.2 OBJECTIVES

The principal objectives or components of the Study are as follows:

Revenue Sufficiency Analysis — Develop a multi-year financial plan for the City’s water,
wastewater, and solid waste systems that determines the level of annual revenue required to satisfy
projected annual operating, debt service, and capital cost requirements as well as maintain adequate
reserves,

Cost-of-Service Analysis — Determine the costs of providing water, wastewater, and solid waste
service in order to compare system costs to revenues and allocate the costs of providing utility
services to specific system functions for use n developing water, wastewater, and solid waste user
rates for each respective service, as appropriate.

Rate Review and Design — Review the City’s existing rate structures and develop modIfications, as
appropriate, to ensure that the City’s rates conform to accepted industry practice and reflect the
appropriate distribution of system costs. Assess the ability of the rate structures to achieve the City’s
policy objectives, such as fiscal stability and affordability to the greatest extent possible.

System Development Fee Analysis for New Development — Evaluate the cost impacts of new
development following directives of New Mexico state statute. The City currently does not have any
system development fees in place. Through review of existing City assets, system capacities, and
planned capital improvements, Stantec calculated system development fees for water and
wastewater systems using the “buy-in method” for the City to consider adopting.

Miscellaneous Fee Analysis — Assist City staff in identifying the cost of providing its various
miscellaneous services (such as inspections, septic charges, etc.) to serve as the basis for potential
adjustment to the charges for these types of services.

Comparative Rate Analysis — Survey neighboring utility rates to determine how the City’s water,
wastewater, and solid waste rates compare to its neighbors. Calculate monthly water, wastewater,

Stantec I 1



1 Executive Summary

and solid waste bills to compare current cost of services across communities. During this step, it is
assumed that utilities likely follow differing asset replacement schedules and deliver different levels of
service; therefore, this comparison of bill totals is provided simply as an objective look at neighboring
rates and structures.

1.3 REVENUE SUFFICIENCY ANALYSIS

The revenue sufficiency analysis evaluated the sufficiency of the City’s revenues to meet all current and
projected financial requirements over a 1 0-year projection period, and determined the level of any rate
revenue adjustments necessary in each year of the projection period to provide sufficient revenues to
fund all of the water, wastewater, and solid waste utility cost requirements. Stantec independently
reviewed financial documents of the water, wastewater, and solid waste utilities. Data and assumptions of
the analysis were reviewed and discussed with City staff. Through this process, the recommended
financial management plan and associated forecast of annual water, wastewater and solid waste rate
revenue adjustments were developed and are presented in the main sections of this report.

The recommended financial management plan and corresponding plan of water, wastewater, and solid
waste rate revenue adjustments are based upon the audited revenue and expense information, beginning
balances, and assumptions as described in the body of this report, Detailed schedules presenting all
components of the financial management plan are provided in the appendices to this report. The following
findings and conclusions are provided based on the financial planning analysis.

• Evaluation of fund balances and the City’s revenues generated from current rates and
fees indicate that rate increases are needed for all three utilities during the study period,
to ensure the City meets all financial targets, operation and capital needs.

• Stantec has worked with City staff to develop an updated capital improvement program
(CIP) with a project schedule that includes specific project needs and priorities over a 10-
year period based on the City’s Master Plan for each fund, The financial plan for each
utility optimizes funding for the CIP, depending on the current level of capital or operating
reserves, state funding where available (primarily the water fund), and rate revenues.

- The City lacks a formal reserve policy for its water, wastewater, and solid waste utility
enterprise funds. The American Water Works Association (AWVVA), Water Environment
Federation (WEF), and Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) advise
establishing cash reserves to maintain a financially resilient and sustainable utility.1 The
City has built up robust reserves, particularly for the Water fund. However, some of this
funding will be needed to implement CIP projects over the short term. To maintain
adequate reserves over the long term, Stantec recommends the City to slowly ramp up to
a 12-month operating reserve for all three utilities by the end of study period, FY 2029.

1 Cash Reserve Policy Guidelines, American Water Works Association, 2018.

Stantec I 2



1 Executive Summary

The recommended rate revenue adjustment plans for the water, wastewater, and solid waste systems are
presented in Table 1-1 below. Stantec developed two scenarios for the City’s water system. In Scenario
1, the projected rate increase starts in FY 2022 at 4% with 40% CIP execution annually. This plan
assumes that the remaining 60% of total capital expenditure needs will be recovered through grants. In
Scenario 2, the rate plan assumes a lower CIP execution percentage of 28% annually, which equates to
approximately $2 million in deferred annual capital project spending. In this scenario, the water financial
plan projects a 4% decrease in FY 2020, and then increases beginning in 2021, at a general cost
escalation of 3.01% for every year through FY 2029.

For the wastewater fund, the financial plan showed that significant rate increases are needed in order to
continue to provide for operating and maintenance costs as well as capital infrastructure improvements.
Rate increases of 10.5% are recommended for fiscal years 2020 through 2023, after which rate increases
decrease to 4.0% for the next three years. It is believed that the more significant early rate increases will
allow the wastewater fund to return to a more solid financial footing and allow the CIty to continue to
provide quality service to its rate payers.

The revenue sufficiency analysis of the solid waste fund showed the need for steady rate increases over
the projection period at 5%. Steady rate increases will allow the City to execute the ongoing capital and
equipment repair and replacement needs, in addition to its daily operational costs.

Table 1-1 Recommended Plan of Water and Wastewater Rate Revenue Adjustments
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Water
Scenario 1 0.0% 0.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% 4.0% , 4.0% 4.0%
(CIP at 40%)
Water I
Scenario 2 -4.0% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01%(ClPat28%)

Wastewater 10.5% } 10.5% 10.5% 10.5% 1 4.0% , 4.0% 4.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

[lid Waste 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0% 5.0%

1.4 COST-OF-SERVICE ANALYSIS

Stantec allocated the City’s water, wastewater, and solid waste costs in a cost-of-service (COS) analysis
to determine the under or over-recovery of revenues generated from each system versus the costs
incurred to operate each system. The COS analysis evaluated the annual costs each utility incurs to
provide the City’s customers each service and determined the portion of system costs that are allocable
to system functions. Customer classes require water, wastewater and solid waste services depending on
each class’ usage characteristics; therefore, Stantec analyzed customer class consumption patterns and
requirements to determine the demand each class places on the City’s systems.

Stantec I 3



1 Executive Summary

Costs to serve each class of customers were calculated and compared against the revenue generated by
the existing rates for each customer class. This comparison provides insight into the revenue sufficiency
of existing rates to recover the costs for each class. Table 1-2 presents a summary of each utility’s costs
compared to revenues collected by customer class. Total revenue requirements for FY 2020 are
approximately equal to $4.8 million for the water utility, $3.1 million for the wastewater utility, and $3.2
million for the solid waste utility.

Residential Inside
Small Commercial Inside
Large Commercial Inside
Residential Outside
Small Commercial Outside
Large Commercial Outside
Total $4,846,118 $4,846,118 $0

Table 1-3 Wastewater Cost-of-Service Summary

$1,735,993
$290,638
$898,608
$23,068
$88,831
$5,736

$37,609
$41,812
$16,301

$71

$1,932,743
$292,302
$710,824
$14,347
$93,244
$6,300

$17,078
$15,753
$55,835

$242

($196,750)
($1,663)
$187,784
$8,722

($4,413)
($564)

$20,531
$26,059

($39,534)
(S171)

Table 1-2 Water Cost-of-Service Summary

$2,048,155
$389,462

$1,379,197
$799,581
$47,089

$182,634

$2,392,077
$353,781

$1,022,126
$937,576
$64,063
$76,494

(3343,922)
$35,681

$357,070
($1 37.995)
($16,974)
$106,140

FY 2019 Rate FY 2019 TotalWastewater Fund Revenue Under Rate Revenue Overl(Under)
Existing Rates Req. Recovery

Residential Inside
Small Commercial Inside
Large Commercial Inside
Large Commercial Inside Compound
Residential Outside
Small Commercial Outside
Large Commercial Outside
Sewer Only
Reclaimed Water - Large Commercial Inside
Reclaimed Water - SCI/ RI
Total $3,138,667 $3,138,667 $0

Stantec l 4



1 ExecuUve Summary

Table 1-4 Solid Waste Cost-of-Service Summary

Total $3302456 $3,302,456 $0

A comparison of the allocated costs of service and the revenues collected by class indicates that while
there are differences across customer classes, the revenues collected by class are generally in line with
the COS by class. No changes to cost recovery by class are recommended at this time; however,
recalculating the COS comparison after the recommended rate adjustment in FY 2020 is advised.

1.5 RATE AND FEE STRUCTURE ANALYSIS

Stantec examined the City’s current water, wastewater and solid waste rate structures to assess how well
the City’s pricing objectives are being met. For water and wastewater, the City presently has monthly
service charges that vary by meter size for each customer group (residential and commercial). There are
also usage charges, based on consumption, for both water and wastewater service. For water service,
usage charges are tiered for residential customers and uniform for commercial customers (although the
rate varies between winter and summer use). For wastewater service, all customers pay the same usage
charge per unit of consumption (1,000 gallons of water use).

For solid waste service, residential customers are charged based on the type of service (90-gallon cart vs.
dumpster) and frequency of pick-up. Commercial customers are charged based on the type of service
(cart vs. dumpster), the size of the dumpster and the frequency of pick-up per week. The City also
charges an outside City service premium for all three utilities and all customer classes.

The primary objective for the City in review of the rates was to ensure that revised rates provide adequate
funding for the utility systems and they did not necessarily desire major revisions to its rate structure. No
significant rate structure changes are proposed for wastewater or solid waste. For water, it is suggested
that the rate tiers be revised, and we present options for expanding 1 and 2ld tiers of residential
customers, which would help to enhance affordability for the majority of rate payers. In addition, the City
was interested in potentially decreasing the water rates in FY 2020. As a result, Stantec evaluated two
sets of scenarios. The proposed changes to rate structures in FY 2020 are summarized below. After FY
2020, projected rate increases are applied at each rate component for all funds.

Residential Inside
Small Commercial Inside
Large Commercial Inside
Residential Outside
Small Commercial Outside
Large Commercial Outside

$1,504,851
3579, 955

$1,053,210

$116,795

$2,403

$45,242

$1,882,014

$488,177

$797,710

$105,428

$1,766

$27,361

($377,162)

$91,778

$255,500
$11,367

$637

$17,880

Stantec I 5



1 Executive Summary

Water Fund:

1. Scenario I - No Change in Monthly Fixed Charges in FY 2020 and 2021,4% per year
th ereafter

a Scenario la (Recommended)
I. Expand residential tier 1 threshold from 2kgal — 3kgal

ii. Design uniform rate for small and large commercial customers
Scenario lb

i. Expand Tier 1 threshold from 2kgal — 4kgal
ii. Expand Tier 2 threshold from 6kgal — 7kgal

iii. Design uniform rate for small and large commercial customers

2. Scenario 2 — 4% decrease n Monthly Fixed Charges in 2020, 3% increase per year
th ereafter

• Scenario 2a

i. Expand residential tier 1 threshold from 2kgal — 3kgal
ii. Design uniform rate for small and large commercial customers

• Scenario 2b

i. Expand Tier 1 threshold from 2kgal — 4kgal
ii. Expand Tier 2 threshold from 6kgal — 7kgal

iii. Design uniform rate for small and large commercial customers

Wastewater Fund

• No changes in the rate structure are proposed for wastewater customers, however,
significant rate increases at 10.5% annually from FY 2020—2023, then 4% annually
through FY 2026 are recommended to meet the funding needs of the system for all
customers.

• It is recommended that the reclaimed water rate be increased based on the estimated
cost to serve reclaimed water customers, which results in a rate increase from $1.25 per
thousand gallons to $3.62 per thousand gallons.

Solid Waste Fund

• Scenario 1: No changes in the rate structure are proposed for solid waste customers,
however, annual rate increases of 5% are projected from FY 2020 — FY 2029.

• Scenario 2: Align to cost-of-service rates in FY2020 for all customers. Apply 5% rate
increases annually from FY 2021 — FY 2029.

The current and proposed rate schedules for FY 2019 through FY 2028, respectively, are presented
below for all three funds. The water and sewer bill impacts are calculated at 4,000 gallons for residential
customers, 15,000 gallons for commercial customers, and 68,000 gallons for reclaimed water customers,
based on 2018 billing data for average usage.

Stantec I 6



1 Execuflve Summary

Table 1-5 Current and Proposed Water Rate Schedules
Scenario IA —40% CIP Execution; Expand Tier I from 2kgal to 3kgal (Recommended)

Rate Adjustment

Fixed Charge (5/month)
5/8’

Volumetric Charge )$/kgal)
Tier 1:3,000 gallons (2000 in 2016) $2.97 $3.27 $3.27
Tier 2: 6,000 gallons 6.70 7,31 7.38
Tier 3: 10,000 gallons 15.07 1659 16.59
Tier 4: >10,000 gallons

________

37.69 41.50 41.50
Bill Impact- 5/8” meterat4kgnts $38.58 $3643 $35.43

$340 $3.54 $3.63 $3.83 $3.98
7.67 7.98 8.30 8.63 8.98

17.26 17.95 18 67 19.41 20 19
43.16 44.89 45.63 48.55 50,49

$37.89 $39.40 $40.98 $42.62 $44.32

Scenario lB — 40% CIP Execution; Expand Tier I from 2kgal to 4kgal, Tier 2 from 6kgal to 7kgal
Residential Customers 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
Rate Adjustment Ex’slng Rate

Rate Srr,cture 0.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.000h 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

$19.24 $19.24 $19.24 $2001 $2081 $21.64 $22.51 $23.41 $24.34 $25.32 $26.3341.71 41.71 41.71 43.38 45.11 46.92 48.79 50.75 5278 54.89 57.08

Conunercial Customers 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029
En/song Rate

Rate Structure 0.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4,00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00°/a

$35.05 $35.05 $36.45 $37.91 $39.43 $41.00 $42.64 $44.35 $46.12 $47.97176.83 176.93 133.90 191.26 199.91 206.87 21514 223.75 232.70 242.00255.89 255.89 266.13 27677 287.84 299.36 31133 323.78 336.73 350.20353.67 353 67 367.82 382.53 397.83 413.74 43029 447,51 465.41 484.02468.09 458.09 486.81 506.29 526.54 547 60 569.50 592.28 615.97 64061530.50 530.50 551.72 573,79 596.74 620.61 645.43 671.25 598.10 726.031227.44 1227.44 127654 1327.60 1380.70 1435.93 119337 155310 1615.23 1679.011393 87 1393.87 1449 62 1507.61 1567.91 1630.63 1695.85 1753.69 1834,24 1907.61Volumetric Charge (S/kgal)
V/inter $6.30

$6.94 $6.94 $7.22 $7.51 $7.81 $8.12 $8.44 $8.78 $9.13 $9.50
Summer 7.88

__________________________________________________________________________

Bill Impact- 5/8” meter at lSkgals Wir $129.55
$139 15 $139.15 5144 72 $150.50 $156.52 $192.79 5169.30 $176.07 $183.11 $190.44

Bill mpact- 5/8” meter at lskgals Sun $153.25

_______________

-. ‘:.
-. : :.t,tr.E1’RsidentfCustoin&s 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024- ‘ 202S 2026 2027 2028 2029,. -•-... ..- -,W>trn’.sc’

Retes:r..c:.re 0.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4,00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%

$19.24 $19 24 $19.24 $20.01 $20.81 $21.64 522 51 $23.41 S24.34 525.32 $26.3341.71 41.71 41,71 43.33 45 11 4692 48.79 50.75 52.73 34.29 57.08

Conunercial Customers 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 4

$4.14

9.33

2100
52.51

546.09

543s $4.40
9.71 10.10

21.81 22.71
34.61 56.80

547.94 $49.86

Exislirrg Rate ProposedRate Adjustment
Structure Rae Structure 0.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00’!, 4.00% 4.00%Fixed Charge (5/month)

5/8’ $35.05 $35.05 $3505 $36.45 537,91 539.43 $41.00 $42.64 $44 35 $45 12 547971” 176.83 176.63 175.83 183.90 191.26 198.91 206.87 215.14 223.75 232.70 242.001 1)2” 255.89 25569 255.89 256.13 276.77 287.84 299.36 311.33 323.78 336.73 350.202” 353.67 353.67 333.67 367.82 382.53 397.83 413.74 430.29 447.51 465.41 434.023” 468.09 468.09 46809 486 01 506.29 526.54 547.60 559.50 592.28 615.97 640.614” 530.50 530.50 530.50 551 72 57379 596.74 620.61 645.13 671.25 693.10 726.036’ 1227.44 3227.44 1227.44 1276.54 1327.60 1300.70 1435.93 1493.37 1553.10 161523 1579.848” 1393.87 1393.67 1393.87 1449.62 1507.61 1567.91 1630.63 1695.86 1763.69 1834.24 1907.61Volumetric Charge ($/kgal)
V/inter $6.30

$6.94 56.94 $7.22 $7.51 $7.81 $8.12 5844 $8.78 $9.13 59.50
Summer 7.88

Bill Impact- 5/8” meter at lSkgals V/mt $129.55
$139.15 $139.15 $144.72 $150.50 $156.52 $162.79 $159.30 $175.07 $133.11 $190.44

Bill Impact- 5/8” meter at l5kgals Sum: $153.25

Fixed Charge ($/moth)
5/8”

Volumetric Charge ($/kgal)
Tier 1: 4,000 gallons (2,000 in 2019) 52.97
tier 2:7,000 gallons (6,000 in 2019) 5.70
Tier 3: 10,000 gallons 15.07
Tier 4: >10,000 gallons 37.69

Bill Impact- 5/8” meter at 4kgala 538.53

$3.69 53.69 $3.84 $3.99 $4.15 54 32 $4 49 $4.67 $4.85 $5.058.33 8.33 8.66 9.01 9.37 9.74 10.13 10.54 10.96 11.4018.73 18.73 19.43 20.26 21.07 21.91 22.79 23.70 24.65 256346.51 46.84 48.72 50.57 52.69 54.80 56.99 59.27 51.64 64.11534 01 534.01 535 37 $36.78 $3525 $39.78 $41.37 $33.03 $44.75 $46.54

Rate Adjustment
Fined Charge (5/month)

S/B”

1 1/2’

4’

8”

$35.05
176.83
255.89

353.67

468.09

530.50
1227.44

1393.87

Stantec 7



I Executive Summary

Scenario 2A — 28% CIP Execution; Expand Tier I from 2kgal to 3kgal

Rate Adjustment
Ex;slcgRaie

Rate Structure 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01%
Pxsd Charge (S/month)

5/8 $29.24 518.47 $19.03 $19.60 $20.19 $20.80 $21.42 $22.07 $22 73 $23.42 524.121 41 71 4004 41 25 42.49 43 77 43.CS 46.41 47.84 49 28 50.76 52.29Volumetric Charge ($Jkgal)
Tier 1: 3000 gallons (2000 in 2019) $2.97 $3 11 $3.20 $3.30 $3.40 $3.50 $3.61 $3.72 53.83 $3.94 $4.06Tier 2; 6000 gallons 6.70 7.02 7.23 7.45 7.67 7.90 8.14 8.39 8.64 8.90 9.17Tier 3 10,OCO gallons 15.07 15.80 16.28 16.77 17.27 17.79 18.33 13.83 19.45 20.03 20.63Tier 4: ‘10,000 gallons 37.69 39.51 40.70 41,92 43.19 44.49 45.83 47.20 48.63 50.09 51.60Blllmpact-5/g’ meterat 4kgals $36.53 $34.82 535.87 53093 53306 539.21 $40.39 $41.60 $42.85 $44.14 $45.47

Ex’sITh Pa’ Pr” su
3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01°!, 3.01%Rate Adjustment S,cu’re R.,

Fixed Charge (S/month)

5/8’ $35.05 $3355 534.66 $35.70 $35.73 $37.89 $39.03 $41.20 541 41 $42.66 $13.941’ 176.83 169.76 174.87 180.13 185.55 191.14 196.89 202.82 208.92 215.21 221.691 1/2 255.89 245.65 253 05 250.67 298.51 275.59 234.92 293.50 302.33 311.43 320.802” 353.67 339.52 349.74 330.27 371.11 332 23 393.79 405.64 417.85 43043 443.393’ 458.09 449.37 462.89 476.83 491.18 505.95 521.19 536.88 553.04 569.69 536.834” 830.50 509.23 524.61 540.40 555.57 57312 590.68 608.46 626.78 64564 665.086” 1227.44 1178.34 1213.81 1250.35 1287.98 1326.75 1365.69 1437.82 1450.20 1493.85 1538.818” 139387 1338.12 1378.39 1419.83 1462.62 1506.65 1552.00 1598.71 1646.83 1695.40 1747.46Volumetric Charge ($/kgal)
Winter $6.30

$6.83 $7.01 $7.25 $7.47 $7.69 $7.92 $8.15 $3.41 58.66Summer 7.88

____________________________________

891 Impact- 5/8 meter at lSkgsiu Win $129.55
5133.10 $137.10 $141.23 $145.48 $149.85 $154.37 $159.02 $153.81 $168.74 $173.81Bit Impact- 5/8 meter at iSogas Sum $15525

________________ _______________________________________________________ _________

Scenario 2B 28% CP Execution; Expand Tier I from 2kgal to 4kga, Tier 2 from 6kga) to 7kgal
Residential Customers 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025.”,. -2026 2027 2028 2029

Rate Adjustment
Es-sling Ruts-

Ram 0.00% 3.01% 3.03% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01%
Fixed Charge IS/month)

5/8 $38.05 $33.65 $34.55 $35.70 $36.78 $37.83 $38.03 $40.20 542.41 $42.88 543.611” 175.83 158.76 174.57 150 13 183.55 151.12 195.39 202.52 208.92 215.21 221.691 1/2” 255.89 245.65 253.05 260.67 263.51 276.53 234.92 253.50 302.33 311.43 320.302” 353.67 339.52 349.74 3e0.27 371.11 332.28 393,79 23554 417.85 430.43 443.353” 468.09 443.37 462 89 476.83 491.15 535.36 521.19 536.88 553.04 569.69 535.534” 833.50 533.23 524.61 543.43 551.67 573.42 590.58 508.43 826.78 645.54 669086” 1227.44 1178.3-1 1213.81 1260.35 1237.98 1326.73 1316.69 1407,32 1452.20 1493.85 1533.818” 1393.87 1333.12 1378.39 1419.63 1432.62 1906.69 155200 1598.71 1648.83 169624 1747.46volumetric Charge )S/kgs/

$
$ 3 $ S 57 04 $7 2, $727 $7 9 $ 2 $8 1 95 1 $8 SSummer 7.68

831 Impact- 5/8” meter at 15W4s ‘N-t $126 55
5 3 5 37 1 S S $ 8 $ 3 3 $ 5 31 $ 8 $175:11 impact- 5/8 meter at ISuga 5 Sur 5153 25

Rate Adjustment Euis’is-g Rate
RaieStruclue 3.01% 3.01% 3.01’!, 3.03% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01% 3.01’!, 3.31’!,

Fixed Charge (S/month)
5/6” 516.24 $16.47 $19.03 $19.63 $28.16 $20.80 $21.42 $2207 $22 73 $21.42 $21.12

41.71 40.04 41.25 42,49 43.77 45.08 46.44 4784 49.29 50.73 52.29Vusimetr,c Charge ($/kgal)
Tier 1:4,000 gallons (2,000 ix 2019) 52.97 $3.51 $3.62 $3.72 $3.64 $3.95 $4.07 $4.18 54.32 $4.45 $4.58Tier 2:7,000 gallons (6,000 in 2319) 6.70 7.93 8.17 5.41 8.67 8.63 9.20 9.47 9.75 10.05 10.36Tier 3:10,000 gulons 16.07 17.93 18.37 16.92 19.45 23.08 20.53 21.30 21,94 22 10 23 28Tier 4: 10,000 guliocu 37.65 4A.€2 45.54 47.33 45.75 50.22 51.73 53.29 54.89 53.54 53.24Bill Imuact- 5/8 meterat 4kgals 538.58 S32.51 533.49 934.50 535.54 936.60 937.71 $38.84 $40.01 $41.22 $42.45

-- .
. ; ,. ‘2019’:’:

-

)_te.9fr,
; . -

- . . -Commercial Customers 2020 2021 --2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029EXiatm’-
- .....•..,

.....,..

Stantec 8



1 Executive Summary

Table 1-6 Current and Proposed Wastewater Rate Schedules

Rate Adjustment 10.50% 10.50% 10.50% 10.50% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%Fond Charge (S/month)
s/a’ $14.23 $15.73 $17.40 $19.28 $21.25 $22.10 $22.98 $23 93 $23.90 $23 90 523.901” 31.21 34.49 33.11 42.11 46.53 43.39 50.33 52.34 52.34 52 34 52.34Vo(ometric Charge )$/kga()

Unifcrm Rate $6.42 $7.07 $7.81 $8.64 $9.54 S9.92 $10.32 $10.73 $10.73 $10.73 $10.73Sill lmnact= 5/8 rcreterat 45433 $39.85 544.03 $4a66 $53.77 S59.41 561.79 564.26 565.83 506.83 $65.83 $56.83

1ThflK.T.sr3
- 43.4

Rate Adjustment 10.50% 10.50% 10.50% 10.50% 4.00% 4.03% 4.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%Fixed Charge (S/month)

5/8” $10.25 $15.75 $17.40 519.23 521.25 $22.10 $22.98 $23.30 $23.91 $23.92 $23.9C1’ 35.21 34.49 33.11 43.11 46.53 49.39 50.33 53.34 52.34 52.34 52.341 1/2 59.29 65.92 72 35 80.00 00.40 91 93 95.61 99.43 55 03 9343 55.132’ 93.41 123 22 114.05 126.03 139.27 14164 150.63 156.65 256 65 159.65 296.653’ 183.28 21805 229.59 254.03 280.71 29194 303.61 315.76 315.76 315.76 319.764 35482 392.08 433 24 470.73 92900 550.16 572.17 59506 595.06 59506 195056’ 753.44 832 28 974.92 1077.28 1190.40 1233.01 1287.53 1339.03 1339.03 1339.03 1339 C3Votxmetric Charge )S/lga!)

urxform Rate $6.42 $7.07 $781 $8.64 $9.54 $9.92 S10.32 $10.73 $1073 510.73 $12.73Silimpact- 5/8’ meterat lSkgaIs $110.25 $12183 $13462 $148.75 5164.37 517095 $177.70 $184.92 519090 $104.90 $101.90

Reclaimed Customers
EX 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029Rate Adjustment COO- Rates 10.50% 10.50% 10.50% 4.00% 4,00% 4.00% 0.00% 0,00°/c 0.00%unOorm Rate $1.23 $3.62 5400 $4.42 $4.53 $5.08 $5 26 $549 $5.49 $5.39 $5.49RI Impact- 68 kgais 535 00 5246 16 $272.01 530057 $332.13 $345.41 $359.23 $373.64 $373.60 5373 60 $373.30

Table 1-7 Current and Proposed Solid Waste Rate Schedules
Scenario I Existing Rate Structure; 5% annual rate increases apply to all rate components
ReddestaICustamers

. SOl9Existiñg 2020 ?,.1202i
. 2020 3-2023.11100?252ê’ 2025 2026Rate 5dpctreent 5.08% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.051 5.00% 5.80% 5 0071 5.05% 5.00%Cart (90 GtIIon) $26.90 $27.00 $2555 529.98 530.40 $33.06 $34.71 $36.44 533.27 54018 $42.136dd,tinnal Cart $12.10 512.71 $13 34 $13.11 $13.71 119.44 916 22 $17.03 $11.83 513.77 119.710cncpster—1 S CO $56.60 $61.53 564.65 037.04 971.23 $74.78 378.93 03646 90693 $9131 05545

CaitinercICUstomers 20ISExistmg . 2020 1. 2025 :,.. :2022 .- . .72525 zou 2025 ..‘ 202$ ,- 1 2027 ‘. 2028 ,,‘1 .2029 1=late Adjactrneet 5.00% 5.0071 5.00% 5.0095 5 0011 5.00% 5.00% 5 00% 5.0091 5 60%Fitst Pick Up
Cart (90 Oa7ae) $31 50 $33.08 $34.73 $36.47 $35.29 510 20 $42.21 544.32 $46 54 948.87 850.31Ouerpsler — 1.5Cr 571.30 57407 $73.61 502.54 $86.67 $9000 $91.55 SSCO.33 $11534 $110.61 $116.100.rrpstar— 2CC $3840 $92.82 $97.48 $10233 $157.11 $10257 311346 $12430 513061 5137 14 $143.990,rnpctar— 3 CV $120.00 $126.11 $032 41 1139.03 $145.93 $153.23 9160.95 8168.99 9177.44 8136.31 9195.630.mptrer— 4CC $15290 $13013 $15313 817654 $06106 $09463 820436 $214.55 $225.31 $23618 9245.310.rxpster— 6 CY $257 30 0228.69 $240.12 9252.13 $234.74 5277 97 1291.57 $306.47 $321 79 $337.58 $354.770,.cr,pcier —OCY $231.80 5295.59 $31030 1321.22 $342.53 8369.66 $377.64 $396.52 $416.35 513716 9453.02Addlional Pick Opt

Cart (90 Gailen) $27.04 $28.77 $31.21 $31.72 $33.31 $3197 536.72 $3065 $40.43 142.51 $44.63Dcrnpetar-’ 1.5CC $89.20 $62.06 $65.15 15602 37130 575 .15 $7926 $83.55 507.32 $9160 $3627Dr,rnpster— 2 CC $74.50 $78 23 $32.14 536 24 $90.53 $95 05 899 64 5104.83 $11207 $109.57 3121 35%cpxtar—3CY 371510 $11036 $015.87 3121.6? 3527.75 $53454 513084 $047.89 $153.28 $153.04 1171.21Dcecpclet—4C0 $135.50 $142.73 $14933 $157.32 $16519 $17345 9182.52 $191.22 $21079 $21033 522137Ocnrpelar ICY 0197.30 $207.17 $217.12 $228.10 $239 02 $251.81 $254 10 $277.62 5291.50 5310 08 5320 38D,reps1ar—8CY $25910 $272.16 $28536 $299.94 $314.04 9330.83 5347 22 $363.58 138251 540195 042255

Stantec 9



1 ExecuUve Summary

Scenario 2 Align to cost-ofservice rates in FY 2020; 5% annual rate increases apply to all rate
components starting in FY 2021

‘2021 “‘.20 ‘*:.2O23.: 2024’ ‘ ‘.‘2027 2020-.20294.Rate Ad) tnnent COS- Rates 5.0075 5.00% 0.00% 5.0071 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%Cart)SOGallon) $2590 $34.79 $30.49 $35.31 $31.23 992.24 544.35 $45.57 $43.31 $51.34 $53.903dd,t.onal Corl $12.10 $20.20 $27.50 520.94 $30.39 $31.91 $33.50 535.19 $30.94 530.72 541.72Ournontan— 15 CV 95560 672.71 67035 05016 594.17 S08.39 692.51 047.44 6102.3: 6917.43 5117.51

CoErcICustonrs ZOl9Exitiig .2020. . 2021 ‘. . 2022 2023 .:202R -. 2o25’,2oo-4-2o27Rate Adjoetneent COG- Ratne 5.0091 5.00% 5.00% 5.0691 5.0015 9 00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%F0t Pick Up
Cart (90 Gallon) $31.59 534.75 $3049 $3331 540.23 040.27 $4435 546.57 549.50 531,34 5555104rnpcrer— 1.5 CO $71.30 $72.71 $70.35 $05.15 $04.17 533.38 $92.00 537,44 $100.31 5107.43 $112.00Drrn,poter—2 CV $00.43 $03.00 $87.23 091.90 59513 $100.93 5100.09 $115.34 $115.90 522275 5108.80Dr.rrrprte,—3 CO $121.10 $103.92 5129,01 511441 $12150 $120.19 $332.50 5139.13 514509 $103.39 S101.C5Cr.nrp1or —4 CO 1152,51 5124.50 $130 73 $137.33 5144 19 5101.40 $150 97 $105.92 $175 27 5104,03 $193 23Ornpotnr —6 CO $217.91 0100.04 5174.34 0183.06 $192.21 $201.82 $211 91 5222.51 5233 63 5249.32 $257.98Ooropotnr—OCV $251.81 530762 $217.90 522379 521123 555224 $264.85 $274.00 5292 CO $3C5,00 $321.93Additional Pick Upn
Cart (90 Gallon) 021,40 $34 75 $3549 $30.31 540 23 $42.24 $4435 $40.57 $48.90 551,34 $53.91Ocn,poter— 15CV $59.10 $02.71 $70.35 50010 $84.17 $8238 $92.80 $97.44 $102.31 5107.43 $11211Oun,pntan— 2C9 574,53 $83.85 587.23 $91.60 596.18 5100.99 $10003 5111.34 0110.90 012275 5128.880rmpn1nr— 3 CO $115.18 $103.82 $109.01 5161,43 $120.16 512619 513250 $139.13 $115.09 $153.39 $151.06Dcrrrpctnr—4 CV $135.00 0123.56 5130.79 $137.33 $144.19 $161.40 $15897 $156 97 $175.27 5184.03 $193.23Ounrpnter—6C6 $197.30 $66004 $174.34 519906 019225 520102 $21191 $220.51 5233.63 $245.32 $257.50Ocnrpnrer— ICY 8259.10 5207.52 5217,90 $223.79 024123 5297,24 525455 820510 529260 530650 $321.93

1.6 CAPACITY FEES FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT
The City does not currently charge development impact fees for water and wastewater capacity.
Development impact fees are allowed in New Mexico per Article 8 — Land Development Fees and Rights,
Section 5-8-1 through 5-8-43, otherwise known as the Development Fee Act. These fees provide a
mechanism for municipalities to charge new development for utility capital improvements from which they
benefit and are typically paid at the time a building permit is issued. The fees must be proportional to the
benefit received by new development.

Stantec has prepared a fee analysis for the water and wastewater systems and calculated preliminary
fees. The method for calculating the fees is based on accepted methodologies as described in AWWA
Manual Mi2 and WEF Manual of Practice No. 27 and the requirements of the New Mexico Development
Fee Act.

The analysis focused on determining the total capacity available to serve future development, the level of
current usage or service, and the cost related to providing service related to capital infrastructure. To
determine these key factors, Stantec first focused on the value of the current plant in service for both
systems and calculated a total system value using the replacement cost, new less depreciation (RCNLD)
method. RCNLD values existing fixed assets according to the costs of replacing the asset in today’s
dollars, adjusted by depreciation that has occurred in the system since the asset was placed in service.
Next, the cost of new capital improvements needed to serve new customers was added to the RCNLD of

2 American Water Works Association, Manual of Water Supply Practices Mi, Principles of Water Rates,
Fees, and Charges, 715 ed., 2017.

Water Environment Federation, Manual of Practice No. 27, Financing and Charges for Wastewater
Systems, 2005.

Stantec 110



1 Executive Summary

the existing assets. The total system costs represent the value of the City’s investment in its water and
wastewater systems to serve new customers.

In addition to determining the system value, Stantec applied system capacity values for water and
wastewater obtained from the recent master plans and discussions with City staff Total capacity available
for new customers and the number of equivalent residential units (ERU5) able to be served were used to
calculate the remaining capacity within the system and determine the PIF for each new unit connecting to
the City’s water and wastewater systems. Given these independent calculations, Table 1-8 below
presents the proposed system development fees.

Table 1-8 Proposed Development Impact Fees

Water Fee $2,783
Wastewater Fee $1,058

if the City desires to move forward with instituting system development impact fees for water and sewer,
there are further statutory requirements that will need to be met. These include holding separate public
hearings to formerly consider and approve system wide land use assumptions within the designated
service area and a subsequent public hearing to consider the capital improvement program, including
those facilities that will be needed to serve future development.

1 .7 MISCELLANEOUS FEES

The City of Las Vegas currently applies miscellaneous service charges for the provision of specific
services to individual customers. Service connection or tap fees (which refers to meter installation or
related inspections), septic charge fees, overload trash charge, and hourly technician fees are examples
of the types of services for which the City has various miscellaneous service charges. The intent of
miscellaneous service charges is to ensure the recipient of the benefit of a specific service bears the
current costs associated with providing that service. Stantec reviewed a list of existing miscellaneous
service charges with City staff. With input from staff, existing fees were compared against a variety of cost
sources to assess the need for adjusting the fees. Surveys of comparable utilities and the fees assessed
for different services as well as actual cost data were reviewed. A list of updated miscellaneous fees,
comparing existing and the proposed fees for consideration by the City is summarized below:

Stantec I 11



1 Executive Summary

Table 1-9 Current and Proposed Misceilaneous Fees

Water Service Connections
3/4” New Service Tap - Single Setter $460 $1,611 250%
3/4” New Service Tap - Double Setter $560 $1,940 246%
1” New Service Tap - Single Setter $500 $1,685 237%
1” New Service Tap - Double Setter $500 $2,060 312%
2’ New Service Tap $1,000 $2,462 146%
4’ New Service Tap $6,000 $7,685 28%
6” New Service Tap $8,000 $9,102 14%
8” New Service Tap $15,000 $12,845 -14%

Wastewater Service Connections
Inspection Fee $250 $311 24%

Hourly Technician Fee ($/hr)
Technician fee per hour (cut-in/ out water
service, setting of meter, pulling of meter, $14 $17 24%
processing of a request for service)

Septic Charge {$/dump) $50 $50 0%
Overload Trash Charge $20 $20 0%

1.8 COMPARATIVE RATE ANALYSIS TO NEIGHBORING UTILITIES
Stantec completed a rate survey for neighboring utilities that captures the water, wastewater, and solid
waste volumetric rates and monthly fixed fees as well as rate structures of each utility. A list of
neighboring utilities surveyed includes: ABCVVUA, Alarna9ordo, Amarillo, Carlsbad, Las Cruces, Los
Alamos County, Los Lunas, Portales, Rio Rancho, Roswell, Santa Fe, Taos and Tuscon in alphabetical
order.

The graph below presents the comparison of total monthly water, wastewater, and solid waste bills for
each community as of Jan 1 St 2019. Bill calculations assume the City of Las Vegas’s average water usage
and wastewater flow of 4,000 gallons (4 kgals), The average combined monthly bill for all communities is
$76.13.

Stantec 112

scelneousFes Current Fee : -‘roposed Fee % Change



1 Executive Summary

Figure 1-1 Comparison of Utility Bills for Water

$45

$40

$ 35

$ 30

—Average

$ 25

$20

$15

$10

$5

Roswa(l Laa Crus mariIlo Patan ABCWUA PortaIs Alanagordo Tuson Los Lunas Las Vegas Las Vegas Rio Rancho Santa Fe
Proposed
2020 in

Figure 1-2 Comparison of Utility Bills for Wastewater

$ €0

$50

S40

$ 0

$20

$10

—Ave rage

II

I
Rosell Las Crus PortaLea Raton Amarillo CarisEDad Santa Fe Tusc Los Loose Las Vegas Las Vegas Los Alamos Rio Rancho

Proposed County
2020 in

Stantec 13



1 Executive Summary

Figure 1-3 Comparison of Utility Bills for Solid Waste

$25
-

I
—Average

$30

jj
$25

—------ —--—-—-—--— ---_-
$20

----—----—--—-- — —
111111

Aisnagor& Senta Fe Portales tio Raocho Roswdl Taos Los Lunas Los Alansos Raton Las Vegas Las Vegas CarlsbadCoent1 Crr€t Prolsed
2023 Ia

Figure 1-4 Comparison of Total Utility Bills for Water, Wastewater, and Solid Waste
Westew.er Solid Wsta —Average

$120

$110

$100

$50

set --
$70

SOt ---- -
Las Cranes RCsWslI AECWUA Portales Alamagcrdc Cartstact taos Santa Fe Los Lsnas Las Vegas Los Alemos Las Vegas Rio RancIro

Current Costly Proposect
2020 la

Szantec 14



I Executive Summary

1.9 SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS
A summary of Study recommendations based on the development of the financial analysis for the City’s
water, wastewater, and solid waste utilities is presented below.

Stantec recommends the City to consider adopting Scenario 1A for water fund:

1 Expand tier 1 threshold from 2kgal to 3kgal in FY 2020 for residential customers
2. Eliminate seasonal rates and implement a uniform rate for commercial customers
3. No rate adjustments in FY 2021

4. Starting in 2022, apply a 4% rate increase to all rate components for all
customers

• For the sewer fund, no rate structure changes are recommended. Projected rate
adjustments include 4 years of 10.5% rate increase starting in FY 2020 then 4% rate
increases from FY 2024 — FY 2026;

For the solid waste fund, no rate structure changes are recommended for FY2O1 9.
Projected rate adjustments include annual increase of 5% from FY 2020 — FY 2029,

• Adjust reclaimed water usage charge to cost-of-service rate from Si .25!kgal to
$3.62/kgal;

• Maintain! build up an operating and maintenance reserve balance equal to 12 months
through FY 2029 for all funds;

Consider implementing a system development fee (SDF) for water and wastewater
utilities, which would institute a one-time charge for new users to connect to the City’s
water and wastewater systems;

The calculated water SDF is $2,783

The calculated wastewater SDF is $1,058

• Evaluate utility performance annually to assess rate revenue needs;

• Review system development fees (SDF5) every 3-5 years or when changes to the
growth-related CIP are expected if the City decides to adopt the fees.

Stantec 115





U)

C)
E
Cl)

U)

C)
0

I —
U)

C)
U) -

0

0
C-)

0
U) C)

-o

“• Cl) C)

L..

c

• —G)
Cl)

Cww (‘3 Cl)
—

__

I —

C) C

_

ci) C)

C)
I

C)

(1)0) CI) CI)

____

I—

Cl)

C
“,, LL1 •

I— C)

0)

C)



20
19

W
at

er
,

W
W

&
So

lid
W

as
te

R
at

e
S

tu
dy

B
ac

k
g

ro
u

n
d

L
as

t
ra

te
st

ud
y

co
m

pl
et

ed
in

20
11

-
20

12

D
ri

ve
rs

fo
r

cu
rr

en
t

st
u

d
y

:

V
S

y
st

em
N

ee
d
s:

P
ro

vi
de

ad
eq

u
at

e
fu

nd
in

g
fo

r
op

er
at

io
ns

&
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
(Q

&
M

)
an

d
ca

pi
ta

l
pr

oj
ec

t
n
ee

d
s.

V
R

es
er

v
es

:
M

ai
nt

ai
n

op
er

at
in

g
re

se
rv

es

V
A

ff
or

da
bi

li
ty

:
E

ns
ur

e
ra

te
s

ar
e

se
t

in
al

ig
nm

en
t

w
ith

cu
rr

en
t

sy
st

em
fu

nd
in

g
n

ee
d

s
an

d
co

ns
id

er
af

fo
rd

ab
il

it
y

w
he

n
ev

al
ua

ti
ng

ra
te

st
ru

ct
ur

e
ch

an
g
es

V
S

ch
ed

u
le

:
L

as
t

ad
op

te
d

ra
te

ad
ju

st
m

en
ts

w
er

e
fo

r
FY

20
18

fo
r

w
at

er
an

d
w

as
te

w
at

er
,

an
d

FY
20

15
fo

r
so

lid
w

as
te

3



W
at

er
E

nt
er

pr
is

e

F
in

an
ci

al
P

la
n



W
at

er
E

nt
er

pr
is

e
U

se
s

a
n
d

S
o
u
rc

es
of

F
un

ds
FY

20
20

—
FY

20
29

)
$
1
0
.0

$9
.0

$
8
0

$7
.0

$
6
0

_
_
_

_
_
_

T 5
0

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

$4
.0

$3
.0

$2
.0

$1
.0

$
Q

0
FY

2
0
1
9

FY
20

2G
FY

20
21

FY
2
0
2
2

FY
2
0
2
3

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
2
0
2
6

FY
2
0
2
7

FY
2
0
2
8

FY
2
0
2
9

O
pe

ra
ti

ng
&

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

D
eb

t
S

er
vi

ce
ir

an
sf

er
s

O
ut

C
as

h
F

un
de

d
C

ap
ita

’
R

ev
en

ue
at

E
xs

ti
nq

R
at

e
5



W
at

er
E

n
te

rp
ri

se
C

ap
it

a’
S

p
en

d
in

g
F

o
re

ca
st

T
en

-Y
ea

r
C

IP
P

ri
o
ri

ti
es

:
$2

6.
5

M
il

li
on

T
en

-Y
ea

r
C

IP
F

u
n

d
ed

:
$1

2.
6

M
il

li
on

(4
0%

E
x
ec

u
ti

o
n
)

$1
.0

$0
.0

FY
20

20
FY

20
21

FY
20

22
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

26
FY

20
27

FY
20

28

C
)

$6
.0

$5
.0

$4
.0

‘p
j.

$2
.0

FY
20

29

C
as

h
F

un
de

cf
P

ro
je

ct
s

D
eb

t
F

u
n
d
ed

P
ro

je
ct

s
C

ap
it

a’
pr

oj
ec

t
P

ro
rt

e
s

6



W
at

er
E

nt
er

pr
is

e
P

ro
je

ct
ed

R
at

e
P

la
n

S
ce

n
ar

io
1

F
Y

20
20

—
F

Y
20

29

$8
.0

0

$7
.0

0

$6
.0

0

$5
.0

0

$4
.0

0

$3
.0

0

$2
.0

0

$1
.0

0

$0
.0

0
F

Y
2
0
2
0

F
Y

20
21

C
IP

E
x
ec

u
ti

o
n

a
t

4
0
%

FY
20

29

T
ot

aI
R

ev
en

u
e

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t
—

-P
ro

p
o
se

d
R

ev
en

u
es

(%
R

at
e

n
cr

ea
se

s)

4%

FY
20

22
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

26
FY

20
27

FY
20

28

7



$7
.0

$
0

-4
%

—

3%
—

—
-

3%
—

FY
20

19
FY

20
20

FY
20

21
FY

20
22

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

20
26

FY
20

27
FY

20
28

FY
20

29

•T
o
ta

1
R

ev
en

ue
R

e
q
u
rr

n
e
n
t

—
—

Pr
op

os
ed

R
ev

en
ue

s
(%

R
at

e
in

cr
ea

se
s)

8

V
L ?

.

W
af

er
E

n
te

rp
ri

se
P

ro
je

ct
ed

R
at

e
P

la
n

S
ce

n
ar

io
2

FY
20

20
—

FY
20

29 3%
3%

—
—

$4
.0

(r
’-

fl
j
.

3%

C
IP

E
x
ec

u
ti

o
n

at
28

%

3%

L
.

$1
.0



W
at

er
F

un
d

C
o
st

of
S

er
v
ic

e
an

d
R

at
e

D
es

ig
n

T
op

ic
s



C

Cl)
Cl)
0G)

ocl)LI)

CC)

Ea.

cDci)
I.

20

w
I

Cl)

C)

U)

C)

U)

0

LI)
C
0

C)
C
D

LL
a)

C)
0

C,)
C-)

Cl)

a)
I.

C-)

-C
0

C

E
0)

Li
C,,

ci)
U
0
0

ci)
U

ci)
C,

0
4—
C,,

0
U
ci)

4--

C

LI)
Ci)
0
0
0)
N

CD
C
0

C)
C
D

LL



W
at

er
E

nt
er

pr
is

e
R

ev
en

u
e

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t
by

C
u
st

o
m

er
C

la
ss

S
u
m

m
ar

y

R
es

id
en

ti
a

ns
id

e
S

m
a

C
or

n
m

e
rd

a
ns

id
e

L
ar

qe
C

or
n
m

e
ro

a
in

si
de

R
es

id
en

ti
a’

O
ut

si
de

$0
.0

5
$0

.0
6

S
rn

a
C

om
m

er
ci

al
0

u
ts

d
e

$0
.1

8
$0

.0
8

L
ar

ge
o
m

n
e
rc

a
O

ut
si

de

I
.p

,-
‘1

.
J

I $2
.5

$2
.0

$
‘

.5

$1
.0

$0
.5

$0
.0

$1
.3

8

$0
.9

4

•
R

a
e

R
ev

en
u
e

U
nd

er
E

xi
st

in
g

R
at

es
•T

o
ta

R
ev

en
u
e

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t

11



C.j

-d
a)

ci)
C C)
c3

_C Co
o
C 0
D

(I)

o CO
E

L ci) -

(J Co a)
iv C)

Co
-

(J) -o

o
.2

LJ I

rn 0
CO Co
D D
C C

C

ci C C
(J) 0

-4--- a) I

(1 D Do 0 0
ci) ci)

ci) >< ><
ci) ci)

o .25 .25
‘I

C,) (

C) co

o C\1

0



P
ro

p
o
se

d
W

at
er

R
at

e
D

es
ig

n
O

b
je

ct
iv

es
C

o
n
t’

d

2.
C

o
n
si

d
er

o
p
ti

o
n
s

o
f

ex
p

an
d

in
g

ti
er

th
re

sh
o
ld

s
fo

r
re

si
d
en

ti
al

cu
st

o
m

er
s

to
en

co
u
ra

g
e

w
at

er
co

n
su

m
p
ti

o
n

O
p
ti

o
n

A
•

E
xp

an
d

ti
er

I
th

re
sh

ol
d

fr
om

2k
ga

l
to

3k
ga

l

O
p

ti
o

n
B

•
E

xp
an

d
ti

er
1

th
re

sh
ol

d
fr

om
2k

ga
l

to
4k

ga
l

•
E

xp
an

d
ti

er
2

th
re

sh
ol

d
fr

om
6k

ga
l

to
7k

ga
l

13



-D

ci)
f% tV’ 4—.’ Cl)

L.. U
_ ci)

(1)
.4— C

0 0 U)

1 ciE EE
‘4_) = 0
ci
0
0



A
lt

er
n
at

iv
e

W
at

er
S

ce
n
ar

io
s

S
u
m

m
ar

y
FY

20
20

S
ce

n
ar

io
1

—
N

o
C

h
an

g
e

in
M

on
th

ly
F

ix
ed

C
h
ar

g
es

in
FY

20
20

an
d

20
21

,
4%

p
er

y
ea

r
th

er
ea

ft
er

S
ce

n
ar

io
IA

(R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
ed

)
E

xp
an

d
re

si
de

nt
ia

l
ti

er
1

th
re

sh
ol

d
fr

om
2k

ga
l

—
3k

ga
l

D
es

ig
n

un
if

or
m

ra
te

fo
r

sm
al

l
an

d
la

rg
e

co
m

m
er

ci
al

cu
st

o
m

er
s

S
ce

n
ar

io
IB

E
xp

an
d

ti
er

I
th

re
sh

ol
d

fr
om

2k
ga

l
—

4k
ga

l
E

xp
an

d
ti

er
2

th
re

sh
ol

d
fr

om
6k

ga
l

—
7k

ga
l

D
es

ig
n

un
if

or
m

ra
te

fo
r

sm
al

l
an

d
la

rg
e

co
m

m
er

ci
al

cu
st

o
m

er
s

15



A
lt

er
n
at

iv
e

W
at

er
S

ce
n
ar

io
s

S
um

m
ar

y
FY

20
20

S
ce

n
ar

io
2

—
4%

d
ec

re
as

e
in

M
on

th
ly

F
ix

ed
C

h
ar

g
es

in
20

20
,

3%
in

cr
ea

se
p
er

y
ea

r
th

er
ea

ft
er

S
ce

n
ar

io
2A

E
xp

an
d

re
si

de
nt

ia
l

ti
er

I
th

re
sh

ol
d

fr
om

2k
ga

l
—

3k
ga

l
D

es
ig

n
un

if
or

m
ra

te
fo

r
sm

al
l

an
d

la
rg

e
co

m
m

er
ci

al
cu

st
o
m

er
s

S
ce

n
ar

io
2B

E
xp

an
d

ti
er

1
th

re
sh

ol
d

fr
om

2k
ga

l
—

4k
ga

l
E

xp
an

d
ti

er
2

th
re

sh
ol

d
fr

om
6k

ga
l

—
7k

ga
l

D
es

ig
n

un
if

or
m

ra
te

fo
r

sm
al

l
an

d
la

rg
e

co
m

m
er

ci
al

cu
st

o
m

er
s

16



R
es

id
en

ti
al

P
re

li
m

in
ar

y
—

20
20

P
ro

p
o
se

d
R

at
es

In
si

de
C

it
y

R
es

id
en

ti
al

—
F

ix
ed

C
h
ar

g
e

M
et

er
S

iz
e

C
u
rr

en
t

R
at

e
P

ro
p
o
se

d
R

at
e

P
ro

p
o
se

d
R

at
e

S
ce

n
ar

io
IA

&
lB

S
ce

n
ar

io
2A

&
2B

5/
8”

$1
9.

24
$1

9.
24

$1
8.

47
1”

$4
1.

71
$4

1.
71

$4
0.

04

In
si

de
C

it
y

R
es

id
en

ti
al

-
V

ol
um

et
ri

c
C

h
ar

g
e

P
ro

p
o
se

d
T

ie
r

1
3
,0

0
0

P
ro

p
o
se

d
T

ie
r2

T
ie

r
T

h
re

sh
o
ld

C
u
rr

en
t

T
ie

r
S

ce
n
ar

io
IA

S
ce

n
ar

io
lB

S
ce

n
ar

io
2A

S
ce

n
ar

io
2B

R
at

e

2,
00

0
$2

.9
7

$3
.2

7
6,

00
0

$6
.7

0
$7

.3
8

10
,0

00
$1

5.
07

$1
6.

59
>

1
0
,0

0
0

$3
7.

69
$4

1.
50

$3
.6

9

$8
.3

3

$1
8.

73

$4
6.

84

4
,0

0
0

7,
00

0

$3
.1

1

$7
.0

2

$1
5.

80

$3
9.

51

3,
00

0

$3
.5

1

$7
.9

3

$1
7.

83

$4
4.

60

4, 7,
00

L
17



R
es

id
en

ti
a’

M
on

th
ly

C
h
ar

g
e

—
C

u
rr

en
t

FY
20

20
A

v
er

ag
e

C
o
n
su

m
p
ti

o
n

a
t

4k
g
al

$5
0

• $3
5

$3
0

4 $1
5

$1
0

i
c $0

W
at

er
C

on
su

m
pt

io
n

(g
aV

on
s)

vs
.

P
ro

p
o
se

d
,

$3
2.

51

C
;u

rr
en

t
W

at
er

B
iI

S
ce

n
an

e
IA

S
ce

na
ri

o
1B

S
ce

na
ri

o
2A

S
ce

na
ri

o
2B

$3
8.

58
$3

6.
43

I

4,
00

0

18



R
es

id
en

ti
al

M
on

th
ly

C
h
ar

g
e

—
C

u
rr

en
t

vs
.

P
ro

p
o
se

d
,

FY
20

20_
_
_
_
_

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

S
ce

n
ar

io
2A

S
ce

n
ar

io
2B

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

($
0.

77
)

($
0.

77
)

$0
.3

0
$0

.7
2

($
0.

63
)

($
0.

23
)

$0
.6

0
$1

.4
4

($
0.

49
)

$0
.3

1
($

2.
83

)
($

1.
57

)
($

4.
08

)
($

2.
88

)

%
C

um
ul

at
iv

e
B

ill
2% 17

%
40

%
62

%
4,

00
0

$3
8

58
($

2
15

)
($

4
58

)
($

3
76

)
.

($
6

07
)

79
%

5,
00

0
$4

5.
28

($
1.

47
)

($
2.

95
)

($
3.

44
)

($
4.

84
)

89
%

6,
00

0
$5

1.
98

($
0.

79
)

($
1.

32
)

($
3.

12
)

($
3.

61
)

93
%

7,
00

0
$6

7.
05

$0
.7

3
($

8.
06

)
($

2.
39

)
($

10
.7

5)
96

%
8,

00
0

$8
2.

12
$2

.2
5

($
4.

40
)

($
1.

66
)

($
7.

99
)

97
%

9,
00

0
$9

7.
19

$3
.7

7
($

0.
74

)
($

0.
93

)
($

5.
23

)
98

%
10

,0
00

$1
12

.2
6

$5
.2

9
$2

.9
2

($
0.

20
)

($
2.

47
)

99
%

T
ie

r
1

2,
00

0
3,

00
0

4,
00

0
3,

00
0

4
,0

0
0

T
ie

r
2

6,
00

0
6,

00
0

7,
00

0
6,

00
0

7,
00

0
T

ie
r

3
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

10
,0

00
10

,0
00

T
ie

r
3

>
10

,0
00

>
10

,0
00

>
10

,0
00

>
10

,0
00

>
10

,0
00

0
$1

9.
24

1,
00

0
$2

2.
21

2,
00

0
$2

5.
18

3.
00

0
$3

1.
88

N
ot

e:
W

at
er

u
se

of
9
,0

0
0

to
1
0
,0

0
0

g
al

lo
n
s

o
r

h
ig

h
er

p
er

m
o
n
th

is
n
o
t

ty
pi

ca
l

(m
o
st

li
ke

ly
cl

ue
to

w
at

er
le

ak
)

19



C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
P

re
li

m
in

ar
y

-
P

ro
p

o
se

d
R

at
es

FY
20

20
In

si
de

C
it

y
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

-
F

ix
ed

C
h

ar
g

e

M
et

er
S

iz
e

C
u
rr

en
t

R
at

e
P

ro
p
o
se

d
S

ce
n

ar
io

I
P

ro
p

o
se

d
S

ce
n

ar
io

2

5/
8”

$3
5.

05
$3

5.
05

$3
3.

65

1”
$1

76
.8

3
$1

76
.8

3
$1

69
.7

6

1
%

“
$2

55
.8

9
$2

55
.8

9
$2

45
.6

5

2”
$3

53
.6

7
$3

53
.6

7
$3

39
.5

2

3”
$4

68
.0

9
$4

68
.0

9
$4

49
.3

7

4”
$5

30
.5

0
$5

30
.5

0
$5

09
.2

8

6”
$1

,2
27

.4
4

$1
,2

27
.4

4
$1

,1
78

.3
4

8”
$1

,3
93

.8
7

$1
,3

93
.8

7
$1

,3
38

.1
2

In
si

de
C

it
y

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
-

V
o
lu

m
et

ri
c

C
h

ar
g

e
C

h
ar

g
e

S
ea

so
n
/U

n
if

o
rm

C
ur

re
nt

,
p
er

K
ga

l
P

ro
p

o
se

d
S

ce
n

ar
io

I
P

ro
p

o
se

d
S

ce
n
ar

io
2

W
in

te
r

S
um

m
er

$6
.3

0

$7
.8

8
$6

.9
4

$6
.6

3

20



C\J

(0
C

:*

C
C
C

U)

C

w
C)

0

Cl)

C
C)

a)

-o
ci)
CM

0
a
0
U

C,,

>

C
ci)

D
U

ci)
0)
L.

0
-c
U
>
-c
C
0

0

ci)
E
E
0
U

CJ
C
L.

a)
C)

(I)

a)
E
S
D

Cl)

0

a)
C)

Ci)

(2)
S

(I)

Li)
‘1-

Lr)

N

L

C,,
L)
Ef>

(2)
S
S
D

Ci)
4-’

C
CD (2)

C)
I

Q)
E
E
D

C/)

CCDC0000000o o r- CO LO - c’



C) C’]

C)

C)
(I)

0)
C

Li’)
C
0

C

-J
U)
C
0

C)

C)

0
C)

C)

c”J-o
ci)
Cr)
0
0
0
U

.

(I,

>

C
1)

D
()

ci)
0)
0
-c
U
>

C
0

•0
U
ci)
E
E
0
U

0

C
LI)
C-)

(1)

0)
C

C C C CD CD CC CCC
03 r CD LD C, c

6-



C
o
m

m
er

ci
al

M
on

th
ly

C
h
ar

g
e

—
C

u
rr

en
t

vs
.

P
ro

p
o
se

d
S

um
m

er

5,
00

0
$7

4.
45

($
4.

70
)

($
7.

65
)

69
%

6,
00

0
$8

2.
33

($
5.

64
)

($
8.

90
)

74
%

70
00

$9
0.

21
($

6.
58

)
($

10
.1

5)
78

%
8,

00
0

$9
8.

09
($

7.
52

)
($

11
.4

0)
80

%
9,

00
0

$1
05

.9
7

($
8.

46
)

($
12

.6
5)

82
%

10
,0

00
$1

13
.8

5
I$

9
.4

0
)

($
13

.9
0)

84
%

0
1,

00
0

2,
00

0
3,

00
0

$3
5.

05
$4

2.
93

$5
0.

81
$5

8.
69

4,
00

0

$0
.0

0
($

0.
94

)
($

1.
88

)
($

2.
82

)

%
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

B
ill

$6
6.

57

W
at

er
R

at
e

S
ce

n
ar

io
2

($
1.

40
)

($
2.

65
)

($
3.

90
)

($
5.

15
)

($
6.

40
)

($
3.

76
)

4% 36
%

49
%

59
%

64
%

23



C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
M

on
th

ly
C

h
a
rg

e
—

C
u

rr
en

t
vs

.
P

ro
p
o
se

d
W

in
te

r

W
at

er
R

at
e

S
ce

n
ar

io
2

0
$3

5.
05

$0
.0

0

%
C

u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

B
ill

($
1.

40
)

4%
1,

00
0

$4
1.

35
$0

.6
4

($
1.

07
)

36
%

2,
00

0
$4

7.
65

$1
.2

8
($

0
7
4
)

49
%

3,
00

0
$5

3.
95

$1
.9

2
($

0.
41

)
59

%
4,

00
0

$6
0.

25
$2

.5
6

($
0.

08
)

64
%

5,
00

0
$6

6.
55

$3
.2

0
$0

.2
5

69
%

6,
00

0
$7

2.
85

$3
.8

4
$0

.5
8

74
%

70
00

$7
9.

15
$4

.4
8

$0
.9

1
78

%
8,

00
0

$8
5.

45
$5

.1
2

$1
.2

4
80

%
9,

00
0

$9
1.

75
$5

.7
6

$1
.5

7
82

%
10

,0
00

$9
8.

05
$6

.4
0

$1
.9

0
84

%

24



S
ur

ve
y

—
A

v
er

ag
e

R
es

id
en

ti
al

W
at

er
U

se
rs

—
5/

8”
M

et
er

a
t

4,
00

0
g
al

lo
n
s

$
4
0

$
3
5

$
3
0

$
2
5

U

$
4
5

—
A

v
er

ag
e

$
2
0

$
15

$
1
0

$
5

I
I

R
o
sw

el
l

L
as

C
ru

ce
s

A
m

ar
il

lo
R

at
o
n

A
B

C
W

U
A

P
o
rt

al
es

A
la

m
ag

o
rd

o
T

u
sc

o
n

L
os

L
u
n
as

L
as

V
eg

as
L

as
V

eg
as

R
io

R
an

ch
o

S
an

ta
F

e
P

ro
p
o
se

d
C

u
rr

en
t

20
20

Ia



•
W

as
te

w
at

er
E

nt
er

pr
is

e

F
in

an
ci

al
P

la
n



W
as

te
w

at
er

E
nt

er
pr

is
e

U
se

s
FY

20
20

—
FY

20
29

L
,
$
6
0

C 0

$5
.0

a
n
d

S
o
u
rc

es
of

F
un

ds

$4
.0

$3
.0

—
—

—
—

$2
0

—
—

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

$1
0

—
—

—
—

—
—

—

FY
20

19
FY

20
20

FY
20

21
FY

20
22

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

20
26

FY
20

27
FY

20
28

FY
20

29
O

p
er

at
n
q

&
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
D

eb
t

S
er

vi
ce

T
ra

n
s
te

rs
O

ut
C

as
h

F
u
n
d
ed

C
ap

it
a’

—
R

ev
en

u
e

at
E

x
st

n
g

R
at

e
27



W
as

te
w

at
er

E
nt

er
pr

is
e

P
ro

je
ct

ed
R

at
e

P
la

n
F

Y
20

20
—

F
Y

20
29

I0
.5

0%

Co C
)

$6
.0

$5
.0

s,
o

10
.5

0%

I0
.5

0%
4.

00
%

.
4.

00
%

p
7

$1
.0

4.
00

%
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

-
—

FY
20

20
FY

20
2

‘
FY

20
22

FY
20

23
FY

20
24

FY
20

25
FY

2
0
2
6

T
ot

al
R

at
e

R
ev

en
u
e

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t
—

—
P

ro
po

se
d

R
ev

en
u
es

(%
R

at
e

n
c
re

a
se

s)

FY
20

27
FY

20
28

FY
20

29

*E
xc

lu
de

s
“O

th
er

R
ev

en
ue

s”
28



W
as

te
w

at
er

R
at

es

C
os

t
of

S
er

vi
ce

an
d

R
at

e
D

es
ig

n
T

op
ic

s



C
C”)

0G)

co

00
0j
=0
<C)

Cl)

Cl)0

0ccj)

I

2 C)

Cl)

LL

LI)
U)

N

CCCI)
4-’

ZSo
D

U—

C)

Cl)

C)

Id)

C4

C)
“I)

C)
LI)

Cd)
(F)

ci)
U
0

CL

ci)
U

ci)

0

0
U
ci)
C

ci)
C,)

C



W
as

te
w

at
er

E
nt

er
pr

is
e

R
ev

en
u
e

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t
b
y

C
u
st

o
m

er
C

la
ss

S
u
m

m
ar

y

•
R

at
e

R
ev

en
u
e

un
de

r
E

xi
st

in
g

R
at

es
•T

o
ta

l
R

ev
en

u
e

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t

(1
)

C 0

$
1
9
5

$2
.5

0

$2
.0

0

$1
.5

0

$1
.0

0

$0
.5

0

$0
.0

0

$0
.2

9
$0

.3
0

S
m

al
l

C
om

m
er

ci
al

R
es

id
en

ti
al

n
S

Id
E

L
ar

qe
C

or
n

m
er

ci
at

$0
.0

9
$0

.0
7

R
es

id
en

ti
al

O
ut

si
de

$0
.0

1
$0

.0
0

S
m

al
l

C
or

nm
er

ci
al

In
si

de
in

si
de

O
ut

si
de

O
ut

si
de

$0
.0

4
$0

.0
1

L
ar

qe
C

or
n

m
er

ci
at

$0
.0

4
$0

.0
2

S
ew

er
O

nl
y

31



P
ro

p
o
se

d
W

as
te

w
at

er
R

at
e

D
es

ig
n

C
h
an

g
es

W
as

te
w

at
er

C
u
st

o
m

er
s

•
M

ai
nt

ai
n

cu
rr

en
t

st
ru

ct
ur

e
•

A
pp

ly
10

.5
%

In
cr

ea
se

A
cr

os
s

th
e

B
oa

rd
pe

r
FA

M
S

an
al

ys
is

(r
ec

om
m

en
de

d)
,

or
•

A
lig

n
to

C
os

t
of

S
er

vi
ce

A
na

ly
si

s,
bu

t
w

ill
ne

ga
ti

ve
ly

im
pa

ct
re

si
de

nt
ia

l
cu

st
o
m

er
s

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

C
u
st

o
m

er
s

•
In

cr
ea

se
vo

lu
m

et
ri

c
ra

te
to

al
ig

n
w

ith
C

os
t

of
S

er
vi

ce
al

lo
ca

ti
on

s

32



c)
C’,)

(1)

ci)
0

-D
ci)
0
ci
0
0

C
N.

CNCN
1-•-(Y) 0

(0

0
(N
0
(N

>%

0
C:
ci)

cL

C
ci)

(I,

ci)

cL)

1! C
D



R
es

id
en

ti
al

M
on

th
ly

C
h
ar

g
e

—
C

u
rr

en
t

vs
.

P
ro

p
o
se

d

M
on

th
ly

U
se

C
um

ul
at

iv
e

C
ur

re
nt

P
ro

p
o
se

d
(G

al
)

B
il

le
d

U
sa

ge
%

W
as

te
w

at
er

W
as

te
w

at
er

$
C

hg
.

%
C

hg
.

0
4.

6%
$1

4.
25

$1
5.

75
$1

.5
0

10
.5

%
1,

00
0

21
.5

%
$2

0.
65

$2
2.

82
$2

.1
7

10
.5

%
2,

00
0

45
.4

%
$2

7.
05

$2
9.

89
$2

.8
4

10
.5

%
3,

00
0

67
.7

%
$3

3.
45

$3
6.

96
$3

.5
1

10
.5

%
4,

00
0

83
.2

%
$3

9.
85

$4
4.

03
$4

.1
8

10
.5

%
5,

00
0

91
.9

%
$4

6.
25

$5
1.

10
$4

.8
5

10
.5

%
6,

00
0

96
.5

%
$5

2.
65

$5
8.

17
$5

.5
2

10
.5

%
7,

00
0

98
.4

%
$5

9.
05

$6
5.

24
$6

.1
9

10
.5

%
8,

00
0

99
.2

%
$6

5.
45

$7
2.

31
$6

.8
6

10
.5

%
9,

00
0

99
.5

%
$7

1.
85

$7
9.

38
$7

.5
3

10
.5

%
10

,0
00

99
.7

%
$7

8.
25

$8
6.

45
$8

.2
0

10
.5

%

34



C
o
m

m
er

ci
al

P
re

li
m

in
ar

y
-

P
ro

p
o
se

d
R

at
es

20
20

In
si

d
e

C
it

y
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

-
F

ix
ed

C
h
ar

g
e

M
et

er
S

iz
e

C
u
rr

en
t

R
at

e
P

ro
p
o
se

d
R

at
e

5/
8”

$1
4.

25
$1

5.
75

1”
$3

1.
21

$3
4.

49
1

1/
21

’
$5

9.
29

$6
5.

52
2”

$9
3.

41
$1

03
.2

2
3”

$1
88

.2
8

$2
08

.0
5

4”
$3

54
.8

2
$3

92
.0

8
6”

$7
98

.4
4

$8
82

.2
8

In
si

d
e

C
it

y
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

—
V

o
lu

m
et

ri
c

C
h
ar

g
e

C
h
ar

g
e

T
ie

r
fC

u
rr

en
t,

p
er

K
ga

l
IP

ro
p
o
se

d
,

p
er

K
ga

l
U

ni
fo

rm
$6

.9
4

$7
.0

7

R
ec

la
im

ed
W

at
er

C
h
ar

g
e

T
ie

r
]C

u
rr

en
t,

p
er

K
ga

I
IP

ro
p
o
se

d
,

p
er

K
ga

l
U

ni
fo

rm
$1

.2
5

$3
.6

2
35



C
o
m

m
er

ci
al

M
on

th
ly

C
h

ar
g

e
-

C
u

rr
en

t
vs

.
P

ro
p
o

se
d

M
on

th
ly

U
se

C
u
m

u
la

ti
v
e

C
u
rr

en
t

P
ro

p
o

se
d

(G
al

)
B

il
le

d
U

sa
g
e

%
W

as
te

w
at

er
W

as
te

w
at

er
$

C
hg

.
%

C
hg

.
0

3.
5%

$1
4.

25
$1

5.
75

$1
.5

0
10

.5
%

1,
00

0
3
3
9
%

$2
0.

65
$2

2.
82

$2
.1

7
10

.5
%

2,
00

0
49

.0
%

$2
7.

05
$2

9.
89

$2
.8

4
10

.5
%

3,
00

0
58

.7
%

$3
3.

45
$3

6.
96

$3
.5

1
10

.5
%

4,
00

0
64

.5
%

$3
9.

85
$4

4.
03

$4
.1

8
10

.5
%

5,
00

0
69

.4
%

$4
6.

25
$5

1.
10

$4
.8

5
10

.5
%

6,
00

0
73

.9
%

$5
2.

65
$5

8.
17

$5
.5

2
10

.5
%

7,
00

0
77

.3
%

$5
9.

05
$6

5.
24

$6
.1

9
10

.5
%

8,
00

0
79

.7
%

$6
5.

45
$7

2.
31

$6
.8

6
10

.5
%

9,
00

0
81

.7
%

$7
1.

85
$7

9.
38

$7
.5

3
10

.5
%

10
,0

00
83

.4
%

$7
8.

25
$8

6.
45

$8
.2

0
10

.5
%

36



a)
a)

C

C1)

0

Q

0

U,
0

—z
L)
-J

> -C4
U, O

U,
—

>

-J

(ft

z
-J
U,
0
-J

0

U,

I-

Cr)

ci)
Cd,

ci)

ci)

C
ci)

Cr)

ci)
c

ci)
0)
0
ci)
>

>%

ci)
>
D

C0’)

C,
U

C’,

.0
U,

0

0

E

C,,

0
0)
0
0
0

0

Co

Lr)

C
0

0
w
4,

0 0
U)
4,

0 0 0
C., (‘4

4,



So
lid

W
as

te
E

nt
er

pr
is

e

F
in

an
ci

al
P

la
n



S
ol

id
W

as
te

E
nt

er
pr

is
e

U
se

s
a
n
d

S
o
u
rc

es
of

F
un

ds
FY

2(
22

0
—

FY
20

29

LI
)

$6
.C

)
C ci

$5
.0

$4
.0

$3
0

‘1

$1
.0

$0
.0

FY
20

19
FY

20
20

FY
20

21

—
—

FY
20

22
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

2
0
2
5

FY
2
0
2
6

FY
20

27
FY

2
0
2
8

FY
2
0
2
9

—
—

—
—

O
pe

ra
ti

ng
&

M
ei

n
te

n
n
ce

D
eb

t
S

er
vi

ce
T

ra
n
s
fe

rs
O

ut
C

as
h

F
un

de
d

C
ap

ita
’

—
R

ev
en

ue
at

E
xi

st
in

g
R

at
e

39



So
lid

W
as

te
E

nt
er

pr
is

e
T

ot
al

E
xp

en
se

s
vs

.
P

ro
p
o
se

d
R

ev
en

u
es ,::
v

20
29

C
)

$6 $5 $4
1—

_
I)

4
J

I

5.
0%

—

5.
0%

FY
20

20
FY

20
21

FY
20

22
FY

20
23

FY
20

24
FY

20
25

FY
20

26
FY

20
27

FY
20

28
FY

20
29

T
o
t
a

R
ev

en
u
e

R
eq

ui
re

m
en

t
—

-p
ro

p
o
se

d
R

ev
en

u
es

(%
R

at
e

nc
re

as
es

)

$3 $2

5.
0%

40



S
ol

id
W

as
te

R
at

es
C

o
st

of
S

er
v
ic

e
an

d
R

at
e

D
es

ig
n

T
op

ic
s



co

OU)

0(i)
4-’

=0
<C)

Cl)
C
0

0CC1)
CC
DCG)

Ii

•1-’

CQC3

.2 o

Cl)
C

Cl)
0C

IL cn
0

cl)0
(1)4-’

0
N

4-’

w—o
4-’oo
C
D

U-

LI)

Cs’)

w
Cl)

C4

C)

C,)

(I,
Cl-,

a)
U
0
U

a)
U
.

a)
‘2
0

-4--
(I)

0
U
ci)
0

0
(I)



C)

$1
.0

0

$0
.5

0

$
0
.0

0

$1
.0

5

m
R

at
e

R
ev

en
u
e

U
nd

er
E

xi
st

in
g

R
at

es$0
.1

2
$0

.1
1

R
es

id
en

ti
ai

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

5
$0

.0
3

Sm
aN

C
o
rn

m
er

ca
l

L
ar

ge
C

om
m

er
ci

al

•
T

ot
al

R
ev

en
u
e

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t

So
lid

W
as

te
R

ev
en

u
e

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t
by

C
u
st

o
m

er
C

la
ss

S
u
m

m
ar

y
$2

.0
0

$1
.8

8

$
1
.5

0
$
1
.5

0

$0
.5

8
- - -

- $
0.

49

R
es

id
en

ti
a’

In
si

de
Sm

aN
C

om
m

er
ci

a’
L

ar
ge

C
om

m
er

ci
al

In
si

de
In

si
de

O
ut

si
de

O
ut

si
de

O
ut

si
de

4
3



C
u

rr
en

t
R

at
e

D
es

ig
n

-
So

lid
W

as
te

In
si

d
e

C
it

y
R

es
id

en
ti

al

C
ar

t
(9

0
G

al
lo

n)
$2

5.
90

A
dd

it
io

na
l

C
ar

t
$1

2.
10

D
um

ps
te

r—
1.

5
C

Y
$5

8.
60

M
on

th
ly

F
ix

ed
C

ha
rg

e

In
si

d
e

C
it

y
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

O
ut

si
de

R
es

id
en

ti
al

P
re

m
iu

m
@

1.
38

x

A
dd

it
io

na
l

T
yp

e
F

ir
st

Pi
ck

U
p

P
ic

k
U

ps

C
ar

t
(9

0
G

al
lo

n)
$3

1.
50

$2
7.

40
D

u
m

p
st

er
—

1
.5

C
Y

$7
1.

30
$5

9.
10

D
um

ps
te

r
—

2
C

Y
$8

8.
40

$7
4.

50
D

u
m

p
st

er
—

3
C

Y
$1

20
.1

0
$1

05
.1

0
D

u
m

p
st

er
—

4
C

Y
$1

52
.5

0
$1

35
.9

0
D

u
m

p
st

er
—

6
C

Y
$
2

1
7
.8

0
$

1
9
7

.3
0

D
um

ps
te

r
—

8
C

Y
$2

81
.8

0
$2

59
.1

0

O
ut

si
de

R
es

id
en

tia
’

Pr
em

iu
m

@
1.

25
x

4
4



P
ro

p
o
se

d
S

ol
id

W
as

te
R

at
e

D
es

ig
n

M
o
d
if

ic
at

io
n
s

S
ol

id
W

as
te

C
u
st

o
m

er
s

•
M

ai
n
ta

in
cu

rr
en

t
st

ru
ct

u
re

•
A

pp
ly

5%
In

cr
ea

se
A

cr
os

s
th

e
B

o
ar

d
p
er

FA
M

S
an

al
y
si

s
-

O
p
ti

o
n

1,
or

•
A

li
gn

to
R

ev
en

u
e

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t
b
y

C
la

ss
,

b
u
t

w
ill

n
eg

at
iv

el
y

im
p
ac

t
re

si
d
en

ti
al

cu
st

o
m

er
s

—
O

p
ti

o
n

2

O
ut

si
de

C
it

y
C

u
st

o
m

er
s

R
ec

o
m

m
en

d
a

un
if

or
m

m
ul

ti
pl

ie
r

a
t

1 .
30

x

45



S
ol

id
W

as
te

-
P

re
li

m
in

ar
y

R
at

e
O

p
ti

o
n

1
20

20
P

ro
p
o
se

d
R

at
es

w
ith

5%
A

d
ju

st
m

en
t

In
si

d
e

C
it

y
R

es
id

en
ti

al
—

M
o
n
th

ly
C

h
a
rg

e

T
yp

e
C

ur
re

nt
R

at
e

P
ro

p
o
se

d
R

at
e

C
ar

t
(9

0
G

al
lo

n)
$2

5.
90

$2
7.

20

A
dd

it
io

na
l

C
ar

t
$1

2.
10

$1
2.

71

D
um

ps
te

r—
1.

5
C

Y
$5

8.
60

$6
1.

53

In
si

d
e

C
it

y
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
-

M
o
n
th

ly
C

h
a
rg

e

T
C

ur
re

nt
-

C
ur

re
nt

A
dd

t’
l

P
ro

p
o

se
d

-
P

ro
p
o
se

d
—

A
dd

t’
l

yp
e

F
ir

st
P

ic
k

U
p

P
ic

k
U

ps
F

ir
st

P
ic

k
U

ps
P

ic
k

U
ps

C
ar

t
(9

0
G

al
lo

n)

D
um

ps
te

r
—

1.
5

C
Y

D
um

ps
te

r
—

2
C

Y

D
um

ps
te

r
—

3
C

Y

D
um

ps
te

r—
4

C
Y

D
um

ps
te

r
—

6
C

Y

D
u
m

p
st

er
—

8
C

Y

$3
1.

50

$7
1.

30

$8
8.

40

$1
20

.1
0

$1
52

.5
0

$2
17

.8
0

$2
81

.8
0

$2
7.

40

$5
9.

10

$7
4.

50

$1
05

.1
0

$1
35

.9
0

$1
97

.3
0

$2
59

.1
0

$3
3.

08

$7
4.

87

$9
2.

82

$1
26

.1
1

$1
60

.1
3

$2
28

.6
9

$2
95

.8
9

$2
8.

77

$6
2.

06

$7
8.

23

$1
10

.3
6

$1
42

.7
0

$2
07

.1
7

$2
72

.0
6

4
6



S
ol

id
W

as
te

—
P

re
li

m
in

ar
y

R
at

e
O

p
ti

o
n

2
20

20
C

al
cu

la
te

d
R

at
es

w
it

h
R

ev
en

u
e

R
eq

’t
A

d
ju

st
m

en
t

In
si

d
e

C
it

y
R

es
id

en
ti

al
—

M
o
n
th

ly
C

h
a
rg

e

T
yp

e
C

ur
re

nt
R

at
e

P
ro

p
o
se

d
R

at
e

C
ar

t
(9

0
G

al
lo

n)
$2

5.
90

$3
4.

75
A

dd
it

io
na

l
C

ar
t

$1
2.

10
$2

6.
25

D
um

ps
te

r
—

1.
5

C
Y

$5
8.

60
$7

2.
71

In
si

d
e

C
it

y
C

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l
-

M
o
n
th

ly
C

h
a
rg

e

T
C

ur
re

nt
-

C
ur

re
nt

—
A

dd
t’

I
P

ro
p
o
se

d
-

P
ro

p
o
se

d
—

A
dd

t’
l

yp
e

F
ir

st
P

ic
k

U
p

P
ic

k
U

ps
F

ir
st

P
ic

k
U

ps
P

ic
k

U
ps

C
ar

t
(9

0
G

al
lo

n)

D
um

ps
te

r—
1.

5
C

Y
D

u
m

p
st

er
—

2
C

Y

D
u
m

p
st

er
—

3
C

Y

D
um

ps
te

r
—

4
C

Y

D
um

ps
te

r
—

6
C

Y

D
um

ps
te

r
—

8
C

Y

$3
1.

50

$7
1.

30

$8
8.

40

$1
20

.1
0

$1
52

.5
0

$2
17

.8
0

$2
81

.8
0

$2
7.

40

$5
9.

10

$7
4.

50

$1
05

.1
0

$1
35

.9
0

$1
97

.3
0

$2
59

.1
0

$3
4.

75

$7
2.

71

$8
3.

08

$1
03

.8
2

$1
24

.5
6

$1
66

.0
4

$2
07

.5
2

$3
4.

75

$7
2.

71

$8
3.

08

$1
03

.8
2

$
1
2
4
.5

6

$1
66

.0
4

$2
07

.5
2

4
7



So
lid

W
as

te
-C

o
m

p
ar

is
o
n

of
M

on
th

ly
R

at
e

O
pt

io
ns

M
on

th
ly

R
at

es
by

C
us

to
m

er
T

yp
e

$3
20

.0
0

$3
00

.0
0

•
C

ur
re

nt
R

at
e

U
n?

fo
rm

R
at

e
A

dj
.

@
5%

•
C

aI
cu

at
ed

R
at

e
$2

80
.0

0
$2

60
.0

0
$2

40
.0

0
$2

20
.0

0
$2

00
00

$1
80

.0
0

$1
60

.0
0

.
,
.

$1
40

.0
0

$
1
2
0
0
0

-

$
1
0
0
0
0

$8
0

00

-n
Ill

III
Ia

R
es

id
en

ti
al

-
C

om
m

.
-

C
om

m
.

-
1.

5
C

om
m

.
-

2
C

om
m

.
-

3
C

om
m

.
-

4
C

om
m

.
-

6
C

om
m

.
-

8
C

ar
t

C
ar

t
C

Y
C

Y
C

Y
C

Y
C

Y
C

Y
C

u
rr

e
n
t

R
at

e
$2

5.
90

$3
1.

50
$7

1.
30

$8
8.

40
$1

20
.1

0
$1

52
.5

0
$2

17
.8

0
$2

81
.8

0
U

n
if

o
rm

R
at

e
A

dj
.

@
5
%

$2
7.

20
$3

3.
08

$7
4.

87
$9

2.
82

$1
26

.1
1

$1
60

.1
3

$2
28

.6
9

$2
95

.8
9

S
C

al
cu

la
te

d
R

at
e

$3
4.

75
$3

4.
75

$7
2.

71
$8

3.
08

$1
03

.8
2

$1
24

.5
6

$1
66

.0
4

$2
07

.5
2

48



S
ol

id
W

as
te

Bi
ll

Im
p
ac

ts
O

p
ti

o
n

5%
U

ni
fo

rm
A

d
ju

st
m

en
t

1—

5,
00

0

$
1
4
.0

9
4,

50
0

4,
00

0

3

U
)

3,
00

0

2,
50

0
5 F

2,
00

0
D (3

1,
50

0

1,
00

0

50
0

0

$1
6.

00

$1
4.

00

$1
0.

00
H C

)

ft
.

$8
.0

0

$6
.0

0

$4
.0

0

$2
..

00

.6
3

$0
.0

0

1
0
.8

9

.0
1

33
51

11
0

28

$
3
.5

7

R
es

id
en

ti
al

..
C

om
m

.
.
.
C

ar
t

C
ar

t

57

C
om

m
.

-
1.

5
C

om
m

.
2

C
Y

C
nr

nr
n.

-3
C

V
C

om
m

.
..4

C
V

C
om

m
.

-6
C

V
C

om
m

.
-

a
C

V
C

st
o
rn

e
rs

$
C

h
an

g
e

in
M

on
th

ly
B

ill

49



5,
00

0

4,
50

0

4,
00

0

3,
50

0

3,
00

0
w

2,
50

0

2,
00

0

1,
50

0

1,
00

0

S
ol

id
W

as
te

Bi
ll

Im
p
ac

ts
O

p
ti

o
n

2
—

R
ev

en
u
e

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

t
C

al
cu

la
te

d
A

d
ju

st
m

en
t

4,
48

8
85

$2
0.

00

$1
0.

00

$0
.0

0

($
10

.0
0)

($
20

.0
0)

($
30

.0
0)

g
($

40
.0

0)

($
50

.0
0)

($
60

.0
0)

($
70

.0
0)

($
80

.0
0)

‘$
27

.9
4)

26
8

R
es

d
en

ti
a

C
om

m
.

-

-
.
C

ar
t

C
ar

t

.7
6)

50
0

57
33

51
49

11
0

($
74

.2
8)

—
—

—
—

—
0

C
om

m
.

-
C

om
m

.
-

2
C

om
m

.
-

3
C

om
m

.
-

4
C

om
m

.
-

6
C

om
m

.
-

8
1.

5
C

Y
C

Y
C

Y
C

Y
C

Y
C

Y
C

u
st

o
m

er
s

—
.4

C
ha

ng
e

in
M

on
th

i’
Bi

B

50



ci)
c-f)

ci)
C,,

C

0
C/)

C
ci)

0

ci)
0)
C
ci)
>

>
ci)
>
D

‘I)

Lf)

In 0 In 0 In 0C’, C’ C1 C’4 —
4ft



S
ur

ve
y

—
A

v
er

ag
e

R
es

id
en

ti
al

U
se

r
C

o
m

b
in

ed
Bi

ll
—

5
/8

”
M

et
er

$1
20

$1
10

$1
00 $9
0

$8
0

$7
0

W
a
te

r
W

as
te

w
at

er
S

o
Ii

d
W

as
te

—
A

v
e
ra

g
e

I
I

—

F
__

I

r

I

—-
I

I

$6
0

$5
0

$4
0

$3
0

$2
0

$1
0 $0

-
I

L
as

C
ru

ce
s

R
o
sw

el
l

A
B

C
W

U
A

P
o
rt

al
es

A
la

m
ag

o
rd

o
C

ar
ls

b
ad

T
ao

s
S

an
ta

Fe
L

os
L

un
as

L
as

V
eg

as
L

os
A

la
m

os
L

as
V

eg
as

R
io

R
an

ch
o

C
u
rr

en
t

C
o
u
n
ty

P
ro

p
o
se

d
20

20
Ia



S
ys

te
m

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
F

ee
s



N
ew

F
ee

-
S

ys
te

m
D

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t

F
ee

fo
r

W
at

er
a
n
d

S
ew

er
•

O
ne

-t
im

e
ch

ar
ge

to
ne

w
co

nn
ec

ti
on

s
to

fi
na

nc
e

gr
ow

th
po

rt
io

n
of

ut
ili

ty
sy

st
em

ca
pa

ci
ty

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

•
C

ha
rg

e
b
as

ed
on

va
lu

e
of

sy
st

em
’s

ca
pa

ci
ty

an
d

am
ou

nt
of

ca
pa

ci
ty

re
qu

ir
ed

by
ne

w
co

nn
ec

ti
on

•
C

om
m

on
fi

na
nc

e
to

ol
us

ed
by

ut
ili

tie
s

an
d

m
un

ic
ip

al
it

ie
s

to
de

fr
ay

th
e

co
st

of
gr

ow
th

-r
el

at
ed

fa
ci

li
ti

es

N
ew

M
ex

ic
o

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
F

ee
s

A
ct

,
S

ta
tu

te
5-

8-
1,

19
78

,
re

v
is

ed
in

20
06

54



S
ys

te
m

D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t

F
ee

A
na

ly
si

s
•

F
ee

B
as

is
1)

V
al

ue
of

S
ys

te
m

A
ss

et
s

2)
C

ap
ac

it
y

of
th

e
W

at
er

an
d

S
ew

er
S

y
st

em
s

3)
L

ev
el

of
S

er
vi

ce
(b

as
ed

on
eq

ui
va

le
nt

re
si

de
nt

ia
l

un
it

s)
•

C
o
st

A
ll

o
ca

ti
o
n

b
as

ed
on

V
al

ue
of

S
y
st

em
A

ss
et

s
th

at
b
en

ef
it

on
ly

n
ew

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t

55



C
o
n
n
ec

ti
o
n

F
ee

S
um

m
ar

y

T
ot

al
P

la
nt

In
S

er
v
ic

e
E

xp
an

si
on

C
ap

it
al

C
o
st

s
(L

es
s:

P
ri

nc
ip

al
C

re
di

t)
T

ot
al

C
o
st

s
B

uy
-i

n
M

et
ho

d

$
4
2
,9

1
1
,6

7
7

$ $
(5

,4
93

,4
58

)
$

37
,4

18
,2

19

T
ot

al
P

la
nt

In
S

er
v
ic

e
E

xp
an

si
on

C
ap

it
al

C
o
st

s
(L

es
s:

P
ri

nc
ip

al
C

re
di

t)
T

ot
al

C
o
st

s
B

uy
-I

n
M

et
ho

d

$
25

,1
62

,2
22

$ $
(7

,8
00

,4
20

)
$

17
,3

61
,8

03

1,
05

8

10
0.

0%

1,
05

8

W
at

er
S

y
st

em
D

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t

F
ee

W
as

te
w

at
er

S
y
st

em
D

ev
el

o
p
m

en
t

F
ee

C
o
st

p
er

E
R

U
$

2,
78

3
C

o
st

p
er

E
R

U
$

T
ot

al
C

re
di

ts
$

-
T

ot
al

C
re

di
ts

$
C

o
st

R
ec

o
v
er

y
P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e

10
0.

0%
C

o
st

R
ec

ov
er

y
P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e

IT
ot

ai
C

al
cu

la
te

d
F

ee
:

$
2,

78
3

T
ot

al
C

al
cu

la
te

d
F

ee
:

$

56



A
d
o
p
ti

o
n

R
eq

u
ir

em
en

ts
•

P
u
b
li

c
H

ea
ri

n
g
s

to
ap

p
ro

v
e

o
r

ad
o
p
t

1)
S

ys
te

m
w

id
e

la
nd

us
e

pr
oj

ec
ti

on
s

2)
C

ap
it

al
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
P

ro
je

ct
(C

IP
)

es
ti

m
at

es

57



N
ex

t
S

te
p
s

•
P

ub
li

c
M

ee
ti

n
g
s

•
R

ec
ei

v
e

in
p
u
t

an
d

ad
ju

st
fi

nd
in

gs
as

n
ec

es
sa

ry
•

C
ou

nc
il

M
ee

ti
n
g

to
a
d
o
p
t

u
p
d
a
te

d
ra

te
s

an
d

ch
ar

g
es

58



H
id

de
n

S
[i

de
s





P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

TA
X

G
R

O
S

S
R

E
C

E
IP

T
T

A
X

1.
22

5
F

R
A

N
C

H
IS

E
TA

X
G

R
O

S
S

R
E

C
E

IP
T

T
A

X
.7

5
11

8
IN

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

G
R

T
.2

5
(J

A
N

20
11

)
G

R
T

-H
O

L
D

H
A

R
M

L
E

S
S

(J
U

L
Y

20
15

L
IC

E
N

S
E

&
F

E
E

S
IN

T
E

R
G

O
V

E
R

N
M

E
N

T
A

L
L

O
C

A
L

-F
IN

E
S

L
O

C
A

L
-M

IS
C

T
O

T
A

L

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
FU

N
D

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
C

O
M

P
A

R
IS

O
N

T
H

R
U

O
C

T
O

B
E

R
31

,
20

19
34

%
O

F
Y

E
A

R
L

A
P

S
E

D
(4

of
12

m
o
n

th
s)

FI
SC

A
L

Y
E

A
R

20
20

T
ot

al
B

u
d
g
et

to
A

ct
u
al

C
o

m
p

ar
is

o
n

G
(E

IB
)

FY
20

20
%

R
E

V
9% 38

%
30

%
36

%
38

%
36

%
0% I 5

%
37

%
37

%
34

%
33

%

(L
ic

en
se

&
F

ee
s-

B
u

si
n

es
s

L
ic

en
se

s,
L

iq
uo

r
L

ic
en

se
s

an
d

B
ui

ld
in

g
P

er
m

it
s,

D
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t

F
ee

s)
(L

oc
al

F
in

es
-

C
o
u
rt

F
in

es
,

L
ib

ra
ry

F
in

es
,

T
ra

ff
ic

S
af

et
y

F
in

es
)

FI
SC

A
L

Y
E

A
R

20
20

T
ot

al
B

u
d

g
et

to
A

ct
u
al

C
o

m
p

ar
is

o
n

A
B

C
D

E

FY
20

19
FY

20
20

FY
20

20
FY

20
19

FY
20

20
B

U
D

G
E

T
B

U
D

G
E

T
Y

T
D

-
B

U
D

G
E

T
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
1,

48
5,

00
0

1,
31

2,
37

2
43

7,
45

7
72

,9
88

11
5,

65
3

3,
55

0,
00

0
3,

55
0,

00
0

1,
18

3,
33

3
1,

23
4,

66
9

1,
36

0,
06

0
75

0,
00

0
75

0,
00

0
25

0,
00

0
23

5,
84

5
22

7,
79

7
2,

33
2,

50
0

2,
44

9,
12

5
81

6,
37

5
81

0,
93

5
89

3,
23

0
37

2,
00

0
37

2,
00

0
12

4,
00

0
13

4,
55

7
14

1,
05

5
1,

06
0,

00
0

1,
06

0,
00

0
35

3,
33

3
37

4,
86

2
38

0,
78

1
-

0
0

-

83
,5

00
63

,0
00

21
,0

00
11

,4
45

9,
34

4
77

,1
44

76
,5

00
25

,5
00

29
,8

30
28

,5
78

66
,5

00
66

,5
00

22
,1

67
18

,6
65

24
,5

22
1,

64
8,

80
0

1,
66

7,
45

0
55

5,
81

7
54

5,
40

5
57

4,
02

4
11

,4
25

,4
44

11
,3

66
,9

47
3,

78
8,

98
2

3,
46

9,
19

9
3,

75
5,

04
4

A
B

C
D

29
4,

64
8

73
,0

38
60

,7
36

26
1,

41
2

E

F
Y

20
19

F
Y

20
20

F
Y

20
20

F
Y

20
19

F
Y

20
20

F
Y

20
20

B
U

D
G

E
T

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T

D
-

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T

D
-

A
C

T
U

A
L

Y
T

D
-

A
C

T
U

A
L

A
V

A
IL

.
B

A
L

.
30

0,
15

7
10

0,
05

2
85

,6
54

96
,4

36
20

3,
72

1
72

,4
09

24
,1

36
24

,8
41

24
,0

83
48

,3
26

43
,4

84
14

,4
95

14
,3

20
5,

62
3

37
,8

61
26

4.
45

2
88

.1
51

61
.7

82
61

,1
79

20
3.

27
3

F

JU
D

IC
IA

L
G

O
V

E
R

N
IN

G
B

O
D

Y
M

A
Y

O
R

M
A

N
A

G
E

R
E

X
E

C
U

T
IV

E
M

U
N

IC
IP

A
L

C
L

E
R

K
C

IT
Y

A
T

T
O

R
N

E
Y

P
E

R
S

O
N

N
E

L
/H

R
FI

N
A

N
C

E
C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
D

E
V

.
P

O
L

IC
E

C
O

D
E

E
N

F
O

R
C

E
M

E
N

T
A

N
IM

A
L

S
H

E
L

T
E

R
FI

R
E

PU
B

L
IC

W
O

R
K

S
IA

IR
P

O
R

T
P

A
R

K
S

A
IR

P
O

R
T

L
IB

R
A

R
Y

M
U

SE
U

M
G

E
N

E
R

A
L

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
SA

L
A

R
Y

C
O

N
T

IN
G

E
N

C
Y

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
T

O
T

A
L

0
0

0
22

2,
49

9
27

0,
72

9
90

,2
43

71
,7

05
77

,4
70

19
3,

25
9

22
9,

70
4

21
8,

05
2

72
,6

84
42

,3
43

45
,1

98
17

2,
85

4
24

5,
25

9
24

9,
96

1
83

,3
20

58
,8

76
73

,4
86

17
6,

47
5

46
7,

22
3

47
5,

65
3

15
8,

55
1

11
7,

20
1

15
1,

23
4

32
4,

41
9

52
8,

70
6

50
6,

79
1

16
8,

93
0

10
1,

24
7

10
2,

44
8

40
4,

34
3

4,
00

6,
68

0
4,

27
7,

03
1

1,
42

5,
67

7
1,

15
2,

61
0

1,
21

4,
59

0
3,

06
2,

44
1

15
0,

33
4

14
2,

02
1

47
,3

40
27

,6
88

22
,4

09
11

9,
61

2
13

5,
49

0
15

0,
42

4
50

,1
41

32
,9

90
44

,5
59

10
5,

86
5

1,
35

7,
46

7
1,

38
4,

72
9

46
1,

57
6

37
5,

57
2

40
2,

82
6

98
1,

90
3

45
0,

83
2

48
7,

07
1

16
2,

35
7

12
3,

19
0

14
2,

87
6

34
4,

19
5

29
0,

70
9

29
0,

32
3

96
,7

74
56

,5
95

71
,0

99
21

9,
22

4
0

0
0

0
0

0
20

0,
04

6
23

2,
27

2
77

,4
24

49
,7

43
75

,1
64

15
7,

10
8

14
8,

11
6

15
4,

93
9

51
,6

46
35

,8
95

27
,5

86
12

7,
35

3
3,

16
1,

41
0

2,
72

3,
56

8
90

7,
85

6
69

0,
63

2
45

1,
16

8
2,

27
2,

40
0

0
0

0
0

0
75

1,
35

2
74

4,
66

7
24

8,
22

2
24

6,
50

0
24

8,
16

6
49

6,
50

1
13

,0
35

,6
61

12
,9

88
,7

33
4,

32
9,

57
8

3,
36

9,
38

6
3,

33
7,

60
0

9,
65

1,
13

3

H
(E

/B
)

%
B

D
G

T
32

%
33

%
13

%
23

%
0% 29

%
21

%
29

%
32

%
20

%
28

%
16

%
30

%
29

%
29

%
24

%
0% 32

%
18

%
17

%
0% 33

%
26

%



E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
F

U
N

D
S

-R
E

V
E

N
U

E
C

O
M

P
A

R
IS

O
N

T
H

R
U

O
C

T
O

B
E

R
31

,
20

19
34

%
Y

E
A

R
L

A
P

S
E

D
(4

of
12

m
o

n
th

s)
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

20
20

T
ot

al
B

u
d

g
et

to
A

ct
u
al

C
o

m
p

ar
is

o
n

A
B

C
D

E
G

(E
IB

)
FY

20
19

FY
20

20
FY

20
20

FY
20

19
FY

20
20

%
B

U
D

G
E

T
B

U
D

G
E

T
Y

T
D

-
B

U
D

G
E

T
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
(6

10
)

2,
96

6,
10

0
3,

41
9,

60
0

1,
13

9,
86

7
1,

02
8,

32
7

92
8,

23
9

27
%

N
A

T
U

R
A

L
G

A
S

(6
20

)
5,

03
6,

00
0

5,
04

1,
25

0
1,

68
0,

41
7

65
3,

12
2

74
8,

48
7

15
%

S
O

L
ID

W
A

S
T

E
(6

30
)

3,
41

9,
40

0
3,

41
3,

40
0

1,
13

7,
80

0
1,

13
7,

10
3

1,
18

3,
84

0
35

%
W

A
T

E
R

(6
40

)
5,

13
8,

95
0

5,
17

2,
72

0
1,

72
4,

24
0

1,
81

9,
05

8
1,

79
8,

68
4

35
%

T
ot

al
o
f

E
n
te

rp
ri

se
F

u
n
d
s

16
,5

60
,4

50
17

,0
46

,9
70

5,
68

2,
32

3
4,

63
7,

60
9

4,
65

9,
25

0
27

%

E
N

T
E

R
P

R
IS

E
F

U
N

D
S

-E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
C

O
M

P
A

R
IS

O
N

T
H

R
U

O
C

T
O

B
E

R
31

,
20

19
34

%
Y

E
A

R
L

A
P

S
E

D
(4

of
12

m
o

n
th

s)
F

IS
C

A
L

Y
E

A
R

20
20

T
ot

al
B

u
d

g
et

to
A

ct
u
al

C
o

m
p
ar

is
o
n

A
B

C
D

E
F

H
(E

IB
)

FY
20

19
FY

20
20

FY
20

20
FY

20
19

FY
20

20
FY

20
20

%
B

U
D

G
E

T
B

U
D

G
E

T
Y

T
D

-
B

U
D

G
E

T
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
A

V
A

IL
.

B
A

L
.

B
U

D
G

E
T

W
A

S
T

E
W

A
T

E
R

(6
10

)
3,

31
7,

95
8

4,
67

1,
73

7
1,

55
7,

24
6

92
3,

39
7

1,
04

3,
17

4
3,

62
8,

56
3

22
%

N
A

T
U

R
A

L
G

A
S

(6
20

)
6,

17
9,

77
3

6,
93

0,
17

9
2,

31
0,

06
0

86
1,

02
5

95
7,

85
7

5,
97

2,
32

2
14

%
S

O
L

ID
W

A
S

T
E

(6
30

)
3,

76
0,

09
7

3,
78

1,
26

0
1,

26
0,

42
0

86
6,

72
5

1,
02

8,
86

3
2,

75
2,

39
7

27
%

W
A

T
E

R
(6

40
)

4,
70

7,
66

3
5,

48
1,

28
5

1,
82

7,
09

5
1,

24
9,

96
0

1,
55

0,
56

7
3,

93
0,

71
8

28
%

T
ot

al
o
f

E
n

te
rp

ri
se

F
u
n
d
s

17
,9

65
,4

91
20

,8
64

,4
61

6,
95

4,
82

0
3,

90
1,

10
7

4,
58

0,
46

1
16

,2
84

,0
00

22
%



R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
-R

E
V

E
N

U
E

C
O

M
P

A
R

IS
O

N
T

H
R

U
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

31
,

20
19

-
34

%
O

F
Y

E
A

R
L

A
P

S
E

D
4

O
F

12
M

O
N

T
H

S
FI

SC
A

L
Y

E
A

R
20

20

Y
A

FL
Y

A
B

L
IA

D
U

L
T

B
A

S
K

E
T

B
A

L
L

O
T

H
E

R
O

P
E

R
A

T
IN

G
E

X
P

.
C

A
P

IT
A

L
O

U
T

L
A

Y

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
D

E
PA

R
T

M
E

N
T

-
E

X
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
E

C
O

M
P

A
R

IS
O

N
T

H
R

U
O

C
T

O
B

E
R

31
,

20
19

-
34

%
O

F
Y

E
A

R
L

A
P

S
E

D
4

O
F

12
M

O
N

T
H

S
FI

SC
A

L
Y

E
A

R
20

20

n
o
,

U
/0

21
%

35
%

n
o
,

U
/0

‘)
O

/
L

/0

,
0
/

P
1
0

21
%

33
%

28
%

F
Y

2
0
2
0

%
A

V
A

IL
.

B
A

L
.

B
D

G
T

44
8,

52
6

28
%

0% n
o
,

U
/0

27
%

9%

FY
20

19
B

U
D

G
E

T

A
B

C
D

E
G

0
11

5,
00

0
20

,0
00

0

FY
20

20
FY

20
20

FY
20

19
FY

20
20

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T

D
-

B
U

D
G

E
T

Y
T

D
-A

C
T

U
A

L
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
0

11
5,

00
0

10
,0

00
0

0
38

,3
33

3,
33

3 0

0
36

,0
38

4,
19

5 0

(E
IB

)

%
R

E
V

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
-T

A
X

E
S

(C
ig

)
W

E
L

L
N

E
S

S
C

E
N

T
E

R
O

P
E

N
SW

IM
Y

A
FL

Y
A

B
L

IA
D

U
L

T
B

A
S

K
E

T
B

A
L

L
S

U
M

M
E

R
FU

N
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
-O

T
H

E
R

G
E

N
FU

N
D

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

T
O

T
A

L

E
M

P
L

O
Y

E
E

E
X

P
.

0
24

,4
36

3,
50

1 0
16

,5
00

16
,5

00
5,

50
0

2,
10

3
26

8
26

,0
00

30
,0

00
10

,0
00

7,
22

4
94

3
85

,0
00

62
,5

00
20

,8
33

5,
89

8
13

,2
47

40
0,

00
0

40
0,

00
0

13
3,

33
3

13
3,

28
0

13
3,

28
0

66
2,

50
0

63
4,

00
0

21
1,

33
3

18
8,

73
8

17
5,

67
5

FY
20

19
B

U
D

G
E

T
63

3,
16

6

A
B

C
D

E
F

H

FY
20

20
B

U
D

G
E

T
61

9,
44

4

FY
20

20
FY

20
19

FY
20

20
Y

T
D

-
B

U
D

G
E

T
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
Y

T
D

-
A

C
T

U
A

L
20

6,
48

1
15

9,
35

2
17

0,
91

8

(E
IB

)

0
0

0
0

0
0

8,
50

0
8,

50
0

2,
83

3
1,

12
8

0
8,

50
0

95
,3

50
83

,8
50

27
,9

50
22

,6
92

22
,5

56
61

,2
94

9,
50

0
9,

50
0

3,
16

7
3,

32
1

85
7

8,
64

3
74

6,
51

6
72

1,
29

4
24

0,
43

1
18

6,
49

3
19

4,
33

1
52

6,
96

3
T

O
T

A
L

27
%



Regular

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE: 10/29/2019 DEPT: Police MEETING DATE: 11120/2019

ITEM/TOPIC: Out of State travel to Canon City, Colorado

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: Approval/Disapproval of out of state travel
request

BACKGROUNDIRATIONALE: Glock Armorer School/Training will be held in Canon
City Colorado on December 9-10, 2019. Our firearms instructor will be attending this
training.

Registration for this school/training is $250.00. The attendee is requesting to go actual
for costs, upon the attendees’ return he will request reimbursement for the allowable
actual costs of out of pocket expenses for this school/training. The projected cost for the
allowable lodging and meals will be $272.00 upon return with receipts. The total cost for
this training will be approximately $522.00.

The Glock Armorer school/training will benefit this department by allowing our Firearms
Instructor the capability and knowledge to repair and maintain our departments issued
sidearm. The officers Glock sidearm is the primary weapon system and it is imperative it
is maintained and up kept.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of request for one (1) Police Personnel to
attend training in Canon City, Colorado.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: None

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NO
LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS PRIOR TO THE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING.

SUBMITTER’S SIGNATURE

REVIE ED AND APPROVED BY:

TONITA GURULE-GIR N TANA VEGA, INTERIM
MAYOR FINANCE DIRECTOR

(PROCUREMENT)

ANN MARIE GALLEG 5,
INTERIM CITY MANAGER



PURCHASING AGENT ESTHER GARDUNO MONTOYA,
(FOR BIDIRFP AWARD) CITY ATTORNEY

(ALL RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES
& CONTRACTS MUST BE
REVIEWED)



City of Las Vegas
318 Moreno Street • Las Vegas New Mexico 87701 • Ph# (505) 425-7504 • Fax # (505) 425-6346

TO: David T. ibb III, Chief of Police

FROM:

____________

Eç)adilla
Commander

\

THRU:

____________

Martin Gal go
Deputy Chief

1amela Sandoval
Commander

DATE: October 16, 2019

RE: Revised Request for Training (Glock Armorer School)

This memorandum is a request to send Sgt. David Lautalo to a Glock Armorer courses located in
Canon City, CO on December 10, 2019. At this time this is the closest course I could find as there
is no instate training. Sgt. Lautalo is our department firearms instructor. We are in need of an
armorer to maintain our department issued hand guns. I did request to send Sgt. Lautalo to this
course in Colorado Springs this same date and time. This course is a little closer in distance for him
to travel. Sgt. Lautalo will depart from here on December 9, 2019 to allow adequate time to travel
safely to Colorado. Sgt. Lautalo will then travel back home after his course on December 10, 2019.
Sgt. Lautalo will all attend this training on actual costs and will request reimbursement upon return.
He will turn in all receipts on his return Please see attached course information and all other
documents submitted by me on September 27, 2019.

r Re ewb

£t A4&)
rants Adñistrator

Approved/Disapproved

De

David T. Bibb III
Chief of Police

MEMORANDUM
ECEIVED

OCT 2 2 2019

L

THRU:

David T. Bibb lIE, Chief of Police Date



CITY OF LAS VEGAS

OUT OF STATE TRAVEL AUTHORIZATION No._______

1.NAME,HOMEADDRESS&ZIPC0DE 2.DEPARTMENT 3. CONFERENCE SCHOOL 4.DESTINATION

WORK PHONE NO. NAME & NO

..4THEFJCL__ Cc. in
Did A1o H9Q ISII?03/ irco

5. DEPARTURE DATE & HOUR 6. RETURN DATE & HOUR 7. TOTAL DAYS/HOURS 8 WHERE CAN YOU BE

. REACHED9

z/iani l/?/4 )qhOUic
9 NA E 0 SCHOOL 10. MTIN DATES 11. ARE OUTSIDE FUNDS BEIN6 12. TYPE OF REQUEST

CONFERENCE OF OTHER CONTRIBUTED OWARD THE TRIP7 —ACTUAL PER DIEM

YES NO PROVIDE DETAILS.

16th I

13. ‘TY VEHICLE NO PRIVATE VEHICLE PUBLIC CONVEYANCE________________________________________________

(PLANE, TRAIN. ETC)

14. PER DIEM X______________ 15. MILEAGE =

DAYSIHOURS RATE/DAY TOTAL DISTANCE RATE / MILE TOTAL

ESTIMATED COST OF TRIP LINE ITEM SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

TRAVEL $ (7/)

REGISTRATION

.HOTEL(1CUt)
s215c0 fQI-Ljoo-7iO -7202_ 0j\-c\(ocf UjtoY1 1ThV:5

‘PERDIEM $__________

•MEALSëuc) S57. ‘ o\-L-]Ø-72o2.. 4c.Dc-uôn 12CJi iiq
OTHER $___________

TOTAL ‘22
TOTAL AUTHORIZED ADVANCE $_____________________________________________________

•ADVANCE SHALL NOT EXCEED 80% OF THESE COSTS

I AUTHORIZE THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS TO DEDUCT FROM MY BI-WEEKLY PAY CHECK THE AMOUNT OF ADVANCE INDICATED ABOVE + $15.00 PENALTY IS ALL TRAVEL

DOCUMENTS ARE NOT PROPERLY FILED IN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 5 WORKING DAYS AFTER THIS TRIP IN CONCLUDED.

I CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER

APPROVED: -..-==. FORACCOUNTINGONLY

/N\\\
MAYOF,4’C_UNCIL ‘44E__ING DATE

APPROVED: /7
ç

/_A_THORIZED SIFJRE \

APPROVED

/
‘\.

REVIEWED R.QFPLETE:

CITY MANAGER Fl ANCEbE9\ ATE

REASON FOR REQUEST OF ACTUAL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT:_______________________________________________________________________

CITY MANAGER APPROVAL REQUIRED FOR ADVANCE ON ACUTAL APPRD ( ) NOT APPROVED

CITY MANAGER SIGNATURE

DISTRIBUTION OF COPIES: FINANCE DEPARTMENT.WHITE; CITY MANAGER DEPARTMENT-GREEN: YELLOW VOUCHER SUBMITTED WITH

REIMBURSEMENT VOUCHER; TRAVELER-PINK; DEPARTMENT-GOLDENROD.

ATTACH COPIES OF BROCHURES AND ANY OTHER INFORMATION REGARDING REASON FOR TRAVEL.



PERSONNEL RULES

66 Attachment 2

City of Las Vegas

Application for Training Reimbursement

DATE:

_______________

NAME: 1)4-v/1 4’9ur-L 0

JOB TITLE: Pitzi Q,-js cr’#t—ir
DEPARTMENT: ,c2L./
DESCRIPTION OF TRAINTNG: L2C-k D7 SC//3t. — ?R’S

COAIS/ crc OF ,eCPA7,e,’ Ou PEAT44JT
/7S’1) UAJS / 4ç )t ,s e p77Aj.
LOCATION OF TRAINING: C) 5P€jci4 / C0t-O,t4)>
DATE(S) OF TRAINING: /2. /10 /iy (/ (qy)
DESCRIBE HOW THE TRAINING IS RELATED TO YOUR JOB: 7Wis 7i-’
I-S ‘77A- ,9 Aly ,L ,/ç 77/i- --

/AJ S 7L C-7 ,&. WC A- 9- i F7 1q7T’ .4 LI

PERCENT OF CITY CONTRIBUTION REQUESTED: f (fj %

I understand that by applying for City contribution for this training that I am agreeing that if I
terminate with the City of Las Vegas for any reason within one year of completion of this
training that the City’s contribution towards the training will be deducted from my final
paycheck. I further understand that I will receive no reimbursement from the City for this
training until I have provided adequate documentation that I have completed the training with a
passing grade.

ignature

Z-v’ Li9-t 74-1-b
Print Name

Approved/Disapproved:

_________________________________

for %
Department Director

_________________________________

for %
City Manager

xc: Employee
Department Director
Human Resource Department/Personnel File

66 Attachment 2:1 02-01 - 2011



____

REGISTRATION SUMMARY
PROFESSIONAL

This document is only a summary of your registration.
Please note that you are not signed up for the class until you receive a confirmation.

CLASS INFO:

Class 107362: Armorers Course

Date: Tuesday, December 10, 2019

Location: Colorado Dept. of Corrections - LE ONLY Lt. Kent Crossman, 57500 US Hwy 50 - Canon City, CO

Host: Colorado Dept. of Corrections - LE ONLY Lt. Kent Crossman

Instructor: Bissett

STUDENT:

Name: Sergeant David Lautalo

Category (with Comment): Active Law Enforcement

U.S. Citizen/permanent resident: yes

EMPLOYER ADDRESS:

Department: City of Las Vegas

Las Vegas Police Department

Street: 318 Moreno Street

City: Las Vegas San Miguel

State: NM, 87701 USA

Phone: 5054257504

Mobile: 5054290398

Fax: 5054256346

E-mail: amcadams@lasvegasnm.gov

The invoice is sent to this address. The certificate is sent to this address.

HOME ADDRESS: -

ADDITIONAL DATA:

Recertifying: no

Weapon: Glock 31 .357 sig

Duty weapon:

Agency size: 38

Accepted terms and conditions: Yes

Confirmations will not be sent until valid proof of payment type is submitted.
Certificates will not be sent until actual payment has been received.

For further information please contact:



GLOCK reserves the right to remove students from classes and/or permanent ban from future
training due to violation(s) of firearms safety rules with no refund of class fees.

REGISTRATION: NAME
CLASS INFO

12/10/2019/ Armorer’s Course
250.00 USD
Colorado Dept. of Corrections - LE ONLY Lt. Kent Crossman, 57500 US Hwy 50 - Canon
City, CO
Bissett

STUDENT
* Please choose a category:

GLOCK Dealer Range Program

0 Active Law Enforcement 0 Retired Law Enforcement

Comment (e.g. name of Dealer/Distributor):

Title/Rank: * First Name: Middle Name:

* U.S. citizen or U.S. permanent resident? 0 yes 0 no
If not, prior approval from U.S. Dept. of State is required.
* I must read the DSP-83 Form
DSP-83 approval could take up to 8 weeks, and is required if you are not a US citizen.
Please do not attempt to register for classes dated before approval can be obtained.
* I must read the Instructions for NON US Citizens
* I must read the Application Fees
* 0 i am 21 or older

Continue registration Abort registration

HOME TRAINING SCHEDULE couRsE DEscRIPTIoN P HOST COURSE P INSTRUCTOR ACCESS P GsSF P CONTACT

Class 107362:
Price:

Location:

Instructor:

Name I Address I Terms I

LE Distributor Security Officer

Military

* Last Name:

CLOCK Training Division I Copyright © 2009 - 2019 GLOCK Professional Inc.



GLOCK Professional, Inc.

P.O. Box 1254
Smyrna, GA 30081
USA

Tel.: 770-432 1202
Fax.: 770-437 4712



GLOCK reserves the right to remove students from classes and/or permanent ban from future
training due to violation(s) of firearms safety rules with no refund of class fees.

REGISTRATION SUBMITTED

You have successfully sent a registration for the following class:

Class 107362: Armorers Course 112/10/2019

You will receive details of this registration via email!

Please note that you are not signed up for the class until you receive confirmation from GLOCK Training.

Confirmation will be sent to you one month prior to the class, after your registration information has been reviewed by the training
department and approved. If you are registering within the one month window then your confirmation will be faxed or

e-mailed to the information provided.

Pay now with credit card.

click here to print a summary of your registration.

Back to Training Schedule

HOME TRAINING SCHEDULE COURSE DESCRIPTION HOST COURSE INSTRUCTOR ACCESS GSSF CONTACT

GLOCK Training Division I Copyright © 2009 -2019 GLOCK Professional Inc.



(
I lOCK

GLOCK Professional,

____

PROFESSIONAL

GLOCK PROFESSIONAL, INC.
P.O. Box 1254
Smyrna, GA 30081
Phone: 770-432-1202
Fax: 770-437-4712

CONFIRMATION OF ATTENDANCE

Armorer’s Course

Please bring this letter to class.

David Lautalo
City of Las Vegas
Las Vegas Police Department
318 Moreno Street
Las Vegas, NM
87701
amcadamsIasvegasnm.gov

Dear GLOCK User:

Please accept this letter as confirmation of your attendance into the one-day Armorers Course.

If for any reason you will be unable to attend the course, please fax your name and the course date to our office
at 770-437-4712. If you fail to cancel at least 48 hours prior to the course you will be responsible for payment.
PAYMENT MUST BE MADE IN ADVANCE OR ON THE DAY OF CLASS. Please make checks payable to
GLOCK
Professional, Inc. We also accept MC, Visa or Discover.

Armorers Course Tuition: $ 250.00

PAY WITH CRED IT CARD: http://www.glocktraining .com/Payment.aspx?r=269766&c=Lautalo

WHAT TO BRING
1. Your confirmation letter and picture ID.
2. Note taking material (pen and note pad)
3. Eye protection (mandatory) - Prescription glasses will suffice.
4. GLOCK Stocking Dealers must have a current blue certificate to

take advantage of the complimentary slot.
5. SMALL FLASHLIGHT

LUNCH WILL BE PROVIDED.

If you are attending the Armorers Course in the United States, DO NOT bring your firearms to the classroom.

IF YOU ARE ATTENDING A CLASS IN CANADA YOU MUST BRING YOUR OWN FIREARM. - NO SLIM LINES

No Tape recording or video equipment is allowed.

If GLOCK Professional, Inc. cancels or reschedules Training Courses due to an act of God, natural disasters,

FFL#: 1-58-067-01-8H-03344
FEDERAL TAX PAYER lD#: 20-4382786
GA STATE SALES TAX#: 2001 -789-4247



(
I lOCK

GLOCK Professional, Inc. L
PROFESSIONAL

GLOCK PROFESSIONAL, INC.
P.O. Box 1254
Smyrna, GA 30081
Phone: 770-432-1202
Fax: 770-437-4712

acts of civil or military authority, fire, floods, tornadoes, other severe inclement weather, epidemics, quarantine,
energy crises, war, terror related events or riots Student has the option to request that GLOCK Professional, Inc.
either (a) refund Student 100% of the price paid to GLOCK Professional, Inc. for Student’s course registration or
(b) reschedule Student to a future course of Student’s choosing. No compensation will be offered for incurred
costs as a result of the rescheduling. Student must provide GLOCK Professional, Inc. with written notice of which
option Student chooses within 30 days of the date GLOCK Professional, inc. notifies Student the course has
been cancelled or rescheduled. If Student fails to notify GLOCK Professional, Inc. within the time period GLOCK
Professional, Inc. will provide a refund without consulting Student.

GLOCK reserves the right to remove students from classes and/or permanent ban from future training due to
violation(s) of firearms safety rules with no refund of class fees.

PLEASE REMEMBER DO NOT LEAVE ANYTHING OF ANY VALUE IN YOUR VEHICLES AT THE HOTELS

DATE: 12/10/2019
TIME: 8a.m.-5 p.m.

CLASS: Armorer’s Course - 107362

LOCATION:
Colorado Dept. of Corrections - LE ONLY
Lt. Kent Crossman
57500 US Hwy 50
Canon City, CO
81212

HOTEL INFORMATION/DIRECTIONS:
HOTELS:
Quality Inn - 719-275-8676
Hampton Inn - 719-269-1112
Super 8 - 719-275-8687

DIRECTIONS:
Contact Lt. Kent Crossman © 719-269-5810

FFL#: 1-58-067-01 -8H-03344
FEDERAL TAX PAYER ID#: 20-4382786
GA STATE SALES TAX#: 2001 -789-4247



GLOCK Professional, Inc.

(
I lOCK

PROFESSIONAL

GLOCK PROFESSIONAL, INC.
P.O. Box 1254
Smyrna, GA 30081
Phone: 770-432-1202
Fax: 770-437-4712

Invoice:
Date:
Class:
Student:

TRP/1 00131312
10/16/2019
107362 -AC
153391/David Lautalo

TRAINING IN VOICE

Class Date Student Amount

Armorer’s Course - Canon City, CO 12/10/2019 David Lautalo 250.00 USD

Total Amount: 250.00 USD

Payment method: Credit card - NOTE: Please pay invoice at this time.
Payment condition: Payment needs to be received by the day of class.
Registration ID: 269766 **Use this number when paying with a credit card online.

FFL#: 1-58-067-01 -8H-03344
FEDERAL TAX PAYER ID#: 20-4382786
GA STATE SALES TAX#: 2001 -789-4247

City of Las Vegas
Las Vegas Police Department
318 Moreno Street
Las Vegas, NM
87701
amcadams@lasvegasnm.gov



TO: Ann Marie Gallegos
Interim City Manager

Chief of Police
David T. Bibb III

MEMORANDUM

FROM:
David T. Bibb III
Chief of Police

DATE 29 October 2019

RE: Out of State Travel — Canon City, Colorado
Glock Armorer School/training
December 9-10, 2019
1 LVPD Personnel

Meals-

Lodging-

Registration-

Estimated Travel Cost

$45.00 per day (1 day)
$12.00 partial day (5 hours)

$215.00 per day (1 day)

$250.00

Projected grand total for 1 LVPD personnel- $522.00

XC: File LAS VEGAS
NEW MEXICO

NUW Ar,vf;NILJRES DOVN OLD TRAIUS

City of Las Vegas
318 Moreno Street .Las Vegas New Mexico 87701. Ph# (505) 425-7504. Fax # (505) 425-6346

Projected Actual Reimbursement



Regular

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE: 10/2912019 DEPT: Police MEETING DATE: 11/20/2019

ITEMITOPIC: Out of State travel to Quantico, Virginia

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: Approval/Disapproval of out of state travel
request

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: FBI National Academy will be held in Quantico, Virginia
January 4, 2020 through March 15, 2020. One Police Commander will be attending.

The FBI National Academy will be at no cost to the Las Vegas Police Department.

This request is being processed in advance to ensure the attendance of the
Commander.

This academy will teach academic learning and physical fitness training in executive
leadership. The academy is a professional course of study for the United States. This
academy is a ten(10) week program which provides coursework in intelligence theory,
terrorism and terrorist mindsets, management science, law, behavioral science, law
enforcement communication and forensic science to name a few. This is a great
opportunity to represent the Las Vegas City Police Department, it is the first time one of
our own has attended the FBI National Academy.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval of request for one (1) Police Personnel to
attend training in Quantico, Virginia.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: None

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NO
LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS PRIOR TO THE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING.

SUBMITTER’S SIGNATURE
REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:

TONITA GURiJLE-GlRON TANA VEGA, INTERIM
MAYOR FINANCE DIRECTOR

(PROCUREMENT)

ANN MARIE GALLEG S,
INTERIM CITY MANAGER



PURCHASING AGENT
(FOR BID/RFP AWARD)

ESTHER GARDUNO MONTOY
CITY ATTORNEY
(ALL RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES
& CONTRACTS MUST BE
REVIEWED)



CITY OF LAS VEGAS
OUT OF STATE TRAVEL AUTHORIZATION No._______

/.NAME, HOME ADDRESS & zip CODE 2.OEPARTMENT 3 CONFERENCE SCHOOL 4. DESTINATION
WORK PHONE NO. NAME & NO.

HER

-c c/i//a foiiu
5. DEPARTURE DATE & HOUR 6. RETURN DATE & HOUR 7. TOTAL DAYS/HOURS 8.’NHERE CAN YOU B .1

., REACHED?

112uW 72 cS
0 SCHOOL 10. M ETING ATES Iii. ARE OUTSIDE FUNDS BEING 12 TYPE OF REQUEST

CONFERENCE OF OTHER CONTRIBU9JOWARD THE TRIP? ACTUAL PER DIEM

YES NO PROVIDE DETAILS.

,,41WiL% c
—

13. VEHICLE NO.CiG PRIVATE VEHICLE PUBLIC CONVEYANCE______________________________________________

(PLANE, TRAIN, ETC.)

14. PER DIEM X_______________ 15. MILEAGE —=_____________

DAYS/HOURS RATE/DAY TOTAL DISTANCE RATE! MILE TOTAL

ESTIMATED COST OF TRIP LINE ITEM SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS

TRAVEL $__________

ADVANCE SHALL NOT EXCEED 80% OF THESE COSTS

AUTHORIZE THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS TO DEDUCT FROM MY BI-WEEKLY PAY CHECK THE AMOUNT OF ADVANCE INDICATED ABOVE • $15.00 PENALTY IS ALL TRAVEL
DOCUMENTS ARE NOT PROPERLY FILED IN ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 5 WORKING DAYS AFTER THIS TRIP IN CONCLUDED.

(N

I CERTIFY THAT THE ABOVE INFORMATION IS CORRECT TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE.

EMPLOYEE SIGNATURE DATE SOtIA RITY NUMBER

APPROVED:
,....—-—

F COUNTING ONLY

- (
M& COUNCIL J4EI!NG4E

APPROVE

ZTh6)
S

AUTFJZED SIGNATURE DATE —

REVIEWED FOR COMPLETENESS:

APPROVED: H
CITY MANAGER DATE FINANCE DIR CTOR DATE

REASON FOR REQUEST OF ACTUAL EXPENSE REIMBURSEMENT: .L
CITY MANAGER APPROVAL REQUIRED FOR ADVANCE ON ACUTAL--.-- APPROVED ) NOT APPROVED

CITY MANAGER SIGNATURE

DISTRIBUTION OF COPIES: FINANCE DEPARTMENT-WHITE; CITY MANAGER DEPARTMENT-GREEN: YELLOW VOUCHER SUBMITTED WITH
REIMBURSEMENT VOUCHER: TRAVELER-PINK; DEPARTMENT-GOLDENROD.

ATTACH COPIES OF BROCHURES AND ANY OTHER INFORMATION REGARDING REASON FOR TRAVEL.



MEMORANDUM

AIc*)/e
Martin D. Gallegos /
Deputy Chief

DATE: October 17, 2019

RE: FBI National Academy

This memorandum is a request and notice of my attendance to the FBI National Academy in
Quantico Virginia. The dates of the academy I have been selected to attend are January 6, 2020 thru
March 13, 2020. I have received my final approval from the FBI National Headquarters with a letter
sent to you with my final selection. You are aware of the process in which we have been through as
you were the one who nominated me for this prestigious and glorious opportunity. I have been
waiting for over ten years for this opportunity. I want to make sure we get Mayor and Councils
approval in plenty of time to make this happen and need this request sent on an agenda request. I
will be the first in the history of the Las Vegas Police Department to attend and represent our
department at the FBI National Academy. The academy training is free of charge to the department
and all the department would pay is my salary while in attendance. I do have to purchase certain
clothing and other personnel items while in attendance. I am not asking the department to pay for
any of those items. I would like to take a department issued unit and would travel two days in
advance to Virginia, this would allow me safe travels and a vehicle to use while attending the
academy. The license plate of the unit is 0500G. Attached are correspondence and my
paperworklapplication packet for the academy.

Review by:

1Th
Maria Martinez, Fianc a1ist

Beatri S zar, ants dniitrator

i5vid T. Bibb III, Chief of Police

City of Las Vegas
318 Moreno Street • Las Vegas New Mexico 87701 • Ph# (505) 425-7504 • Fax # (505) 425-6346

David T. Bibb Ill
Chief of Police

TO: David T. Bibb III, Ch f of Police
iq

FROM:

___________

4’ ErèN. Padilla
=Con(mander

THRU:

RECEIVED

lirT 2 1

B4&

Date

Date

?O
Date



City of Las Vegas
318 Moreno Street • Las Vegas New Mexico 87701 • Ph# (505) 425-7504 • Fax # (505) 425-6346

Martin D. Gallegos
Deputy Chief

DATE: October 17, 2019

David T. Bibb Ill
Chief of Police

MEMORANDUM

RE: FBI National Academy

This memorandum is a request and notice of my attendance to the FBI National Academy in
Quantico Virginia. The dates of the academy I have been selected to attend are January 6, 2020 thru
March 13, 2020. I have received my final approval from the FBI National Headquarters with a letter
sent to you with my final selection. You are aware of the process in which we have been through as
you were the one who nominated me for this prestigious and glorious opportunity. I have been
waiting for over ten years for this opportunity. I want to make sure we get Mayor and Councils
approval in plenty of time to make this happen. I will be the first in the history of the Las Vegas
Police Department to attend and represent our department at the FBI National Academy. I would
like to take my department issued unit and would travel two days in advance to Virginia, this would
allow me safe travels and a vehicle to use while attending the academy. Attached are
correspondence and my paperwork/application packet for the academy.

Review by:

Maria Martinez, Finance Specialist Date

Beatrice Saiazar, Grants Administrator

ved

David T. Bibb III, Chief of Police

Date

TO: David T. Bibb III, Chief of Police

FROM:

____________

7Eric$. Padilla

THRU:

RECEIVED

OCT 2 1 2019

BYL’/’

Date



National Academy
Physical Fitness Performance Assessment

p4J,// c:,:
Applicant’s Name (Last, First, MI)

i&Gc Ue?c. F?hc. ObrfltL.f.
Department

Purpose

—a.,.
i.6c1

The National Academy “Fit Challenge” is a series of physically strenuous activities involving running and progressively higher
intensity circuit based workouts. The final run of the Fit Challenge (the Yellow Brick Road) involves negotiating hills and rough terrain
with natural and man-made obstacles. To ensure safety and minimize risk of injuries, participants must be reasonably fit to engage
in these challenges.

To be eligible for participation in the weekly Fit Challenge, culminating in the Yellow Brick Road, applicants are required to complete
a timed, 1 mile run (for those without pain or orthopedic issues) within the time specified below. This form serves as an initial
assessment of the applicant’s ability to meet this time requirement:

Males < 10 minutes Females < 11:30 minutes

Failure to meet this requirement will exclude the applicant from participating with his/her classmates in the Fit Challenges and could
potentially deny his/her receipt of the Yellow Brick Road award.

Instruction to Applicant

Within 6 months prior to your arrival at the FBI National Academy, conduct a timed 1 mile run, to the best of your ability. This run
can be performed on a track (4 laps on a standard 440yd or 400m track) or on the road. Record your time below.

cr!ii Female Time: 7 minutes; 5é3 seconds
(Circle one)

Please Note: Upon your arrival to the Academy, you will be administered a Physical Fitness Performance Assessment that will
include a 1 mile run along with a mobility and stability evaluation of your trunk, low back, hips and shoulder, and a upper body
strength test. All students must again meet the minimum 1-mile run time requirement during the Week 8 test in order to participate
in the Yellow Brick Road. Failure to meet the required run time will preclude the student’s participation in the Yellow Brick Road
course.

Date

[Note: The Certifying Official can be either the FBINA Field Training Coordinator or, at the Coordinator’s discretion, the Applicant’s
supervisor].

Required Signatures:
I have performed a timed, 1-mile run in the above noted time. the above noted time.

Printed Title, Name



To Whom It May Concern:

I hereby give consent to any authorized representative of the Federal Bureau of
Investigation (FBI) and the Federal Bureau of Investigation National Academy
Associates (FBLNAA) to obtain information pertaining to my attendance to the FBI
National Academy Program. This release of information is limited to name, employer’s
address, place of employment, email address, and dates of attendance to the FBI

National Academy. I hereby direct the FBI National Academy, to which this form is
presented, to release such information upon request of the authorized recipient as
described above, regardless of any other agreement of direction I may have made. This
consent is executed with full knowledge and understanding that the information is for
the official use of the FB1NAA in connection with the membership, the maintenance of
the Directory of Graduates, and the FBI’s partnership with the FBTNAA. Consent is
granted for the Federal Bureau of Investigation to furnish such information, as is
described above, to the third parties in the course of fulfilling its official responsibilities.
Copies of this consent that show my signature are as valid as the original signed by me.
This consent is valid for one (1) year from the date signed.

FIRST NAME (Please Print):

__________________________________________________________

MIDDLE NAME (Please Print): k.k s1

LAST NAME (Please Print): , /1

SESSION #: jvA

STATE/COUNTRY:

_______________

YES, I HEREBY GIVE CONSENT TO THE FBINAA TO OBTAIN ANY
INFORMATION TN MY FILE PERTINENT TO MY ATTENDANCE.
INFORMATION LIMITED TO NAME, EMPLOYER’S ADDRESS, PLACE
OF EMPLOYMENT, EMAIL ADDRESS, AND DATES OF ATTENDANCE.
SEE ABOVE.

NO, I DO NOT GIVE CONSENT TO THE FB1NAA TO OBTAIN ANY
INFORMATION PERTINENT TO MY ATTENDANCE. INFORMATION
LIMITED TO NAME, EMPLOYER’S ADDRESS, PLACE OF
EMPLOYMENT, EMAIL ADDRESS, AND DATES OF ATTENDANCE. SEE
ABOVE.

STUDENT SIGNATURE: DATE: —23f



FD-979a (9-9-04) FBI File Number:

Non-Personnel Consent to Release Information
To Whom It May Concern:

I hereby give consent to any authorized representative of the Federal Bureau of Investigation to
obtain any information n your files pertaining to my academic, achievement, athletic, attendance, credit
(including credit card and payment device numbers), disciplinary, employment, law enforcement
(including, but not limited to, any record of charge, prosecution, or conviction for civil or criminal offenses),
military, or professional license records (including any grievance records). I hereby direct each entity to
which this form is presented to release such information upon request of the authorized recipient as
described above, regardless of any other agreement or direction I may have made.

This consent is executed with full knowledge and understanding that the information is for the
official use of the Federal Bureau of Investigation in connection with the determination of suitability for
employment and/or eligibility for new or continued access to classified information of a current or
prospective government employee with whom I am associated. Consent is granted for the Federal
Bureau of Investigation to furnish such information as is described above to third parties in the course of
fulfilling its official responsibilities.

Copies of this consent that show my signature are as valid as the original signed by me. This
consent is valid for one (1) year from the date signed.

I Full Name (type or print cjrfy) Date Signedin ink)
I -; .-

(.QtlierIaiiams Used Social Security Account No.

-(cL1,
Signature of Parent or Guardian (if required) I Place of Birth Date of Birth

I Ls uSA f 1
I Name & Title of Witness

I rc€ i4,1c- jI

PRIVACY ACT STATEMENT
Authority: The collection of information requested by this form is authorized under Executive Order 10450, Security
Requirements for Government Employees; Executive Order 12968, Access to Classified Information; and the Fair
Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. §1681 et seq. Providing requested information is voluntary; however, failure to
furnish the requested information and consent may affect our ability to complete the determination of suitability for
employment and/or eligibility for new or continued access to classified information of a current or prospective
government employee with whom you are associated.

Principal Purpose: The information will be used principally to obtain such academic, achievement, athletic,
attendance, credit, disciplinary, educational, employment, law enforcement, military, and professional license records
as may be necessary to determine the suitability for employment and/or eligibility for new or continued access to
classified information of a current or prospective government employee with whom you are associated. Your Social
Security Account Number (SSAN) identifies you in most of the above-listed transactions. We will use your SSAN to
accurately identify your records and to process investigations, inquiries, and/or determinations related to this consent.

Routine Uses: In addition to disclosures within the Department of Justice on a need-to-know basis, information
reported on this form may be disclosed in accordance with all applicable routine uses as may be published at any
time in the Federal Register, including all routine uses for the FBI Central Records System. These routine uses
include the following disclosures: to potential sources in order to locate, seek, and obtain information or records
pertaining to you; to any appropriate governmental authorities responsible for civil or criminal law enforcement,
counterintelligence, or security matters to which the information may be relevant; to non-FBI employees performing
Federal assignments; to courts or adjudicative bodies when the FBI considers it has an interest in the proceedings;
or as otherwise mandated by law, treaty, or Executive Order.

FBIIOOJ



FD-164b I FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION
REPORT OF MEDICAL EXAMINATION - FBI NATIONAL ACADEMY

APPLICANT

Name (last, first, middle)
Padilla Eric N
Date of birth (mm/dd/yyyy) Place ofbirth Age Sex

12/17/1982 New Mexico 36 Male E Female

Emergency contact (name, address, telephone, cellular phone) Relationship to contact
Mary Loui Sanchez, 6 Camino Del Valle, Las Vegas, NM 87701 (505)426-7458 Mother

Allergies (including insect bites/stings and foods)
None

(Items tg be cornpJjyJ quint4çped Healthcare Provider: MD, DO, NP, or PA)

Name Mtiie’“ ““‘ Date of physical examination (mnilddJyyyy):

NPIO6L0j P O So \C)\ c\

MantouaTB sn test results Date: g_5 —J g D Positive gative

If positive, Date and results of required chest x-ray: f\,) j Date treatment completed: M )
The following vaccinations are required for attendance at the FBI National Academy. (Please check if the following immunizations are
current):

Zf Polio aricella (or have had chickenpox)

Meningitis (quadrivalent) Measles, Mumps, Rubella (MMR) — (two doses)

E2VHe tis A (two dose series) Hepatitis b (three dose series)

TdlTdap Influenza

Attendees to the National Academy live in a doynitory, sharing bathroom and shower facilities. Based on your examination and knowledge of the
applicant’s medical history, are ware ofy infectiçus/communicable disease or any other condition that may preclude the applicant from
living in this environment? - s

The Physical Training Program of the National Academy is a vigorous compilation of multifunctional activities. As the training
progresses, physical training events increase in intensity, require longer endurance and increased loading; demanding higher sustained
submaxial cardiac response. Applicants must be able to perform the below listed base activities without any orthopedic issues/pain.
Based upon your knowledge and examination of the applicant, is he/she able to perform the following (please initial if qualified):

(‘ Running - to include: a 5-mile run without stopping, sprinting,jumping, and resisted running
(0 Calisthenics - to include: rotational, lateral, and vertical movement patterns with and without loading (such as twisting, side
lunes, and squatjumps, etc)

‘ Pushing/Pulling - to include horizontal and vertical (push-ups, pull-ups, lifting a load, pushing and pulling a weighted sled,
weightlifting, etc.)

To the best of your knowledge and baseqexamination of the applicant, is the applicant able to participate in the Physical
Training Program as described above? No

Comments:

. - Inr -I_._. i—,.

Te or Print name of hmithcare prodet/
IN

Signature ofexamining provider:
IN’t902364730

Address ofexamining facili O p *

3t2D
Date

Revised

10-04-2018

(Items to be completed_by National Academy applicant)

Please return physical exam forms within 10 days to the FBI Field Office representative



Privacy Act - Solicitation of information on this form is authorized by Public Law 93-83, Section 404. The furnishing of this information is

voluntary on your part. The purpose of soliciting this information and the routine use to be made of it are to determine your eligibility

for enrollment in the FBI National Academy. Refusal on your part to furnish all of the information requested will result in no further

consideration being given to your application for the National Academy. You should be aware that willfully making a false statement or

concealing a material fact on this application can be basis for rejection as a candidate for the National Academy. Your social security
number is requested on a voluntary basis. It will only be used as a student number to assist in record keeping procedures.

Attach Photograph to Page 4.
Notice: If space provided is not sufficient for complete answers, or you wish
to furnish additional information, you may attach a sheet to this application
and number answers to correspond with questions.

Name of law enforcement agency where candidate is employed
Las Vegas Police Department

Padilla Eric

Family name Given name

a. List all other names you have used, including nicknames. If you have ever used any surname other than your true name, during

what period and under what circumstances were these names used?

b. Have you ever legally changed your name? Yes
If answer is “Yes,” designate

___________________

Date

FD-164a
Revised

02/06/2007

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Application To Attend FBI National Academy Program

Date
1/14/20 19

City State
Las Vegas NM

I. Personal Data
1. Nameinfull

N. Not Entered

Middle name Social Security Number

No

Place Court

2. Residence address (Street, city, state) Telephone Numbers I E-mail addresses:
Residence 5054257504 Mobile 5054296248

6 Camino Del Valle, Las Vegas NM 87701, United States

E-mail epadiltalasvegasnm.gov

Business 5054257504

E-mail

3. Date of Birth (MMIDD/YYYY) 4. Birthplace (city, state) 5. Age 6. Height 7. Weight

12/17/1982 Las Vegas, NM, United States 36 71 180

8. Emergency Contact Information

Professional Contact David Bibb Phone 5054257504

Personal Contact Mary Lou Sanchez Relationship Mother Phone 50542758



II. Physical Status

a. Are you capable of performing sustained vigorous physical activity? Yes D No

(If answered “No,” attach explanation.)
b. Do you have any physical defects which would preclude unrestricted, regular participation during the National Academy Training

Session in physical training and defensive tactics? fl Yes No (If answered “Yes,” attach explanation.)

c. Have you had any serious il[nesses or any operations in the past three years? Yes No (If answered “Yes,” attach

explanation.)

Were you hospitalized? No fl Yes

_______________ ________________________
____________________________

Dates Hospital Location

Name, address and phone number of present family physician Dannell Romero Phone: 5054256788

1235 8th Street. Las Vegas NM 87701. United States

d. Do you understand that participation in Swimming and Yellow Brick Road events are not mandatory? Yes No

III. Education
Name and Location of Schools Dates attended Diploma or

Degree received

c. If high school equivalency certificate obtained, provide date, name, and location of facility

a. High school of graduation west Las Vegas High School

b. College(s)

1997/09 - 200 1/05 High School Diploma

IV. Former AIrlrcc€

List chronologically all addresses for past 5 years (including street address, city, state, and dates of residence at each address).

V. Employment

a. List civilian and military law enforcement experience with various ranks or positions held in chronological order.

Date

From ToLaw Enforcement Agency Position or Rank

Las Vegas Police Department Commander 2002/07 Present

b. Have you ever been dismissed or asked to resign by any employer? Yes No

If answered “Yes,” provide:

Employer’s name

Circumstances and reason:

Date of employment

2



-

VI. Court Record

a. Have you ever been arrested or charged with any violation including traffic, but excluding parking tickets? E Yes No If yes,

list all such matters even if not formally charged or no court appearance, or found not guilty, or matter settled by payment of fine or

forfeiture of collateral. Attach additional sheets as necessary to provide details.

Date Place Charge Disposition

b. Have you ever been a party to a civil court action? 0 Yes If yes, provide the requested information below.

MonthfYear Nature of Action Result of Action Names of parties, (identify plaintiff and defendant) the

court and address (city, county, state, zip code; country if a
court outside the U.S.)

c. Are you presently the subject, or a party, of any investigation (including administrative inquiry/investigation), or pending litigation,

civil or criminal? 0 Yes No (If answered “Yes,” attach explanation.)

Vu. Subversive Membership or Data

--- -

Are you now or have you ever been a member of any organization which seeks to deny other persons their rights under the Constitution of

the United States, which violates the laws of the United States? 0 Yes No (If answer is “Yes,” attach explanation.)

VIII. References or Social Acquaintances

_______

If you desire, you may list three individuals who are responsible adults of reputable standing in their communities, who have known you

well during the past five years.

a. Complete name Address

Dee Bibb Ranch, 125 Frtge Rd,
David Bibb II

No. yrs. acq. Occupation

Residence Las Vegas NM 87701, United States

5
Business

b. Complete name

Adrian Crespin

Address
933 Palo Verde,

No. yrs. acq. Occupation

Residence
Las Vegas NM 87701, United States

19

Business

c. Complete name

David 1-leshley

Address
1420 Carlisle Ave.,

No. yrs. acq. Occupation

Residence
Albuquerque NM 87110, United States

15 Business

3



IX. Military Service
(List all military service, including reserves)

Branch Service Number Date & Place of Enlistment Date, Type & Place of Discharge
Army 585451940 6/12/2000 - Springer, NM United States 7/12/2006 - Honorable - Springer, NM, United States

If not honorably discharged, provide details:

X. MiscIIanpnii
a. While attending the FBI National Academy, advise ifyour salary is being continued, if any incidental expenses are being paid by your

department or by any individual, group or organizations, or if you are paying your own expenses and transportation. Provide details.

b. Do you agree that the exclusive rights and remedies for any injury suffered by you while attending the FBI National Academy shall be
solely liable under your department’s workers’ compensation insurance program? Yes 0 No

c. Will you abide by rules and regulations of your own department and of the FBI National Academy if accepted? Yes C No

d. Do you agree to remain in law enforcement for a minimum of 3 years after graduation from the National Academy? Yes C No
XI. Consent For Disclosure of Information

If information is developed which would indicate that you are not eligible for enrollment in the National Academy, the reason foryour rejection may be furnished to the head of your agency or his/her appropriate representative.

Following graduation from the FBI National Academy, information may be periodically solicited from you for inclusion in the FBI
National Academy Directory of Graduates. Provision of this information will be on a voluntary basis.

By furnishing your signature below, you are providing your consent for the disclosure and/or release of this information by the FBI.

XII. Certification

All Applicants
Attach an unmounted full-face photograph of yourself, not
larger than 2 ¼ x 2 V2 inches. Print your name and date
photograph taken plainly on the back of the photograph. The
photograph must have been taken not more than 3 months prior
to the date of this application.
No consideration will be afforded any applicant unless such a
photograph is furnished.

I certify that the foregoing answers are true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Date

Photo Date: 12/12/2018

4



Attachments

GENDER: Male

HAS BACHELORS DEGREE: No

SHIRT SIZE: L

MTSCELLANEOUS (A):
While attending the FBI National Academy my department will continue to pay my salary.If there are any incidental expenses they will be paid by either the departmentor myself. If I have to travel by vehicle to the academy my department will furnish the vehicle. Any and all other personal expenses will be paid out by me.



FD-164 FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

O’10612007
NOMINATION OF LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER

TO ATTEND THE NATIONAL ACADEMY PROGRAM OF THE

_________

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

INSTRUCTIONS - This nomination should be signed by a Commissioner, Superintendent or Chief of Police; or by a

Sheriff or head of a county police agency; or by the Chief, Superintendent, or executive officer of a state police or highway

patrol organization’ or the application may be filed by an officer of the state, county, or municipality of higher rank than those

mentioned, such as Mayor, City Manager, Chairman of the County or City Commissioner, or Governor. This nomination should

be accompanied by an attached application properly filled out furnishing the personal and official history of the officer

nominated. The Chief of Police, Sheriff, or Superintendent of a state police organization may nominate himself/herself to take

this course of training if he/she so desires.

To: FBI, Training Division, National Academy Unit

I hereby nominate the below-named representative of this law enforcement agency to attend a session of the FBI

National Academy at Quantico, Virginia.

Nominee
Padilla Eric N

Last First Middle

Commander Las Vegas Police Department
Title or Rank Law Enforcement Agency

I realize the primary purpose of the National Academy is to train outstanding law enforcement officers as instructors

and administrators. Further, I believe the officer nominated herein is basically qualified to fulfill this purpose upon return to

his/her organization after graduation. Specifically, I understand the nominee meets the following minimum requirements:

1. A regular full-time officer of a duly constituted law enforcement agency of a municipality, county, or

state, having at least five years of substantially continuous such experience;

2. At least 25 years of age;

3. In excellent physical condition capable of sustained strenuous exertion and regular participation in the use of

firearms, physical training and defensive tactics, which will be confirmed by a thorough physical examination

(submitted when requested by FBI) by a medical doctor of nominee’s choice and at nominee’s expense.

4. Is of excellent character and enjoys a reputation for professional integrity;

5. Exhibits an interest in law enforcement as s public service; a seriousness of purpose, qualities of leadership;

and enjoys the confidence and respect of fellow officers;

6. Has a high school diploma or high school equivalency certificate;

7. Agrees to remain in law enforcement a minimum of three years after graduation from the FBI National

Academy;

When a vacancy exists in a session for which the officer’s application can be considered, I authorize the FBI to make a

complete and thorough investigation of the nominee to confirm his/her suitability as a candidate. To assist in this regard there is

attached and executed application by the nominee. I have been assured by the nominee that he/she will remain in law

enforcement for a minimum of 3 years following graduation from the National Academy.



I hereby assure that the law enforcement agency making this nomination for a representative to attend the FBI National
Academy is in compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d - 2000d-4), Title IX of the Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. 1681 et. seq.) and the Regulations of the Department of Justice 28 CRF 42010 et seq., issued
pursuant to that title to the end that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or sex,
be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or
activity for which this agency receives Federal financial assistance from the Department. This agency recognizes the right of the
United States to seek judicial enforcement of this assurance.

I hereby assure that the law enforcement agency making this nomination for a representative to attend the FBI National
Academy maintains a workers’ compensation insurance program. This agency understands that the exclusive rights and
remedies for any injury suffered by the nominee that is the result of an accident and arises out of and in the course of the
nominee’s employment shall be liable under this agency’s workers’ compensation insurance program.

I certify that I have reviewed the attached application and that it reflects information which is accurate to the best of my
knowledge.

Signature of Nominating Official

David T. Bibb Ill Chief of Police
Name and Title (type or print)

—

- 20) Las Vegas Police Department
Date Law Enforcement Agency

Las Vegas New Mexico 87701
City State Zip Code

(Forward this executed nomination and the completed application of the nominee to the Special Agent in Charge of the FBI
office in your territory. He can answer questions you may have pertaining to the FBI National Academy Program.)



uy
i
.

c
c
i
a

V
C

,J
Q

O
d
c
lii

-
I

L
it

i’
lO

tilJ
i

c
li

f
l
U

d
U

I
I

L
I

L
I

.
Z

S
I
I
J
I

I

t
C

I
T

Y
O

F

L
A

S
V

E
G

A
S

E
ric

P
adilla

<
ep

ad
illa@

lasv
eg

asn
m

.g
o

v
>

N
E

W
M

E
X

I
C

O

FB
I

N
ational

A
cad

em
y

279th
S

essio
n

6
m

essag
es

R
ich

ard
so

n
-Z

ad
ra,

C
arey

A
.

(A
Q

)
(FB

I)
<

cazad
rafb

i.g
o

v
>

T
hu,

A
ug

22,
2019

at
11:12

A
M

To:
“epad

iIla@
lasvegasnm

gov”
<

epadilla@
lasvegasnm

.gov>

C
ongratulations,

you
have

been
tentatively

selected
to

attend
the

FB
I

N
ational

A
cadem

y’s,
279th

S
ession,

01/06/2020
-

03/13/2020.

I look
forw

ard
to

conducting
your

background
investigation

in
the

next
few

w
eeks.

C
an

you
p
lease

arran
g
e

a
date

(approxim
ately

3-4
hrs.)

on
any

O
N

E
of

the
follow

ing
b
u
sin

ess
days

T
hursday

S
ep

tem
b
er

26,
2019

or
early

F
riday

S
ep

tem
b
er

27,
2019.

D
uring

that
tim

e,
Iw

ill
need

to
interview

you
and

your
direct

chain
of

com
m

and
(C

hief,
D

eputy
C

hief,
C

aptain).
Iw

ill
also

need
to

review
your

IA
file

and
your

H
R

file
so

ifyou
could

p
lease

contact
th

ese
entities

to
arrange

a
tim

e
on

the
day

you
select.

P
lease

check
your

schedule
to

see
w

hen
you

w
ill

be
available.

A
dditionally,

w
ould

you
p
lease

en
su

re
the

follow
ing

item
s

are
available

to
be

returned
to

m
e

at
that

tim
e.

Item
s

n
eed

ed
to

p
ro

cess
your

FB
I

N
ational

A
cadem

y
A

pplication:

*
S

igned
N

om
ination

F
orm

(F
D

-164)
*

S
igned

A
pplication

(F
D

-164a)
*

C
om

pleted
R

eport
of

M
edical

E
xam

ination
(F

orm
F

D
-164b)

-
M

U
ST

B
E

C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
A

N
D

S
IG

N
E

D
B

Y
A

D
O

C
T

O
R

-
A

vailable
online

at
the

V
irtual

A
cadem

y
*

S
igned

FB
I

C
onsent

to
R

elease
(F

D
-979a)

*
T

w
o

fingerprint
cards

(blue
&

w
hite

A
pplicant

C
ards)

-
L

et
m

e
know

ifyou
need

m
e

to
bring

tw
o

cards
*

S
igned

FB
IN

A
A

R
elease

-
A

vailable
online

at
the

V
irtual

A
cadem

y
*

S
igned

N
A

P
hysical

F
itness

P
erform

ance
A

ssessm
en

t
-

A
vailable

online
at

the
V

irtual
A

cadem
y

P
lease

acknow
ledge

receipt
of

this
e-m

ail
as

soon
as

possible.

T
hank

you

C
arey

R
ichardson-Z

adra
A

pplicant/T
raining

C
oordinator

A
lbuquerque

FB
I

E
ric

P
adilla

<
epadilla@

lasvegasnm
.gov>

T
hu,

A
ug

22,
2019

at
1:41

PM
•

To:
“R

ichardson-Z
adra,

C
arey

A
.

(A
Q

)
(FB

I)”
<

cazadra@
fbi.gov>

G
ood

afternoon
this

is
A

w
esom

e

https:Ifm
aiI.googIe.com

/m
aiI/u/0?ik=

c5b5bcebdd&
view

pt&
search=

aII&
perm

thidthread-f%
3A

16425879409891
76228&

sim
pl=

m
sg-f%

3A
16425879409891

76228&
sim

pIm
sg-a%

3A
r8801

0187203987935.
1/4



t
y

C
C

I
%

S
IW

IC
IP

I
—

I
L

i
I
I
C

U
J
I

C
II

f
lC

I
C

I
C

I
I

1
1
3

I
%

iL
I

I
%

J
O

O
I
I
J
l

I

Ihave
received

the
em

ail
and

look
forw

ard
to

m
eeting

and
speaking

to
you.

Iw
ill

be
available

T
hursday

26
S

ep
tem

b
er

at
your

convenience.

T
hank

Y
ou

[Q
uoted

text
hidden]

E
ric

N
.

P
adilla

C
om

m
ander

L
as

V
egas

P
olice

D
ept.

(505)
425-7504

E
xt.

3103

R
ich

ard
so

n
-Z

ad
ra,

C
arey

A
.

(A
Q

)
(FB

I)
<

cazadra@
fbi.gov>

T
hu,

A
ug

22,
2019

at
2:18

PM
To:

E
ric

P
adilla

<
ep

ad
illalasv

eg
asn

m
.g

o
v
>

C
o
m

m
an

d
er

P
ad

illa

Ilook
forw

ard
to

com
ing

to
Las

V
egas

to
co

n
d
u
ct

your
background

investigation.
P

lease
m

ake
sure

all
th

e
form

s
listed

below
are

co
m

p
leted

.
T

hey
can

be
found

in
th

e
V

irtual
A

cadem
y

S
ystem

u
n
d
er

N
ational

A
cadem

y/M
y

A
pplication.

A
lso

m
ake

sure
your

chain
of

co
m

m
an

d
is

available
for

interview
th

at
day

and
your

H
R

and
IA

files
are

available
for

review
.

Ilook
forw

ard
to

m
eetin

g
you!

C
arey

R
icbarclson-iadra

A
pplicant/T

raining
C

oordinator

A
lb

u
q
u
erq

u
e

FB
I

[Q
uoted

text
hidden]

T
his

com
m

unication
is

the
property

of
T

he
C

ity
of

L
as

V
egas

and
m

ay
contain

confidential
or

privileged
inform

ation.
U

nauthorized
use

of
this

com
m

unication
is

strictly
prohibited

and
m

ay
be

unlaw
ful.

Ifyou
have

received
this

com
m

unication
in

error,
p
lease

im
m

ediately
notify

the
sen

d
er

by
reply

e-m
ail

and
destroy

all
copies

of
the

com
m

unication
and

any
attachm

ents.

https://m
aiI.googIe.com

/m
aiI/u/0?ik=

c5b5bcebdd&
view

pt&
search=

aII&
perm

thid=
thread-f%

3A
16425879409891

76228&
sim

pIm
sg-f%

3A
1

6425879409891
76228&

sim
pl=

m
sg-a%

3A
r8801

0
1

8
7
2

0
3
9

8
7

9
3
5

...
2/4



n
i
t

i
s
t
s
j

i
.
I

S
i
l
t
y

i
l

L
_
c
iO

S
P

O
Il

—
I

i
l

1
W

L
1
1
J
1
1
C

S
1

C
*
S

4
V

iiiy

E
ric

P
adilla

<
epadilla@

lasvegasnm
.gov>

T
hu,

A
ug

22,
2019

at
2:21

PM
To:

R
aelene

L
opez

<
rIo

p
ezIasv

eg
asn

m
.g

o
v
>

R
aelene

C
an

you
p
lease

put
on

the
calen

d
ar

for
C

hief
D

C
M

onica
and

I.
[Q

uoted
text

hidden]

R
ich

ard
so

n
-Z

ad
ra,

C
arey

A
.

(A
Q

)
(FB

I)
<

cazadra@
fbi.gov>

T
ue,

S
ep

17,
2019

at
1:22

PM
To:

E
ric

P
adilla

<
epadilla©

Iasvegasnm
.gov>

A
fternoon

C
o
m

m
an

d
er

P
ad

illa

Iju
st

w
an

t
to

confirm
o
u
r

sch
ed

u
led

tim
e

next
w

eek
to

co
n
d
u
ct

your
N

ational
A

cadem
y

B
ackground.

P
lease

co
m

p
lete

all
form

s
listed

below
,

you
can

tu
rn

th
em

into
m

e
on

T
hursday

S
ep

tem
b

er
26,

2019.

P
lease

don’t
forget

Iw
ill

n
eed

to
interview

your
chain

of
co

m
m

an
d

and
review

both
your

IA
and

p
erso

n
n
el

files.

I hope
to

be
up

th
ere

by
10:00

A
M

.

T
hanks

C
arey

C
arey

R
ich

ard
so

n
-Z

ad
ra

A
p

p
lican

t/T
rain

in
g

co
o
rd

in
ato

r

A
lb

u
g
u
erg

u
c

FB
I

F
rom

:
E

ric
P

adilla
[m

ailto
:ep

ad
illa©

Iasv
eg

asn
m

.g
o

v
]

S
ent:

T
hursday,

A
ugust

22,
2019

1:42
PM

T
o:

R
ichardson-Z

adra,
C

arey
A

.
(A

Q
)

(FB
I)

<
cazad

ra@
fb

i.g
o
v
>

S
ubject:

R
e:

FBI
N

ational
A

cadem
y

279th
S

ession

https://m
ail.google.com

/m
ail/u/0?ik=

c5b5bcebdd&
view

=
pt&

search=
aII&

perm
thid=

thread-f%
3A

1
6425879409891

76228&
sim

pIm
sg-f%

3A
1

6425879409891
76228&

sim
pIm

sg-a%
3A

r88O
1

0187203987935
3/4



iv
i

I
(
I
J

I1
‘...ity

U
I

L
d
S

V
I9

iIS
IV

id
li

ID
i

IN
d
tIU

IId
I

f-k
U

d
IJF

IIy
L

(
L

I
I

.U
I
U

I
I

G
ood

afternoon
this

is
A

w
esom

e

[Q
uoted

text
hidden]

[Q
uoted

text
hidden]

[Q
uoted

text
hidden]

E
ric

P
adilla

<
epadilla@

lasvegasnm
.gov>

T
ue,

S
ep

17,
2019

at
1:48

PM
To:

“R
ichardson-Z

adra,
C

arey
A

.
(A

Q
)

(FB
I)”

<
cazadra@

fbi.gov>

G
ood

afternoon

W
e

are
still

a
go

for
next

T
hursday.

I
have

inform
ed

m
y

superiors
and

they
w

ill
be

available.

T
hanks

and
have

a
great

day.
[Q

uoted
text

hidden]

https://m
aiL

googlecom
lm

ail/u/0?ik=
c5b5bcebdd&

view
=

pt&
search=

aII&
perm

thid=
thread-f%

3A
1

6425879409891
76228&

sim
pl=

m
sg-f%

3A
16425879409891

76228&
sim

pl=
m

sg-a%
3A

r8801
0
1
8
7
2
0
3
9
8
7
9
3
5
...

4/4



-o
C,)

0

0

0
CD

CD
0

a)
D

CC)

C)
a)
0,
CD
3
D
a)
0

0)

C)a)
0
CD
3

0
0

0

CD

z
a)
0

0)

C)
a)
C)-
CD
3

z

o.

C,

0.
CD
3



IN
d
L

IcJIk
II

I
.d

u
e
r
r
I
y

?
D

i

T
he

FB
I

N
ational

A
cadem

y
is

a
professional

course
of

study
for

U
.S.

and
international

law
enforcem

ent
m

an
ag

ers
nom

inated
by

their
agency

h
ead

s
b

ecau
se

of
dem

onstrated
leadership

qualities.
T

he
10-w

eek
program

—
w

hich
provides

coursew
ork

in
intelligence

theory,
terrorism

and
terrorist

m
indsets,

m
an

ag
em

en
t

science,
law

,
behavioral

science,
law

enforcem
ent

com
m

unication,
and

forensic
scien

ce—
serv

es
to

im
prove

the
adm

inistration
ofjustice

in
police

departm
ents

and
ag

en
cies

at
hom

e
and

abroad
and

to
raise

law
enforcem

ent
standards,

know
ledge,

and
cooperation

w
orldw

ide.

O
verview

N
ational

A
cad

em
y

C
an

d
id

ates
L

eaders
and

m
anagers

of
state,

local,
county,

tribal,
m

ilitary,
federal,

and
international

law
enforcem

ent
ag

en
cies

attend
the

FB
I

N
ational

A
cadem

y.
P

articipation
is

by
invitation

only,
through

a
nom

ination
process.

P
articipants

are
draw

n
from

every
U

.S.
state

and
territory

and
from

international
partner

nations.

C
o
u
rse

of
S

tu
d
y

S
essio

n
s

of
approxim

ately
220

officers
take

undergraduate
and/or

graduate
co

u
rses

at
the

FB
I

cam
pus

in
Q

uantico,
V

irginia.
C

lasses
are

offered
in

the
follow

ing
areas:

law
,

behavioral
science,

forensic
science,

understanding
terrorism

/terrorist
m

indsets,
leadership,

com
m

unication,
and

health/fitness.
O

fficers
participate

in
a

w
ide

range
of

leadership
and

specialized
training,

w
here

they
sh

are
ideas,

techniques,
and

experiences
w

ith
each

other,
creating

lifelong
partnerships

that
transcend

state
and

national
borders.

N
ote:

T
he

m
ost

current
N

ational
A

cadem
y

orientation
booklet

can
be

obtained
for

incom
ing

students
by

accessin
g

the
FB

I
N

ational
A

cadem
y

S
pecial

Interest
G

roup
(SIG

)
on

L
aw

E
nforcem

ent
O

nline
(L

E
O

),
w

hich
is

available
through

the
L

aw
E

nforcem
ent

E
nterprise

P
ortal

(L
E

E
P

).

T
he

“Y
ellow

B
rick

R
oad”

N
ational

A
cadem

y
g

rad
u

ates
fondly

recall
their

experience
on

the
“Y

ellow
B

rick
R

oad.”
T

he
final

test
of

the
fitness

challenge,
the

Y
ellow

B
rick

R
oad

is
a

grueling
6.1-

m
ile

run
through

a
hilly,

w
ooded

trail
built

by
the

M
arines.

A
long

the
w

ay,
the

participants
m

ust
clim

b
over

w
alls,

run
through

creeks,
jum

p
through

sim
ulated

w
indow

s,
scale

rock
faces

w
ith

ropes,
craw

l
under

barbed
w

ire
in

m
uddy

w
ater,

m
aneuver

acro
ss

a
cargo

net,
and

m
ore.

W
hen

(and
if)

the
stu

d
en

ts
com

plete
this

difficult
test,

they
receive

an
actual

yellow
brick

to
m

em
orialize

their
achievem

ent.
T

he
course

cam
e

to
be

know
n

as
the

Y
ellow

B
rick

R
oad”

years
ago,

after
the

M
arines

placed
yellow

bricks
at

various
spots

to
show

runners
the

w
ay

through
the

w
ooded

trail.
T

he
overall

fitness
challenge

began
at

the
N

ational
A

cadem
y

in
1981

and
has

evolved
over

the
years;

w
e

started
aw

arding
yellow

bricks
in

1988.

https://w
w

w
.fbi.gov/services/training-academ

y/national-academ
y#H

istory-ofthe
N

ationalA
cadem

y
2/7



In
tern

atio
n
al

S
tu

d
en

ts
V

irtually
every

day
a

law
enforcem

ent
or

security
officer

o
v

erseas
runs

dow
n

a
lead

or
sh

ares
inform

ation
that

helps
solve

or
support

an
FB

I
case

in
the

U
nited

S
tates.

O
ne

vital
w

ay
that

w
e

build
the

international
partnerships

n
eed

ed
to

gain
that

assistan
ce

is
through

the
FB

I
N

ational
A

cadem
y.

T
his

program
g

ath
ers

law
enforcem

ent
lead

ers
from

around
the

w
orld

to
learn

and
train

together
for

10
w

eeks,
not

only
elevating

levels
of

expertise
but

also
building

bonds
of

friendship
that

last
for

years.

T
he

N
ational

A
cadem

y
w

as
launched

in
1935

as
the

“Police
T

raining
S

chool.”
C

hina,
C

anada,
and

G
reat

B
ritain

w
ere

am
ong

the
first

countries
to

send
representatives

in
the

late
1930s,

but
usually

only
a

few
officers

per
sessio

n
.

T
he

num
ber

of
international

stu
d

en
ts

began
to

rise
in

A
ugust

1962,
w

hen
P

resident
K

ennedy
signed

N
ational

S
ecurity

A
ction

M
em

orandum
N

o.
177

to
en

h
an

ce
the

training
of

o
v
erseas

officers
in

the
U

nited
S

tates.
A

s
a

result,
the

FB
I

began
accepting

up
to

20
international

law
enforcem

ent
executives

in
each

N
ational

A
cadem

y
session.

T
oday,

each
sessio

n
usually

includes
betw

een
27

and
30

international
students,

about
10

percent
of

each
class.

T
h
o
u

san
d
s

of
international

lead
ers

from
over

160
countries

have
graduated

from
the

N
ational

A
cadem

y.
A

s
global

crim
e

and
terror

continue
to

m
ount—

requiring
ever

deepening
levels

of
international

cooperation
and

expertise—
the

FB
I

continues
to

put
a

priority
on

offering
and

coordinating
international

training
opportunities

for
its

partners
around

the
w

orld.

L
ife

A
fter

th
e

N
ational

A
cad

em
y

Follow
ing

graduation,
each

officer
has

the
opportunity

to
join

the
FB

I
N

ational
A

cadem
y

A
ssociates,

Inc.,
a

dynam
ic

organization
of

m
ore

than
16,000

law
enforcem

ent
professionals

w
ho

actively
w

ork
to

continue
developing

higher
levels

of
com

petency,
cooperation,

and
integrity

acro
ss

the
law

enforcem
ent

com
m

unity.

B
rief

H
istory

of
th

e
N

ational
A

cad
em

y
T

he
A

cadem
y

began
July

29,
1935.

It w
as

created
in

resp
o

n
se

to
a

1930
study

by
the

W
ickersham

C
om

m
ission

that
recom

m
ended

the
standardization

and
professionalization

of
law

enforcem
ent

departm
ents

acro
ss

the
U

.S.
through

centralized
training.

W
ith

strong
support

from
the

International
A

ssociation
of

C
hiefs

of
P

olice
and

w
ith

the
authority

of
C

ongress
and

the
D

epartm
ent

of
Justice,

the
“FB

I
P

olice
T

raining
S

chool”
w

as
born.

C
ourses

at
that

tim
e

included
scientific

aids
in

crim
e

detection,
preparation

of
reports,

crim
inal

investigation
techniques,

and
adm

inistration
and

organization.
W

ith
the

advent
of

W
orld

W
ar

II,
co

u
rses

w
ere

ad
d
ed

in
esp

io
n
ag

e
and

sab
o

tag
e.

https://w
w

w
.fbi.gov/services/training-academ

y/national-academ
y#H

istory-of
the

N
ational

A
cadem

y
3/7



F—

>-
E0)

-D
C’,
()

Co

a
Co
z
0)

a

a
0
I

E
CD

CD
0
CD

CD

0

CD
C

CD

CO
C.)
Co
0)

C
CO

0
CD
0

1)
U,
>
0
0)

I



-

d
’
:

.
.
.

,
i
!

S
tudents

on
the

range
dunng

a
1936

sessio
n

of
the

FB
I’s

N
ational

A
cadem

y.

N
A

G
rad

u
ates

R
eflect

on
V

alue
of

E
x
p
erien

ce
In

terstate
C

o
o
p
eratio

n
S

o
lv

es
C

ase
of

R
u
n
aw

ay
s

C
anton,

M
assachusetts,

P
olice

C
hief

K
en

B
erkow

itz
recounted

receiving
a

report
in

2006
of tw

o
young

w
om

en
w

ho
had

run
aw

ay
from

a
secure

facility
in

C
anton.

K
now

ing
they

w
ere

vulnerable
and

after
receiving

inform
ation

that
they

w
ere

heading
to

N
ew

Y
ork

City,
B

erkow
itz

contacted
a

N
ew

Y
ork

Police
D

epartm
ent’s

(N
Y

PD
)

lieutenant
detective

he
had

m
etw

hile
attending

the
N

A
and

asked
him

ifthe
N

Y
PD

w
ould

dedicate
resources

to
bringing

the
w

om
en

back
to

C
anton.

W
ithin

eight
hours,

the
tw

o
w

ere
safely

returned
to

the
facility.

B
erkow

itz,
convinced

that
the

w
ork

and
netw

orking
done

at
the

N
A

is
w

hat
found

the
w

om
en,

said
‘T

hose
girls

w
ere

not
found

on
the

streets
of

N
ew

Y
ork

C
ity;

those
girls

w
ere

found
in

the
hallw

ays
of

the
N

ational
A

cadem
y.”

In
tern

atio
n
al

A
ssistan

ce
L

ead
s

to
A

p
p
reh

en
sio

n
of

F
ugitive

from
th

e
U

.S.
L

ieutenant
L

arry
H

orak
of

the
M

argate,
Florida,

P
olice

D
epartm

ent
w

orked
a

case
that

involved
a

con
m

an
nam

ed
R

oger
M

iller
fleeing

the
country

after
stealing

m
illions

of
dollars

from
investors.

“O
ur

investigation
established

that
M

iller
had

fled
to

T
hailand,

but
w

e
w

ere
having

trouble
trying

to
locate

him
there,”

H
orak

said.
“I

thought
Ihad

a
m

em
ber

of
m

y
N

A
class

from
the

R
oyal

T
hai

P
olice,

so
Isent

him
an

e-m
ail

w
ith

a
description

of
M

iller,
and

w
ithin

24
hours,

Igot
a

resp
o

n
se

saying
‘W

e’ve
located

him
—

let
us

know
w

hat
you’d

like
us

to
do.’”

H
orak

w
as

then
able

to
initiate

the
extradition

process
to

bring
M

iller
back

for
prosecution.

“For
m

e,”
said

H
orak,

“the
N

A
w

as
unprecedented

in
any

leadership
training

I’ve
received

during
m

y
career.”

Inform
ation

from
N

A
C

lass
P

ro
v
id

es
V

aluable
S

tartin
g

P
o
in

t
in

M
urder

In
v
estig

atio
n

P
olice

C
hief

Bill
L

ane
of

the
H

orseshoe
B

ay,
T

exas,
P

olice
D

epartm
ent—

a
graduate

of
the

135th
sessio

n
of

the
N

A
—

recounted
how

the
instruction

he
received

w
hile

attending
the

A
cadem

y
w

as
invaluable

during
a

m
urder

investigation.
A

t
the

tim
e

C
hief

L
ane

attended
the

N
A

,
he

w
as

assistan
t

chief
of

the
H

obbs,
N

ew
M

exico,
P

olice
D

epartm
ent.

In
N

ovem
ber

2005,
the

H
obbs

P
olice

D
epartm

ent
w

as
investigating

the
m

urder
of

a
m

ultim
illionaire

w
ho

w
as

found
d

ead
at

his
lakefront

m
ansion.

D
uring

the
search

of
the

residence,
evidence

w
as

discovered
that

indicated
the

victim
had

an
internal

defibrillator.
L

ane
recalled

som
ething

from
one

of
his

N
A

classes—
how

inform
ation

from
th

ese
defibrillators

can
som

etim
es

be
dow

nloaded,
helping

to
determ

ine
the

tim
e

of
death.

T
he

inform
ation

w
as

dow
nloaded

and
provided

a
valuable

starting
point

in
the

investigation,
w

hich
w

as
ultim

ately
resolved

w
ith

the
assistan

ce
of

other
law

enforcem
ent

ag
en

cies.

In
terstate

C
o
llab

o
ratio

n
L

ead
s

to
C

ap
tu

re
of

B
ank

R
o
b
b
ery

S
u
sp

ect
A

graduate
of

the
234th

N
A

session—
P

olice
C

hief
G

erald
R

.
S

im
pson

of
the

G
arden

T
ow

nship
P

olice
D

epartm
ent

in
C

h
ester

C
ounty,

P
ennsylvania—

recalled
that

the
opportunity

to
liaison

w
ith

his
N

A
classm

ates
proved

to
be

a
valuable

crim
e-fighting

tool
later

on.
A

t
the

tim
e

he
w

as
at

the
N

A
,

S
im

pson
w

as
a

lieutenant
w

ith
the

N
ew

ark,
D

elaw
are,

P
olice

D
epartm

ent.
Six

m
onths

after
graduating

from
the

A
cadem

y,
a

bank
robbery

occurred
in

his
jurisdiction

in
w

hich
the

su
sp

ect,
during

his
escap

e,
struck

another
vehicle

w
hich

cau
sed

his
ow

n
license

plate
to

fall
off

the
car.

P
olice

recovered
the

plate
and

discovered
that

the
vehicle

w
as

a
rental

from
a

https://w
w

w
.fbi.gov/services/training-academ

yfnational-academ
y#H

istory-of the
N

ational
A

cadem
y

517



com
pany

in
N

ew
burgh,

N
ew

Y
ork.

W
hile

still
at

the
crim

e
scen

e,
S

im
pson

contacted
a

N
ational

A
cadem

y
classm

ate—
C

harlie
B

roe,
at

the
tim

e
a

lieutenant
w

ith
the

N
ew

burgh
P

olice
D

epartm
ent

in
N

ew
Y

ork—
and

requested
his

assistan
ce.

T
he

classm
ate

w
as

able
to

obtain
the

rental
contact

w
hich

led
to

the
identification

of
the

suspect.
W

ithin
sev

en
days,

law
enforcem

ent
authorities

in
N

ew
Y

ork
had

located
and

arrested
him

.

N
ational

A
cad

em
y

N
o

m
in

atin
g

P
ro

cess
W

ho
S

h
o
u
ld

S
ign

th
e

N
om

ination

A
com

m
issioner,

superintendent,
or

police
chief;

a
sheriff

or
head

of
county

policy
agency;

the
chief,

superintendent,
or

executive
officer

of
a

state
police

or
highw

ay

patrol
organization.

W
ho

S
h
o
u
ld

Fill
O

ut
th

e
A

p
p

licatio
n

O
fficers

w
ith

a
m

inim
um

rank
of

lieutenant
or

the
equivalent

and
w

ho
are

approved
by

their
respective

field
office.

N
om

inee
Q

u
alificatio

n
s

•
B

e
a

regular,
full-tim

e
officer

of
a

duly-constituted
law

enforcem
ent

agency
of

a
m

unicipality,
county,

or
state,

having
at

least
five

years
of

substantial
and

continuous
experience;

•
B

e
at

least
25

y
ears

old;

•
B

e
in

excellent
physical

condition,
capable

of
strenuous

exertion
and

regular
participation

in
the

use
of

firearm
s,

physical
training,

and
defensive

tactics,

w
hich

w
ill

be
confirm

ed
by

a
thorough

physical
exam

ination
(subm

itted
w

hen
requested

by
the

FB
I)

by
a

m
edical

doctor
of

the
nom

inee’s
choosing

and
at

the

nom
inee’s

ex
p
en

se;
•

P
o

ssess
an

excellent
character

and
enjoy

a
reputation

for
professional

integrity;

•
E

xhibit
an

interest
in

law
enforcem

ent
as

a
public

service,
a

serio
u

sn
ess

of
purpose,

qualities
of

leadership
and

enjoy
the

confidence
and

respect
of

fellow

officers;

•
H

ave
a

high
school

diplom
a

or
high

school
equivalency

certificate;

•
A

gree
to

rem
ain

in
law

enforcem
ent

for
a

m
inim

um
of

three
years

after
graduating

from
the

FB
I

N
ational

A
cadem

y.

S
u
b
m

ittin
g

a
N

om
ination

P
lease

contact
your

local
FB

I
office

training
coordinator

(https://w
w

w
.fbi.gov/contact-us/field-offices)

ifyou
are

interested
in

subm
itting

a
nom

ination
or

in
learning

m
ore

about
the

process.

International
stu

d
en

ts
are

nom
inated

by
their

host
countries

w
orking

through
our

legal
attaché

offices
(https://w

w
w

.fbi.gov/contact-us/legal-attache-offices).

https://w
w

w
.fbi.gov/services/training-academ

ylnational-academ
y#H

istory-of the
N

ational
A

cadem
y

6/7



.. x—
rn

C

0> —

0

—.

0

8g 0

Al

I
0

0

3

__

CD
0

z

3

0

3
)

3

0

C

a



US. Depart
of Justice

Federal Burea
Investigation

In Reply, Please Refer to
File No.

4200 Luecking p
Albuquerque N”kAvenue, NE

‘VMexico 87107
October 10, 2019

Mr. David Bibb
Chief of Police
Las Vegas Police Department
3 18 Moreno Street
Las Vegas, New Mexico 87701

Dear Chief Bibb:

lam pleased to extend a formal invitation to Commander Eric acl,National Academy’s 279th Session from 0 1/06/2020 through 03/13/20hlla to attend the FBI
having him attend and know this endeavor will prove invaluable for b0 We look forward to

our organizations.
Should Commander Padilla have any questions, please feel free t

Agent Carey Richardson-Zadra, FBI Albuquerque Division’s Trai have him contact Special
1370. g coordinator, at 505-889-

;,;Again, congratulations to Commander Padilla on his acceptance
Academy’s 279th Session “q 1M0 th FBI National

James C. Langenberg
Special Agent in Charge

—1VED
I

BYJ

Sincerely,



Regular

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE: 11104/19 DEPT: Public Works MEETING DATE: 11I20I19

ITEM/TOPIC: Reject request for bid 2020-03 for West National, Keen Street and Mountain
View Drive due to bid being over budget.

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: Approval/Disapproval to reject bid 2020-03 to Rocky
Road Construction due to bid being over budget.

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: The City of Las Vegas had a Bid Opening on 10/30/19 for the
Mountain View Ave., Keen St. and West National St. Reconstruction, in which the single
contractors bid, was over budget.

Advertised: October 6, 2019 Las Vegas Optic, Albuquerque Journal and the City
website.

Bid Opening: October 30, 2019
Number of Bidders: 1- $901,565.00 excluding GRT.
Funding Source: MAP/COOP state grants, City of Las Vegas Proportional Match

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Reject Bid # 2020I03

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve Rejected Bid

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: N/A

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NO LATER
THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS PRIR TQ.JHE CITY COUNCIL
MEETING.

SUBMITTER’S SIGNATURE

REVI WED AND APPROVED BY:

JS4ALZ
TONITA GURULE-GIR TANA VEGA, INTERIM
MAYOR FINANCE DIRECTOR

(PROCUREMENT)

ANN MARIE GALL GOS,
INTERIM CITY MANAGER

PURCHASING AGENT ESTHER GARDUNO MONTOYA,
(FOR BIDIRFP AWARD) CITY ATTORNEY

(ALL RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES
& CONTRACTS MUST BE
REVIEWED)



City of Las Vegas
1700 N. Grand Avenue I Las Vegas, NM 87701 I T 505.454.1401 I lasvegasnm.gov

Madam Mayor Tonita Gurulê-Giràn

MEMORANDUM

TO: Anne Ilego imCanage r

Daniel Gurule, Interim Public Works Director

DATE: November 04,19

RE: Reject Bid 2020-03 MAP/COOP Grant Road Reconstruction Project

The City of Las Vegas Public Works Department would like to recommend the Rejection of Bid # 2020-03

due to the bid being over budget for Mountain View, West National, and Keen Street.

Bid being $901,565.00 which is approximately $250,000.00 over available funds.

Scope of work was to remove and replacement asphalt, curbs, sidewalks and miscellaneous road

improvements, throughout this phase of these projects.

If you should have any questions please feel free to contact me at your convenience.

David Ulibarri Vince Howell Barbara Perea-Casey David G. Romero
Councilor Ward 1 Councilor Ward 2 Councilor Ward 3 Councilor Ward 4



4OLZE CORBIN

November 8, 2019

Mr. Daniel Gurule
Project Manager
City of Las Vegas
1700 North Grand Avenue
Las Vegas, New Mexico 87701

RE: Information for Consideration of Award LVG173-12
Mountain View Dr., Keen St., and West National Ave. Phase I Improvements

Dear Mr. Gurule:

The City of Las Vegas received one (1) Bid on October 30, 2019 for the Mountain View Drive,
Keen Street, and West National Avenue Phase I Improvements Project. A summary of the Bids
received and the Engineer’s Estimate is provided in the enclosed Bid Tabulation.

The Bid received from Rocky Road Gravel had errors on both Bid lots.as the Bids received did
not reflect the Addendum for this Project. The Bid amount for both Bid lots were 40% over the
budgeted funds.

We understand that the Owner reserves the right to award or reject any Bid, as well as waive any
technical irregularities in the Bids. We recommend rejecting the Bid and rebidding the Project.

Please call me at (505) 242-5700, if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

MOLZEN CORBIN

Jonah Ruybalid, P.E.

JR:pel
Enclosure

MoizenCorbincom



0.4 T.bol30.o
Mo.obiO V10 03s.e lopsoseme0b
C1y or 0.04 V,$4o

dOoiog. Ob’S0,I0I9l.OOp.. L’,E,Noo.W Roo$4RoodCr.sdLLC

I DooonpIlo. MAO Qoy UoiOPoOoo Amrnool Uo.IPAoo I A.oooo
.0174o. I

I Roo.ovoondDiopoosoIEiogS.h0.odo CV 8100 $10.00 823,500.0 83500 823,500.0

2 12’oosh S.,bds Poop SY 2600 5325 $9,425 C 5730 805,20000

3 LooMo CAsing MILE 03 130,00000 03,0000 00000000 $18,000.9

Nov nd lnoo.il Boon Cosoon .0.1.4.06
°°°°°‘ SY 2900 5900 126,3000 1700 120,30004

5 TookCoolM43snoi TON 2 152500 11,0500 15.06000 $100001

N PMACoosMossssoJ TON 3 645000 11.3500 54.00000 112,0001

7 Pooosonol S.nGon 0.600058,00 loolodoog Polo ioo0o,. ST 425 53.00 $4,987.5 $3500 $21,576.1

8 MA SPillS solo ST 600 $17.00 121.2065 123.00 136,000.3
9 LIbido SP.IV 3.3 nob ST 1415 59.0’ $12,825.0 $1990 127,0753
10 HMA 09.10 2.5 nob SY 1420 5340,3 $39,930.0’ $22 103 $31,300 I

Poo,dr,dIooo3(6’oi8’Conoooor CooN As G.65nr
I.E $2490 541,4309 $3000 060,273.3

12 00100 804 mOoll 24’ ColossI Pops UT 50 $0000 54,000.3 19000 $4,500.1
IS PoooosloESooosooodObnoo,oiono US I $15000 $750.3 530.06006 $100001
4 P’ooids As IooloO Rip Rop Cinso A CV 30 $225.00 529,260.3 120000 116,000.1

IS P’ooids As loololi FOSs, Fobino boonoth Rip Rip SY 300 $10.00 $3,030.3 $1000 13.0000
16 3/PPP Prop ,od M,inrrosoon US I $2,500.00 $2,500.3 515,06000 $13,030 6
II V.doo T,pio0 1.3 1750.00 $7503 53,00000 03,000.0

18 TroCorooIM,oo,g,nossoo LI I 19,000.00 $9,000.1 519,50630 $193000

39 Mobil.oooon Iooo.o.oon As 00060 IS I $35,000.00 $35,000.1 535,03000 ‘ $35,000.0

20 Dsoobsliooooso, Lloonooo 1.5 I 54,006.00 540001 6400000 64,0000

II 64300 V41., Boo So Good, Edo 2 1500.06 13,0001 $100000 11,0000

22 Pon,I S.oo SF 60 $30.06 53,5000 51500 10000

23 03,01 P00 oo4 Booo Psol Coo .OJommoo, Porol Sigo I.E 00 $12.00 13,2060 $1500 $1,500.0

20 Roy 3040000,04 Pooyo.s,o MosEog I?’ Woo UT 62 16.00 13120 $4510 00,3400

:::::: Conoo’osoos SOkoog by do C00600010r 0.5 5 $3,000.00 $3,000 I $39,300.00 $30060

POOCOS0000I300P1000 IS 11,506.00 $1,500.0 53,50006 13,5C0

U.booolosy TooSog ALLOW 15,060.00 65,0060 15,06000 55,0001

28 P,n.Ao.thoroood Coorsoo.oooion Clooogro ALLOW I 12.00600 15,060.0 05.06006 15,006

SshOo, 5239,849,80 • 5432,615.1

Gr, R.ooIp T.s3L3958% $21,815.44 $36,311.4

TOTAL $248,643.94 $465,935.49

Bid LoS 74,1

I Rsn,oorond 00ropooofEoio10gS.obgoodr CV 650 $16.00 530.4000 $1530 10,75000

II sooN Soob9.do poop 50’ 250 5.1.30 13.0.209 $730 $8,750 I

Fronds ood mobIl Ooon CWoon nolodoog Oornp00000. 5 3266 $1900 $23,030.0 1700 18,1503

4 1525.00 12,3060 52,0% 00 18,0003Took Cool Monosol TON 4

FCOolMolth6 TON $706.00 11,5000 54,00000 $11,030.1

6 Told MIlling 2 nob sy 5630 56.00 133.3000’ $516 $10,630.1

7 Cold Millorg 4 nob SY 2150 $10.06 121,5001 1600 $12,900.1
S500sdooodoooollGsogodo,b,nsolooonnoploooon

50’ 1250 53.00 56,250. $1200 515,000.0

““j”” FdA SP.IV 2 bosh ST 5050 $1200 $66600 I $2106 $122,106.0
“ji’—” (MA SP.IV 1.5 solo 50 2350 $9.00 139,350.3 $1900 540,830.0
‘“ii”—’ 1MA OP-ill 2.5 nob SY 2350 $340’s $30,106.3 $24.01 $53600.0

(2 ‘Ono4dsnodIlIb’ol4ConoorooV,OryGooso UT 110 128040 13,060.1 045.040 14,950.0’

83
P540&35d1004l16o24C0005500 Cob nod CII.,,

UT (00 126.00 82,630.1 $5000 19,0300

34
00550SoodDiOpO80010000000gClobOOd007000por

UT 300 $1590 51,5001 $1030 $1,000.0

,Oomoosl075000000noosdOb,Brooooo Iromoon ood
$359030 $1,506.1 52,030.30 12,5060

IN WPPP Prop good MoooOnoooon 1.3 01.50000 $2,506.0 515.93006 $13,930.0

Videoropoog 13 53.50000 13.5000 53.00000 $3000.0

38 535,00000 8(50000 $3900030 114,000.0TroIRo Cornol Mooogoonooro 13 8mz Mob,Iooolio,lnoonoooondgo,03o 15 3 130.00000 $18,000.0 535.00006 • 138.3000

20 15,060.06 55,060 C 55,030 CO • 10,0000
blIooobor.0odCl0000oo US I

23 ‘IoolooIo Aoijooor.ooo, Complrro LA 7 175029 $55500 5329000 17.0600

22 ‘,dJsolVoEo5800IoGr4dr LA 38 $500.00 15,5300 $753.00 58,2600

23 PgooISo0’,o
5

124.00 03,360.0 $1506 12,3060

24 SoonI Pooo oodB.on PooO fo,Ai’.ommooo Pood Sigo 1(000 13,350.0 5606 $8286
I.E 13$

25 R,OoosCo000n.odMboNoogo4’ontliIo I.E 4340 10.60 52,604.0 $300.00’ $1,002,000.3

20 Rnooon0004ooiood Mo00ogo 4’ 00114w UT 4340 10.60 $2,604.0 5280 • 130,850.3

27 8o nooflroonooodPooroooroObi.oiooglO’ Woos I.E
200

0850 $02300 82.00000 $760,000.3

28 Coo.Onoowon Sook.og by rIo, C000obor US 13,56000 83,5060 52840000 $21,000 I

PonCooooooorooPlooro 15 12,50000 12,5600 54,50000 54,5063

30 o.bonoooy T,00irg ALLOW I $7,206.60 $1,300.0 57,560.00 15,8003

II P-Aodoo,iond Coooosoo6oo Cboroso ALLOW I $18,060.00 $81,060.0 $85,002.06 $86,000 I

0nb001 1302,958.0 • 12416,528.1
Grow RoodpS,Too ® 8.3960% 127,114.91 $211451.3.

TOTA 1255,073.98 12.731319.3.

‘OTAL BIDAMOUNT LOTS $ AND 2 )4ios04Nss. Moo,, Goon. Rorpo Ton) I 15824073* 12,952r34329

For Roohl POrp00 R00dnoO Conbor Pr (5%). No
For RoonI,658 Porpoo,. Roiddont Voloono C..Oootor Prof. (IO%)o No

BID AMOUNT RANKING AFTLR PRLFBIRENCEO 0$

0 hsnrby o00dy 6oo (os obovo Ogoooo gosAs 84000000.0,5 ootnmllod is Ohs Bid Psoposolo 500078 los oroo(od iloono soothed sooth no ((9)

106333.63 11/5/2019



CITY OF LAS VEGAS
RFP/BID/OPENING

DATE: 30-Oct-2019 OPENING NO.: 2020-03

TIME: 2:00 PM DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS

LOCATION: City of Las Vegas Chambers
1700 N. Grand Ave.
Las Veoas, NM 87701

ITEM(S): MOUNTAIN VIEW DRIVE IMPROVEMENTS

AND KEEN ST & WEST NATIONAL AVENUE
RECONSTRUCTION

PCTVFfl FROM: AMOUNT

SUB
CONTRACTOR

LIST

3

AFFIDAVIT CAMPAIGN
BID BOND NOTARIZED DISC. FORM

4

1 • I
/&r

2 T,q’—

5 I
I 3-

I I I
. .1 I.

6
I I

COMPANY REPRESENTATIVE COMPANY NAME

7

8

9

10

COPIES TAKEN 8’i’ DEPT:
_z j

TAKE CLERK: OPENEIJ BY: FINANCE DEPARThIENT
(use other side of form when full) ,.—.‘ .

— ) iL ) V
DATE: DATE: IC! oJotQ

OATh:



REQUEST FOR BIDS

The City of Las Vegas. New Mexico will open Sealed Bids at 2:00 p.m.. UL,2019, at the City
Council Chambers. 1700 North Grand Avenue, Las Vegas, New Mexico, or other designated area at
the City Offices: ON THE FOLLOWING:

Mountain View Drive Improvements and Keen St. and West NatonaI Ave. Reconstruction

The BIDDING FORMS AND TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS may be examined at the following
location: City Clerk’s Office at 1700 North Grand Avenue. Las Vegas. NM 87701

Copies of the BIDDING FORMS AND TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS may be obtained at the
following location: City Clerk’s Office at 1700 North Grand Avenue Las Vegas, NM 87701 orwww
/asveqasnm.gov

Mailed bids should be addressed to the City Clerk, 1700 N. Grand Ave., Las Vegas. New Mexico
87701; with the envelope marked: Mountain View Drive Improvements and Keen St. and West
National Ave. Reconstruction, Opening No. iç; on the lower left-hand corner of the
submitted envelope. It shall be the responsibility of the Offeror to see that their bid is delivered to the
City Clerk by the date and time set for the bid request. If the mail or delivery of bid request is delayed
beyond the opening date and time, bid thus delayed will not be considered. A public opening will be
held and any bidder or their authorized representative is invited to attend.

The City of Las Vegas reserves the right to reject any/or all bids submitted.

LAS VEGAS OPTIC
ALBUQUERQUE JOURNAL
www.lasveciasnm.gov

CITY OF LAS VEGAS.

J

r-.Q\i ‘

ANN AARIE GALLEGOS, lNFERIM CITY MANAGER

STHGADU 0 MONTOYA. CITY ATTORNEY

CASANDRA FRESQl.EZ.lTY CLERK
,-,

‘,‘/:.,

NA CE Dl RECTOR

L IGIL. PURCHAiNG OFFICER

Opening No.

Published:

Date Issued:
/, .

1/ ‘‘)/

..

... .2019
/‘L.

, .2019
& ) ..-

I



B ERI FORMA ION

OFFEROR:
J

C
AUTHORIZED AGENT: L V VV\ Cd

ADDRESS: /0 J77i 77
TELEPHONENUMBER(6O) ‘-/tS-- L,o/

FAXNUMBER(6b) tjcLj- Till
DELIVERY:

STATE PURCHASING RESIDENT CERTIFICATION NO.:

_________________________

NEW MEXICO CONTRACTORS LICENSE NO.: 3 0

BID ITEM (S): Mountain View Drive Improvements and Keen St. and West National Ave.
Reconstruction

ITEM (S) UNDER THIS B1D ARE TO BE F.O.B, LAS VEGAS, NEW MEXICO 87701. THE CITY OF
LAS VEGAS RESERVES THE RIGHT REJECT ANY OR ALL BIDS AND TO WAIVE ANY
TECHNICAL IRREGULARITY IN THE FORM OF THE BID.

AFFIDAVIT FOR FiLING WITH COMPETITIVE BID

STATE OF

__________________

}ss
COUNTYOF

I, Or S of Iaul age, being of first duly sworn in oath, say that I am the
agent authorized by the bidder to submit the attached bid. Affiant further states that the bidder has not
been a party to any collusion among bidders in restraint of freedom of competition by agreement to bid
at a fixed price or to refrain from bidding; or with any city official or employee as to the terms of said
prospective contract, or any other terms of said prospective contract; or in any discussion between
bidders with any city official concerning an exchange of money or any other thing of value for special
consideration in the letting of a contract.

Signature

Subscribed and sworn to before me, this

_______

day of

_______________,

20

a/L4L-

ry Public Signature

My Commission Expires: 5
OFFICIAL SEAL

SERNA CHAVEZ
NOTARY PU8UC

STATE OF NE5V MEXiCo
My Comm Expires S?--...q

2



order to be considered. After bid opening, no price modifications of submitted bids or other
provisions shall be permitted.

WITHDRAWAL OF BID
A low Bidder alleging a material mistake of fact, after bids have been opened may request their bid be
withdrawn upon receipt of a written request to the Finance Department QdQ_r to the scheduled
awarding date.

INSPECTION
Final inspection and acceptance will be made at the City’s discretion. Products rejected for
nonconformance with the specifications shall be removed by the Bidder; at his/her risk and expense
promptly after notice of rejection.

FEDERAL TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
Pursuant to IRS requirements, Bidder shall provide their Federal Tax ID Number if Bidder is
incorporated. If Bidder is a sole proprietorship or partnership they then shall provide their Social
Security Number.

FEDELTAX ID NUMBER: 6 D3LI -/7
SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER:

__________________________________________

NEW MEXICO TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER
Payment may be withheld under (Section 7-10-5, N.M.S.A. 1978) if you are subject to New Mexico
Gross Receipts Tax and have not registered for New Mexico (CRS) Tax Identification Number.
Contact the New Mexico Taxation & Revenue Department at (505) 827-0700 for registering
instructions.

NEW MEXICO TAX IDENTIFICATION NO. (CRS): ñ - / 7/7 ii -

4



CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

Pursuant to Chapter 81, Laws of 2006, any prospective contractor seeking to enter into a contract with
any state agency or local public body must file this form with that state agency or local public body.
The prospective contractor must disclose whether they, a family member or a representative of the
prospective contractor has made a campaign contribution to an applicable public official of the state or
a local public body during the two years prior to the date on which the contractor submits a bid or, in
the case of a sole source or small purchase contract, the two years prior to the date the contractor
signs the contract, if the aggregate total of contributions given by the prospective contractor, a family
member or a representative of the prospective contractor to the public official exceeds two hundred
and fifty dollars ($250) over the two year period.

THIS FORM MUST BE FILED BY ANY PROSPECTIVE CONTRACTOR WHETHER OR NOT THEY,
THEIR FAMILY MEMBER, OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVE HAS MADE ANY CONTRIBUTIONS
SUBJECT TO DISCLOSURE.

The following definitions apply:

“Applicable public official’ means a person elected to an office or a person appointed to complete a
term of an elected office, who has the authority to award or influence the award of the contract
for which the prospective contractor is submitting a competitive sealed bid or who has the
authority to negotiate a sole source or small purchase contract that may be awarded without
submission of a sealed competitive bid.

“Campaign Contribution” means a gift, subscription, loan, advance or deposit of money or other
thing of value, including the estimated value of an in-kind contribution, that is made to or
received by an applicable public official or any person authorized to raise, collect or expend
contributions on that official’s behalf for the purpose of electing the official to either statewide or
local office. “Campaign Contribution” includes the payment of a debt incurred in an election
campaign, but does not include the value of services provided without compensation or
unreimbursed travel or other personal expenses of individuals who volunteer a portion or all of
their time on behalf of a candidate or political committee, nor does it include the administrative
or solicitation expenses of a political committee that are paid by an organization that sponsors
the committee.

“Contract” means any agreement for the procurement of items of tangible personal property,
services, professional services, or construction.

“Family member” means spouse, father, mother, child, father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter-in-law
or son-in-law.

“Pendency of the procurement process” means the time period commencing with the public notice
of the request for proposals and ending with the award of the contract or the cancellation of the
request for proposals.

“Person” means any corporation, partnership, individual, joint venture, association or any other
private legal entity.

“Prospective contractor” means a person who is subject to the competitive sealed proposal process
set forth in the Procurement Code or is not required to submit a competitive sealed proposal
because that person qualifies for a sole source or a small purchase contract.

8



“Representative of a prospective contractor” means an officer or director of a corporation, a
member or manager of a limited liability corporation, a partner of a partnership or a trustee of a
trust of the prospective contractor.

DISCLOSURE OF CONTRIBUTIONS:

Contribution Made By:

Relation to Prospective Conti

Name of Applicable Public Official:

Date Contribution(s) Made:

Amount(s) of Contribution(s)

Nature of Contribution(s)

Purpose of Contributi s)

_____________________________________________________________

(The aiel areunlimited in size)

__________________________________________

Signature Date

Title (position)

-OR

NO CONTRIBUTIONS IN THE AGGREGATE TOTAL OVER TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS
($250) ERE MADE to an applicable public official by me, a family member or representative.

SigL De’

Q (AIV]’ L
Title (Po LIOfl)

9



BID FORM

PROJECT IDENTIFICATION: Mountain View Drive, Keen Street, and West National Avenue Phase 1
Improvements

ARTICLE 1- BID RECIPIENT

1.01 This Bid is submitted to: City of Las Vegas
1700 N. Grand Avenue
Las Vegas, New Mexico 87701

1.02 The undersigned Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid is accepted, to enter into an Agreement
with Owner in the form included in the Bidding Documents to perform all Work as specified or
indicated in the Bidding Documents for the prices and within the times indicated in this Bid and in
accordance with the other terms and conditions of the Bidding Documents.

ARTICLE 2 - BIDDER’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

2.01 Bidder accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Instructions to Bidders, including without
liniitation those dealing with the disposition of Bid security. This Bid will remain subject to
acceptance for 60 days after the Bid opening, or for such longer period of time that Bidder may
agree to in writing upon request of Owner. Bidder will sign and submit the Agreement and the
Bonds and other documents required by the Bidding Requirements within ten days after the date
of Owners Notice of Award.

ARTICLE 3- BIDDER’S REPRESENTATIONS

3.01 In submitting this Bid, Bidder represents that:

A. Bidder has examined and carefully studied the Bidding Documents, other related data
identified in the Bidding Documents, and the following Addenda, receipt of which is hereby
acknowledged:

Addendum No. Addendum Date

_____

-6-

B. Bidder has visited the Site and become familiar with and is satisfied as to the general, local,
and Site conditions that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

C. Bidder is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost,
progress, and performance of the Work.

D. Bidder has carefluly studied all: (1) reports of explorations and tests of subsurface conditions
at or contiguous to the Site and all drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

BID-I



ARTICLE 9- BID SUBMITTAL

9.01 This Bid is submitted by:

If Bidder is:

An Individual

Name (typed or printed): 0 (A

By:
(Individual’s signature)

Doingbusinessas:

A Partnership

Partnership Name:

_____________________________________________

By:
(Signature of general partner -- attach evidence of authority to sign)

Name (typed or printed):

_____________________________________________

A Corporation

Corporation Name:

________________________________________________

(SEAL)

State of Incorporation:
Type (General Business, Professional, Service, Limited Liability):________

By:
(Signature -- attach evidence of authority to sign)

Name (typed or printed):

_____________________________________

Title:
(CORPORATE SEAL)

Attest

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

BID-8



A Joint Venture

Name of Joint Venture:

First Joint Venturer Name:

___________________________________________

(SEAL)

By:
(Signature of first joint venture partner -- attach evidence of authority to sign)

Name (typed or printed):

Title:

Second Joint Venturer Name:

_______________________________________(SEAL)

By:
(Signature of second joint venture partner -- attach evidence of authority to sign)

Name (typed or printed):

Title:

(Each joint venturer must sign. The manner of signing for each individual, partnership, and
corporation that is a party to the joint venture should be in the manner indicated above.)

Bidders Business Address I

Phone No. 5o 0 Fax No. V
E-mail 9

____

SUBMITTED on 0 C , 2O/

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

BID-9



9.02 Contractor License Information:

New Mexico Contractor’s License Number Z 3 O
License Classifications 4’ip Ao - G1ô’ .-

- Y?2Y)7 Z - !-

New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions Registration Number .2O Z 67 9 / Z09Z

Federal Identification Number (FEI #) S 0 q
- /

ARTICLE 10 - PREFERENCES

10.01 Resident Contractor Preference:

Is Bidder claimirg Resident Contractor Preference? b’? ‘D

If y, provide a copy of your Resident Contractor Certificate issued by the Taxation and
Revenue Department.

10.02 Resident Veteran Contractor Preference:

Is Bidder claiming Resident Veteran Contractor Preference? I? 0

If Yes, provide a copy of your Resident Veteran Contractor Certificate issued by the Taxation and
Revenue Department.

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

BID-b



SUBCONTRACTOR’S FAIR PRACTICE ACT COMPLIANCE

This project is subject to the provisions of the State of New Mexico Subcontractor’s Fair Practice
Act.

Listing Threshold: $5,000.00

Portion of project to which requirements apply:

Complete Project.

For each category of the project, which the BIDDER will be subcontracting for an amount
exceeding the listing threshold indicated above, the BIDDER shall define the subcontracting
categories and list only one subcontractor for each category. The listing shall be in the format
indicated on the following page, and shall be completed and submitted with the Bid.

No CONTRACTOR whose Bid is accepted shall sublet or subcontract any portion of the Work
of the Project in an amount exceeding the threshold amount given above, where the original bid
amount did not designate a subcontractor, unless 1) the CONTRACTOR received no bid for that
category (note: the BIDDER must designate on the list of subcontractors that “no bid was
received”), or 2) the Work is pursuant to a change order that causes changes or deviations from
the original contract.

No CONTRACTOR whose Bid is accepted shall substitute any subcontractor in place of the
subcontractor listed in the Bid except as provided for in the Subcontractor’s Fair Practice Act.

Any changes or additions of subcontractors shall be promptly reported to the ENGINEER in
writing within two (2) calendar days of the known change or addition to the submitted List of
Project Subcontractors in the Bid.

All subcontractors with work in excess of $60,000 must be registered with the New Mexico
Department of Workforce Solutions, Labor Enforcement. On page SCFP-2, include the total of
the subcontracted work and the subcontractor’s New Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions
Registration Number, if work is in excess of $60,000.

SCFP-l



Subcontract Category

Estimated Value of Work

Subcontractors Name

Business Address

Phone Number

____________________________

E-mail Address

_______________________________

Federal Identification No. (FEII”l #)

_________________

New Mexico Contractor’s License No.

__________________

License Categories

New Mexico Dept. of Workforce Solutions Registration No.,
(list only if value of work is in excess of $60,000)

Subcontract Category

Estimated Value of Work

________________________________

Subcontractor’s Name

________________________________

Business Address

______________________________

Phone Number

___________________________

E-mail Address

_________________________________

Federal Identification No. (FEIN fi)

_________________

New Mexico Contractor’s License No.

_________________

License Categories

New Mexico Dept. of Workforce Solutions Registration No.
(list only if value of work is in excess of $60,000)

Signature of Authorized Representative for BIDDER:

_______________________________________

Date:_____________

Duplicate, complete, and submit additional sheets as required.

SCFP-3



1. “corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of any thing of value
likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process;

2. “fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to influence
the bidding process to the detriment of Owner, (b) to establish bid prices at artificial non
competitive levels, or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;

3. “collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders, with
or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish bid prices at
artificial, non-competitive levels; and

4. “coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons
or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or affect the
execution of the Contract.

ARTICLE 5- BASIS OF BID

5.01 Bidder shall complete the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents for the following
price(s):

Ite.
NMDOT Est.
Spec No. Description Unit Unit Price Amount

Bid Lot 1 —COOP (L400397, L400446) Keen Street (Grant to W. National)_W._National (Keen to Romero)
Remove and Dispose of Existing

/5 $ 56tt1 206000 CY 1700 $Subgrade
2 207000 12-inch Subgrade prep SY 2900 $ 7 $ 2 c7DL
3 208000 Linear Grading MILE 0.3 $ 60, 000 $ / OOO

Provide and Install Base Course4 303010 SY 2900 $‘including Compaction 6-inch
730 $

5 407000 Tack Coat Material TON 2 $ 5ooo $ / 0
a—6 408100 Prime Coat Material TON 3 $ ‘/Oc7O $ ?2 op —

Pavement Surface Restoration7 415000 SY 1425 $including Pulverization /5 $ Z1375
8 423282 HMA SP-III 3-inch SY 1600 $ 23 S 3L°’
9 423282 HMA SP-IV 1.5 inch SY 1425 $ / 9’dO $ Z7D7
10 423282 1-IMA SP-III 2.5-inch SY 1425 $ ZZ eo $

Provide and Install 6-inch x 18-
11 570000 inch Concrete Curb and Gutter LF 1725 $ 35 ° $ (, 375upon direction from Engineer

Provide and install 24-inch12 LF 50 $Culvert Pipe $

Removal of Structures and13 601000 LS 1 $ $ /Oc’tOObstructions
Provide and Install Rip Rap Class &14 602000 CY 130A $ 400 S ZCôoo
Provide and Install Filter Fabric
beneath Rip Rap / $ 3ooo

J

15 SY 300 $

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers fr EJCDC. MI rights reserved.

BID-3



16 603281 SWPPP Prep and Maintenance LS 1 $ ZSO $
17 617000 Video Taping LS 1 $ 3cL’ $ 3’oa
18 618000 Traffic Control Management LS I $ 00 $ / 90
Ite

NrSIDOT Estin Description Unit Unit Price Amount
N Spec No. . Qty.

19 621000 Mobilization Insurance and Bonds LS 1 $ $ OQQ.
20 621000 Demobilization, Closeout LS 1 $ di $ 5o
21 663855 AdjustValveBoxtoGrade EA 2 $ $
22 701000 Panel Signs SF 60 $ ( .. $ 9oo ‘

23 701100
Steel Post andBasePost for

LF 100 $ Ic’— $ IAluminum Panel Sign I ../ 1 .1

704763
Retroreflectorized Pavement

LF 52 $ q5 — $ 23 ‘

25 801000 Construction Staking by the
LS 1 $ / 9fv $ / 7o —

26 802000 Post Construction Plans LS I $ $ 3
27 Laboratory Testing ALLOW 1 $ 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00

28 Pre-Authorized Construction
ALLOW 1 5,000.00 $ 5,000.00Changes

TotaJ bid lot 1 — amount (Exclusive of New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax) $_____

Item I NMDOT
Description Unit Est. Qty. I Unit Price AmountNo. I Spec No. I I

Bid Lot 2 —MAP (L400321, L400474) Mountain View Drive (Grand Avenue to East Drive)
Remove and Dispose of Existing1 206000 CY 650 $Subade

2 207000 12-inch Subgrade prep SY 1250 S 7 $
Provide and Install Base Course3 303010 SY 1250 $including compaction— 12-inch 7 $

4 407000 Tack Coat Material I TON 4 $ 2 &O $
5 408100 Prime Coat Material j__TON 3 $ L/000 $
6 414130 CoIdMilling2-inch SY 5550 $3’ $
7 414130 Cold Milling 4-inch SY 2150 $ , ‘ $

Provide and install Geogrid
8 where shown on plans as part of SY 1250 S $ /5coo i2

Pavement Section 1
o°9 423282 HMA SP-IV 2-inch SY 5550 $ S /2 Z/o0 “

10 423282 HMASP-IV1.Sinch SY 2150 $ /c9 & $
11 423282 HMA SP-111 2.5-inch SY 2150 $ Z7’ $ ‘51 (p CC)

Provide and Install 6-inch x12 570000 LF 110 $24-inch Concrete Valley Gutter 5 $ 5o
Provide and Install 6-inch x24-

. .013 570000 inch Concrete Curb and Gutter LF 100 $ 5 $ 5o 00upon direction from Engineer

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved,

BID-4



Remove and Dispose of Existing
Q14 Curb and Gutter upon direction LF 100 $ $ /ô oofrom Engineer

Removal of Structures and
ao15 601000 Obstructions (remove and LS 1 $ $

dispose of sign and base posts)
Item NMDOT

Description Unit Est. Qty. Unit Price AmountNo. Spec No.
16 603281 SWPPP Prep and Maintenance LS 1 $ 51 DO $ I S’0 P
17 617000 VideoTaping LS I $ O0O $ 3oO0
18 618000 Traffic Control Management LS 1 $ 1 000 $ 1 1’t90O ‘

Mobilization Insurance and19 621000 1 $ i;c’o /5oD—Bonds LS
20 621000 Demobilization and Closeout LS 1 $ S 0 0 $ 6 t0
21 662400 Manhole Adjustment, Complete EA 7 $ 0 0 $ 7o0

22 663855 AdjustValveBoxtoGrade EA 11 $ q $ ‘gZ5o -

23 701000 Panel Signs SF 140 /S’ $ Z!oo
Steel Post and Base Post for24 701100 LF 3200 S SAluminum Panel Sign
Retroreflectori zed Markings25 704000 LF 3 $ 3oO— $4-inch White
Retroreflectorized Markings26 704000 LF 3200 $4-inch Yellow
Retroreflectori zed Pavement27 704763 LF 1 $ Z02 $Marking 24-inch wide
Construction Staking by the28 801000 LS 400 $ Zl0ooContractor

29 802000 Post Construction Plans LS 4 $ ‘-/ SoO ‘ $ Lj 6o -
30 Laboratory Testing ALLOW 1 $ 7,500.00 $ 7,500.00

Pre-Authorized Construction331 ALLOW 1 $ 15,000.00 S 15,000.00Changes

Total bid lot 2— amount (Exclusive of New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax)
$_____________TOTAL BID AMOUNT-LOTS 1 AND 2— (Exclusive of New Mexico Gross Receipts c?—, , / -Tax) itJi j

Contract will be awarded based on the Total Bid Amount which includes the sum of Bid Lots 1
and 2 exclusive of New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax. Owner reserves the right to award 1 of the 2
bid lots based on the total bid amount.

Unit Prices have been computed in accordance with Paragraph 11.03 of the General Conditions.

Bidder acknowledges that estimated quantities are not guaranteed, and are solely for the purpose of
comparison of Bids, and final payment for all unit price Bid items will be based on actual quantities,determined as provided in the Contract Documents.

EJCDC C-410 Suggested Bid Form for Construction Contracts
Copyright © 2007 National Society of Professional Engineers for EJCDC. All rights reserved.

BID-5



PENAL SUM FORM
Bond No.: CMGI30006000

BID BOND

Any singular reference to Bidder, Surety, Owner or other party shall be considered plural where applicable.

BIDDER (Name and Address): Rocky Road Gravel Products, LLC
P0 Box 1405
Las Vegas, NM 87701

SURETY (Name, and Address of Principal Place of Business): 1g0u1as1t Insurance Company
do CMGIA -20335 Ventura Blvd., Ste. 426
Woodland Hills, CA 91364

OWNER (Name and Address): City of Las Vegas
1700 N. Grand Avenue
Las Vegas, NM 87701

BID

BOND
Bond Number: CMGB0006000
Date: October 28, 3019
Penal sum Five Percent of their Greatest Amount Bid

(Words)

Rocky Road Gravel Products, LLC (Seal)
Bidder’s Name Corporate Seal

By:

____________________________________

Si
- ry

vi7dL
Print Name

Title

Argonaut Insurance Compny1 (Seal)
Surety’s Name a opora Sal

By:

_______________ ___________

Signat re tt of Attorney)

Gabriella Gra

______

Print Name

Attorney-in-Fact

Title

;.-

Title Title Elizabeth Santos, Underwriterme,-
EJCDC &f30, Bid Bond (Penal Sum Form). Published 2013.

Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.
Page 1 of 3

Roadway Improvements for Keen St. between Grant St. and WestBid Due Date:
Ntjo Avenue to include paving, base course, and subgradeDescription (Project Name— Include Location):prepaiatjon; West National Ave. between Keen St. and MontezumaAve. to include paving, base course, and subgrade preparation and curband gutter; Mountain View Dr., east of Vegas Dr. to include paving,base course, and subgrade preparation

Surety and Bidder, intending to be legally bound hereby, subject to the terms set forth below, do each causethis Bid Bond to be duly executed by an authorized officer, agent, or representative.
BIDDER SURETY

$ 5%oftheirG.A.B.
(Figures)

Attest:

Signature
Attest:

Signature



L,J( 1)
PENAL SUM FORM

Note: Addresses are to be used for giving any required notice.Provide execution by any additional parties, such as joint venturers, if necessary.1. Bidder and Surety, jointly and severaHy, bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, andassigns to pay to Owner upon default of Bidder the penal sum set forth on the face of this Bond. Payment of thepenal sum is the extent of Bidder’s and Surety’s liability. Recovery of such penal sum under the terms of this Bondshall be Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy upon default of Bidder.

2. Default of Bidder shall occur upon the failure of Bidder to deliver within the time required by the BiddingDocuments (or any extension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the BiddingDocuments and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents.

3. This obligation shall be null and void if:

3.1 Owner accepts Bidder’s Bid and Bidder delivers within the time required by the Bidding Documents (or anyextension thereof agreed to in writing by Owner) the executed Agreement required by the BiddingDocuments and any performance and payment bonds required by the Bidding Documents, or

3.2 All Bids are rejected by Owner, or

3.3 Owner fails to issue a Notice of Award to Bidder within the time specified in the Bidding Documents (or anyextension thereof agreed to in writing by Bidder and, if applicable, consented to by Surety when requiredby Paragraph 5 hereof).

4. Payment under this Bond will be due and payable upon default of Bidder and within 30 calendar days afterreceipt by Bidder and Surety of written notice of default from Owner, which notice will be given with reasonablepromptness, identifying this Bond and the Project and including a statement of the amount due.

5. Surety waives notice of any and all defenses based on or arising out of any time extension to issue Notice ofAward agreed to in writing by Owner and Bidder, provided that the total time for issuing Notice of Award includingextensions shall not in the aggregate exceed 120 days from the Bid due date without Surety’s written consent.
6. No suit or action shall be commenced under this Bond prior to 30 calendar days after the notice of defaultrequired in Paragraph 4 above is received by Bidder and Surety and in no case later than one year after the Bid duedate.

7. Any suit or action under this Bond shall be commenced only in a court of competent jurisdiction located in thestate in which the Project is located.

8. Notices required hereunder shall be in writing and sent to Bidder and Surety at their respective addresses shownon the face of this Bond. Such notices may be sent by personal delivery, commercial courier, or by United StatesRegistered or Certified Mail, return receipt requested, postage pre-paid, and shall be deemed to be effective uponreceipt by the party concerned.

9. Surety shall cause to be attached to this Bond a current and effective Power of Attorney evidencing the authorityof the officer, agent, or representative who executed this Bond on behalf of Surety to execute, seal, and deliver suchBond and bind the Surety thereby.

10. This Bond is intended to conform to all applicable statutory requirements. Any applicable requirement of anyapplicable statute that has been omitted from this Bond shall be deemed to be included herein as if set forth atlength. If any provision of this Bond conflicts with any applicable statute, then the provision of said statute shallgovern and the remainder of this Bond that is not in conflict therewith shall continue in full force and effect.
JCOC C-430, Bid Bond (Penal Sum forml. Published 2013,Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.

Page2of3



Premium: O.OO
liond So.: CMCB0006000 Argonaut Insurance Company

Deliveries Only: 225 W. Washington, 24th Floor
Chicago, IL 60606

United States Postal Service: P.O. Box 469011, San Antonio, TX 78246
POWER OF ATTORNEYKNOW AlL MEN BY TI llSE PRESENTS: Thai lie Argonaut Insurance (‘ompany, a Corporation dub organized and existing under the laws iifth Slateof Illinois and having Its prmcipal olliec in lie County of (‘noR, Illinois does hereby nominate, constitute and appoint:

ahriel Ia Grady, Shi lo I .ee I .,isinii. Stephanie I lope Shear. Elizabeth Ssntos. :ianva Taylor, Stacev ( arcia

their true and lawful ugelitlal and attoritey(s).iii-fitet, each in their separate capacity if more than one is nanied shove, to make, execute, xciii and deliver brand on its behalf as surety, and as its act and deed any and all bonds. coot racts. agrennienis of indemnity and other undertakings ii surety siiip provided.however, that the penal sum of tn one such instrunient executed hereunder shall not exceed lie stitit ol’:

St 5 ,OitO,Olt(t.0ltThis Poxer ot Attorney is granted snd is signed and sealed under and by the authority of the l’olhowing Resolution adopted by lie Board of Directors ofA rgoiiittit I itsutatice Coinpaiiv

“RESOlVED. Ihat the President, Senior Vice l’reuideitt, Vice President. Assistant Viee ‘resident, Secretary Treasurer and each of them hereby isauthorized to execute powers of attorney, ansi such authority can he executed by use of facsimile signature, which may be attested or aektiowledged by au>officer or attorney. olihe C’otutpatiy, qualifling the attorney or attorneys named iii the given power of attorney. to execute in behalf oE and acknowledge asthe act and deed oilhe Argonaut Insurance Conspans. all bond tnidertskiutgs and eotttraets of suretyship, and to aflix the corporate seal thereto.”
IN WIlNESS \VIIEREOF, Argotiautt Insurance (‘ottipany has caused its official seal to be hereunto aflixcd md these presents to he signed by its dittyauthorized officer on the 5th day ol’Mav. 2017.

S[Ahh: OFT EXAS
(‘OENi’Y 01: [l:\RRIS SS:

by.

\tgonatit I nstiraiuce (oittp:tity

/ /‘
S

Joshua f’ Bets Senior Vice President

On this 5th day of Stay, 2017 AD before nie. a Notars Public ortlie State of Texas, in attd or the (ouuttty of’ I lirris, duly cotutniusioned and qtualihied.caine It IL ABOVE OFFICER OF lIfE COMPAN’i. to tile personally known to be lie nidividuual and officer dcscrtbud ii,, and whit executed thepreceding instrument, and lie acknowledged the execution ofsame, and betng by tile duly sworn, deposed attd uuid that he is the officer of the said‘not panv :t foresaid, and that t lie neal affixed to the preceding tutstruniettt is the Corporate Seal o [said ( ‘ouimpativ. and lie said Corpo rate Semi I and hissignature as officer were duty affixed and subscribed to the said titstriiment by the authority and direction of the said corporation, uiitd that Resolutionadopted by the Board of Directors of said Couupttnv, reGrred to in the preceding inutrurnent is now in force.

IX .1 ESlI MON Y WHEREOF. I luau e hcteuitiuu sei sty luuund, and a lOved my ()Ihicual Seal at the (ounty of l1:irris. lie day and y ear first abos e uvritteti.

I \uuir, l’ul’tic t

I, the unidersiuzited Officer oh the Argonaut Insurance Cotnpativ, I lhuttois (‘orporaiioti. do hereby ceti tv thuut tlt original POWER OF A’IlORNIiY ,uf wh clithe foregoing is a full, true and correct copy’ is still in lull force and effect and has not been revoked.

IN WITNESS WI hEREOF. I have hereunto set ttiy hand, atid affixed the Seat of said (‘oitip:i;uy, on lie 28th day of October .2019

tames Bltizarul Vice President-Surety

I’IIIS DOC’U’IEST IS NOT VAI.Il) UNLESS TilE WORI)S ARGO POWER OF A’l9’ORNE’a’ ARE IN HELL. IF YOU NAVE QUEsTIOESON .&lTIIF.NTICITV OF iHIS BOCt MENT (ALL (2111) 321 .8411(1.



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CIVIL CODE § 1189

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed thedocument to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that

State of California
County of LOS ANGELES

9On beforeme,SHIRLEYGIGGLES, NOTARYPUBLIC
Date Here Insert Name and Title of the Officerpersonally appeared GABRIELLA GRADY

Name(s) of Signer(s)

who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) s/aresubscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same inhis/her/their authorized capacity(ies) and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s),or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.

--
-‘

Place Notary Seal Above

certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the lawsof the State of California that the foregoing paragraphis true and correct.

WITNESS hand ar official seal.

Sign$e. ot otary Public

OPTIONALThough this section is optional, completing this in formation can deter alteration of the document orfraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document.
Description of Attached Document
Title or Type of Document:

________

Document Date:Number of Pages: Signer(s) Other Than Named Above:
Capacity(ies) Claimed by Signer(s)
Signer’s Name:

_________________________

H Corporate Officer — Title(s):
[1 Partner — Limited H General
H Individual
H Trustee
El Other:
Signer Is Representing:

Signer’s Name:

________________

Corporate Officer — Title(s):
H Partner — Limited H General
H Individual H Attorney in Fact
El Trustee I Guardian or Conservator
Li Other:

_______________________________

Signer Is Representing:

________

Attorney in Fact
El Guardian or Conservator

©2014 National Notary Association www.NationalNotary.org 1-800-US NOTARY (1-800-876-6827) Item #5907



Regular

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE: November 12, 2019 DEPT: Community Development Department
MEETING DATE: November 20, 2019

ITEMITOPIC: Resolution 19-55 for Administrative and Financial Support adopting and
approving $48,000 of required matching funds for the FY 2019 New Mexico Main Street
(NMMS) Capital Outlay Public Infrastructure funding for the “Great Blocks on
MainStreet: Railroad Avenue Phase II Construction Project ‘matching requirement”.

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: Approval/Disapproval to adopt Resolution 19-55
for Administrative and Financial Support including a $48,000 cash match for the FY
2019 New Mexico MainStreet (NMMS) Capital Outlay Public Infrastructure funding for
the “Great Blocks on MainStreet: Railroad Avenue Phase II Grant Application.

BACKGROUNDIRATIONALE: The City of Las Vegas in collaboration with Main Street
de Las Vegas submitted a grant application request, written and prepared by Michael
Peranteau in the amount of $400,000 for Capital Outlay funding for the Great Blocks
project in the railroad district. NMMS requires a $48,000 match.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve adoption of Resolution 19-55 for
administrative and financial support for the grant application for Capital Outlay
funding.

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NO
LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS PRIOR TO THE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING.

/

SUMlTTER’S SIGNATURE’ij’

TONITA GU ULE-GIR N TANA VEGA, INTERIM
MAYOR FINANCE DIRECTOR

(PROCUREMENT)

-

NN MARIE GALLEOS,
INTERIM CITY MANAGER

ESTHER GARDUNO MONTOYA,
CITY ATTORNEY
(ALL RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES
& CONTRACTS MUST BE REVIEWED)



City of Las Vegas, NM

Resolution N. 19-55

A Resolution of Administrative and Financial Support adopting and approving a $48,000
required matching funds for the FY 2019 New Mexico MainStreet (NMMS) Capital Outlay

Public Infrastructure funding for the “Great Blocks on MainStreet: Railroad Avenue Phase II

Construction Project “matching requirement” as part of the grant application.

ADOPTING THE FY 2019 “GREAT BLOCKS ON MAINSTREET: RAILROAD AVENUE

PHASE II CONSTRUCTION PROJECT” GRANT APPLICATION AND MATCH

REQUIRMENT.

WHEREAS, the funding for this project is made available through NM MainStreet Public
Infrastructure by the sale of Severance Tax Bonds approved by the Economic Development

Department; and

WHEREAS, capital improvements are an effective tool for communities to achieve necessary

project development and the Railroad District is listed in the recently adopted Metropolitan

Redevelopment Act Plan otherwise known as the Downtown Action Plan as an important

catalytic development area; and

WHEREAS, the City of Las Vegas and Main Street de Las Vegas (MSLV) are committed to

collaborating on the construction ready Great Blocks Project in the Railroad District; and

WHEREAS, the City’s partner, MSLV is working diligently to assist and secure the “cash

match” portion of the match requirement by New Mexico MainStreet on behalf of the City in the

amount of $48,000; and

WHEREAS, the City of Las Vegas is committed to providing a match of funds in the amount of

$48,000 and in-kind services if MSDLV is unable to secure matching funds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS GOVERNING

BODY that:

1. The City of Las Vegas has accepted the match requirement of $48,000 for the “Great Blocks”

project and is committed to providing match funds up to, and in the amount of $48,000 cash or

less and in-kind if MSLV cannot secure the total matching funds; and

2. The New Mexico MainStreet Public Infrastructure Grant Monitor, upon receipt of Resolution

19-55, will consider the grant application as a final submission of the grant application.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS

________

day of November, 2019



ATTEST:

Casandra Fresquez, City Clerk

Esther Garduno-Montoya, City Attorney
(for legal sufficiency only)

CITY OF LAS VEGAS

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón
(Seal)



Revitalizing with Capital Outlay

MainStreet de Las Vegas received a $150,000 Capital Outlay grant from New Mexico
Mainstreet in 2018 and a planning grant for $70,000 in 2016, for which we are very
grateful. To get started on the Great Blocks Project in our city, we are putting that
money to good use to build the “front door” to the project on Lincoln Street and Grand
Avenue. This construction project would complete two of the corners of our project and
set the stage for an Event Street along Lincoln, which is our eventual goal. It would do
this by positioning us with two pedestrian friendly intersections, one at each end of
Lincoln, and the newest intersection would act as the gateway to the Train Station and
the newly renovated Castaneda Hotel. The Lincoln and Railroad upgrades would also
include drainage improvements at the intersection, which are substandard and as you
may remember, our offices in the depot flooded because of this a few years ago.
Constructing the Railroad/Lincoln intersection would also allow us to easily fill in the
space between by completing the Event Street as the next phase, which would then allow
us to hold events like markets and street fairs and transform the district in
immeasurable ways. Lastly, if we built both the Phase 1 and Phase 2 intersections at the
same time, we would have economies of scale and get better, more cost-effective bids.

Phase 2 Construction Application

MainStreet de Las Vegas (MSLV), in partnership with the City of Las Vegas, requests
$400,000 in New Mexico Main Street (NMMS) Public Infrastructure Phase 2 Funding
for leveraging economic redevelopment in the historic Railroad District of Las Vegas,
New Mexico. These funds will be matched by $iio,ooo: $66,ooo cash match from the
City of Las Vegas and $44,000 in in-kind matches. A $5,000 Grant from Southwest

Great Blocks Phase 2 Improvements

The recently renovated Castaneda Hotel The soon to be finished Rawlins Building



Capital Bank was received so far for Phase 1. Matching grant requests are being
submitted to PNM, San Miguel County, individuals, among other sources.

Phase 2 of the Las Vegas Great Blocks project will elegantly bookend East Lincoln
Street from Grand Avenue to Railroad Avenue and set the stage for the east Lincoln
Event Street, which will be a raised street section with an at grade curb and other
amenities that can be used for farmers and crafts markets and other special events.

Phase 2 will comprise re-construction of the intersection of East Lincoln with Railroad
Avenue. It will include well-crafted pedestrian and vehicular improvements at the
intersection with safer pedestrian crossings, sidewalks, improved drainage for the street
(which will also provide better conditions for pedestrians when it rains), and the
addition of shade trees and landscaping. The street section of the intersection will also
be reconstructed with new striping and crosswalks. Lastly, the project will include
gateway signage for the district, and some site furnishings including lighting and
benches. The resulting safe and vibrant beginning point for the eventual streetscape will
provide a more prominent and safer link to the Railroad District for residents and
visitors and it will offer increased economic development opportunities and retain the
historic railroad character of the area. Phase 2 improvements will also add to the
current resurgence in the City’s historic Railroad District begun by the rehabilitation of
the railroad depot building, and more recently, the remodel of the Castaneda Hotel.

Phase 1 and Phase 2 construction projects address MSLV’s 2020 ETS: “1. Continue to
Revitalize the Historic Railroad District.” Improving the Railroad District will bring
private investment to vacant buildings providing jobs, apartments, event venues and
strengthen the vitality of the district for residents and visitors.

Conceptual drawing of completed Lincoln Street/Phase 1

Phase 1 Improvements

The Phase I improvements, funded in large part by a $150,000 NMMS Capital Outlay
Grant at the end of 2018, covers Lincoln Avenue from Grand Avenue to the Train Depot.
Historic properties include the Buena Vida Building, Wells Fargo Building, Larson
Building, Roughrider Antiques Building, and several other contributing and non
historic older buildings. A Map of the historic Railroad District is attached. Needed



Phase I improvements include (a) bump-outs at the Grand Avenue entrance to the
Railroad District on Lincoln, and (b) an over-arching art piece that will span Lincoln
Avenue and define the District, the design of which will be selected through a process
run by the Las Vegas Arts Council. Discussion continues whether to install (c) electricity
for one block from Grand to Railroad so that (d) period light poles can be installed. Or
whether to install (e) movable gates and (f) landscaping.

By making visible improvements to the District at Grand Avenue, the project will divert
some of the 12,000 cars that travel Grand Avenue daily and thereby increase market for
existing and new businesses in the District. Since the City Visitor Information Center is
in the Train Depot where Lincoln dead ends, any visitor entering the District can get
specific information to encourage a longer stay and more activities and opportunities in
Las Vegas. Recently a permanent, full-time position was hired for the Visitor
Information Center.

Castaneda Hotel/ Rawlins Bldg./Wells Fargo Bldg./Buena Vida

The anchor for the Railroad District’s revitalization continues to be the Castaneda Hotel
& Bar Castaneda, that just completed a $5 million renovation that brings restaurant and
overnight regional and national guests off 1-25 and as well as Las Vegas proper
residents. Bar Castaneda sales to date have far exceeded expectations as well as any
projections and the 13 current rooms are booked out over six months. There has also
been renovations of other historic structures for commercial use in the Railroad District
including: Buena Vida Physical Therapy and Wellness, a business that renovated and
restored the historic building at 601 East Lincoln and currently provides 15-20 jobs; the
historic Wells Fargo Building at 615 East Lincoln that now has 4 apartments upstairs
and a medical marijuana shop downstairs that employs 10 people; and Rough Rider
Antiques, an antique cooperative at the corner of East Lincoln and Railroad Avenue. In
addition, Tom and Tina Clayton have almost completed their restoration of the Rawlins
Building (the original Harvey Girls dormitory) at 527 Railroad Avenue, apartment walls
are up and the downstairs retail spaces are at the finishing point. Also, Margaret
Gorman has renovated 523 Railroad Avenue into 3 apartments and a retail space. This
is major start towards revitalization in the district and Capital Outlay investment in
visible public improvements will encourage other building owners and businesses to
join this ongoing renaissance.



B3 BBQ & Brewery is moving into the Old Fred’s Lumber Building at 400

Grand Avenue

The newest entrepreneurs to join in the Railroad District revitalization are Brian and
Darcy McGill, the owners of B3 BBQ, originally located on Bridge Street. After a major
renovation, B3 will occupy Fred’s Lumber Store at 400 Grand Avenue at the entrance to
the Railroad District. B3 is incorporating a brewery, which will be the only brewery in
Las Vegas, and the plan is to open in January 2020. They will employ about 10-12

people.

Great Blocks: The Historic Railroad District

MSLV has supported Railroad District development for several years. This 87-building
area is the most blighted historic downtown district in Las Vegas, but it has great
potential for revitalization, private property improvements, business creation, creative
start-ups, and employment opportunities. In recent years PNM grants were used to
paint building facades and fill in vacant lots with plantings. CLG grants were used to
complete initial planning for the Rawlins Building and Castaneda Hotel, which resulted
in $6oo,ooo of historic tax credits for the Castaneda Hotel project, a crucial component
of that project’s financing. Also, and most importantly, MSLV completed Great Blocks
planning, the basis for this application, with a $70,000 2016 NMMS planning grant.

MainStreet uses many hooks to encourage Railroad District building owners to upgrade
and to encourage new and existing businesses to locate in the Railroad District.
Castaneda under the Stars II, MainStreet’s annual fundraiser has evolved into a
marketing tool for current economic development efforts. The 2019 fundraiser which
had 250 guests, just concluded on 9/21, was sold out through social media. MainStreet
has experienced success with social media promotion, primarily with Facebook, and
currently has 2260 followers.

Fred’s Lumber Building, 400 Grand, Future home of B3 BBQ & Brewery



But the best hook is still one-to-one. With consultant assistance from New Mexico
MainStreet and their USDA grant, MSLV completed an inventory of the Historic
Railroad District (included) in 2016. In 2019 MSLV brought in Rhea Serna, a
Community Revitalization Specialist, to present a workshop on the Las Vegas’ Empty
Building Ordinance. MSLV also brought in Kenneth Franco from Surroundings to
involve the Las Vegas residents in the wayfinding process. Ultimately the residents of
Las Vegas voted on the final design. In 2020 MSLV will bring back Rhea Serna to meet
with individual property owners in the Railroad District.

The City of Las Vegas will partner in this application and resultant program. See
attached Letter of Support from Mayor Tonita Gurule-Giron. The City of Las Vegas and
MainStreet often partner on improvement projects. Currently MSLV is completing a
$70,000 wayfinding project with the City of Las Vegas working with Surroundings out
of Santa Fe. MSLV has also recently completed a pocket park, Dalton Park, at the
entrance to MSLV’s Great Blocks Project to house the Las Vegas Memory Wall, an
elaborate placemaking project funded with a New Mexico Gas Company Grant through
NMMS.

Dalton “Pocket” Park at Grand & Lincoln, site of Las Vegas Memory Wall



Great Blocks & the City ofLas Vegas

The Great Blocks project is in the City’s ICIP 2019 top 10. The Great Blocks project is
also ranked number 3 in the MRA plan adopted by the City in August 2018. Facilitating
the economic vitality of the Railroad District is the first and second of MainStreet’s
deliverables in its FY19-20 contract with the City. As part of this effort MSLV hosted a
community workshop with Rhea Serna from NMMS on the City’s Vacant Building
Ordinance in May and will host a follow-up workshop focusing on the Railroad District
this winter.

Submitted with this request is the budget for the full Railroad District Great Blocks
Project. The Great Blocks strategy for the Railroad District revitalization is to meet or
exceed the requirements of the Historic Preservation Division and “Dark Skies” lighting
requirements and utilize appropriate water-wise landscaping. 10/30/2019

The mission ofMainStreet de Las Vegas is to unify the historic commercial
corridor and engender pride in the community while promoting economic
development and preserving historical, cultural, architectural and natural

resources through partnerships and community collaboration.

Wells Fargo Buena Vida, c. 188o, 625 Lincoln



101’s
Daniel Gutierrez Director,
New Mexico MainStreet
New Mexico Economic Development Department

City of Las Vegas
1700 N. Grand Avenue I Las Vegas, NM 877011 T 505.454.1401 I lasvegasnm.gov

Madam Mayor Tonita Guru!ê-Giràn

Dear Mr. Gutierrez:

On behalf of the City of Las Vegas, we are happy to be part of this New
Mexico Main Street Capital Outlay request being made by Main Street
de Las Vegas (MSLV) and the City of Las Vegas. This portion of the full
Railroad District Great Blocks construction-ready plans was produced
by an earlier grant from NMMS with Main Street de Las Vegas/City of
Las Vegas in a cooperative effort. Phase I and Phase 2 cover the
entryway project and would be on Lincoln from Grand to Railroad as
well as the corner of Lincoln and Railroad Avenue.

If a grant is funded, we understand that the City’s responsibility would
include accepting the funds, fiscal management, coordination of RFP’s
and contracting, and compliance with all applicable legal requirements.
If this project is funded, we understand that MSLV will act as auxiliary
staff for the City, especially in public awareness. This request for
matching funds will be on the agenda for review and approval/denial by
the Governing Body on November 20, 2019 and a proposed Resolution.

The public improvements constructed for the Las Vegas Great Blocks on
MainStreet project will catalyze private owners of vacant buildings to
rehabilitate their buildings to house new businesses, stimulate owners
of buildings with existing businesses to make improvements to their
locations, propel existing businesses to expand, and boost sales for
other businesses in the district.

We also understand that this Capital Outlay grant money is only
available to MainStreet communities, and there can only be one
application per community. We are very excited about the possibility of
beginning the Great Blocks project and we greatly appreciate New
Mexico MainStreet’s consideration of our joint application

Sincerely,

Ann Marie Gaileges, Interim City Manager
City of Las Vegas, NM

David Ulibarri Vince Howell Barbara Perea-Casey David G. Romero
Councitor Ward 1 Councilor Ward 2 Councilor Ward 3 Councilor Ward 4



PROPERlY SURVEY #90056—24

PHEPURED FOR RCOERI H. 001405

BY H 55109 & ASSOCIRTES. INC.

East Lincoln Avenue

,
I I• •I I(



P
H

A
S

E
1

:L
P

R
O

JE
C

T
E

X
T

E
N

T

:
I

_
_

_
_

_
_

_
_

P
H

A
S

E
II

P
R

O
JE

C
T

E
X

T
E

N
T

li
—

—
—

L
A

S
V

E
G

A
S

N
E

W
M

E
X

I
C

O

G
re

at
B

lo
ck

s
on

M
ai

ns
tr

ee
t

C
on

ce
pt

ua
l

Pl
an

-
C

A
ST

A
N

E
IT

C
ity

of
La

s
V

eg
as

,
N

M
si_

i



I

r I’ll’
IQ

F

I



:)



Great Block on Mainstreet
Railroad District
Las Vegas, NM

Phase I Update

The City of Las Vegas was awarded a grant written by Main Street de Las Vegas in the amount of
$150,000 dollars in capital outlay funds.

The grant match committed is in the amount of $30,000 @ 20% including in-kind services by the
project coordinator, City staff and Main Street de LV.

Sixty percent (60%) of the $30,000 match dollars must be in the form of cash which is $18,000
and $5,000 has been secured by Main Street de LV from SW Capital Bank to assist in the
project. Therefore, $13,000 is needed.

The City and Main Street de Las Vegas are seeking other funding sources from PNM and other
sources to assist with the cash match.

The project is listed on the ICIP 202 1-2025 Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan and the
Metropolitan Redevelopment Act Plan (MRP).

Construction documents have been prepared and the project terminates on February 28, 2021.

The time line for implementation is:

• December 1 6 issue request for proposal for construction services

• January 24 Bid Opening
• February Issue Construction Contract
• March-April begin construction depending on weather.

1



Phase II

A $400,000 Capital Outlay Grant was sent to New Mexico Mainstreet for Phase II of the project and
award of those grants will be made by November 15, 2019 with recommendations to the Cabinet
Secretary.

The match requirement of this grant request is that the City must commit to a 20% match of $80,000 of
which only 60% is cash in the amount of $48,000 and the rest is in-kind match.

Therefore the cash match is $48,000. Main Street de Las Vegas and Robert are seeking additional funding
sources and grants to leverage these funds from private donors and grants such as the PNM Foundation.

Construction Documents have been completed.

The timeline for implementation is:

• November Grant Award notification
• December Januaiy Contracts awarded
• March- April Funds encumbered/state P.O. issued
• May RFP for Construction
• August —September Project complete.

The project is listed on the ICIP 2021-2025 Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan and the
Metropolitan Redevelopment Act Plan (MRP).

2



Revitalizing with Capital Outlay

MainStreet de Las Vegas received a $150,000 Capital Outlay grant from New Mexico
Mainstreet in 2018 and a planning grant for $70,000 in 2016, for which we are very
grateful. To get started on the Great Blocks Project in our city, we are putting that
money to good use to build the “front door” to the project on Lincoln Street and Grand
Avenue. This construction project would complete two of the corners of our project and
set the stage for an Event Street along Lincoln, which is our eventual goal. It would do
this by positioning us with two pedestrian friendly intersections, one at each end of
Lincoln, and the newest intersection would act as the gateway to the Train Station and
the newly renovated Castaneda Hotel. The Lincoln and Railroad upgrades would also
include drainage improvements at the intersection, which are substandard and as you
may remember, our offices in the depot flooded because of this a few years ago.
Constructing the Railroad/Lincoln intersection would also allow us to easily fill in the
space between by completing the Event Street as the next phase, which would then allow
us to hold events like markets and street fairs and transform the district in
immeasurable ways. Lastly, if we built both the Phase 1 and Phase 2 intersections at the
same time, we would have economies of scale and get better, more cost-effective bids.

Phase 2 Construction Application

MainStreet de Las Vegas (MSLV), in partnership with the City of Las Vegas, requests
$400,000 in New Mexico Main Street (NMMS) Public Infrastructure Phase 2 Funding
for leveraging economic redevelopment in the historic Railroad District of Las Vegas,
New Mexico. These funds will be matched by $110,000: $66,ooo cash match from the
City of Las Vegas and $44,000 in in-kind matches. A $5,000 Grant from Southwest

Great Blocks Phase 2 Improvements

The recently renovated Castaneda Hotel The soon to be finished Rawlins Building



Capital Bank was received so far for Phase 1. Matching grant requests are being
submitted to PNM, San Miguel County, individuals, among other sources.

Phase 2 of the Las Vegas Great Blocks project will elegantly bookend East Lincoln
Street from Grand Avenue to Railroad Avenue and set the stage for the east Lincoln
Event Street, which will be a raised street section with an at grade curb and other
amenities that can be used for farmers and crafts markets and other special events.

Phase 2 will comprise re-construction of the intersection of East Lincoln with Railroad
Avenue. It will include well-crafted pedestrian and vehicular improvements at the
intersection with safer pedestrian crossings, sidewalks, improved drainage for the street
(which will also provide better conditions for pedestrians when it rains), and the
addition of shade trees and landscaping. The street section of the intersection will also
be reconstructed with new striping and crosswalks. Lastly, the project will include
gateway signage for the district, and some site furnishings including lighting and
benches. The resulting safe and vibrant beginning point for the eventual streetscape will
provide a more prominent and safer link to the Railroad District for residents and
visitors and it will offer increased economic development opportunities and retain the
historic railroad character of the area. Phase 2 improvements will also add to the
current resurgence in the City’s historic Railroad District begun by the rehabilitation of
the railroad depot building, and more recently, the remodel of the Castaneda Hotel.

Phase 1 and Phase 2 construction projects address MSLV’s 2020 ETS: “1. Continue to
Revitalize the Historic Railroad District.” Improving the Railroad District will bring
private investment to vacant buildings providing jobs, apartments, event venues and
strengthen the vitality of the district for residents and visitors.

The Phase I improvements, funded in large part by a $150,000 NMMS Capital Outlay
Grant at the end of 2018, covers Lincoln Avenue from Grand Avenue to the Train Depot.
Historic properties include the Buena Vida Building, Wells Fargo Building, Larson
Building, Roughrider Antiques Building, and several other contributing and non-
historic older buildings. A Map of the historic Railroad District is attached. Needed

Conceptual drawing of completed Lincoln Street/Phase 1

Phase 1 Improvements



Phase I improvements include (a) bump-outs at the Grand Avenue entrance to the
Railroad District on Lincoln, and (b) an over-arching art piece that will span Lincoln
Avenue and define the District, the design of which will be selected through a process
run by the Las Vegas Arts Council. Discussion continues whether to install (c) electricity
for one block from Grand to Railroad so that (d) period light poles can be installed. Or
whether to install (e) movable gates and (f) landscaping.

By making visible improvements to the District at Grand Avenue, the project will divert
some of the 12,000 cars that travel Grand Avenue daily and thereby increase market for
existing and new businesses in the District. Since the City Visitor Information Center is
in the Train Depot where Lincoln dead ends, any visitor entering the District can get
specific information to encourage a longer stay and more activities and opportunities in
Las Vegas. Recently a permanent, full-time position was hired for the Visitor
Information Center.

Castaneda Hotel/ Rawlins Bldg./Wells Fargo Bldg./Buena Vida

The anchor for the Railroad District’s revitalization continues to be the Castaneda Hotel
& Bar Castaneda, that just completed a $5 million renovation that brings restaurant and
overnight regional and national guests off 1-25 and as well as Las Vegas proper
residents. Bar Castaneda sales to date have far exceeded expectations as well as any
projections and the 13 current rooms are booked out over six months. There has also
been renovations of other historic structures for commercial use in the Railroad District
including: Buena Vida Physical Therapy and Weilness, a business that renovated and
restored the historic building at 6oi East Lincoln and currently provides 15-20 jobs; the
historic Wells Fargo Building at 615 East Lincoln that now has 4 apartments upstairs
and a medical marijuana shop downstairs that employs 10 people; and Rough Rider
Antiques, an antique cooperative at the corner of East Lincoln and Railroad Avenue. In
addition, Tom and Tina Clayton have almost completed their restoration of the Rawlins
Building (the original Harvey Girls dormitory) at 527 Railroad Avenue, apartment walls
are up and the downstairs retail spaces are at the finishing point. Also, Margaret
Gorman has renovated 523 Railroad Avenue into 3 apartments and a retail space. This
is major start towards revitalization in the district and Capital Outlay investment in
visible public improvements will encourage other building owners and businesses to
join this ongoing renaissance.



B3 BBQ & Brewery is moving into the Old Fred’s Lumber Building at 400

Grand Avenue

The newest entrepreneurs to join in the Railroad District revitalization are Brian and
Darcy McGill, the owners of B3 BBQ, originally located on Bridge Street. After a major
renovation, B3 will occupy Fred’s Lumber Store at 400 Grand Avenue at the entrance to
the Railroad District. B3 is incorporating a brewery, which will be the only brewery in
Las Vegas, and the plan is to open in January 2020. They will employ about 10-12

people.

Great Blocks: The Historic Railroad District

MSLV has supported Railroad District development for several years. This 87-building
area is the most blighted historic downtown district in Las Vegas, but it has great
potential for revitalization, private property improvements, business creation, creative
start-ups, and employment opportunities. In recent years PNM grants were used to
paint building facades and fill in vacant lots with plantings. CLG grants were used to
complete initial planning for the Rawlins Building and Castaneda Hotel, which resulted
in $6oo,ooo of historic tax credits for the Castaneda Hotel project, a crucial component
of that project’s financing. Also, and most importantly, MSLV completed Great Blocks
planning, the basis for this application, with a $70,000 2016 NMMS planning grant.

MainStreet uses many hooks to encourage Railroad District building owners to upgrade
and to encourage new and existing businesses to locate in the Railroad District.
Castaneda under the Stars II, MainStreet’s annual fundraiser has evolved into a
marketing tool for current economic development efforts. The 2019 fundraiser which
had 250 guests, just concluded on 9/21, was sold out through social media. MainStreet
has experienced success with social media promotion, primarily with Facebook, and
currently has 2260 followers.

Fred’s Lumber Building, 400 Grand, Future home of B3 BBQ & Brewery



But the best hook is still one-to-one. With consultant assistance from New Mexico
MainStreet and their USDA grant, MSLV completed an inventory of the Historic
Railroad District (included) in 2016. In 2019 MSLV brought in Rhea Serna, a
Community Revitalization Specialist, to present a workshop on the Las Vegas’ Empty
Building Ordinance. MSLV also brought in Kenneth Franco from Surroundings to
involve the Las Vegas residents in the wayfinding process. Ultimately the residents of
Las Vegas voted on the final design. In 2020 MSLV will bring back Rhea Serna to meet
with individual property owners in the Railroad District.

The City of Las Vegas will partner in this application and resultant program. See
attached Letter of Support from Mayor Tonita Gurule-Giron. The City of Las Vegas and
MainStreet often partner on improvement projects. Currently MSLV is completing a
$70,000 wayfinding project with the City of Las Vegas working with Surroundings out
of Santa Fe. MSLV has also recently completed a pocket park, Dalton Park, at the
entrance to MSLV’s Great Blocks Project to house the Las Vegas Memory Wall, an
elaborate placemaking project funded with a New Mexico Gas Company Grant through
NMMS.

Dalton “Pocket” Park at Grand & Lincoln, site of Las Vegas Memory Wall



Great Blocks & the City ofLas Vegas

The Great Blocks project is in the City’s ICIP 2019 top 10. The Great Blocks project is
also ranked number 3 in the MRA plan adopted by the City in August 2018. Facilitating
the economic vitality of the Railroad District is the first and second of MainStreet’s
deliverables in its FY19-20 contract with the City. As part of this effort MSLV hosted a
community workshop with Rhea Serna from NMMS on the City’s Vacant Building
Ordinance in May and will host a follow-up workshop focusing on the Railroad District
this winter.

Submitted with this request is the budget for the full Railroad District Great Blocks
Project. The Great Blocks strategy for the Railroad District revitalization is to meet or
exceed the requirements of the Historic Preservation Division and “Dark Skies” lighting
requirements and utilize appropriate water-wise landscaping. 10/30/2019

The mission ofMainStreet de Las Vegas is to unify the historic commercial
corridor and engender pride in the community while promoting economic
development and preserving historical, cultural, architectural and natural

resources through partnerships and community collaboration.

Wells Fargo Building, c. iE, 615 Lincoln Buena Vida, c. i88o, 625 Lincoln



Las Vegas GreatBiocks on MainStreet

Cost Estimate for Phase I Construction for:
The Intersections of E Lincoln St and Grand Aye; and E Lincoln and Railroad Ave.

Parametric Opinion of Probable Construction Cost
This opinion of probable cost includes Phase I of the Los Vegas Great Blocks Project as graphically described in the attached
construction of these two separate intersections were to be split into two projects, the costs would likely rise for each due to se
remobilization for each intersection and the effects of separating the demolition and construction.

Prepared by Sites Southwest

30-Oct-i 9

ITEM# ITEM UNIT QTY UNIT COST Total

GENERAL

1 Mobilization / Demobilization [S 1 $30,000.00 $30,000.00
2 Construction Staking LS 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00
3 Project Construction Sign, CIP EA 2 $250.00 $500.00
4 Construction O.A/QC Testing Allowance ALLOW 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
5 Traffic Control/Barricading [5 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00
6 SWPPP/NPDES Permitting and Management, complete [5 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

DEMOLITION

7 Clearing & Grubbing SY 75 $1.00 $75.00
8 Tree removal, < 6” DBH EA 4 $250.00 $1,000.00
9 Excavate & stockpile unclassified material (24’ depth) [5 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

10 Excavate & Dispose of unsuitable material, compl. [5 1 $4,000.00 $4,000.00
11 Removal/Modification of Existing Drainage Structures [5 1 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

Existing Pavement, Asphalt Concrete, remove & dispose,
12 SY 2,929 $3.00 $8,787.00

com plete

Existing Curb & Gutter or Valley Gutter PC Concrete remove &
13 . [F 1,372 $7.50 $10,290.00

dispose, compl.

14 Sawcut AC Pavement, 6’ thickness or less, complete LF 500 $2.50 $1,250.00

15 Existing Lightpole / utility box, remove & dispose, compl. EA 2 $520.00 $1,040.00

SITE CONSTRUCTION

16 12” CMP Storm Drain, md. trench & comp. backfill, CIP LF 104 $50.00 $5,200.00
17 12” Slotted Drain Pipe, CIP LF 16 $300.00 $4,800.00
18 Median Drop Inlet, CIP EA 1 — $7,000.00 $7,000.00
19 Concrete Junction Box with Precast Lid, CIP EA $8,000.00 $16,000.00

20 Catch Basin, Type “C”, Single Grate, CIP EA 5 — $10,000.00 $50,000.00
21 Catch Basin, Type “D”, Single Grate, CIP EA 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

Adjust water meter box to Grade (with pigmented concrete
22 EA 2 $600.00 $1,200.00

collar)

23 Adjust jbox to Grade (with pigmented concrete collar) SY 3 $450.00 $1,350.00

24 6” Reinforced Concrete Valley Gutter SY 101 $110.00 $11,110.00

25 Roadway Grading/Shaping, less than 2’ depth, compl. SY 987 $2.50 $2,467.50

26 Subgrade Prep. 12’ at 95% compaction SY 1,831 $1.75 $3,204.25

27 Aggregate Base Course, crushed, 6” at 95% comp., CIP SY 815 $8.50 $6,927.50

28 Prime Coat, emulsified asphalt, CIP SY 815 $0.75 $611.25

29 Tack Coat, cationic emulsified asphalt, CIP SY 815 $1.00 $815.00

30 Arterial Asphalt Concrete, 2 inch thick, machine laydown, CIP SY 815 $12.00 $9,780.00

P:\2020012_Las Vegas Great Blocks Phase 1\4. Construction Drawings - Specs-Bid - Estimates\Estimates\LV GreatBiocks 100% OPC -

revised for 2018 Grant-RevlO-30-19



31
4’ Pigmented Concrete Sidewalk with Integral Curb Ramps,

SY 1,197 $6000 $71,820.00
including subgrade prep, CIP

32 Permeable payers (Pedestrian), CIP SY 246 $90.00 $22,140.00
Standard Concrete Vertical Curb and Gutter 6’ x 24”, Portland

33 LF 822 $22.00 $18,084.00
cement concrete, mc subgrade prep., CIP

34 6’ x 6” Concrete Mow Curb/Edger LF 181 $12.00 $2,172.00

Graded Gravel Drainage Fill 12’ Depth(beneath permeable
CY 300 $30.00 $9,000.00

pedestrian payers; including filter fabric), CIP

36 Imported Topsoil/Planting Soil Mix CY 100 $35.00 $3,500.00
Reflectorized Painted Pavement Stripe 4’ (crosswalk and center

37 . LF 400 $3.50 $1,400.00
stripe)

38 Reflectorized Plastic Pavement Marking - 12” Stop Bar LF 45 $6.00 $270.00

39 Gateway Signage Feature EA 2 $10,000.00 $20,000.00
40 Vehicular Access Control Gate, CIP EA 4 $5,000.00 $20,000.00

SITE FURNISHINGS
41 6 Benches EA 6 $2,500.00 $15,000.00
42 Site Lighting/Electrical (Includes 7 poles and elec.) LS 1 $80,000.00 $80,000.00

LANDSCAPE MATERIALS
43 1” Crushed Gravel Mulch, 4’ depth SF 4,106 $1.50 $6,159.00
44 2” Cal. Deciduous Trees EA 21 $420.00 $8,820.00
45 5 Gal. Shrub EA 23 $45.00 $1,035.00
46 3 Gal. Shrub EA 16 $40.00 $640.00

46 Irrigation [5 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00
47 Irrigation [S 1 $32,000.00 $32,000.00

SUBTOTAL $533,447.50
20% Contingency $106,689.50

Re-Design / Construction Phase Services $15,000.00
8.3958% GRT $53,744.62

TOTAL $708,881.62

P:\2020012_Las Vegas Great Blocks Phase 1\4. Construction Drawings - Specs-Bid - Estimates\Estimates\LV GreatBiocks 100% OPC -

revised for 2018 Grant-RevlO-30-19



Grant No. 419-18C2058-
1905

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

FUND 89200 CAPITAL APPROPRIATION PROJECT

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this 8th day of March,
2019, by and between the Economic Development Department, hereinafter called the
‘Department” or abbreviation such as ‘EDD,” and MainStreet de Las Vegas in
partnership with City of Las Vegas, hereinafter called the ‘Grantee.” This Agreement
shall be effective as of the date it is executed by the Department.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, in the Laws of 2018, Chapter 80, Section 15, the Legislature made an
appropriation to the Department, funds from which the Department is making available to
the Grantee pursuant to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Department is granting to Grantee, and the Grantee is accepting
the grant of funds from this appropriation, in accordance with the terms and conditions
of this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Department has the authority to enter into grant agreements for
the expenditure of legislative appropriations, as per Laws 201 8, Chapter 80, Section 1 5
and NMSA 1978, § 9-15-7 (1993)

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and obligations
contained herein, the parties hereby mutually agree as follows:

ARTICLE I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, AMOUNT OF GRANT AND
REVERSION DATE

A. The project that is the subject of this Agreement is described as follows:

419-A18C2058-1901 $500,000.00
APPROPRIATION REVERSION DATE: 30-JUN-2022
Laws of 2018, Chapter 80, Section 15, five-hundred thousand dollars ($500,000.00), to
plan, design and construct infrastructure improvements in mainstreet districts statewide.

The Grantee’s total reimbursements shall not exceed one-hundred and fifty-thousand
dollars ($150,000.00) (the ‘Appropriation Amount”) minus the allocation for Art in

Page 1 of2l



Grant No. 419-1 8C2058-
1905

Public Places (A1PP amount”) ($0)’, if applicable, which equals one-hundred and fifty-
thousand dollars ($150,000.00) (the ‘Adj usted Appropriation Amount”).

In the event of a conflict among the Appropriation Amount, the Reversion Date. as
defined herein and/or the purpose of the Project. as set forth in this Agreement. and the
corresponding appropriation language in the laws cited above in this Article 1(A), the
language of the laws cited herein shall control.

This project is referred to throughout the remainder of this Agreement as the “Project”;
the information contained in Article 1(A) is referred to collectively throughout the
remainder of this Agreement as the “Project Description.” If Attachment A imposes
more stringent requirements than any requirement set forth in this Agreement, the more
stringent requirements of Attachment A shall prevail, in the event of irreconcilable
conflict. The Grantee shall reference the Project’s number in all correspondence with and
submissions to the Department concerning the Project. including, but not limited to.
Requests for Payment and reports.

ARTICLE II. LIMITATION ON DEPARTMENT’S OBLIGATION TO MAKE
GRANT DISBURSEMENT TO GRANTEE

A. Upon the Effective Date of this Agreement, for permissible purposes within the
scope of the Project Description, the Grantee shall only be reimbursed monies for which
the Department has issued and the Grantee has received a Notice of Department’s
Obligation to Reimburse2 Grantee (hereinafter referred to as “Notice of Obligation”).
This Grant Agreement and the disbursement of any and all amounts of the above
referenced Adjusted Appropriation Amount are expressly conditioned upon the
following:

(i) Irrespective of any Notice of Obligation, the Grantee’s expenditures shall be made
on or before the Reversion Date and, if applicable, an Early Termination Date
(i.e., the goods have been delivered and accepted or the title to the goods has been
transferred to the Grantee and/or the services have been rendered for the Grantee);
and

(ii) The total amount received by the Grantee shall not exceed the lesser of: (a) the
Adjusted Appropriation Amount identified in Article 1(A) herein or (b) the total of
all amounts stated in the Notice(s) of Obligation evidencing that the Department
has received and accepted the Grantee’s Third Party Obligation(s), as defined in
subparagraph iii of this Article 11(A); and

(iii)The Grantee’s expenditures were made pursuant to the State Procurement Code
and execution of binding written obligations or purchase orders with third party
contractors or vendors for the provision of services, including professional

The AIPP amount is “an amount of money equal to one percent or two hundred thousand dollars
(5200.000). whichever is less, of the amount of money appropriated for new construction or any major
renovation exceeding one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000).” Section 13-4A-4 NMSA 1978.
2 “Reimburse” as used throughout this Agreement includes Department payments to the Grantee for
invoices received, but not yet paid, by the Grantee from a third party contractor or vendor, if the invoices
comply with the provisions of this Agreement and are a valid liability of the Grantee.

Page 2 of2l



Grant No. 419-1 8C2058-
1905

serv ices, or the purchase of tangible personal property and real property for the
Project, hereinafter referred to as “Third Party Obligations”; and

(iv)The Grantee’s submittal of timely Requests for Payment in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Article IX of this Agreement; and

(v) In the event that capital assets acquired with Project funds are to be sold, leased, or
licensed to or operated by a private entity, the sale, lease, license, or operating
agreement:

a. must be approved by the applicable oversight entity (if any) in accordance
with law; or

b. if no oversight entity is required to approve the transaction, the
Department must approve the transaction as complying with law.

Prior to the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement being approved pursuant to
Articles II(A)(v)(a) and II(A)(v)(b) herein, the Department may, in its sole and
absolute discretion and unless inconsistent with State Board of Finance imposed
conditions, reimburse the Grantee for necessary expenditures incurred to develop
the Project sufficiently to make the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement
commercially feasible, such as plan and design expenditures; and

(vi)The Grantee’s submission of documentation of all Third Party Obligations and
amendments thereto (including terminations) to the Department and the
Department’s issuance and the Grantee’s receiving of a Notice of Obligation for a
particular amount in accordance with the terms of this Agreement shall be
governed by the following:

a. The Grantee shall submit to the Department one copy of all Third Party
Obligations and amendments thereto (including terminations) as soon
as possible after execution by the Third Party but prior to execution
by the Grantee.

b. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that if it chooses to enter into a Third
Party Obligation prior to receiving a Notice of Obligation that covers
the expenditure, it is solely responsible for such obligations.

c. The Department may, in its sole and absolute discretion, issue to
Grantee a Notice of Obligation for the particular amount of that Third
Party Obligation that only obligates the Department to reimburse
Grantee’s expenditures made on or before the Reversion Date or an
Early Termination Date. The current Notice of Obligation form is
attached to this Agreement as Exhibit 2.

d. The date the Department signs the Notice of Obligation is the date that
the Department’s Notice of Obligation is effective. After that date, the
Grantee is authorized to budget the particular amount set forth in the
Notice of Obligation, execute the Third Party Obligation and request
the Third Party to begin work. Payment for any work performed or
goods received prior to the effective date of the Notice of Obligation is
wholly and solely the obligation of the Grantee.

B. The Grantee shall implement. in all respects, the Project. The Grantee shall
provide all necessary qualified personnel, material, and facilities to implement the

Page 3 of 21



Grant No. 419-18C2058-
1905

Project. The Grantee shall finance its share (if any) of the costs of the Project, including
all Project overruns.

C. Project funds shall not be used for purposes other than those specified in the
Project Description.

D. Unless specifically allowed by law, Project funds cannot be used to reimburse
Grantee for indirect Project costs.

ARTICLE III. NOTICE PROVISIONS AND GRANTEE AND DEPARTMENT
DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVES

Whenever written notices, including written decisions, are to be given or received, related
to this Agreement, the following provisions shall apply.

The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their official
representative(s) concerning all matters related to this Agreement:

Grantee:

_______________________________________

Name:

_______________________________________

Title:

___________________________________________

Address:

______________________________________

Email:

______________________________________

Telephone:

__________________________________

The Grantee designates the person(s) listed below, or their successor, as their Fiscal
Officer or Fiscal Agent concerning all matters related to this Agreement:

Grantee:

_____________________________________

Name:

_____________________________________

Title:

_________________________________________

Address:

_____________________________________

Email:

______________________________________

Telephone:

__________________________________

The Department designates the persons listed below, or their successors, as the Points of
Contact for matters related to this Agreement.

Department: Economic Development Department
Name: Julie Blanke
Title: Program Planning Specialist
Address: EDD/MainStreet, P0 Box 20003, Santa Fe, NM. 87504-5003
Email: julie.blankestate.nm.us
Telephone: 505-827-0363

Page 4 of 21



Grant No. 419-1 8C2058-
1905

The Grantee and the Department agree that either party shall send all notices, including
written decisions, related to this Agreement to the above named persons by email or
regular mail. In the case of mailings, notices shall be deemed to have been given and
received upon the date of the receiving party’s actual receipt or five calendar days after
mailing, whichever shall first occur. In the case of email transmissions, the notice shall be
deemed to have been given and received on the date reflected on the delivery receipt of
email.

ARTICLE IV. REVERSION DATE, TERM, DEADLINE TO EXPEND FUNDS

A. As referenced in Article 1(A), the applicable law establishes a date by which
Project funds must be expended by Grantee, which is referred to throughout the
remainder of this Agreement as the ‘Reversion Date.” Upon being duly executed by both
parties, this Agreement shall be effective as of the date of execution by the Department. It
shall terminate on February 28, 2021 the Reversion Date unless Terminated Before
Reversion Date (“Early Termination”) pursuant to Article V herein.

B. The Project’s funds must be expended on or before the Reversion Date and, if
applicable, Early Termination Date of this Agreement. For purposes of this Agreement, it
is not sufficient for the Grantee to encumber the Project funds on its books on or before
the Projects Reversion Date or Early Termination Date. Funds are expended and an
expenditure has occurred as of the date that a particular quantity of goods are delivered to
and received by the Grantee or title to the goods is transferred to the Grantee and/or as of
the date particular services are rendered for the Grantee. Funds are not expended and an
expenditure has not occurred as of the date they are encumbered by the Grantee pursuant
to a contract or purchase order with a third party.

ARTICLE V. EARLY TERMINATION

A. Early Termination Before Reversion Date Due to Completion of the
Project or Complete Expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation or Violation of this
Agreement

Early Termination includes:
(i) Termination due to completion of the Project before the Reversion Date; or
(ii) Termination due to complete expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation

Amount before the Reversion Date; or
(iii) Termination for violation of the terms of this Agreement; or
(iv) Termination for suspected mishandling of public funds, including but not

limited to, fraud, waste, abuse, and conflicts of interest.

Either the Department or the Grantee may early terminate this Agreement prior to the
Reversion Date by providing the other party with a minimum of fifteen (15) days’
advance. written notice of early termination. Grantee hereby waives any rights to assert
an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of New Mexico in
the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department pursuant to Article
V(A).

Page 5 of2l



Grant No. 419-18C2058-
1905

B. Early Termination Before Reversion Date Due to Non-appropriation
The terms of this Agreement are expressly made contingent upon sufficient

appropriations and authorization being made by the Legislature of New Mexico for the
performance of this Agreement. Throughout this Agreement the term ‘non-appropriate”
or ‘non-appropriation” includes the following actions by the New Mexico Legislature:
deauthorization. reauthorization or revocation of a prior authorization. The Legislature
may choose to non-appropriate the Appropriation referred to in Article I and, if that
occurs, the Department shall early terminate this Agreement for non-appropriation by
giving the Grantee written notice of such termination, and such termination shall be
effective as of the effective date of the law making the non-appropriation. The
Department’s decision as to whether sufficient appropriations or authorizations are
available shall be accepted by the Grantee and shall be final. Grantee hereby waives any
rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of
New Mexico in the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by the Department
pursuant to Article V(B).

C. Limitation on Department’s Obligation to Make Grant Disbursements to
Grantee in the Event of Early Termination

In the event of Early Termination of this Agreement by either party, the
Departrnents sole and absolute obligation to reimburse the Grantee is expressly
conditioned upon the limitations set forth Article II.

ARTICLE VI. SUSPENSION OF NEW OR FURTHER OBLIGATIONS

A. The Department may choose, in its sole and absolute discretion, to provide written
notice to the Grantee to suspend entering into new and further obligations. Upon the
receipt of such written notice by the Grantee:

(i) The Grantee shall immediately suspend entering into new or further written
obligations with third parties; and

(ii) The Department will suspend the issuance of any new or further Notice of
Obligation under this Agreement; and

(iii) The Department may direct the Grantee to implement a corrective action plan
in accordance with Article V1(D) herein.

B. In the event of Suspension of this Agreement, the Department’s sole and absolute
obligation to reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth
in Article II herein.

C. A suspension of new or further obligations under this Agreement shall remain in
effect unless or until the date the Grantee receives written notice given by the Department
informing the Grantee that the Suspension has been lifted or that the Agreement has been
Early Terminated in accordance with Article V herein. If the Suspension is lifted, the
Department will consider further requests for Notice of Obligation.

D. Corrective Action Plan in the Event of Suspension

Page 6 of2l



Grant No. 419-1 8C2058-
1905

In the event that the Department chooses, in its sole and absolute discretion to direct
the Grantee to suspend entering into new or further written obligations with third parties
pursuant to Article VI(A), the Department may, but is not obligated to, require the
Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan to remedy the grounds
for the Suspension. Such corrective action plan must be approved by the Department and
be signed by the Grantee. Failure to sign a corrective action plan or meet the terms and
deadlines set forth in the signed corrective action plan, is hereby deemed a violation of
the terms of this Agreement for purposes of Early Termination, Article V(A)(iii). The
corrective action plan is in addition to, and not in lieu of any other equitable or legal
remedy, including but not limited to Early Termination.

ARTICLE VII. AMENDMENT

This Agreement shall not be altered, changed, or amended except by instrument in
writing duly executed by both the parties hereto.

ARTICLE VIII. REPORTS

A. Database Reporting
The Grantee shall report monthly Project activity by entering such Project

information as the Department and the Department of Finance and Administration may
require, such information entered directly into a database maintained by the Department
of Finance and Administration (http://cpms.dfa.state.nm .us). Additionally, the Grantee
shall certify on the Request for Payment fonri (Exhibit 1) that updates have been
maintained and are current in the database. The Grantee hereby acknowledges that failure
to perform and/or certify updates into the database will delay or potentially jeopardize the
reimbursement of funds. The Department shall give Grantee a minimum of thirty (30)
days’ advance written notice of any changes to the information the Grantee is required to
report.

Monthly reports shall be due on the last day of each month, beginning with the
first full month following execution of this Agreement by the Department and ending
upon the submission of the final request for reimbursement for the Project.

B. Requests for Additional Information/Project Inspection
During the term of this Agreement and during the period of time during which the

Grantee must maintain records pursuant to Article VIII, the Department may:
(i) request such additional information regarding the Project as it deems

necessary; and
(ii) conduct, at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, onsite

inspections of the Project.
Grantee shall respond to such requests for additional information within a
reasonable period of time, as established by the Department.

ARTICLE IX. REQUEST FOR PAYMENT PROCEDURES AND DEADLINES

Page 7 of2l



Grant No. 419-18C2058-
1905

A. The Grantee shall request payment by submitting a Request for Payment, in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit I. Payment requests are subject to the following
procedures:

(i) The Grantee must submit a Request for Payment; and
(ii) Each Request for Payment must contain proof of payment by the Grantee

or liabilities incurred by the Grantee showing that the expenditures are
valid or are liabilities incurred by the Grantee in the form of actual unpaid
invoices received by the Grantee for services rendered by a third party or
items of tangible personal property received by the Grantee for the
implementation of the Project; provided, however, that the Grantee may be
reimbursed for unpaid liabilities only if the Department, in its sole and
absolute discretion, agrees to do so and in accordance with any special
conditions imposed by the Department.

(iii) In cases where the Grantee is submitting a Request for Payment to the
Department based upon invoices received, but not yet paid, by the Grantee
from a third party contractor or vendor, if the invoices comply with the
provisions of this Agreement and are a valid liability of the Grantee, the
Grantee shall make payment to those contractors or vendors within five (5)
business days from the date of receiving reimbursement from the
Department or such shorter period of time as the Department may prescribe
in writing. The Grantee is required to certify to the Department proof of
payment to the third party contractor or vendor within ten (1 0) business
days from the date of receiving reimbursement from the Department.

B. The Grantee must obligate 5% of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount within
six months of acceptance of the grant agreement and must have expended no
less than 85% of the Adjusted Appropriation Amount six months prior to the
reversion date.

C. Deadlines
Requests for Payments shall be submitted by Grantee to the Department on the
earlier of:

(i) Immediately as they are received by the Grantee but at a minimum thirty
(30) days from when the expenditure was incurred or liability of the Grantee
was approved as evidenced by an unpaid invoice received by the Grantee
from a third party contractor or vendor; or

(ii) July 15 of each year for all unreimbursed expenditures incurred during the
previous fiscal year; or

(iii) Twenty (20) days from date of Early Termination; or
(iv) Twenty (20) days from the Reversion Date.

D. The Grantee’s failure to abide by the requirements set forth in Article II and
Article IX herein will result in the denial of its Request for Payment or will delay the
processing of Requests for Payment. The Department has the right to reject a payment
request for the Project unless and until it is satisfied that the expenditures in the Request
for Payment are for permissible purposes within the meaning of the Project Description

Page 8 of2l



Grant No. 419-1 8C2058-
1905

and that the expenditures and the Grantee are otherwise in compliance with this
Agreement, including but not limited to, compliance with the reporting requirements and
the requirements set forth in Article II herein to provide Third Party Obligations and the
Deadlines set forth in Article IX herein. The Department’s ability to reject any Request
for Payment is in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other legal or equitable remedy
available to the Department due to Grantee’s violation of this Agreement.

ARTICLE X. PROJECT CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS;
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. The following general conditions and restrictions are applicable to the Project:
(i) The Project’s funds must be spent in accordance with all applicable state

laws, regulations, policies, and guidelines, including, but not limited to,
the State Procurement Code (or local procurement ordinance, where
applicable).

(ii) The Project must be implemented in accordance with the New Mexico
Public Works Minimum Works Act. Section 13-4-10 through 13-4-17
NMSA 1978, as applicable. Every contract or project in excess of sixty
thousand dollars ($60,000) that the Grantee is a party to for construction.
alteration, demolition or repair or any combination of these, including
painting and decorating, of public buildings, public works or public roads
and that requires or involves the employment of mechanics, laborers or
both shall contain a provision stating the minimum wages and fringe
benefits to be paid to various classes of laborers and mechanics, shall be
based upon the wages and benefits that will be determined by the New
Mexico Department of Workforce Solutions to be prevailing for the
corresponding classes of laborers and mechanics employed on contract
work of a similar nature in the locality. Further, every contract or project
shall contain a stipulation that the contractor, subcontractor, employer or a
person acting as a contractor shall pay all mechanics and laborers
employed on the site of the project, unconditionally and not less often than
once a week and without subsequent unlawful deduction or rebate on any
account, the full amounts accrued at time of payment computed at wage
rates and fringe benefit rates not less than those determined pursuant to
Section 13-4-11 (B) NMSA 1978 to be the prevailing wage rates and
prevailing fringe benefit rates issued for the project.

(iii) The Project may only benefit private entities in accordance with applicable
law, including, but not limited to, Article IX, Section 14 of the
Constitution of the State of New Mexico, the “Anti-Donation Clause.”

(iv) The Grantee shall not for a period of 10 years from the date of this
agreement convert any property acquired, built, renovated, repaired,
designed or developed with the Projecf s funds to uses other than those
specified in the Project Description without the Department’s and the
Board of Finance’s express, advance, written approval, which may include
a requirement to reimburse the State for the cost of the project, transfer

Page 9 of2l



Grant No. 419-1 8C2058-
1905

proceeds from the disposition of property to the State, or otherwise
provide consideration to the State.

(v) The Grantee shall comply with all federal and state laws, rules and
regulations pertaining to equal employment opportunity. In accordance
with all such laws, rules and regulations the Grantee agrees to assure that
no person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual
preference, age or handicap, be excluded from employment with Grantee,
be excluded from participation in the Project, be denied benefits or
otherwise be subject to discrimination under, any activity performed under
this Agreement. If Grantee is found to be not in compliance with these
requirements during the life of this Agreement, Grantee agrees to take
appropriate steps to correct any deficiencies. The Grantee’s failure to
implement such appropriate steps within a reasonable time constitutes
grounds for terminating this Agreement.

B. The Grantee hereby represents and warrants the following:
(i) The Grantee has the legal authority to receive and expend the Project’s

funds.
(ii) This Agreement has been duly authorized by the Grantee, the person

executing this Agreement has authority to do so, and, once executed by the
Grantee, this Agreement shall constitute a binding obligation of the
Grantee, enforceable according to its terms.

(iii) This Agreement and the Grantee’s obligations hereunder do not conflict
with any law or ordinance or resolution applicable to the Grantee, the
Grantee’s charter (if applicable), or any judgment or decree to which the
Grantee is subject.

(iv) The Grantee has independently confirmed that the Project Description,
including, but not limited to, the amount and Reversion Date, is consistent
with the underlying appropriation in law.

(v) The Grantee’s governing body has duly adopted oi. passed as an official
act a resolution, motion, or similar action authorizing the person identified
as the official representative of the Grantee to sign the Agreement and to
sign Requests for Payment.

(vi) The Grantee shall abide by New Mexico laws regarding conflicts of
interest, governmental conduct and whistleblower protection. The Grantee
specifically agrees that no officer or employee of the local jurisdiction or
its designees or agents, no member of the governing body, and no other
public official of the locality who exercises any function or responsibility
with respect to this Grant, during their tenure or for one year thereafter,
shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or
the proceeds thereof, for work to be performed or goods to be received,
pursuant to this Grant. Further, Grantee shall require all of its contractors
to incorporate in all subcontracts the language set forth in this paragraph
prohibiting conflicts of interest.

(vii) No funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the Grantee, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or

Page 10 of2l



Grant No. 419-18C2058-
1905

employee of this or any agency or body in connection with the awarding
of any Third Party Obligation and that the Grantee shall require certifying
language prohibiting lobbying to be included in the award documents fot’
all subawards, including subcontracts, loans and cooperative agreements.
All subrecipients shall be required to certify accordingly.

ARTICLE XI. STRICT ACCOUNTABILITY OF RECEIPTS AND
DISBURSEMENTS; PROJECT RECORDS

A. The Grantee shall be strictly accountable for receipts and disbursements
relating to the Project’s funds. The Grantee shall follow generally accepted accounting
principles, and. if feasible, maintain a separate bank account or fund with a separate
organizational code, for the funds to assure separate budgeting and accounting of the
funds.

B. For a period of six (6) years following the Projects completion, the Grantee
shall maintain all Project related records, including, but not limited to, all financial
records, requests for proposals, invitations to bid. selection and award criteria, contracts
and subcontracts, advertisements, minutes of pertinent meetings, as well as records
sufficient to fully account for the amount and disposition of the total funds from all
sources budgeted for the Project, the purpose for which such funds were used, and such
other records as the Department shall prescribe.

C. The Grantee shall make all Project records available to the Department, the
Department of Finance and Administration, and the New Mexico State Auditor upon
request. With respect to the funds that are the subject of this Agreement, if the State
Auditor or the Department of Finance and Administration finds that any or all of these
funds were improperly expended, the Grantee may be required to reimburse to the State
of New Mexico, to the originating fund, any and all amounts found to be improperly
expended.

ARTICLE XII. IMPROPERLY REIMBURSED FUNDS

If the Department determines that part or all of the Appropriation Amount was
improperly reimbursed to Grantee, including but not limited to, Project funds reimbursed
to Grantee based upon fraud, mismanagement, misrepresentation, misuse, violation of
law by the Grantee, or violation of this Agreement, the Grantee shall return such funds to
the Department for disposition in accordance with law.

ARTICLE XIII. LIABILITY

Neither party shall be responsible for liability incurred as a result of the other party’s acts
or omissions in connection with this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection
with this Agreement is subject to immunities and limitations of the New Mexico Tort
Claims Act.

Page 11 of2l



Grant No. 49-18C2058-
1905

ARTICLE XIV. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

This Agreement constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement between the Grantee and
Department concerning the subject matter hereof. The Agreement supersedes any and all
prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions, communications, and
representations, written or verbal.

ARTICLE XV. REQUIRED NON-APPROPRIATIONS CLAUSE IN
CONTRACTS FUNDED IN WHOLE OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

The Grantee acknowledges, warrants, and agrees that Grantee shall include a ‘non
appropriations” clause in all contracts between it and other parties that are (i) funded in
whole or part by funds made available under this Agreement and (ii) entered into after the
effective date of this Agreement that states:

‘The terms of this Agreement are contingent upon sufficient appropriations and
authorization being made by the Legislature of New Mexico for the performance of this
Agreement. If sufficient appropriations and authorization are not made by the
Legislature, MainStreet de Las Vegas in partnership with the City of Las Vegas may
immediately terminate this Agreement by giving Contractor written notice of such
termination. The MainStreet de Las Vegas in partnership with the City of Las Vegas’
decision as to whether sufficient appropriations are available shall be accepted by the
Contractor and shall be final. Contractor hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment
of contract claim against MainStreet de Las Vegas in partnership with the City of Las
Vegas or the Economic Development Department or the State of New Mexico in the
event of immediate or Early Termination of this Agreement by MainStreet de Las Vegas
in partnership with the City of Las Vegas or the Department.”

ARTICLE XVI. REQUIRED TERMINATION CLAUSE IN CONTRACTS
FUNDED IN WHOLE OR PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILABLE UNDER THIS
AGREEMENT

Grantee acknowledges, warrants, and agrees that Grantee shall include the following
termination clause in all contracts that are (i) funded in whole or part by funds made
available under this Agreement and (ii) entered into after the effective date of this
Agreement:

‘This contract is funded in whole or in part by funds made available under an Economic
Development Department Grant Agreement. Should the Economic Development
Department early terminate the grant agreement, MainStreet de Las Vegas in partnership
with the City of Las Vegas may early terminate this contract by providing Contractor
written notice of such termination. In the event of termination pursuant to this paragraph,
MainStreet de Las Vegas in partnership with the City of Las Vegas’only liability shall be
to pay Contractor for acceptable goods delivered and services rendered before the
termination date.”

Page 12 of2l



Grant No. 419-18C2058-
1905

Grantee hereby waives any rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the
Department or the State of New Mexico in the event of Early Termination of this
Agreement by the Department.

XVII. COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM FUNDING CRITERIA.

A. Throughout the term of this Agreement, Grantee shall:
1. submit all reports of annual audits and agreed upon procedures

required by Section 12-6-3(A)-(B) NMSA 1978 by the due dates established in 2.2.2
NMAC, reports of which must be a public record pursuant to Section 12-6-5(A) NMSA
1978 within forty-five days of delivery to the State Auditor;

2. have a duly adopted budget for the current fiscal yea!’ approved by
its budgetary oversight agency (if any);

3. timely submit all required financial reports to its budgetary
oversight agency (if any); and

4. have adequate accounting methods and procedures to expend grant
funds in accordance with applicable law and account for and safeguard grant funds and
assets acquired by grant funds.

B. In the event Grantee fails to comply with the requirements of Paragraph A
of this Article XVII, the Department may take one or more of the following actions:

1. suspend new or further obligations pursuant to Article VI(A) of
this Agreement;

2. require the Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective
action plan pursuant to Article VI(D) of this Agreement to remedy the non-compliance;

3. impose special grant conditions to address the non-compliance by
giving the Grantee notice of such special conditions in accordance with Article Ill of this
Agreement; the special conditions shall be binding and effective on the date that notice is
deemed to have been given pursuant to Article III; or

4. terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article V(A) of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE XVIII. SEVERANCE TAX BOND AND GENERAL OBLIGATION
BOND PROJECT CLAUSES

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the underlying appropriation for the
Project is a severance tax bond or general obligation bond appropriation, and that the
associated bond proceeds are administered by the New Mexico State Board of Finance
(SBOF), an entity separate and distinct from the Department. Grantee acknowledges and
agrees that (i) it is Grantee’s sole and absolute responsibility to determine through SBOF
staff what (if any) conditions are currently imposed on the Project; (ii) the Department’s
failure to inform Grantee of a SBOF imposed condition does not affect the validity or
enforceability of the condition; (iii) the SBOF may in the future impose further or
different conditions upon the Project; (iv) all SBOF conditions are effective without
amendment of this Agreement; (v) all applicable SBOF conditions must be satisfied
before the SBOF will release to the Department funds subject to the condition(s); and (vi)

Page 13 of2I



Grant No. 419-1 8C2058-
1905

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement as of
the date of execution by the Department.

GRANTEE

Signature of Official with Authority to Bind Grantee

Entity Name

By:
(Type or Print Name)

Date

Signature of MainStreet President

By:
(Type or Print Name)

Date

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

By: Cabinet Secretary or Designee

Date

Legal Counsel — Certifying legal sufficiency

Date

Page 15 of2l



STATE OF NEW MEXICO

CAPITAL GRANT PROJECT

Grant No. 419-1 8C2058- Request for Payment Form

1 0fl5 Exhibit I

I. Grantee Information II. Payment Computation
(Make sure inforrretion is corrlete & accurate) A. Payment Request No.

____________________________

A. Grantee:

_______________________________

B. Grant Amount:

_______________________

B. Address:

____________________________

C. AIPP Amount (If Applicable):

_____________________

(Conpiete Ma,ng, incIthng Sude. teppicebie) D. Funds Requested to Date:

E. Amount Requested this Payment:

__________________________________________________________________________

F. Reersion Amount (If Applicable):

________________________

city sate zp G. Grant Balance:

__________________________

C. Phone No:

___________________________

H. ü GF E GOB STB (attach tare if first draw)

D. Grant No:

___________________________

I. E Final Request for Payment (if Applicable)

E. Project Title:

_____________________________

F. Grant Expiration Date:

_____________________________

III. Fiscal Year:

______________________________________________________________

(The State of NM Fiscal Year is July 1, 2OXX through June 30, 2OXX of the following year)

IV. Reporting Certification: I hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief, that database reporting is up to date: to include the
accuracy of expenditures and grant balance, project status, project phase, achievements and rnleatones, and in corrliance with Article VIII of the
Capital Outlay Grant Agreement.

V. Compliance Certification: Under penalty of law, I hereby certify to the best of nij know ledge and belief, the above inforrretion is

correct: expenditures are properly documented, and are valid expenditures or actual receipts, and that the grant activity is in full coirpliance with
Article IX, Sec. 14 of the New Mexico Constitution known as the “anti donation” clause.

Grantee Fiscal Officer Grantee Representative

or Fiscal Agent (if applicable)

Printed Name Printed Name

Date:

___________________________________

Date:

_________________________________________

(State Agency Use Only)
VendorCode: FundNo.: LocNo.:

I certi’ that the State Agency Itnancial and vendor file information agree with the above submitted information.

Division Fiscal Officer Date Division Project Manager Date

Page 16 of2l



Grant No. 419-18C2058-
1905

NOTICE OF OBLIGATION TO REIMBURSE GRANTEE

II EXHIBIT 2

Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee [# 11

DATE: [

TO: Department Representative:

FROM: Grantee:

Grantee Official Representative:

SUBJECT: Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee
Grant Number:

Grant Termination Date:

j

As the designated representative of the Department for Grant Agreement number

______________________________

entered into between Grantee and the Department, I certify
that the Grantee has submitted to the Department the
following third party obligation executed, in writing, by the third party’s authorized
representative:

Vendor or Contractor:

Third Party Obligation Amount:

Vendor or Contractor:

Third Party Obligation Amount:

Vendor or Contractor:

Third Party Obligation Amount:

—:1

_1

I certify that the State is issuing this Notice of Obligation to Reimburse Grantee for
permissible purposes within

Page 17 of2l



Grant No. 419-I 8C2058-
1905

the scope of the project description, subject to all the terms and conditions of the above
referenced Grant
Agreement.

Grant Amount (Minus AIPP if applicable):

[ I
The Amount of this Notice of Obligation:

[ I
The Total Amount of all Previously Issued Notices of Obligation:

[ I
The Total Amount of all Notices of Obligation to Date:

[ I
Note. contract amounts may exceed the totalgrant amoun4 but the invoices paid bj; the grant wi/I not exceed
the grant amoum

Department Rep. Approver:

Title:

Signature:

Date:

Page 18of21



18C2058-l905

0 ATTACHMENT A

GRANTEE MATCH DETAIL FORM

To Be Completed bj’ the Grantee and Submitted with Each Paj’ment Request Form

The Grantee is required to provide a matching contribution valued at two dollars ($2.00) in match for every ten dollars ($10.00) of the
total Grant Amount. At least sixty percent (60%) of the Grantee’s match must be in the form of cash, and the remainder may be in the
form of in-kind contributions by the Grantee or any of the Grantee’s partners specifically identified in the Grant Agreement.

An in-kind contribution is any service or item of cost that is necessary for the completion of the work and that has a verifiable and
accountable economic value. Some examples of in-kind contributions include:

• MainStreet Executive Director’s time dedicated to coordinating project activities;
• Value of the time and cost associated with assigning municipal staff to project activities;
• Items of cost borne by the municipality or one of the municipality’s partners in the project;
• Cost of publicizing notices of meetings and events.

(irintee

I. Grantee Information

Grant Number:_________

Title of Project: Total Grant Amount:

Total Payment Request: Date of Request:_

II. Grantee Match Breakdown

Cash Match (specify dollar amount):

In-Kind Match (specify value):

Total Match for This Payment: Total Match To Date:

III. Explanation of Grantee Match

Provide a detailed explanation of grantee match for this payment.

\al1plc

Item a DC5CL lOtion Dollar Amount

Cash. GRT paid to contractor $3500

In-Kind. MainStreet Manaacrs time. 30 hours at $20 00/hour $600

Total Match b’ Grantee for this I’aymenl S4,lOO

To be filled out by Grantee:
Item # Description Dollar Amount

2
.,

4
Total_Match_by_Grantee_for_this_Payment S

Page 19 of2l



Grant No. 419-1 8C2058-1905

ATTACHMENT B
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSED BUDGET

Name of Grantee(s): MainStreet de Las Vegas in partnership with the City of Las Vegas

Grant Amount: $150,000.00

Project Name: Great Blocks on MainStreet: Rail Road Avenue Phase I Construction Project

Project Description:
$150,000.00 for GROM: Rail Road Avenue Phase I Construction

Page 20 of2l



Grant No. 419-18C2058-1905

Page 21 of2l



(u0

lrd)z

0

4-’

C

0—

-

U4-
0Q

4-’u
(c
GJ0

D kv —

—-

!

4 4.I-.

uJ

C) LULULULjj

Q..Q..

I_-_-_

—I

z
U,

a)
>
U,

-J
‘4-
C
>



Regular or Special

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE: 11/512019 DEPT: Finance MEETING DATE: 11120/2019

DISCUSSION ITEMITOPIC: Review and certify Fixed Assets/Inventories

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: The City of Las Vegas has compiled the 2019 Fixed
Assets and Inventories and is ready to be reviewed and approved by Mayor and
Council.

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE NO
LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS PRIOR TO THE
CITY COUNCIL MEETING.

SUBMITTER’S SIGNATURE

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:

________________

TONITA G RULE-GIRON TANA VEGA, INTERIM
MAYOR FINANCE DIRECTOR

(PROCUREMENT)

ANN MARIE GALLEGO
INTERIM CITY MANAGER

PURCHASING AGENT ESTHER GARDUNO MONTOYA,
(FOR BIDIRFP AWARD) CITY ATTORNEY

(ALL RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES
& CONTRACTS MUST BE
REVIEWED)



CERTIFICATION OF GOVERNING BODY FOR THE ANNUAL FIXED

ASSETS/INVENTORIES FOR FY19

STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF SAN MIGUEL

CITY OF LAS VEGAS

We, members of the governing body of the City of Las Vegas of San Miguel County, being duly
sworn according to law,

1. We are duly elected members of the City of Las Vegas in San Miguel;

2 In the performance of our duties, and pursuant to 12-6-1 NMSA 1978 through 12-6-14
NMSA 1978 Article 6 Audit Act;

3 We certify that we have reviewed and are familiar with, as a minimum, the
Fixed Assets/Inventories for FY19.

_____________________________________Tonita

Gurule-Giron, Mayor

______________________________________Barbara

Casey

_________________________________Vince

Howell

David G. Romero

__________________________________

David Ulibarri

ATTEST:

_____________________________________Casandra

Fresquez, City Clerk

REVIEWED AND APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SUFFICIENCY ONLY:

_______________________________________Esther

Garduno Montoya, City Attorney



Regular or Special

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA REQUEST

DATE: 111512019 DEPT: Finance MEETING DATE: 11I20I19

DISCUSSION ITEMITOPIC: Resolution 19-57

ACTION REQUESTED OF COUNCIL: Approval/Disapproval of Resolution 19-57

BACKGROUND/RATIONALE: The City of Las Vegas is requesting increases
to the FY2020 Budgeted revenues and expenditures, transfers to and from
within various funds of the FY2020 Budget.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION:

THIS REQUEST FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY CLERK’S
OFFICE NO LATER THAN 5:00 P.M. ON FRIDAY ONE AND A HALF WEEKS
PRIOR TO THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING.

SUBMITTER’S SIGNATURE

REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY:

_______

S

TONITA GU ULE-GIRÔN TANA VEGA /
MAYOR INTERIM FINANCE DIRECTOR

(PROCUREMENT)

ANN M. GALLEGOS
INTERIM CITY MANAGER

PURCHASING AGENT ESTHER GARDUNO MONTOYA
(FOR BID/RFP AWARD ONLY) CITY ATTORNEY

(ALL CONTRACTS MUST BE
REVIEWED)



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
MUNICIPALITY OF CITY OF LAS VEGAS

RESOLUTION NO. 19-57

WHEREAS, The Governing Body in and for the Municipality of Las Vegas, State of New Mexico has
developed a budget adjustment request for fiscal year 20 19-20, and

‘WHEREAS, said budget adjustments were developed on the basis of increases in revenues, expenditures
and transfers (in) out through cooperation with all user departments. elected officials and other department
supervisors, please see attached schedule; and

WHEREAS, the City of Las Vegas is in need of making budget adjustments in the 20 19-20 fiscal year
budget; to include a net increase of$ 150,000 in revenues, an increase of$172.000 in expenditures for various
expenditures and a transfer in from General Fund in Fund 435 Mainstreet; a net increase of $404 in
expenditures in Fund 283 (PD Awards) to be funded by unbudgeted cash balance; a net increase of$12.500 in
revenues and expenditures in Senior Center to be funded by a Legislative Appropriation for two (2) HVAC
units: a net increase of 59.403 in revenues and expenditures in the Special Library Fund to be funded by a
grant from New Mexico State Library;

WHEREAS, it is the majority opinion of this governing body that the budget adjustment request be approved
and meets the requirements as currently determined for fiscal year 20 19-20;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Body of the Municipality of the City of Las
Vegas, State of New Mexico hereby approves the budget adjustment request herein above described and
respectfully requests approval from the Local Governing Division of the Department of Finance and
Administration.

RESOLVED: In session this 20th day of November. 2019

Tonita Gurule-G iron. Mayor
ATTEST:

Casandra Fresquez. City Clerk

REVIEWED AND APPROVED AS TO LEGAL SLFFICIENCY ONLY:

Esther Garduno Montoya, City Attorney



C
IT

’
O

F
LA

S
V

EG
A

S

R
ES

O
LU

TI
O

N
#1

9-
57

B
U

D
G

ET
A

D
JU

ST
R

E
Q

U
E

ST

FI
SC

A
L

Y
EA

R
20

20

R
es

ol
ut

io
n

19
-5

7
F

un
d

R
ev

en
ue

s
T

ra
ns

fe
rs

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s

S
pe

c
Le

g
A

pp
ro

p
21

7-
00

00
-4

30
-5

37
8

S
en

io
r

C
en

te
r

A
19

-D
20

73
-1

97
1

2
,5

0
0

0
0

L
eg

is
la

ti
ve

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
ti

on

S
pe

c
L

eg
A

pp
ro

p
21

7-
00

00
-7

80
-8

03
3

S
en

io
r

C
en

te
r

A
19

-D
20

73
-1

97
12

,5
00

.0
0

H
V

A
C

U
N

IT
S

A
T

SE
N

IO
R

C
EN

TE
R

PD
A

w
ar

ds
28

3-
00

00
-7

10
-7

31
7

P
ub

li
ca

ti
on

s
&

A
dv

er
ti

se
m

en
ts

40
4.

00
P

ub
li

ca
ti

on
s

&
A

dv
er

ti
se

m
en

ts
PD

A
w

ar
ds

28
3-

00
00

-1
00

-1
10

1
C

as
h

on
H

an
d

40
4.

00
U

nb
ud

ge
te

d
C

as
h

B
al

an
ce

M
ai

n
st

re
et

43
5-

00
00

-4
30

-5
33

5
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
G

ra
nt

15
0,

00
0.

00
E

co
no

m
ic

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

M
ai

n
st

re
et

43
5-

00
00

-7
20

-7
30

5
O

th
er

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l
S

er
vi

ce
s

17
2,

00
0.

00
O

th
er

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l
S

er
vi

ce
s

M
ai

n
st

re
et

43
5-

00
00

-8
90

-9
11

0
T

ra
ns

fe
r

In
-

G
en

er
al

Fu
nd

22
,0

00
.0

0
T

ra
ns

fe
r

In
G

en
er

al
Fu

nd

G
en

er
al

Fu
nd

10
1-

00
00

-8
90

-9
74

7
T

ra
ns

fe
r

O
ut

-4
3
5

(2
2,

00
0.

00
)

T
ra

ns
fe

r
O

ut
M

ai
n
st

re
et

G
en

er
al

Fu
nd

10
1-

00
00

-1
00

-1
10

1
C

as
h

on
H

an
d

22
,0

00
.0

0
U

nb
ud

ge
te

d
C

as
h

B
al

an
ce

LI
BR

A
RY

SP
EC

IA
L

10
3-

00
00

-4
50

-5
33

4
ST

A
TE

LI
BR

A
RY

G
R

A
N

T
9,

40
3.

00
ST

A
TE

G
R

A
N

T
S-

IN
-A

ID

LI
BR

A
RY

SP
EC

IA
L

10
3-

00
00

-7
50

-7
10

7
B

O
O

K
S/

E
D

U
C

M
A

TE
R

IA
LS

9,
40

3.
00

B
O

O
K

S/
E

D
U

C
M

A
TE

R
IA

LS

19
4,

30
7.

00
-

19
4,

30
7.

00



fl Michelle Lujan Grisham, Governor
Katriiia I-Ih1ui1-LopL’:, Cabhn’t Sccn’tan

NEW
MEXICO Sam Oiiiasa, Dpuhi Scc,etaiij

AGING&
LONG-TERM

SERVICES
P E PA H I El E N T

October 02, 2019

Arm Marie Gallegos, Interim City Manager
City of Las Vegas
1700 North Grand
Las Vegas, NM 87701

Re: State Senate Bill 280
A19D2073-197, Las Vegas Senior Center hvac iistallation; $12,500;
Reversion Date: June 30, 2023

Dear Ms. Gallegos:

The State Senate Bill 280 Contract for the above mentioned project has been fully executed. You may
now proceed with expenditures in accordance with the legislative intent. Please note that prior to
reimbursement of funds the grantee must submit to the Department a Notice of Obligation, and a copy
of the purchase order with a third party contractor or vendor as per Article II of the Contract.

Please review the SB280 Contract carefully and contact this department if you have any questions or
concerns at 505-476-4879 or email ernest.saavedralstate.nm.us . The exhibits attached to the Contract
are available electronically at

Sincerely,

Ernest “Adam” Saavedra
Capital Outlay Financial Coordinator

iç_

I”’
/ . .

( —

Pm LHL 1 S 1/1 1 ifJo,ig Il1d2L1ld( 11LL (lilt] HLahtIll/ Aiiig

0 00 Bo\ 27118 • Santa Fe, New Mexico 87502-7118

505--[76-479 • ToW-free 1-800-432-2080 • \\‘x’:w.nmain$.state.nm.us



AGENCY: AG!NG AND LONG TERM SERVICES DEPARTMENT

APPROPRIATION RECIPIENT:

Grantee: çjv of Las Vegas — ——

Name: Ann Marie Gallegos I Title: Interim City Manager
Address: 1700 North Grand. Las Veias. NM 87701
Email: amgallegoslasveasnm.gov /Telephone: (505) 425-9139

APPROPRIATION NUMBER: APPROPRIATION AMOUNT: TERMINATION DATE:

Al 9-D2073- 197 SI2,500.0Q June 30th, 2023

APPROPRIATION LANGUAGE

in Laws 2019, Chapter 277, Section 4, Paragraph 65 for the purchase and installation of HVAC units at
the Las Vegas Senior center in the City of Las Vegas. (Grant funds unexpended by June 30thi, 2023 will
be reverted to the State of New Mexico’s general fund.)

CERTI FICAT ION

I hereby certify that the City of Las Vegas

I. Will only use the appropriation funds for permissible purposes as described in appropriation language.
2. Will comply with State Procurement Code and execution of binding written obligations or purchase orders

with third party contractors or vendors for the provision of services, including professional services, or the
purchase of tangible personal property and real property for the project.

3. Ensures that the appropriation funds only benefit entities in accordance with applicable law, including, but
not limited to Article lx, Section 14 of the Constitution of the State of New Mexico, “Anti-Donation
Clause.”

4. Will follow the procedure described in “Appropriation Reimbursement” for reimbursement of
appropriated funds.

APPROPRIATION REIMf3URSMENT

The appropriation funds will be disbursed through a reimbursement process. The Appropriation Recipient will
submit to the Agency E\hibit A: Request for Payment form along with supporting document(s) that evidence
the expenses to be reimbursed. The Agency will review these documents to ensure all reimbursed expenses
reflect the intent and purposed of the appropriation language. All expenditures for which the Appropriation
Recipient requests reimbursement must occur prior to the reversion date. The latest date the Appropriation
Recipient may submit a Request for Payment is June 30th, 2020. With the submission of the final Exhibit A:
Request for Payment, the Appropriation Recipient must include a completed Exhibit B: Final Report form in
order o receive the ii al reimbursement.

Grantee Chiet Elected Of tcial Signature / Printed Name Dale

AUTHORI’l’Y

State Agency on Aging (28-4-I to 28-4-9 NMSA 1978: successor agency, Aging and Long-Term Services
Department (9-23-1 109-23-12 NMSA 1978) may enter into grants and contracts as appropriated by law, I
hereby approve this certification for appropriation number

Project #A I 9-D2073 — 197 Las Vegas Senior center — hvac installation - S12,500.O0

Agency Designee signa e Date



MEMORANDUM

4

TO: Tana Vega, Interim Finance Director

FROM:J
Maria Martinez, Finan S ecialist

THRU: / i

David T. Bibb III, Chief of Police

DATE: October 21, 2019

RE: BUDGET ADJUSTMENT REQUEST

We are requesting a budget adjustment in our 283 fund. We are currently budgeted $1,565.00 in line
item # 283-0000-71 0-73 17. Our cash in this fund is $1,969.00; therefore we are requesting an increase
in the amount of $404.00 to be placed in 283-0000-710-7317.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact my office.

xc: Files

LAS VEGAS
NEW MEXICO

318 Moreno Street *Las Vegas, New A1exco 87701 * PH# (505) 425.7504* Fax# (505 425-G346

David T. Bibb Ii?
Chief of Police



Economic Development Dept.
1100 St. Francis Drive
Warehouse
Santa Fe NM 87504
United States

Supplier: 0000054343
CITY OF LAS VEGAS
1700 N GRAND AVE
LAS VEGAS NM 87701-0000
United States

Ship To: 1100 SI. Francis Drive
Warehouse
Santa Fe NM 87504
United States

Bill To 1100 St. Francis Drive
Joseph Montoya Bldg
Sante Fe NM 87505-
4147
Un3ed Sts:es

Origin: EXE ExclExcIl: 13-1-93-A
LIne. ItomlDescription Quantity UOM P0 Price Extended Arot Due Date
Sch

1 - 1 FY19 Cap:tal Outlay Granl Ag-aernent for
:‘la:nstree; ?roieot. Funds awarded for the
Grea: O1ock on Mai:sSuCet. Rail Road ave.

:. plan, desiyn and conatujot
.nfrastr-acture iraprnvenen:a in the rnaE.r,stree
distric:.

4l5OC-5S2oG-A18C2OB8--344CD 51945-C2058

Schodule Total

Item Total

Total P0 Amount

$lducDa.Co

Lo3c

Agorcy ?pp-ovai - I do-Icy hat lie peocood ;oirc.--aso Oo:OiHnldc a, In, dacu-ran: F, oaJ-oznc bb and a rnndo

h u:co’d.rrFec wlh ci Sc’, toad 1 apkuoLo Fcdea5 m1’ ala, r.la, and ,wa’olicn. I Icriro al p

hot acua:-a uroreurr,rod coal ala b.dja: accord tare Dathony oera tar IH, p;upo,cd acute er-Pal a-Jan,

o.lsLarding cure--ace cc’rn’thrunis SIC a,ccanth parao

Authorized Signature

State of New Mexico
Purchase Order PD Number to be on all Invoices and Correspondence

Page; 1
Dispatch Via Printpjptched_

I Purchase Order Date
- Revision

41900-0000009354 04-23-2019
-- -

Payment Terms Freight Terms Ship Via
.fyNow FOB Destination

- BesiWay -

Buyer Phone Currency
Chris P. Romero USD

1.03 CA 5150,300.00 S:.5O,000.0C O-l,’23/2310



City of Las Vegas, NM

Resolution N 18-52

A Resolution of Administrative and Financial Support adopting acceptance of 5150,000 for the
FY 2019 New Mexico MainStreet (Nv1S) Capital Outlay Public Infrastructure funding for the
‘Great Blocks on MainStreet Railroad Avenue Phase I Construction Project and acceptance of
the matching requirement”

ADOPT NO TElL FY 2018-2019 “GREAT BLOCKS ON MAINSTREET. RAILROAD
AVENUE PHASE I CONSTRUCTION PROJECT”

WHEREAS, the New Mexico MainStreet evaluation committee recognized the application for
funding was impressive and recommended an award of$ 150,000 for the “Great Blocks” project
in the Railroad District, and

WHEREAS, the funding for this project is made available through MainStreet Public
fnf’rastructure by the sale of Severance Tax Bonds sold in June and the award was approved by
the Economic Development Department Cabinet Secretary Mathew Geisel for the City, and

WHEREAS, capital improvements are an effective tool for communities to achieve necessary
project development and the Railroad District is listed in the newly adopted Metropohtan
Redevelopment Act Plan otherwise known as the Downtown Action Plan as an important
catalytic development area, and

WHEREAS, the City of Las Vegas arid MainStreet de Las Vegas (MSDLV) are committed to
collaborating on the construction ready Great Blocks Project in the Railroad District, and

WHEREAS. the City’s partner, MSDLV is working diligently to secure the “cash match” portion
ot’the match requirement by New Mexico MainStreet on behalF’ of the City in the amount of’
$27,000. and

WI-REAS, the City of Las Vegas is committed to providing a match of funds in the amount of
$45,000 of’ which $27,000 will be cash and 818,000 will be in-kind services if MSDLV is unable
to secure matching funds

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF LAS VEGAS GOVERfNG
BODY that

I The City of Las Vegas has accepted the award of$1 50,000 for the ‘Great Blocks’ project and
is committed to providing match funds up to, and in the amount of S27,000 cash or less and
S 18,000 in-kind for a total of $45,000 if MSDLV cannot secure the total matching Funds, and



2 The New Mexico MainStreet Public Infrastructure Grant Monitor upon receipt of Resolution

18-52, will begin the process of developing the detailed grant agreement between the City of Las

Vegas and NMMS

PASSED. APPROVED AM) ADOPTED THIS day of December 2018

CITY OF LAS VEGAS

Mayor Tonita Gurulé-Girón
(Seal)

Ity

ardu Mont C
or iegal sucie:cy i -



Giant o. 4 9- 8C2058-
1005

STAI’[ OF NhW VIFXIC()
DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC I)EVELOPMENT

FUNI) S9200 CAPITAL APPROPRiATION PROJECT

TillS AGREEMENT is macIc and entered into as of this 8th clay of’ March.
201 9, by and between the Icononuc Development Department, heieinaf’ter cal led the
‘1 )epartment or abbreviation such as “LDD.” and IvininSticet de Las Vecas in
pa rtnersh i p with City of l as Vegas. here flu her ca ccl the “Grantee. lii is Agreement
shall be elicelive as ot the daLe it is executed by the Department.

R EC ITA JS

Wil IUAS. in the Las ci 2018, Chapter 80. Section 15, the I .eeislaturc macIc an
appropriation to the Depart meat. funds l’ron wIiic 1 the Dc partment is making available a
the Grantee pursuant to this Arecneni and

Wil EREAS. the Department is granting to Grantee, and the ( irantee is accepting
the grant at’, toads from ui is appropriation, in accordance with the terms and conditions
of’ this Agi’eemeiitt and

WHEREAS, the Department has the authority to enter into giant agreements fbr
the expenditure of legislative appropriations, as per I ,aws 201 8. Chapter 80. Sect ion 15
and NMSA 1978. 9-15-7 (1993)

AGRLEi\IEN I

NOW, ‘i’I-IEREFON.F, in consideration at the mutual cuenants and oh) gations
contained herein, the parties iiereh niutuahly agree as blows:

I. PRo iF 1’ 1) I CI El’ IO Af OUNT OF GRANT AN H
REVERSION l)ATE

A. l’he project that is the subject a)’ this Agreement is deser ihed as tbllows:

410-A I 8C2058- 1901 S500.00000
APPROPRIATION REVFRSION DATE: 30-i t:N-2022
Luws of’ 201 8. Chapter SO. Section 15. live—hundred thousand dollars (5500,000.00). to

plan. design and construct infrastructure improvements in mainstreet chisirict.s statewide.

The Grantee’s total reimbursements shall not exceed one—hundred and lilly—thousand
dollars ($1 50.00000) (the “Appropriation Amount”) minus the allocalinit br Art in

Page I ol’2h



Giant No. l9-18C2058-
905

PuN ic Places (“Al PP amounf’) (f0) . if appi icable, which equals one-hundred and ft -

thousand dollars ($1 50.00000) (de “Adjusted Appropriation Amount’’).

In the event of a conflict among the Appropriation Amount, the Reversion Date, as
defined herein and!or the purpose ol the Project, as set forth in this Agreement. and the
corresponding appropriarion language in the laws cited above in this Article 1(A), the
language of the laws cited herein shall cannoT

Tb is project is referred to throughout the rema nder of th is Agreement as the “Pi’ojeet”:
the infhrmat ion contained in Article 1(A) is referred to cal lectively throughout the
remmnder iil this Aereement as the “Project Description.” if Attachment A imposes
note stringent requirements than any requirement set lbrih in this Agreement. the mitore
stringent requirements of A Ltachmenl A shall prevail, in the event of irreconcilable
eoul’lici. [he Grantee shall i’ehrence the Project’s number in all correspondence with and
submissions to the Department concerning the Project, including, bitt not limited to,
Requests for Payment and reports.

ARTICLE 11. LIMITAI1ON ON DEPARTM LN’f” S OBLIGATION TO MAKE
GRANT DISBURSEMENT To CRAN1’EF

A. Upon the LflcLive Date of iii is Agreement, Oar permissible purposes with in the
scope of the Project Description, the Grantee shall only he reimbursed monies liar wit ich
the Department has issued and tlte Grantee has received a \otiee of Department’s
Obligation to Reimburse2 Grantee (hereinahler reliarred to as” Notice of’ Obligation”).
This Grant Agreenient and the disbursement of any and till amounts of the above
refei’enced Adjusted A ppropriatic)n Amount ate expressly conditioned upon the
hal lowing:

(i) irrespective of on Notice of Obligation, the Grantee’s expenditures shall be made
on or before the Reversion Date and, if applicable, an F/any Termination Date
(i.e.. the goods have been delivered and accepted or the title to the goods ins been
transliarrej to the Grantee and/or the services have been rendered br the Grantee):
arid

(ii) The total aniount received Isv the Grantee shall not exceed the lesser al: (a) the
Adjusted !\ppropriation Amount identified in /\ rticlc 1(A) herein or (h) the total ol
all amounts stated in the Notice(s) of Obligation evidencing that the Departtneitt
has received and accepted the Grantee’s Third Party Obligation(s), as defined in
subparagraph iii al this Article 11(A): and

(ii i)’l he Grantee’s expenditures iver’ e made pursuant to the State Procurement Code
and execution of binding written obligations or purchase orders with third party
contractors or vendors liar the provision of services. incltiding professional

The \lPP amount is “an amount oftuoney equal to one percent or two hundred thousand dollars
(2OO,OUO), whichever is less, ot the aniount ot mone appropriated mi new construction ni any minor
renovation e.\ccedmg one hendred thousand dollars (: I OO.OOtO.” Section I 3—4A4 \vISA 1075.

‘Reimburse’’ as used throughout tIns ‘\greemcnt includes Deparunetu parmems to the Grantee for
invoices received, but not yet paid, by the Grantee front a third pmtrty contsaetur or vendor, if the invoices
comply with the provisions ni ilsis Agreement turd are a valid liahiliti ot’the Grantee.

Page 2 of2I



(Irant No. 41 9l 8C2058-
1905

services, or the pLirchase ol tangible personal pmperty and real property for the
Prc eel, herei[latier re[en’ed to as l’hird Party ()bI igalions’’: and

(iv)Thc ( anie’e’s submittal ol’ timely Requests [‘or Payment in accordance with the
procedures set forth in Article IX of’ this Agreemem: and

(‘a) In the event that capital assets acquired with Project lunds are to he sold. leased, or
licensed to or operated by a private entity, the sale, lease. license, or opemting
agreement:

a. must he approved by the applicable oversight entity (I ‘any) in accordance
with law: or

h. it’ no oversight entity is required to approve the transaction, the
Department must approve the transaction as complying with law.

Prior to the sale. lease, license, or operating aureement being approved pusuont to
.z\r[ieles I l(A)(v)(a) and [l(A)(v)(h) herein, the Department nitty, in its sole and
absolute discretion and unless inconsistent with State Board ot l:inance imposed
conditions, reimburse the Grantee fbr necessary expenditures incurred to develop
the Project sufflciently to make the sale, lease, license, or operating agreement
conijuercial I> lasiblc, such as plan and design expeudi tui’es and

(vi)l’he (ui’antee’s submission ol’ documentation of all Th it’d Party Obligations and
amendments thereto (including terminations) to the Department and the
Department’s issuance and the Grantee’ s icceivi e of a Notice of OH igation for a
particular amount in accordance with hc terms of’ this Agreement shall be
covemned by the fol ms np:

a. ‘I he Grantee shall submit Ia the Department one copy of all ‘li it’d Party
Obligations and amendments thereto (including terminations) as soon
as possible after execution by the ‘l’hii’cl Patty bt,ioi’toexecution
b he Grantee.

h. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that if chooses to enter into a Third
Party Obligation print’ to receiving a Notice of Obligation that covers
the expenditui’e. it is solely responsible for such obligations.

e. l’he Department inns, iii its sole and absolute discretion, issue to
Grantee a Notice at’ Obligation let’ the particular amount of that Third
Party Obligation that only obligates the Depnrtnient to ‘ci it horse
(railtees expenditures macfe on om’ before the Reversion Date 01’ an
Rat’ly Termination Date. ‘l’he current Notice of flhlieation form is
attached to this Agreement as Lvhihit 2,

d. The date the Department signs the Notice of Obligation is the date that
the Department’s Notice of Obligation is effective. Alter that date. the
Grantee is authorized to budget the particular amount set forth in the
Notice of Obi igation, execute the ‘l’hird Party Obligation and m’eqtiest
the ihird Party to begin work. Paanent kit’ any work performed or
goods received prior to the etictive date of the Notice of Obligation is
wholl and solely the obligation of the Grantee.

B. [‘he Grantee shall implement, in all respects. the Project. The Grantee shall
provide all necessary qualified personnel, material, and facilities to inipletnent the

Page 3 of2l



Giant No, 4 9-I $C2058-
1905

ProjecL The Grantee shall fin:mcc’ its shaie (ii any) of the COStS of the Project. including
all Project overruns.

C. Project funds shal not he used tar purposes other than those speci Ped in the
Proj ect Desc ri p1 ion.

D. I. niess specifically allowed by law, Project funds cannot be used to reimburse
(imntoe br indirect Project costs.

ARTICLE III. NOTICE PROVISIONS AND CRATiE_ANJ) 1)EPARTI\’IENT
DESIGNATEI) REPRESENTATIVES

\\‘ he never written notices, including written decisions. are to be eiveii or received, related
to this Agrccmenb the following provisions slini I apply.

The Grantee designates the person(s) I isteci be low, 01 their successor. as their oi’licial
represelitatl ye(s) concerning all matters related to this Agreement:

Grantee:

_____

Name: I724Z’7r1e //57r

title:
Add ress: /7/ 22/
lrna i I: ‘fl jk-&cZ’
lelephone: /ixLLoZ

‘Ihe Grantee designates (lie persorits) listed below, or their successor, as theii fiscal
0ticer or Fiscal Agent concerning all nialters related to this Agreement:

Grantee:

___

Name: ‘‘

Ii tie:4jce
Addrcss:J70b ‘Va”I4

____

Email:
telephone:

the I )epartmcnl designates the persons listed below, or their successors, as the Points of
Contact far matters related to this Agreement.

Department: Economic Development Department
Name: Julie Blanke
title: Program Planning Specialist
Address: EDI).iivIainStre et. P0 box 20003. Santa Fe. N\1. 87501-5003
Email: jul ie.blankestate.nm us
Telephone: 505-827-0363

Page 4 uI 2 I



Grant No. 419-l8C2058.
1905

The Grantee and the Departi ent agree that either party shoT send all notices, including
written decisions. elated to this Agi’eeinent to the above named persons by email or
mentor mail, In the case of mailings, notices shall be deemed to have been given and
received upon the date of the receiving party’s actual receipt or five calendar days after
mail int. whichever shall first occur. Lu the case of email transmissions, the notice shal be
deemed to have been given and received on the date reflected on the delivery receipt of
e ma

MT[CLEIV. RE yE RS ION DATE, TF 1 DEADLINE TO EXPEND FUNDS

A. As referenced in Article 1(A). the applicable law establishes a date 1w which
Project funds must be expended by Grantee. which is reherred to throughout the
remainder of this Agreement as the ‘‘Revei’sion Date.” Upon being duly executed by both
parties this Agreement shall be effective us oh the date of execution by the Department. It
shall terminate on February 28, 202 I the Reversion Date unless Terminated Before
Reversion Date (“Early lerm inatlan ) pursuant to Article V hereto.

[3. the Project’s I ntds must he expeaced on or before the Reversion Date and, if
applicable, Early Termination Date of this Agreement. For purposes ot this Agreement, ii
is not sal ficient for the Grantee to encumber the Project fttnds on its books on or before
the Project’s Reversion Date or Early Tenii mat. ion Dale. Funds are expended and an
expenditure has occurred as of the date that a particular quantity of goods are delivered to
and received by the (rraiitee or title to the goods is transferred to the Utautee and/or as of
the date particular services are rendered lor the Grantee. I unds are not expended and an
expenditure has not occurred as of the date they arc encumbered by the Grantee pursuant
tfl a contract or purchase order with a third party.

ARTiCLE V. EARLY TERMiNATION

.4.
of this

Early Term i nat ion inc I tides:
(i) ferinination due to completion ol’ the Project before the Reversion Date: or
(ii) lennination due to complete expenditure of the Adjusted Appropriation

Amount before the Reversion Date; or
(iii) 1ermina:ion for vioht..tiun of the terms of this Agreement: o’
(iv> 1 ermination for suspected niisltand I ing of public l’unds. including hut not

limited to, fraud. waste, abuse. and eon hliets of interest.

Either the Departtneiit ot’ the Grantee may early terminate this Agreement iot’ to the
Reversion Date 1w providing the other party with a minimum OT fifteen (15) days’
advance, ritten notice of early tet’utination. Grantee hereby \vai yes any rights to assert
an impairment of contract claim against the Department ot’ the State at’ New Mexico i ci

the event ol’ Early Term i tat a of’ this Agreeme at by the Department pul’suLtnt to Article
V A).

PageS ol’21



(3ran No. 419-1 C2O58-
1905

13.
The ternis of this Agreeineot are expressly made contingent upon sufticient

appropriations rind authorization being made by the Legislature of New Mexico for the
perlmance of’ this Agreement. lhroughout this Agreement the term ‘‘non—appropriate’
or “non-appropriation’ includes the following act ions by the New Mexico Legislature:
deaulitorization, reauthorization or revocation of a prior authorization the Legislature
nay choose to non—appropriate the Appropriation refer red to in Article I and, ii thai.
occurs, the Department shall eaiiy terminate this Agreement fur non-appropriation by
civing the Gi-antee written notice of such termination, and such termination shall be
effective as of the effective date ot he law making the ron—appropriation. [The
Department’s decision as to whether sufficient appropriations or authorizations are
available shall he accepted by the Grantee and shall be final. Grantee hereby waives any

rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the Department or the State of
New Mexico in the event of Early Ierniinrition of this Agreement by the Department
pursualil to Article V( B).

C. I mitation 0 rot’s Obli ition to Make Grant Disbursements to

Cranteemthe vent QffaI’jierminatIon
In the event of Early Term nation of this Agreement by either parL\, the

Dcparunent’s sole and absolute obligation to reimburse the Grantee is expressl
conditioned upon the limitations set forth Article 11.

ARTICLE VI. SUSIENSlON OF NEW OR FURTHER OBLlGATLOS

A. 1 he Department may choose. in its sole and absolute discretion, to provide written
notice to the Grantee to suspend entering into flC\\ and further obligations. I Jpoa the
receipt of such written notice by the Grantee:

(i) The Grantee shall mmcd iatelv suspend entering into new or Luther written
obligations with third parties; and

i) l’hie Department will suspend the issuance of’ any new or Li rtlier Notice of
Obhication under this Agreement: and

(iii) ‘the Department ma direct the Grantee to implement a correctis e action plan
in accordance with Article \i 1(D) herein.

Ti. In the event of Suspension ot’ this Agreement, the Department’s sole and absolute
obligation to reimburse the Grantee is expressly conditioned upon the limitations set forth
in Article 11 herein.

C’. A suspension of flC\ or further obligations under this Agi’eeinent shall remain in
effect unless or until the date the Grantee receives written notice gieIi by the Department

informing the Grantee that the Suspension has been Ii [‘ted or that the Agreement has been
Early Terminated in accordance with Article V herein. If the Suspension is titled, the
Department ivil I consider further requests for Notice of’ Obligation.

D.Cori’ec(ive Action Plan in the Event of Suspension

Page 6 of’ 2 I



Grant No. 41 9-I $C2058-
905

In the event that the Department chooses, in its sole and absolute discretion to direct
the Grantee to suspend entering into new or Further written obligations with third parties
pursuant to Article VJ, the Department may, hut is not obligated to. require the
Grantee to develop and implement a written corrective action plan to remedy the grounds
for the Suspension. Such corrective action plan must be approved by the Depaiment and
be signed by the Grantee. [ai lute to sign a corrective action plan or meet the terms and
deadlines set Grth in the signed corrective action plan, is hereby deemed a violation of
the terms oF this Agreement for purposes oF Early 1 erniination, Article \‘(A)(i ii). The
corrective action plan is in addition to, and not in I eu of, any other equitable or legal
remedy, including bitt not ha ited to Early Termination.

ARTICLE VII. AMENDiVIEN1’

[his Agreement shall not he altered. chanced, or amended except by instrument in
Writing (July executed by both the parties hereto.

ARTICLE Viii. REPORIS

A. Data
[he Grantee shall report monthly Protect activity by entering such Project

iniorniat on as the Department and the Department of’ Einancc and Adni inistralion nay
rectu ire. such in Formation entered cI irectl into a database tnai ntamned by the l)cportnient
ol’ H nance and Administration (http://cpmns.dl’a.statenm.ns). Additional lv, the Grantee
shall certi l\ on the Request Par Payment Rain (Exhibit 1) that updates have been
maintained and are current in the database. The Grantee hereby acknowledges that Fail nrc
to perForm and/or cciii I’y updates iou the database will delay or potnt ally jeopard i’e the
reini bursement oF [ctnd. The Department shall give Grantee a nun iiuimn oF thirty (30)
days’ advance •s rittcn notice oF any changes to the in Formation [lie Grantee is required to
report.

Monthly reports shall be due on the last day of’ each month, beginning with the
first full month Pal lowing execution ui this Agreement by the Department and ending
ii pan the submission u [the final request tar reimbursement f’or the Proj cci.

D. RemAaitionztmahon/PtoiccIjectioii
During the term oF this Agreement and during the period oF time dui’inp s\.h ich the

Grantee must maintain records pursuant to Article \1 Ill, the Department may:
(i) request such additional inFormation regarding the Project as it deems

necessary: anti
(ii) conduci. at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, onsite

inspections of the Project.
Grantee shall respond to such requests Pat’ additional inFormation within a
reasonable period of time, as established h’ the Department.

A RU CL IJESiJORPYMENllEDURESAND_DEADLINES

Page 7 ol’2 I



Giant No. 41 9 I $C205S-
1905

A. The Grantee shall request payment by submitting a Request Ibr Payment in
the Form attached hereto as Exhibit I Payment requests are subject to the hollowing
procedures:

(i) ‘[‘lie Grantee must submit a Request bar Payment; and
(Il) Each Request bar Payment must contain prool of payment by the Gt’antee

or liabilities incurred b the Grantee showing that the expenditures are
valid or are liabilities inc urred by the Grantee in the Ibrii oh actual unpaid
invoicOS received by the Grantee or services rendered by a third party or
items of tangible personal property ccci ‘ed by the Grantee liar the
implementation of’ the Project: provided, however, that the Grantee may be
reimbursed liar unpaid liabilities only it’ the Depai’ttnent. iii its sole and
absolute discretion, agrees to do so and in accordance with any special
conditions imposed by the Department.

(iii) In cases where the Grantee is submitting a Request br Payment to the
I )epartment based upon invoices received, hut not yet paid, by the Grantee
horn a third party contractor or vendor. if the invoices comply with the
provisions of this Agreement and are a val Id I iabi litv oh the Grantee, the
Grantee slial I make payment to those contractors or vendors within live (5)
bus ness days iota the date ol ‘ccci vi ng reinthui’senient From the
Department or such shorter pciodl ol t me as the Department may prescribe
in writing. The Grantee is requ ted to certi l’ to the Department prooF oh
payment to the tit ird party contractor or vendor within ten (I 0) business
days horn the date oh ieee i vine rei mbursetnent horn the Depart ment.

B. F he Grantee mLmst obligate 5% oI’ the ;\djusted Appropriation Amount within
six months oh acceptance of the giant agreement and oust have expended no
less than 85% of’ the Adj usted Appropriation Amount six months prior to the
reversion date.

C’. Deadilnes
Requests (‘at’ Payments slial I be submitted by Grantee to the Department on the
earlier of:

(ii Immediately as they are m’eccivcd by the Grantee bLit at a m in bourn thirty
(3D) days From when [he expendilum’e was incurred or liabilit oh the Grantee
was epptoved as evidenced by an tt;ipaid invoice received by the Grantee
From a third patty contractor or vendor: or

(it July 15 oh each year ‘or all ttttreinibursed expenditum’es incurred during the
previous fiscal year; or

(iii) ‘I wcntv (20) days horn (late of Early Termination; or
(iv) 1 wenty (20) days 1mm the Reversion Date,

D. The Grantees Failure to abide by the requirements set barth in Article 11 and
Article IX herein will result in the denial oh its Request For Payment or will delay the
processing oh Requests for Payment. The Department has the right to reject a payment
request [‘or the Project tinless and until it is satisfied that the expenditures in the Request
hot’ Payment are bar perm:ssible purposes within the flleanittt! ol the Project Description

Page 8 ot’21



Grant No. 419-I SC2058-
1905

and that the expenditures and the Grantee arc other\vise in compliance with this
Agreement, including but not limited to. compliance with the reporting requirements and
the requirements set barth in Article 11 herein to provide Third Party Obligations and the
Deadlines set forth in Article IX herein. The Departments abi ity to reject any Request
bar Payment is in addition to, and not in ieu of, any other legal or equitable remedy
available to the Department clue to Grantecs violation of this Agreement.

ARTICLE X. PROJECT_CONDITEONS_ANt) RESTRiCTiONS:
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES

A. The following general conditions and restrictions are applicable to the Project:
(i) ‘I lie Projects flncls must be spent in accordance with all applicable state

laws, regulations, policies, and guidelines. incltid ing. hut not limited to.
the State Procurement Code (or local procurement ordinance, 5\ here
applicable).

(ii) The Project must he implemented in accordance with the New Mexico
Public Vrorks Minimum Works Act. Section 13—4—lI) through 13—4— 1 7
NMSA 1978. as applicable. [very contract or project in excess of sixty
thousand clol lais ($60000) that the Grantee is a party to ‘ni construction.
alteration, demolition or repair or any combination of these, including
panting and decorating. of public buildings, public works or public roads
and that requires or involves the employment ol mechanics, laborers or
both shall contain a provision stating die iii in i mum wages and binge
benefits to be pair! to various classes of’ laborers and niechan ics, shall be
based upon the wages and benefits that a ill be determined b the Nes\
Mexico Department of’ Vorklorce Solutions to be prevailing for the
correspond inc classes of laborers and mechanics enipleycel on contract
work of a similar nature in the locality. I urther, every conu’aet or project
shall contain a stipulation that the cnn tractor, subcontractor, employer or a
person actina as a contractor shall pay all mechan ics and laborers
emplo ccl on the site of the pm;ect, unconditional lv and not less oben than
once a week and without subsequent unlawltil deduction or rebate on any
account, the full amounts accrued at time of payment computed at wage
rates and fringe benefit cal es not less than those determined ptlrsliant to
Section 13—4-Il (13) NMS.. 1978 to be the prevailing wage rates and
prevailing fringe benefit rates issued for the project.

(iii) The Project may only benefit private entities in accordance with applicable
law, includine, hut not limited to, Article IX, Section 14 of the
Constitution of the State of Ness Mexico, the “Anti—Donation Clatise.”

(iv) The Grantee shall not for a period of I (t years from the date of this
agreement convert any property acquired, built, renovated, repaired.
designed or developed with the Project’s funds to uses other than those
specified in the Project Description without the Departments and the
Board of’ linance’s express. advance, written approval, which may include
a requii’emeiii. to reimburse the State for the cost of’ the project, transfer

Page 9 of2l



Grant No. 4 1 8(2058-
1905

proceeds from the disposiiioii of properly to the State. or otherwtse
provide cons ide rat ion to the State

(v) The Grantee sha I comply with all hderal and slate laws, rules and
regulations pertaining to equal empioynient opportunity. In accordance
with all such laws. rules and regulations the Grantee agrees to assure that
no person shall. on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, sexual

preference. age or handicap. he eXcLlded from employment with Grantee,
be excluded from participation in the Proect, be denied benefits or
otherwise be subiect to diserim nation under, any activity performed under
this Agreement. It’ Grantee is found to be not in compliance with these
requirements during the Ii i’e of this Agreement. (iralitce agrees to take
appropriate steps to correct any deficiencies. The Grantees failure to
imolement such appropriate steps with in a reasonable time constitutes
grounds for term matins this Agreement.

B. 1 he Grantee hereb represents and warrants the fol low I nc:
(i 1 he Grantee has the legal authority to receive and expend the Projects

fu uris.
(ii) I his r\creenient has been duly authorized by the Grantee. the person

executing this Agreement has authority to do so, and, once executed by the
Grantee, this Agreement shall constitute a binding uhf ireation of the
Grantee. enforceable accord ag to its terms.

(iii) 1 his Agreement and the Grantee’s obl igalions hereunder do not con I’) ct
with an law or ordinance or resoluiion applicable to the Grantee, the
Grantee’s charter (if applicable), or any judgment or decree to which the
(ii’anee is subject.

i ) The Grantee has independently confirmed that the Project Description,
including. but not 1 imited to, the amount and Reversion Date, is consistent
with the underlying appropriation in law.

(v) [he Grantee’s governing body has do ly adopted 01’ passed as an official
act a resolution, motion, or similar action authorizing [he person identified
as the official repi’esentalive ol’ the Grantee to sign the Agreement and to
sign Requests for Payment.

(vi) The Grantee shall abide by New Mex co lass s regard mug conflicts of
interest. governniental conduct and whistleblower protection. I he Grantee
specifically agrees that no officer or employee of the local ui’isdiction or
its designees 01’ agents. no member ol the governing body. and no other
public official o [‘the locality who exercises any function or responsibility
with respect to this Grant, during their tenure or Par one year thereafter.
shall has e any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, om’
the proceeds thereol’. for work to be performed or goods to be received.
pursuant to this Grant. [urther, Grantee shall require all of’ its contractors
to incornorate it i all stibcontracts the I angilage set forth in this paragraph
prohibiting conflicts of interest.

(vii) No funds have been paid or VuII be paid, by or on behalt’of the Grantee, to
any person m’ imilluencing or a’tenlpting to infmnence an officer or

Page 10 of2l



Grant No. 419-I $C2058-
1905

employee of this or any agency ui body in connection with the awarding
of any Third Party Ohiigatio n and thai the Gran’,ee shall req ii ire certil\ing
language pron ibiting lobbying to be included in the award documents for
all subawards, including subcontiacis. loans and cooperative aereements.
Al subrccipients shall be required to certify accordingly.

ARTICLE XI. STRLCT ACCOUNTARILJTY OF RECEIPTS ANJ)
DlSBURSEMETS PROJECT RECORDS

A. The Grantee shall be strictly accountable for receipts and disbursements
relating to the Project’s funds. The Grantee shall follow generally accepted accounting
principles, and, if feasible, maintain a separate bank account or fund with a separate
organizational code. fhr the fluids to assure separate budgeting and accounting of the
hinds.

13. For a period of six (6’> years following (lie Project’s completion, the Grantee
shall nutintain all Project related records, including, but not Ii nited to. all financial
records, requests for proposals, !iv itaiaos to bid, selection and award criteria, contracts
and subcontiaci. advertiseiiiens, inmutes oh pertiient meetings, as well as records
sufficient to l’ul ly account bar the amount and disposition of the total bands hi’oni all
sources budgeted fur the Project, the purpose bar which such hinds ei’e used, antI such
other records as the [)epatlment shall prescribe.

( . 1le Grantee shall make all Project records a iii ltthlc to the De partnient. the
Department of Finance and Admin!stration. and the New Mexico State Auditor upon
request. \V tb respect to the funds (fiat are the subject of this Agreement, if (lie State
Auditor or the Depottnient of’ linance and Adin inistration linds that any or all of these
futicls were improperly expended. the Gtatitee may he required to reimburse to the State
of New Mexico. to the originating Iliad. any and all antounts found to be improperly
expendetl.

ARTICLE Xli. IMPROPERLY RFIMB[RSEI) FU 1)5

If the Department cleterin ines that pail or of I of die A ppiopriatiomt Amo tint was
improperly rciinbursed to Grantee, includin but not limited to. Project funds reimbursed
to Grantee based upon fraud. mismanacement. m isi’epresentation. nususe, v iolLition ol
law by the Grantee. or violation of this Agreement. the Grantee shall return such funds to

the Department bar disposition in accordance with law.

ARTICLE XIII. LIABILITY

Neither party shial I be responsible lot’ liability incurred as a result of’ the other party’s acts
or omissions in connection with this Agreement. Any liability incurred in connection
with this Agreement is subject to immunities and limitations of the New Mexico ‘Fort
Claims Act.

Page II of 2 I



Grant No. l I 9-I 8C2058-
1905

ARTICLE_XIV. SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

[his Agreement constitutes the entire and exclusive agreement between the Grantee anti
Department concerning the subject matter hereof. ‘Ihe Agreement supersedes any and all
prior or contemporaneous agreements. understandings, discussions. communicmions, and
representations, written or verbal.

ARTICLE XV. REQREDNON-APPROPIUKHONSCLAUSEIX
CONTRACTS FUNI)ED IN WHOLE OR PART BY FUNI)S 1ADE AVAILABLE
UNDER THIS AGREEMENT

The Grantee acknowledges. warrants, and agrees that. Grantee shall include a “non—
appropliations” clause in all contracts between it and other panes that ate (i) funded in
whole or part by funds made available under this A reement and (ii) entered into abet the
effective dare of this Agreement that states:

‘1 he tenns 01 this Agreement are contingent upon sn tIn: ient appropriations and
aurhoi’i at ion being niacie by the Legislature ot’ New Mexico for the pcl’[rmance nt this
Agreement. If sut tic ient appropriations and authorization are not made by the
I egislatLtl’e. Ma inStreet tIe I as Vegas in partnership with the City ot’ I as Vegas may
immediately terminate thi5 Agreement by giving Contractor written notice of such
termination. The MainSti’cet tIe I .as Vegas in partnership ss tb the C itv of’ Las Vegas’
decision as to whether su l’fcient appropr!aimns are available shall be accepted by the
Gum t’actor and shall be Final. Contractor hereby waises an’y r ig[tts to assert an ilnpairnlent
of contract claim against MainStreet tic Las Vegas in pantnersllil) with the C itv oil .as
Vegas or the Economic. 1)es elopment Depaitinent or the State of New \‘Iex leo in the
event ol’ immediate or [nih let’nt inatiun of this Agreement by MainSireet de Las Vegas
in partnership with the Cut’ of Iis Vegas or the Department.’

ARTICL 1. RI IiIRE’EI IINAT ION UAUSE IN CONTRACTS
FIJNI)ED IN WHOLE OR_PART BY FUNDS MADE AVAILAmF. IJNDER_THIS
AGREE ME N’I’

Grantee acknowledges, vani’ants, and agrees that Grantee shall include the fbI lowing
tennination clause in all contracts that arc (i) fended in whole or part by funds made
available under this Agreement and c ii) entered into after the effective date of this
Agreement:

is contract is funded iii whole or in part by lb ads made as ailable under an Economic
Development Department Giant /\greement. Should the Economic Development
Department early terminate the giant agreement, MainStreet tie F as Vegas in pLirtnership
with the City ol’ I..as Vegas may earl)’ terminate this coatract foe providing Contractor
written notice of such term imation. In the event of termination pursuant to this paragraph.
\‘lainStreet de Las Vegas in partnership with the City of [.as Vegas’otily liability shall he
to pay Contractor foe acceptable goods delivered and sers ices tendered before the
term i nation date.’’

Page l2ol’2l



Grant No. 4 9-I 8C205S-
1905

Grantee hereby \vai yes any rights to assert an impairment of contract claim against the
I)epartmeiit or the State of New Mexico in the event of 13.ai’lv termination oF this
Agrcenient by the Department.

XVI1. COMPLIANCE WITH UNIFORM FUXDING CRITFRIA.

A. Throughout the term of’ this Agreement. Grantee shall:
submit all reports oF’ annual audits and agreed upon procedures

required by Section 1 2—6-3(A)-fR) NMS’\ 1978 by the due dates established in 2.2.2
NMAC, reports of which must be a public record pursuant to Section 12-6—5(A) NMSA
1978 within [ortv-l:ve clays ofdeliverv to the State Auditor;

2. have a duly adopted budget [or the current tIscal year approved by
its budgetary oversight agency (if any):

3. timely submit all required flnanc ml reports to its budgetary
oversight agency (if any): and

4. have adequate accounting methods and procedures to expend giant
funds in accordance with applicable law and account fur and safeutiard grant funds nnd
assets acquired by grant funds.

13. In the event (iriilllce fbi Is to comply with the requirements of Paragraph A
of this Article XVII, tile Department may take one or more of the fl)llowillg actions:

suspend new or further obl igations pursuant to Article V 1(A) of’
i.li is Agrcen ien

2. require the Grantee to develop and implement a writwn corrective
action pEn puduait to !\rticlc V 1(D) of this Aereenient to remedy the non-compliance:

3. impose special grant conditions to address the non—compliance by
gis ing the (irintee notice of such special cond (ions in accordance s Ui A rticlo iti or this
AgreemenH the special conditions shall he binding rind etlective on the date that notice is
deemed to have been given pursuant to Article Ill; or

4. terminate this Agreement pursuant to Article V( A) of lit is
.‘\grecment.

ARTICLE XVIII. SE\’ERANCE TAX BONI) AND GENERAL OI3uGA’rloN
BOND PROJECT CLAUSES

A. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the underlying appropriation for the
Project is a severance tax bond or general obligation bond appropriation. and that the
associated bond proceeds are administered by the New Mexico State Hoard of Finance
(SHOE). an entity separate and distinct l’rom the Department. Cirnritee acknowledges and
agrees t[iat (i) it is Grantee’s sole and absoltite responsibility to determine through SF301’
stal’f what (if any’) conditions are currently imposed on the Project; ti i) the Departments
fuilure to infbrm Grantee of’ a S [301’ imposed condition does not aliect the validity or
entbrceability of the condition: (iii) the SHOE may in the future impose further or
different conditions upon the Project: (iv) all SHOE conditions are ei’l’ectivc without
amendment ot’ this Agreement; (v) all applicable SBOF conditions must be satisfied
before the SHOE will release to the Department funds subject to the condition(s): and (vi)

Page 13of21



Granl No, 419 $C205$
1905

the Department’s oh! igatioi to reiin[nirse Grantee fl’om the Project is cantincent upon the
ihen cun’enl SJ3OF conditions being satis! icc!.

B. Grantee acknowledges and agrees that the SBOF may in its sole and absolute
discretion remove a proicets assigned bond proceeds if’ the praject doesn’t proceed
sutficientis. Entities must comply with the requirement Lu encumber live percent (5%) ol
Project ftinds within six months of’ bond issuance as certified Lw the gmntee in the Bond
Questionnaii’e and Certilication documents stibmiltccl to the SF3C)F. Failure to compl.
may result in the bond proceeds reassignment to a new ready project. II this should occur
this grant agreement will he sLispended until the entity has demonstrated readiness as
determined by the SI3OF and the Deprtitineiii.

C. (irantee acknowledges and agrees that this Agreement is subject In the
S 130E’’s Bond Project Disbursements rule. NMAC 2,6! .6. as ma\ he amended or cc-
codified. The rule provides de[initinns and interpretations at’ grant language tar the
irosc of determining whether a particu Inc activit is allowable under the authorizing
language of the agreement.

tillS SPACE LE1T [U ANK INTENt IONALLY

Page 14 of21



Grant No. 419-1 8C’205$-
1905

IN \YITNESS W[ILREOF, the parties ha\c duly executed this Agreement as of
the date of execution b [he Departmen1

GRANTEE

ngnatuie of ()i’iicaI ta Authority to Bma Grantee

tZntity rrric

By:
(lype or Print Nanie)

1 zizLc/
Date

Sienature of\ininS.. ‘eel Presich’nt

By:
(ly’pc or Piint i’tanic)

fZLf
Date

ECONOMIC ])EVEI PMEN1’ DEPARTMENT

Dat.

I .egal Counsel Cmii t’ing legal su

Date

Page 5 of 2!



STATE OF NEW MEXICO
CAPITAL GRANT PROJECT

Gtaot No. 41 9-I 8C’2O58 Request for Paymont Form

Grantee Information IL Payment Computation
(Meke eli-s ornwnon 5 rrçlele & socurate) A Payment Request No —

__________________________

A Gran;sie. —________________________ B. Grant Amount:

B Address:

______________

C AIPP Amoint (‘[Applicable):

______ ______________

ctewrg. r”,i g soo 0. Funds Requested to Date:

B. Amount Requested the Payment

_________

__________________

F Re’.csroioc Amoui.t (i[AppllCahf9)

_______

CO 30’e Op G Grant Balance

C Phone Nc

_______

H fl CF [1 GOB El SIB (efrech wre if first dew)

D. Grart No

__________________________

I. [El Final Request for Payment ([Applicable)

E Project Title

_______

F. Grant Expiration Dote:

___________

Fiscal Year

_____________________________
________________________

(The Stats ef NM dincel Mesi July 1. 2QXXthroogh hits .30, 2o;<x ,ffw fiilu:,’trr)

IV. Reporting Certification: t hereb1’ ceily 0 the best ci n knoivecoe arc betie, Net detohass renoir is up to to i-clide the
El ciary of sped.tirea a’d grant balance, piQICci s:atir. pc,ec obese. sob esCCi’C ad a 05:00cc: 501 V Cc’lance nit Ahio e V 101

CapLtS. Outlay G-srt Agruwronl

V. Compliance Certification: Under penally of ‘Sw i re-shy zrtr:iry to boat c r know :ip sn:t heNS, the snose .ntorna’:rrt a
El correct expsrtilurss are o-opsry dcrrrtee, and a-c ,,a:d exijendit rots or actual woe pta ansi IoN the grant sciViiy is s tel corvplince w to

Ati ole N Sec. 14 at fire low Mocha Constitution know n is lIre ii’di rtc-ahon’ clause.

Grantee Fiscal Officer Grantee Representative

or Fiscal Agent (i( opp!;cah!e)

ph ited N Stile P tinted Name

Oats

____________________

Date

__________

(State Agency Use On’y)
Vendor Code Fri id Na.: Lox No,:

I cetlify that the State Agency financial and oendui file informatun agree with the ahoe submitted inforina:ion,

Divsion Fiecai Officer Date Division Pro act Manoger Date

Piirt 16o121



Giant No. 4 9-1 8C2058-
1905

the scope of the pro:cct dccciption, subject to all Ge terms and conG anus of die above
referenced G cant
:\grre1nerlt.

C; iant Amount InLs A 1l if applicable):

Ike Aniourn ot his Notice of Ol)liCaioii:

1 he ‘Fotal Anvunr of all Previously Isjcu Notices of Obligation:

Ilie ln:al fliOUflt of all Notices o Obligation to I)ate:

f\sIe. (,n/na! i;J;’sHh)[ moy occci f/c /ota/ girl/il :i//Ji/iil /1//I I/a’ /;))‘(j Cl p0/4 h) Ifs’ L/!ii/ a// Ho!

f/a’ cr0/i:’ (i//i.i/iif.

I )nactment Rep. i\pcuver:

Li tie:

Sina lure:

I) i

Page l$of2l



I 8C2058-l 905

AT’I’ACIIMENT A
GRANTEE MATCH DETAIL FORM

i & Completed h the Grantee anti Submitted with Each Parment I?eqjjg_st Form

The Grantee is requited to provide a matchmg contribution valued at t\so dollars (52.00) in match fbr every ten dollars (SI 0.00) of the

total (maul Amount. At least sixty percent (60%) of the Grantee’s match must be in the Grm of cash, and the remainder may be in the

form of in—kind contributions by the Grantee or any of the Grantee’s patties specilical ly identified in the Grant Agreement.

An in—finch eonuibntton is any service or item of cost that is necessary br the completion oftise work end Oat has a yen Pable and
accountable ecollolnic value, Sonic examples of it—kind contributions include:

e \iainStreer Executive Directors time dedicated to conidinating project activities:

o Value of the time and cost associated with assigning municipal statTto facet activities:

Items ofeost borne by the municipality or one of the municipality s partiteis in the project:

Cost of publicizing notices or meetings and events.

. (;uantee Ininriuntion

Grant \uinber: . Grantee:

‘I tie of Project: loud Grant Amount:

Total Payment Reqiiest:________ Dale of Request:

II. Grantee IutcIi Breakdosn

EJ Ciisht Match (speci hie dol lai’ amount):

In—Kind Match (spceit value):

[otal Match fbr This Payment: taiah Match To Date:

1(1. Explanation oI’Giantee .latcIi

Provide a detailed explanation of crantec notch ftr this payment.

!.\t..’::.io

- toot ‘t.,kii 1s ci ir lii iSts Pu’.gi

I n lie Oiled 0111 1w Orwitce:
Iteni It l)cscriptin — —____________________ DolLar Amount

4
lotalU at eli by C raij tee to r this Payment S

[>age 9 ol’2 I



Grant No. 41 9_ $(f205$- 905

ATTACHMENT B
PROJECT’ DESCREPT[ON AM) PROPOSE!) BUDGET’

Name at’ Grantee(s): MainSireet dc I .as \:‘egas in irtnership v’idi the City at’ I as Vegas

Grant Amount: $ 50000.00

Project Name: Great H locks an vIainStrcet: RaiL Road ?\venuc Phase 1 Construction Project

Project Description
SI 50.00000 thr GHOM: kni Road Avenue Phase Construction

Page 20 of’21



New Mexico State Library
1209 Camino CarLos Rey

Santa Fe, NM 87507

FY2020 STATE GRANTS-IN-AID ALLOCATION NOTIFICATION

1. Recipient Name: Carnegie Public Library

. City of Las Vegas
RemLt to Name and

2. 500 National Ave
Address:

Las Vegas, NM 87701

3. State of NM Vendor #: 54343

. . State Grants-in-Aid to Public Library
Project TttLe and Legal

4. . Statute/Administrative Code
and FLscaL Data:

NMSA 1978 Section 18-2-4 B, 4.5.2 NMAC

Carmelita Aragon
5. State Library Contact: New Mexico State Library

Carmelita.Aragon @state.nm.us

6. Source of Funding: State c/NM Legislature — Genera/Appropriation Act of2020

Library Type Grant: Public Library
Grant Type and Amount

7. . Branch(es) Grant: $ 0.00
Received:

Total Grant: $9,403.85

. Fiscal Year 2020
8. ALLocation Period:

ALL STATEAIDFUNDSMUSTBESPENTBYJUNE3O, 2020

The state aid program is intended to supplement and encourage
local effort in providing local library service.
State Aid Funds maybe used for

1) library collections;
2) library staffsatan es
3,) library staffprofessional development

Terms and Conditions 4) library equipment; or
9. of AlLocation: 5) other operational expenditures associated with delivery of

library services.
Libraries must report how all funds were spent in the FY2020 Annual
Report. A library’s local budget shall not be reduced by its
governing body as a result of eligibility for the state aid
program. Upon demonstrated evidence that such a reduction has
occurred, the library shall be ineligible to receive funds from the
library grants award for one year after the reduction has occurred.

10. Date: October 23, 2019



Administrative code is subject to change. Please always checkJbr the most up—to—date version online.

I STATE AID FOR PUBLIC LIBRARIES I
TITLE 4 CULTURAL RESOURCES
CHAPTER 5 STATE LIBRARY
PART 2 STATE GRANTS IN AID TO PUBLIC LIBRARIES

4.5.2.1 ISSUING AGENCY: Department of Cultural Affairs, New Mexico State Library Division.
[4.5.2.1 N\4AC - Rp, 4.5.2.1 NMAC, 6/1/2016]

4.5.2.2 SCOPE: Public libraries and developing public libraries.
[4.5.2.2 NMAC - Rp, 4.5.2.2 NMAC, 6/1/2016]

4.5.2.3 STATUTORY AUTHORITY: Subsection I of Section 18-2-4 NMSA 1978 directs the state librarian to
make rules and regulations necessary to administer the division and as provided by law. Subsection B of Section 18-2-4 NMSA
1 978 directs the state librarian to administer grants-in-aid and encourage local library services and generally promote an
effective statewide library system.
[4.5.2.3 NMAC - Rp,4.5.2.3 NMAC. 6/1/2016]

4.5.2.4 DURATION: Permanent.
[4.5.2.4 NMAC - Rp, 4.5.2.4 NMAC. 6l/20l6]

4.5.2.5 EFFECTIVE DATE: June 1, 2016 unless a later date is cited at the end of a section.
[4.5.2.5 NMAC - Rp, 4.5.2.5 \MAC, 6/1/20 16]

4.5.2.6 OBJECTIVE: The objective of this rule is to describe the state grants in aid to public libraries program
(hereinafter “the state aid program”) and to establish criteria for reviewing and awarding the grants. The purpose of the state
aid program is to provide financial assistance that encourages and supports public library service by public libraries and
developing public libraries. The state aid program is intended to supplement and encourage local effort in providing local
library service. The state aid progra11 consists of developing library grants and public library grants that may be used for:
library collections; library staff salaries; library staff professional development; library equipment; or other operational
expenditures associated with delivery of library services.
[4.5.2.6 NMAC - Rp. 4.5.2.6 NMAC, 6/1/2016]

4.5.2.7 DEFINITIONS:
A. “Annual report” means a report sent once a year from a public library or developing library to the state

library. An annual report shall at least accomplish the following tasks:
(1) provide information in the time, manner, and form prescribed by the state library;
(2) describe prior fiscal year’s activities, including income. expenditures. statistics on collections and

services, and compliance with state aid program criteria;
(3) be certified by the library as to the accuracy, completeness, and truthfulness of the infomiation

provided: and
(4) be approved by and on file at the state library.

B. “Basic library services” means free services provided in a library’s legal service area, including library
collections with circulating materials; reference services; a catalog of library holdings accessible by the public; educational
programs; interlibrary loan services; public access computers connected to the internet; and internet connectivity for patrons and
staff. Basic library service may include any technology or service that relates to the access to information for patron use.

C. “Bookmobile” means a mobile branch that offers basic library services with the exception of computers and
internet connectivity.

D. “Branch” means an auxiliary service administered by a public or developing library that provides the
following public services:

(1) separate quarters from the main library;
(2) a penrianent library collection and reference services;
(3) offers basic library services;
(4) staff present during open hours; and
(5) at least 20 hours of public access to physical quarters per week on an annual basis.



E. “Circulating materials” means items from library collections that are checked out by patrons for use outside
of the library.

F. “Collection development policy” means guidelines used by library staff for making decisions about the
budget for and selection, management, and preservation of library collections.

C. “Community analysis and needs assessment” means an evaluation of a library’s legal service area, its
current and fi.zture needs, and the library’s role in meeting those needs.

H. “Developing library” means a New Mexico organization that has initiated and is progressively implementing
basic library services within its legal service area.

(1) A developing library is established through one of the following mechanisms:
(a) through an ordinance or legal resolution of a subdivision of state government
(b) by a contract between a private entity and a subdivision of state government;
Cc) by an Indian nation; or
Cd) as a non-profit corporation.

(2) A developing library provides the following public services:
(a) staffpresent during open hours;
(b) at least 15 hours ofpublic access to physical quarters per week on an annual basis;
(c) at least two days ofpublic access to physical quarters per week on an annual basis; and
(d) hours ofoperation posted on or near the library.

I. “Fiscal year” means July 1 through June 30.
S. “Legal service area” means the geographic area for which a library has been established to offer services and

from which, or on behalfofwhich, the library derives income. The legal service area may be defined by a written agreement
with a political subdivision of the state for which the library is the primary service provider. The most recent United States or
tribal census determines the population of the legal service area if the population figures are given separately for that area. If
the census does not report a discreet population figure for the legal service area, then the state library in its sole discretion shall
determine the population for the library’s legal service area.

K. “Library board” means an administrative or advisory group comprised of representative mcmbers of the
library’s community.

L “Library collections” means library items for public use. Library collections may include such items as
books, videos, sound recordings, licensed databases, and equipment. A portion of the collections must be circulating materials.

M. “Library equipment” means equipment associated with the delivery of library services.
N. “Library star means salaried employees or volunteers whose time is regularly dedicated to delivery of

library services.
0. “Matching funds” means the amount expcndcd in a fiscal year for library collections from any source other

than the state. Sources for matching finds may include municipal finds, county funds, tribal finds, or money acquired through
donations, find-raising, or grants. In-kind contributions are not matching finds. Matching finds do not include finds used for
operating costs, administrative costs, or regular staff salaries.

P. “Public library” means a New Mexico organization that offers basic library services within its legal service
area.

(1) A public library is established through one of the following mechanisms:
(a) through an ordinance or legal resolution adopted by a subdivision of state government;
(b) by a contract between a private entity and a subdivision of state government;
(c) by an Indian nation; or
(d) as a non-profit corporation.

(2) A public library provides the following public services:
(a) staff dedicated to the library
(b) year-round public access to the physical location at least 25 hours per week;
Cc) at least two days ofpublic access to physical quarters per week on an annual basis; and
(d) hours ofoperation posted on or near the library.

Q. “Reference services” means the provision of library staff to answer reference questions during all the hours
the library is open.

R. “Strategic plan” means a detailed program to ensure that library services meet the current and fbture needs of
the library’s legal service area. The strategic plan shall include a vision and mission statement as well as goals and objectives.
and it shall cover a period ofat least the next three years and not exceed five years.
[4.5.2.7 NMAC - Rp. 4.5.2.7 NMAC, 61/2016]

4.5.2.8 DEVELOPING LIBRARY GRANT:
A. Purpose: To supplement an eligible developing library’s budget for up to five years until it meets the

minimum requirements for a public library grant.

2



B. Description: The developing library grant funds shall be used for library collections, library staff salaries.
library staff training, library equipment. or other operational expenditures associated with delivery of basic library services.

C. Criteria for reviewing and awarding developing library grants: The state library shall award developing
library grants to developing libraries that meet or exceed the following criteria.

1) timely submission of an annual report with the state library;
(2) receipt of no more than five, consecutive, awards of developing library grants;
(3) continuous operation for at least nine months;
(4) demonstration of receipt of financial support from sources other than the state. In particular, matching

funds in relation to the population of the library’s legal service shall be at least 50.25 per person in its first year and any non-
consecutive years of developing library grant application patticipatioI; S0.50 per person in its second consecutive year; S0.75
per person in its third consecutive year; SI .00 per person in its fourth consecutive year: and SI .25 per person in its fifth
consecutive year;

(5) maintenance of adequate financial and other records to support the library’s eligibility for i-eceiving
library grants; the state library may audit such records annually, or as needed, as detenriined in the state library’s sole discretion;

(6) compliance with all state statutes and rules;
(7) compliance with requirements for developing library grants;
(8) employment of a designated director;
(9) creation of a library board that meets at least two times a year and adheres to the state’s open meetings

law; and
(10) successful expenditure of all developing library grant funds during the prior fiscal year, if applicable.

[4.5.2.8 NMAC - Rp, 4.5.2.8 NMAC’. 6/1/20 16]

4.5.2.9 PUBLIC LIBRARY GRANT:
A. Purpose: To supplement eligible public libraries’ budgets.
B. Description: The public library grant funds shall be used for library collections. library staff salaries, library

staff training, library equipment, or other operational expenditures associated with delivery of’ basic library services.
C. Criteria for reviewing and awarding public library grants: The state library shall review and award public

I ibrai-y grants to public libraries that have met the following criteria:
1) timely submission of an annual report with the state library for the current year and a minimum of two

years prior;
(2) continuous operation for at least one year;
(3) receipt of a minimum of three consecutive developing library grants;
(4) demonstration of receipt of financial support from sources other than the state; in particular. matching

funds in relation to the population of the library’s legal service area shall be at least S 1.50 per person;
(5) maintenance of adequate financial and other records to support the public library’s eligibility for

receiving library grants: the state library may audit such records annually, or as needed, as determined in the state library’s sole
discretion;

(6) compliance with all state statutes and rules;
(7) compliance with all requirements for public library grants;
(8) Formation of a strategic plan that the public library reviews, updates, and files with the state library

every three years. and a community analysis and needs assessment, and a collection development policy that the public library
reviews, updates, and files with the state library every five years:

(9) maintain a library board that meets at least two times a year and adheres to the state open meetings
law;

(10) employment of a designated director; and
(11) successful expenditure of all public library grant funds during the prior fiscal year.

[4.5.2.9 NMAC - Rp. 4.5.2.9 NMAC. 6/l’2016]

4.5.2.10 DISTRIBUTION OF FUNDS: The library division shall distribute state grams in aid in the following
manner:

A. Application: The annual report submitted for the immediate prior year shall serve as the developing or public
library’s application for state grants-in-aid.

B. Allocation: For state grants-in-aid, the state library shall award at least a quarter of a share (0.25) of the
annual allocation to developing libraries, one (1) share of the allocation to each public library, and one half (.50) of a share of
the allocation to each branch and bookmobile.

C. Notification: Following the end of the application period, the state library shall calculate the grant award for
each library. The state library shall notify all eligible public libraries informing them of the amount of their grant.

D. Request for payment: Each library shall return the signed grant agreement to the state library within 60 days
of receipt of the agreement measured fi’om the postmark or electronic postmark. Upon tunely receipt of the grant agreement,



the state library shall process a payment request form. If a library does not submit the grant agreement within the required time
period, it forfeits the grant award.

E. Maintenance of effort: A library’s local budget shall not be reduced by its governing body as a result of
eligibility for the state aid program. Upon demonstrated evidence that such a reduction has occurred, the library shall be
ineligible to receive funds from the library grants award for one year after the reduction has occurred.
[4.5.2.10 NMAC - Rp, 4.5.2.11 NMAC. 6/1/2016]

4.5.2.11 LIMITATION ON FUNDS:
A. The grant amounts may vary by year, depending on the amount of the appropriation to the state library by the

state legislature and the state library’s other budgeted expenses.
B. Libraries shall not use grant funds for administrative or indirect expenses such as budgeting. accounting,

financial management, information systems. data processing, and legal services
C. Public and developing libraries shall expend all grant funds during the fiscal year in which they are awarded.
D. Should a libraiy cease providing basic library services prior to or within thirty days of funding grant funds

shall revert to the state library.
[4.5.2.11 NMAC - Rp,4.5.2.12 NMAC, 6/1/2016]

4.5.2.12 APPEAL OR VARIANCE:
A. In the event that any library is denied a grant by the state library or does not meet a requirement of this rule,

that library may appeal the decision of the state library or request a variance from the requirement.
B. Such appeal or variance shall be made in writing to the state librarian within 10 days of notification of denial

of funds or within 10 days of discovery of non-compliance with a requirement. The appeal or variance shall state all relevant
facts and conditions.

C. The state librarian shall consider each appeal or request for variance and respond in writing to the appealing or
requesting party with a decision within 30 days. The state librarian’s decision is the department of cultural affairs’ final action
on the matter.

[4.5.2.I2NMAC-Rp,4.5.2.I4NMAC. 6/1/2016]

HISTORY OF 4.5.2 NMAC:
Pre-NMAC History:
NMSL 67-1, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, Revised April 19, 1967, flIed 5/3/67.
NMSL 67-2, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, Amended August 28, 1967, filed 830/67.
NMSL 68-1, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, Amended August 28, 1967, filed 12 1968.
NMSL 69-1, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, Revised May 26, 1969, filed 620/69.
NMSL 69-2, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations Revised September 16, 1969, filed 10969.
NMSL 70-1, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, Revised Febrtiary 26, 1970. filed 4/27/70.
NMSL 73-4, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, June 1973, filed 7,10/73.
NMSL 74-1, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, July 19, 1974, filed 8.16, 74.
NMSL 75-1, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, 1975, filed 6/9/75.
NMSL 76-1, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, March 31, 1976, filed 427/76.
NMSL 77-1, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations. January 21, 1977, filed 2/4/77.
NMSL Rule 79-18, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries. Rules and Regulations. June 11, 1979, filed 625/79.
NMSL 79-3, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, July 1, 1979. filed 7/27/79.
NMSL 81-2, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, May 11, 1981, filed 5/12’81.
NMSL 89-1, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, filed 10/23’89.
NMSL 93-1, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations, filed 1/28/93.

History of Repealed Material:
NMSL 93-1, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations (filed 1/2893). repealed 7/1 ‘2000.
4.5.2 NMAC. State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries (filed 6/19/2000). repealed 7/1/2009.
4.5.2 NMAC. State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries (filed 7/1.2009). repealed 6/1/2016.
Other History:

NMSL 93-1, State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries, Rules and Regulations (filed l/2893) was replaced by 4.5.2 NMAC. State
Grants In Aid To Public Libraries, effective 7/1/2000.
4.5.2 NMAC. State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries (filed 6:19,2000) was replaced by 4.5.2 NMAC, State Grants In Aid To Public
Libraries, effective 7/1/2009.
4.5.2 NMAC. State Grants-In-Aid To Public Libraries (filed 7.. 1/2009) was replaced by 4.5.2 NMAC, State Grants In Aid To Public
Libraries, effective 6/1/2016.

4



State Grants-in-Aid Expenditures Guidance Sheet

The 4.5.2 New Mexico Administrative Code (NMAC) governs State Grants-in-Aid to pubLic libraries. To be
eligibLe to receive state aid, New Mexico public Libraries must meet eLigibility requirements as outlined in
the 4.5.2 NMAC. All awarded state grants-in-aid funds must be expended during the fiscal year in which
they are awarded.

This informational guidance sheet is not an exhaustive List of all allowable and non-allowable
expenditures. If there are questions as how to expend state aid funds, please contact the Library
Development Bureau for clarification prior to making purchases 1-800-340-3890.

AlLowabLe Purchases - State aid funds can be used for:

• Library Collections

o Items traditionally available at the library and intended for public use, such as books, e-books,
audiobooks, DVDs, CDs, electronic and digital media, licensed databases (e.g., ancestry.com,
mango languages), etc. are allowable. Non-traditional circulating/educational programming
items may also be allowable. Please contact the Development Bureau for more information.

• Library Staff Salaries

o State aid funds can be used to pay regular library staff for their work within the library.
Providing pay to a substitute library staff member may also be allowable.

• Library Staff Professional Development

o Travel (including meals and lodging) for attending in-state (e.g., NMLA) and out-of-state library
conferences (e.g., ALA, MPLA, PLA, ARSL), and trainings provided to library staff on library
related services/issues, which are organized and held at the library, or held at another location,
e.g., state library or other library.

• Library Equipment

o Items associated with meeting the information needs of library patron’s such as public
computers, printers, wireless routers, scanners, software and related peripherals, etc.

• Other Operational Expenditures Associated with Delivery of Library Services

o Expenditures associated with the delivery of library services, such as the Library’s catalog,
programming supplies, electric bills, phone bills, directional signage, copy paper, security costs,
etc.

o Contracts directly related to the delivery of basic library services to patrons, including
educational program subject matter experts, etc.

Non-ALlowable Purchases - State aid funds cannot be used for:

• Administrative or indirect expenses such as budgeting, accounting, financial management,
information systems, data processing, and legal services.

• Food, giveaways/incentives, college classes for library staff (i.e., tuition reimbursement), library
decorations, library staff furniture, recreational rentals/purchases (e.g., bouncy houses, party
supplies, pony rentals), etc.

• Operational expenditures that do not directly relate to the delivery of basic library services to library
patrons, including cost of parties, receptions, fund-raising events, other social functions,
maintenance/cleaning supplies, toilet paper, paper towels, cleaning equipment, vacuums, etc.

• Capital improvements and construction.

State Grants-in-Aid Exoenditures Guidance Sheet October 2018


	Agenda
	Minutes-October 9, 2019 WS
	Minutes-October 16, 2019 Regular
	Presentation-Certified Police Officers
	Presentation-Rate Assessment Studies
	Finance Report
	Consent Item 1
	Consent Item 2
	Consent Item 3
	Business Item 1
	Business Item 2
	Business Item 3

